
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JUNE 26, 2012 - 10 A.M.
           

1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Public recognition of 2 employees for May's "Spotlight on Employees" Program,
as follows: Merle Ray and Samson Arney. ( Erica Raymond)

 

3 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
12-06-02 naming a previously unnamed road as N. Byrne Road.  
(Michael O'Driscoll)

 

B Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
12-06-04 renaming E. Horseshoe Lane as E. Spadafore Way.  (Michael
O'Driscoll)

 

C Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
12-06-05 renaming a portion of N. McLellan Drive to E. Pecos Drive.  (Michael
O'Driscoll)

 

D Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
12-06-06 renaming a section of N. McLellan Drive as S. Camino Way.  (Michael
O'Driscoll)

 

4 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and convene
as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Grantee Agreement No.
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 that is between the San Carlos Apache Regional
Partnership Council, Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board
(First Things First) and the Gila County Library District, which is a
"Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of $36,663 for the period
August 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.  (Jacque Griffin) 

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 fiscal year
budget for the Gila County Library District.  (Jacque Griffin)  
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors
and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 fiscal year

  

  



C Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 fiscal year
budget for Gila County. (Don McDaniel)

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the Board of Supervisors' approval for
the electronic submission of a Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Task Force Grant
Application by the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Arizona Criminal Justice
Commission in the amount of $376,410 and, if awarded, to be used during the
period of July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2012.  (Johnny Sanchez)

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Third Amended
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona Counties
Insurance Pool which shall become effective upon the later of July 1, 2012, or
the approval of all parties as provided in paragraph 22 of the IGA, and shall
continue in force and effect for a period of ten years or until terminated in
accordance with the terms and provisions of the Agreement and, further, may
be renewed for an additional ten-year term by mutual agreement by part or all
of the parties prior to the expiration of the original or any renewal term of the
Agreement.  (Don McDaniel/John Nelson)

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County Population Health
Policy Initiative Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS12-021335)
between the Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila County Division of
Health and Emergency Services in the amount of $43,748 for the period April
1, 2012, through March 31, 2015.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to approve the revised Attachment A to
Agreement No. JPA 12-056 between Arizona Department of Transportation and
Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special Training and authorize the
match money total amount for the 5310 Programs of $10,166.98, for the
purchase of one lift-equipped cutaway van and one minivan without lift to allow
the GEST Program to continue providing the authorized transportation needs
to the individuals in Gila County.  (Dave Caddell)

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for
Bids No. 033012-1 for MC-800 liquid asphalt; award to the lowest, responsible
and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award
contract for the winning bidder.  (Joseph Heatherly)

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for
Bids No. 040112-1 for the purchase and delivery of bulk fuel and lubricants;
award to the most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize
the Chairmans' signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  
(Joseph Heatherly)

 

5 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Funding Agreement (Contract No. 174-10)
between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County Division of
Community Services, Housing Services, extending the contract end date from
May 1, 2012, to July 1, 2012.

 

  

  



B Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DE111073001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and the
Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action Program,
whereby the Arizona Department of Economic Security will provide cumulative
reimbursement ceiling funding in the amount of $1,735,780.13 to be used to
provide case management and community services to eligible citizens residing
in Gila County for the period from July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2015.

 

C Authorization of the Chairman's signature on an Agreement (Contract No.
C353) between Gila County and the National Network of Public Health
Institutes for the acceptance of a $5,000 grant from the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation, which will be utilized by the Division of Health and Emergency
Services to complete a quality improvement project for the period April 1, 2012,
through December 31, 2012.

 

D Approval of Grantee Agreement No. GRA-STATE-13-0502-01 between the
Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First)
and the Gila County Health Department in the amount of $16,920 for the
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

 

E Approval of Amendment No. 6 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. HG854565) between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health
Services in the amount of $12,000 to provide tuberculosis services for the
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

 

F Approval of Extension of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between
Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services for
one year from July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2013, under the same terms and
conditions as set forth in the original IGA as agreed upon by both parties.

 

G Approval of Extension of Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020 between Gila
County Community Development Division, Gila County Health Division, and
the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) to delegate functions
of ADEQ statutes, rules and policies for water quality and solid waste
management functions and duties.  Agreement previously extended until June
30, 2012, and it has been extended to June 30, 2013, or the effective date of
the new agreement, whatever occurs first.  

 

H Approval to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-03 authorizing Gila County Probation
Department's participation in the FY 2012-2013 Family Counseling Program
through the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts,
Juvenile Justice Services Division, and certifying that a matching fund
requirement of $2,305 for the Program will be provided by the County.

 

I Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit submitted by
Gary Werlinger to temporarily extend the premises where liquor is permitted to
be served at the Landmark at the Creek for the period June 29, 2012, through
July 8, 2012, for special events.

 

J Approval of an Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona Division of

  

  



J Approval of an Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona Division of
Forestry for the disbursement of $15,000 to Gila County in order to proceed
with three environmental projects (that are common to and which impact
economic development) in Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee and Navajo counties
which, were identified by the Environmental Economic Communities
Organization on behalf of the counties and submitted to the State Forester who
has approved them.

 

K Approval of the April 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace.

 

L Approval of the May 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace.

 

M Approval of the May 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

 

N Approval of the May 22, 2012, and June 5, 2012, BOS regular meeting
minutes; and the June 19, 2012, BOS emergency session meeting minutes.

 

O Acknowledgment  of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by
the County Manager for the weeks of May 19, 2012, to May 25, 2012; May 26,
2012, to June 1, 2012; and June 2, 2012, to June 8, 2012.

 

P Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of June 12,
2012, June 19, 2012, and June 26, 2012.

 

 

6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board
members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action
taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to study
the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

7 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-1278     Presentation Agenda Item      2- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Berthan
DeNero,
Human
Resources
Director

Submitted By:

Erica Raymond, Human Resources
Assistant, Human Resources

Department: Human Resources
Presenter's Name: Erica

Raymond

Information
Request/Subject
May 2012 "Spotlight on Employees" Program

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the following
qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer service and initiative.

Evaluation
n/a

Conclusion
n/a

Recommendation
To allow the Human Resources Department to publicly recognize 2 employees for May
2012 through the County's "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of 2 employees for May's "Spotlight on Employees" Program, as
follows: Merle Ray and Samson Arney. ( Erica Raymond)



Presentation Agenda Item      2- A             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Erica Raymond, Human Resources
Assistant, Human Resources

Human Resources



   

ARF-1280     Public Hearing      3- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health &
Emergency Services Division Director

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Deputy Director
of Emergency Services, Health &
Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Presenter's Name: Michael O'Driscoll

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No.12-06-02 naming a previously unnamed road as N. Byrne Road.

Background Information
On January 4, 2012, Mr. Bill Byrne contacted the Gila County Rural Addressing Department concerning
establishing a street name for his street.  He stated that having no street address name caused problems
for mail and parcel deliveries.  Rural Addressing did a site visit and determined that there was no official
street name associated with the 3 properties on the road.  A letter was sent to the 3 affected property
owners seeking their input as to the street name.  

Initially, a street name of N. Byrne Lane was assigned and a resolution to adopt the name was
submitted for consideration at the April 17, 2012, Board of Supervisors meeting.  At that meeting Mr.
Bill Byrne requested a change in the name and the item was tabled.

Evaluation
On May 10, 2012, a new petition was submitted by all 3 property owners requesting a proposed name of
Byrne Road.  Rural Addressing personnel assigned a directional, per ordinance requirements, and
assigned road name N. Byrne Road.  This name meets the criteria as listed in Gila County Street
Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 11-03.

Conclusion
A Public Notice was submitted to the Arizona Silverbelt for publication in two consecutive issues
beginning May 23, 2012 and May 30, 2012, as required by the Ordinance.

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health & Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors
conduct a public hearing for public comment and then consider adopting Resolution No.12-06-02
naming a previously un-named road as N. Byrne Road.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-02 naming a previously
unnamed road as N. Byrne Road.  
(Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Petition
Public Notice
Publication Copy
Ordinance 11-03
Resolution 12-06-02





PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will 
hold a public hearing for the naming of a previously un-named road in the Globe area.  
The road name will be: N. Byrne Road. 
 
To file an objection to the proposed name change, residents must file an alternative 
petition in writing to the Rural Addressing Department by Friday, June 22, 2012 per Gila 
County Street Naming Ordinance No. 11-03. 
 
The public hearing to name N. Byrne Road previously scheduled for June 5, 2012 
is rescheduled and will take place on June 26, 2012 at 10:00am, or thereafter, 
located at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ and 
simultaneously broadcast to the Board of Supervisors Conference room in County 
Complex, 610 E. Highway 260, Payson, AZ. 
 
Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 
Kevin M. Kenney 
Rural Addressing Analyst 
1(800) 304-4452 ext 8510 
1(928) 402-8510 





ORDINANCE NO. 11-03 
 

GILA COUNTY STREET NAMING AND 
PROPERTY NUMBERING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Courthouse 
Gila County Rural Addressing Department 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 500 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

(928) 402-8510 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   __________________________________ 
      County Attorney’s Office 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:    __________________________________ 
      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date  
 
 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 1 
 



 
 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila 
County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last 
amended it on May 19, 1998 (Recorder’s Fee No. 1998-7563); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance No. 11-03 – Gila County Street Naming and 
Property Numbering will supersede the previous adopted and amended Gila County 
Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
that: 
 

STREET NAMING AND PROPERTY NUMBERING ORDINANCE 
 

ARTICLE 1-TITLE AND PURPOSE 
 

An ordinance adopted to provide for the uniform assignment of property numbers on all 
private residences, public buildings, businesses, and any other building used for human 
occupancy, habitation or conducting of business along public and private right-of-ways, 
easements or any other access routes, renaming of existing streets with conflicting or 
duplicate names and naming of unnamed and new accesses in order to provide for 
efficient emergency services and the safety of Gila County residents, provide for 
generation and collection of fees for assignment of new addresses; provide for the 
enforcement of said Ordinance; and prescribing penalties for the violation thereof.  
 

ARTICLE 2-SHORT TITLE 
 

For the purpose of identification these regulations shall be known as the “Street Naming 
and Property Numbering Ordinance for Gila County”. 
 

ARTICLE 3- APPLICABILITY 
 

This Ordinance shall apply to all unincorporated and non-reservation lands within the 
area of Gila County. 
 

ARTICLE 4- SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any article, section or regulation of this Ordinance be judicially declared 
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as 
a whole, or any portion thereof other than the article, section or regulation so declared to 
be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 2 
 



ARTICLE 5- DEFINITIONS 
  
SECTION 501 Block numbering System: [ESRI software] In ArcGIS, a group of 

records in a compressed file geodatabase feature class or tables that 
are stored together. The arrangement of compressed data into 
blocks helps optimize query performance  

 
SECTION 502 Frontage Units: A frontage unit is a standard interval in front 

footage of an existing parcel used to assign consecutive property 
numbers, on a street, right-of-way, easement or access route 
beginning from the nearest intersection.  

 
SECTION 503 Address Prefixes and Suffixes: Address prefixes are words 

preceding a street name and indicating a direction. Address 
suffixes are words following a street name and indicating the type 
of street.  

 
SECTION 504 Thoroughfare Designations: Streets are sometimes ranked by 

function and size, and each category is assigned a specific name 
suffix called thoroughfare designations. 

 
ARTICLE 6- DEFINITIONS OF THOROUGHFARE DESIGNATIONS: 

 
SECTION 601 Boulevard: A Street with a median reflecting the boulevard 

character and so indicated by the name (also applied to Parkways). 
A major thoroughfare running in a diagonal direction, rather than 
east-west or north-south, it must connect at least two sections and 
act as a collector. 

 
SECTION 602 Courts:  Permanently closed streets such as cul-de-sacs.  

Horseshoe-shaped streets generally designed by one name 
throughout their entire length. Ease-west streets less than 500 feet 
in length.  

 
SECTION 603 Drives:  Winding thoroughfares, diagonal curvilinear or 

other types of roads not previously mentioned.  Roads that 
meander about and continue through to other rights-of-way. 

 
SECTION 604 Highways: Designated State or Federal Highways.  This term 

could be used even when a road generally runs north-south or east-
west. U.S. routes are designated as highways.  

 
SECTION 605 Interstate: Roads of the highest order, characterized by limited 

access, wide right-of-way, prohibited adjacent to development and 
with through-traffic preference. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 3 
 



SECTION 606 Lanes:  Reduced right-of-way branching from courts, 
places, or ways.  Curving streets of less than 500 feet.  An 
uninterrupted street ending in a cul-de-sac and generally 
designated by a name.  

 
SECTION 607 Loops and Circles: Circles could be short streets that return to 

themselves.  Loops could be short drives that begin and end in the 
same street.  

 
SECTION 608 Parkways: (Also see Boulevard)   A special scenic route or 

park drive, generally designated by a name.  
 
SECTION 609 Paths:  A minor local street running in a diagonal direction, 

usually between a north-south “Street” and an east-west “Avenue”; 
a path may also be a diagonal connector between offset portions of 
a north-south or east-west collector thoroughfare.  

 
SECTION 610 Place:      A cul-de-sac or permanent dead-end road.  North-south 

streets less than 500 feet in length.  
 
SECTION 611 Roads:       Limited thoroughfares that are frequently used, have 

heavy traffic volume, and run in any direction.  Secondary 
facilities connecting with a U.S. or state primary highway.  

 
SECTION 612 Street and Avenues:   Streets run north and south and Avenues 

run east and west. This may be reversed in municipal areas 
previously addressed by other authorities using a different method. 

 
SECTION 613 Trails:    A diagonal local street serving as a collector for one or 

more local thoroughfares.  
 
SECTION 614 Ways:     Dead-end right-of-ways under 500 feet running at 

oblique angles to the four points of the compass.  If there are three 
or more homes, the road is designated on the road system, even if 
it is private.  

 
ARTICLE 7-ASSIGNING NUMBERS TO INDIVIDUAL PROPERTIES 

 
SECTION 701 Property numbers for dwelling units and places of business on all 

public and private streets shall be assigned by the Gila County 
Rural Addressing Department in accordance with provisions 
outlined herein.  

 
SECTION 702 Property numbering shall be uniform, based on street frontage. 
 
SECTION 703 Property numbering shall be in a consecutive sequence.  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 4 
 



 
 
SECTION 704 Even numbers shall always be assigned on one side of the street 

and odd numbers shall be assigned on the other.  Even numbers 
shall be on the north and west sides of the streets and odd numbers 
shall be on the south and east sides of the streets.  The exception is 
municipal areas previously addressed by other authorities using a 
different method.  Once assigned, numbers shall not be arbitrarily 
changed, except by the Gila County Rural Addressing Department.  
If an area is annexed by a municipality, the existing addresses will 
be changed at the discretion of the municipality.  

 
SECTION 705 Numbering shall be in accordance with the Gila County block 

numbering system. One thousand addresses shall be provided per 
mile for expansion.  

 
SECTION 706 Apartments/Condominiums/ Group Housing: 
 

A. Numbers shall be assigned where the driveway joins the street. 
This becomes the street address of all units which face upon 
that interior court.  Separate internal units of condominiums 
and apartments shall be designated with sub-numbers or letters, 
not individual property numbers. 

 
B. Mobile home parks shall be treated like other multifamily 

developments.  The property shall be assigned one number, and 
each mobile home shall receive numerical designations such as 
Sp.1, Sp. 2, Sp.3, etc.  However, if the development is a mobile 
home subdivision built in conformance with subdivision 
regulations, the properties shall be treated as individual 
residences. 

 
SECTION 707 Business Districts: In a business district, the main entrance to 

each separate establishment shall have its own number in sequence 
with other businesses along the street.  

 
SECTION 708 Street Starting from Different Points on the Same Cross Street:   

When a street does not begin at the same location as a parallel 
street, the numbers shall begin with the same number measured 
from the base line as on the parallel street.  Likewise, buildings 
facing streets that do not extend to the base line at present shall be 
assigned numbers as if they were extended. 

 
SECTION 709 Diagonal Streets:  The general principle to apply when numbering 

diagonal streets is to treat the street as either a north-south or an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 5 
 



east-west street based on the greatest distance covered in any 
specific direction.   

 
SECTION 710 Corner Lots: When assigning a number to a building on a corner 

lot, assign a number from the street upon which the front entrance 
faces for a business; or assign a number from the street from which 
the driveway enters for a residence.  Dual addresses shall be 
avoided.  If a corner building has two entrances which both look 
like front entrances, the decision is based on the general site layout 
and driveway entrance.  

 
SECTION 711 Duplex Buildings and Rear Houses on Interior Lots: 
 

A. Separate numbers shall be assigned to each separate dwelling 
on a parcel, excluding duplexes which will have one address 
and be separated by units.  

  
B. If there is access from a parallel street, numbers are assigned 

from the series on that street.  In the case of commercial or 
industrial facilities, auxiliary buildings would not be assigned 
separate numbers, however, the main building where mail is 
received and business is transacted would receive a property 
number.  

 
SECTION 712 Numbering on Circle Streets and Horseshoes:   Circle Streets or 

horseshoe-shaped streets begin and end touching the same street.  
It is advisable in such cases to ignore compass directions and to 
give numbers on such streets to correspond with the numbering on 
the streets where the circle originated.  The even numbers shall be 
on the inside of the circle and the odd number shall be on the 
outside of the circle.  

 
ARTICLE 8-STREET NAMES: 

 
SECTION 801 Choice of Names:  Names should be chosen that relate to the scale 

and location of a project.  
 

A. Objectives- Names should be pleasant sounding, appropriate, 
and easy to read (so that the public, and children in particular, 
can handle the name in an emergency situation). 

 
  

B. Unacceptable Street Names- Names that do not conform to 
current State of Arizona 9-1-1 GIS Standards.  

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 6 
 



C. Name Length- The complete road name shall consist of no 
more than 16 spaces, including road name, spaces between and 
the County Signing approved abbreviation for road suffix.  

 
D. Complete Name- A complete name shall consist of no more 

than four words, including prefix and suffix.  Examples: 
 

1.   North Toya Vista Road 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (2 words), Suffix (1 word) 

2. South Calle de Caballos 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (3 words), Primary includes 
the suffix-equivalent 

 
SECTION 802 Prefixes:  All street names shall begin with one directional prefix, 

north, south, east, or west, which shall be assigned with permanent 
addresses.  Additional unnecessary prefixes and suffixes shall be 
avoided.  Combinations of directions are not acceptable.  Example:  
Northwest Sierra Circle. 

 
SECTION 803 Suffixes:  Boulevard, Drive, Road and Parkway for arterial 

highways used with the discretion of the Rural Addressing 
Department.  Also acceptable are lane, Avenue, Street, Loop, 
Circle, Court, Path, Trail, and other designation consistent with the 
intent of this section reviewed and approved by Rural Addressing 
Staff.  

 
SECTION 804 Name Duplication:  Similar sounding names are considered to be 

duplication regardless of spelling. Duplication of names within 
each zip code service area is not permitted. 

 
SECTION 805 Continuity: 
  

A. A continuous street, or one proposed to be continuous, should 
bear the same name throughout, even though it changes 
directions.  If it is interrupted by a channel, freeway, railroad, 
etc., and eventual connection is not probable, the segments may 
bear different names.  

 
B. No separate name is to be used for a cul-de-sac that provides 

street frontage for less than three lots or units.  The name shall 
be the same as that of the intersecting street.  Where there is a 
series of long and short cul-de-sacs, all should have separate 
names.  

 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 7 
 



SECTION 806  Existing Streets Naming and Renaming: 
 

A. Rural Addressing personnel shall determine the necessity to 
name or rename a new or existing street, right-of-way, or 
private access determined according to criteria set forth in 
Article 8 of this Ordinance.  Proposed naming may also be 
initiated by citizen petition in accordance with section 806.  
Citizen petitions must have signatures of at least 75% of the 
property owners who own property adjacent to the street 
subject to the proposed naming.  

 
 

B. For proposed changes to an existing street, right-of-way, or 
access, Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall proceed 
with one of the two methods set forth in Section 806-D for 
public notification.  The method shall be determined by a 
standard of numbers to notify economics and time constraints.  

 
C. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall notify the public 

of a proposed road naming or name change by the following 
method: 

 
1. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall originate a 

public notice for publication in two consecutive issues of 
the County’s contracted publications contractor or by 
mailing property owners said public notice.  Included in 
this publication will be:  the previous road name, the 
proposed name change, a sketch of the road in question, a 
description of the policy to oppose this change, the date for 
filing objections as well as the date scheduled for the 
renaming to be presented to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors for action.  The public will be given from the 
first date of the first printed publication to one week after 
the last date of publication to file objection petitions and to 
meet with Gila County Rural Addressing personnel to come 
to a consensus. 
  

D. To file objections to name changes initiated by the Rural 
Addressing staff, petition, or Board of Supervisors, residents 
and/or property owners must submit an alternate petition or 
objection in writing to the Rural Addressing Department in 
accordance with the time period stated in C. above.  Petitions 
must have signatures of at least 75% of residents and/or 
property owners who reside and/or own property adjacent to 
the street subject to the proposed naming or renaming.  
Petitioners must have agreed to a name to be used as an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 8 
 



alternative to that proposed by the Rural Addressing Office or 
the Board of Supervisors.  To submit an objection in writing to 
a proposed name change, the resident and/or property owner 
should include the name of the road to be changed and their 
reason for objecting it. 

  
E. If proposed names changes are not objected to or if alternative 

names presented by residents and/or landowners are approved, 
changes may be adopted by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors at their next regularly scheduled meeting.  

 
F. After the approval of a name change, any subsequent proposed 

name changes shall not be considered for a period of 10 years.  
 

G. All renaming of streets not required by this Ordinance will be 
completed at the expense of the person or group submitting the 
request of name change.  The fees will be set in accordance to 
the Gila County Rural Addressing Fee Schedule approved by 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors and the fee must be 
received in the Gila County Rural Addressing Department 
prior to proceeding with the request.  A petition will need to be 
completed, following the steps as stated in section 806.A 
above.  The petition will be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors for approval.  

 
SECTION 807 Guidelines for Renaming Existing Streets:  The following 

guidelines shall be followed for renaming existing streets which 
have names that are duplicated within Gila County.  These are not 
listed in order of preference or importance. 

 
A. Does one street have any historical reason for having the name 

it has? 
B. Which street has the least number of houses on it and thus 

would require the least number of address changes? 
C. Which street has had its name for the longest period of time? 
D. Is the name appropriate according to the other street names in 

the neighborhood? 
E. Which street name is used for the longest distance or the most 

traveled section? 
 
SECTION 808  Street Names and Numbering in New Subdivisions: 
 
 Street names and numbering shall be determined in accordance 

with the street naming and numbering policy adopted by resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors.  Along with the preliminary plat map, 
the sub divider shall submit a street naming proposal to the Rural 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 9 
 



Addressing Department said proposal shall include copies of (1) a 
map of the overall tract illustrating street layout, the name 
proposed for each street, and (2) an alphabetical list of the 
proposed street names, together with an alternate name for each 
name proposed.  The Rural Addressing Department shall review 
the proposed street names for duplication of names, 
appropriateness of names, and for overall compliance with the 
street naming policy.  Approved street names shall be included in 
the final plat map which is submitted to the Board of Supervisors 
for approval and for recordation.  

 
ARTCLE 9- STREET SIGNS: 

 
SECTION 901 Characteristics:  Signs posted on County roads, Private Roads and 

Public Right-of-Ways will be approved by the Director of 
Engineering Services.  

 
SECTION 902 Installation:  Street name signs, approved by the Rural Addressing 

Department shall be installed at the direction of the Engineering 
Director.  

 
ARTICLE 10-POSTING OF PROPERTY NUMBERS 

 
SECTION 1001 Methods and Characteristics for Posting Designated Street 

Addresses: 
 

A. Property numbers shall be attached to dwelling units or 
buildings, located so as to be visible from and oriented toward 
the street from which address is taken.  These numbers shall be 
3.5 by 3.5 inch reflective numbers and shall be visible at all 
times.  

 
B. When a house or building is some distance from a road, or 

when view of the house or building is blocked by trees or 
shrubs, property number shall be on a sign attached to a tree, 
fence, gate, or lawn stake. 

 
C. On a corner lot, the property number shall face street named in 

the address.  
 
D. Numerals indicating the official address for each principal 

building or each front entrance to such building shall be posted 
in a manner as to be legible and distinguishable from the street 
on which the property is located. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 10 
 



E. If there is a rear entrance or a hidden structure, a post shall 
display the number on the path leading to the entrance. 

 
SECTION 1002 Responsibilities to post Property Numbers: 
 

A. Each owner or occupant in charge of any residence or building 
to which a number has been assigned may be notified in 
writing by the Rural Addressing Department of the number 
assigned to the same at any time following the adoption or 
revision of the ordinance. 

 
B. Within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of such written 

notification from the Rural Addressing Department the owner 
or occupant of a residence or building to which a number has 
been assigned shall affix the number in a conspicuous manner 
in a conspicuous place.   

 
C. It shall be the duty of such owner or occupant thereof upon 

affixing the new number to remove any different number 
which might be mistaken for or confused with the number 
assigned to said structure by the Rural Addressing Department. 

 
D. If a property number is damaged, lost, or in any way destroyed, 

said number shall be replaced immediately by the owner, 
occupant, or person in charge of the residence or building at 
their expense.  Said replacement shall be purchased from the 
Rural Addressing Department or shall be of comparable 
material and size as mentioned in Article 10, Section 1001, A.  

 
ARTICLE 11- PENALTIES: 

 
SECTION 1101 Enforcement by Civil Penalty:  In the event that the owner or 

occupant of any residence, building or structure to which a correct 
address has been assigned refuses to comply with the terms of this 
ordinance within thirty (30) days of notification by failing to affix 
the number assigned or to remove any old numbers affixed to such 
house, or house entrance, or elsewhere, which may be confused 
with the number assigned thereto, they shall be subject to civil 
penalty. 

 
SECTION 1102 Violations: 
 

A. For initial violations of this Ordinance, the penalty shall be 
Fifty ($50.00) dollars for an individual person or One Hundred 
($100.00) dollars for an enterprise.  

  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 11 
 



B. For a subsequent violation arising out of the same facts, the 
penalty shall be One Hundred ($100.00) dollars for an 
individual person or Two Hundred ($200.00) dollars for an 
enterprise.  

 
SECTION 1103 Jurisdiction of Hearing Officer:  All violations of Ordinance shall 

result in a civil penalty being assessed and shall fall under the 
jurisdiction of a County Hearing Officer appointed for this 
purpose.  The Hearing Officer shall not have the jurisdiction to 
impose criminal penalties.  

 
SECTION 1104 Rules of Procedure:  All rules of procedure for hearings in front of 

the County Hearing Officer shall apply to civil violations arising 
under this Ordinance.  

 
ARTICLE 12-FEES: 

 
Section 1201 A schedule of fees shall be set by the Board of Supervisors to 

collect monies to cover expenses incurred during road name 
changes and property addressing.  The schedule of fees shall be 
posted in a prominent place in the Rural Addressing Department 
and copies shall be available to the public upon request. 

 
SECTION 1202 The Board of Supervisors may change the schedule of fees as 

needed to keep current with rising costs without affecting any 
change in this Ordinance itself.  

 
ARTICLE 13-AMENDMENTS 

 
SECTION 1301 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, modified, suspended, waived or 
repealed at the discretion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
following a public hearing at which parties in interest and other 
citizens have an opportunity to be heard.  

 
SECTION 1302 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, or modified, at the initiation the 
Rural Addressing Department following a public hearing at which 
parties in interest and other citizens have an opportunity to be 
heard. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 12 
 



 
          PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011. 

 

ATTEST:    GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
          
Marian Sheppard   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  
Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
     
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 13 
 



Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 14 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

ADDRESSES:   New-     No Charge 
     Replacement-Number Plaque  $10.00 
                         
   
 
 
ROAD NAMING/RENAMING Duplicate-    No Charge 
     Unnamed-    No Charge 
     Voluntary Renaming-   $700.00 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-06-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, NAMING ONE ROAD IN GILA COUNTY TO BE 
CALLED N. BYRNE ROAD. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County 

Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 
28, 2011; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of 

property numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the 
safety of Gila County residents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially comply with the 

provisions of the Ordinance: 
 

N. BYRNE ROAD - Section 4, T1N, R15E 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

does officially recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with 
the numbering of properties along said streets and directs the appropriate County departments to 
incorporate these names uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June 2012, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



   

ARF-1308     Public Hearing      3- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health &
Emergency Services Division Director

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Deputy Director
of Emergency Services, Health &
Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 12-06-04 Renaming E. Horseshoe Lane as E. Spadafore Way

Background Information
County resident Mrs. Cynthia Spadafore of Claypool, Arizona, contacted Rural Addressing with a request
to rename a street off of Russell Road in the Little Acres Tract Amended Plat 527. The street in question
is presently named E. Horseshoe Lane. It is an E-W street intersecting with Russell Road and generally
running in an easterly direction. Said street is located within T1N, R 15 E, Section 27, NW1/4,
SE1/4,SW1/4.

Evaluation
On April 4, 2012, Mrs. Cynthia Spadafore delivered a check for $700 to satisfy the renaming fee defined
by the Schedule of Fees attached to Ordinance No. 11-03, Gila County Street Naming and Property
Numbering Ordinance.

Conclusion
An initial advertisement of the name change was published May 11, 2012, and May 18, 2012, in the
official newspaper of the County for 2012.  A publication revising the agenda date is scheduled for June
13, 2012, and June 20, 2012.   No public comments or objections have been received or expected.

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health & Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 12-06-04 renaming E. Horseshoe Lane as E. Spadafore Way.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-04 renaming E.
Horseshoe Lane as E. Spadafore Way.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Petition
Public Notice
Resolution No. 12-06-04
Ordinance 11-03







PUBLIC NOTICE 

  PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
will hold a public hearing for the renaming of a street in the Central Heights area, 
off of Russell Road.  The street that will be renamed was previously named: E. 
Horseshoe Way.  The proposed new name will be: E. Spadafore Way. 

 To file an objection to the proposed name change, residents must file an 
alternative petition in writing to the Rural Addressing Department by Friday June, 
22, 2012 per Gila County Street Naming Ordinance No. 11‐03. 

The hearing will (may ) take place on Tuesday, June 26, 2012 at 10:00 a.m., or 
thereafter, located at the Gila County  Courthouse, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
AZ  and simultaneously broadcast to the Payson Board of Supervisors Conference 
room at the County Complex, 610 E. Highway 260, Payson, AZ. 

Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 
Kevin M. Kenney 
Rural Addressing Analyst 
1(800)‐304‐4452 ext.8510 
1(928)402‐8510 
 
Advertise for June 13 and June 20, 2012 



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-06-04 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, RENAMING ONE ROAD IN GILA COUNTY TO 
BE CALLED E. SPADAFORE WAY. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street Naming and 
Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 2011; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of property 
numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the safety of Gila County 
residents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the name of the existing street is E. Horseshoe Lane; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 8, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance provides guidelines for 
the renaming of existing streets; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially comply with the provisions of the 
Ordinance: 

 
          E. Spadafore Way - Section 27, T1N, R 15 E, NW1/4, SE1/4, SW1/4. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does officially 
recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the numbering of 
properties along said streets and directs the appropriate County departments to incorporate these names 
uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June 2012, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



ORDINANCE NO. 11-03 
 

GILA COUNTY STREET NAMING AND 
PROPERTY NUMBERING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Courthouse 
Gila County Rural Addressing Department 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 500 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

(928) 402-8510 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   __________________________________ 
      County Attorney’s Office 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:    __________________________________ 
      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date  
 
 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 1 
 



 
 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila 
County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last 
amended it on May 19, 1998 (Recorder’s Fee No. 1998-7563); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance No. 11-03 – Gila County Street Naming and 
Property Numbering will supersede the previous adopted and amended Gila County 
Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
that: 
 

STREET NAMING AND PROPERTY NUMBERING ORDINANCE 
 

ARTICLE 1-TITLE AND PURPOSE 
 

An ordinance adopted to provide for the uniform assignment of property numbers on all 
private residences, public buildings, businesses, and any other building used for human 
occupancy, habitation or conducting of business along public and private right-of-ways, 
easements or any other access routes, renaming of existing streets with conflicting or 
duplicate names and naming of unnamed and new accesses in order to provide for 
efficient emergency services and the safety of Gila County residents, provide for 
generation and collection of fees for assignment of new addresses; provide for the 
enforcement of said Ordinance; and prescribing penalties for the violation thereof.  
 

ARTICLE 2-SHORT TITLE 
 

For the purpose of identification these regulations shall be known as the “Street Naming 
and Property Numbering Ordinance for Gila County”. 
 

ARTICLE 3- APPLICABILITY 
 

This Ordinance shall apply to all unincorporated and non-reservation lands within the 
area of Gila County. 
 

ARTICLE 4- SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any article, section or regulation of this Ordinance be judicially declared 
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as 
a whole, or any portion thereof other than the article, section or regulation so declared to 
be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 2 
 



ARTICLE 5- DEFINITIONS 
  
SECTION 501 Block numbering System: [ESRI software] In ArcGIS, a group of 

records in a compressed file geodatabase feature class or tables that 
are stored together. The arrangement of compressed data into 
blocks helps optimize query performance  

 
SECTION 502 Frontage Units: A frontage unit is a standard interval in front 

footage of an existing parcel used to assign consecutive property 
numbers, on a street, right-of-way, easement or access route 
beginning from the nearest intersection.  

 
SECTION 503 Address Prefixes and Suffixes: Address prefixes are words 

preceding a street name and indicating a direction. Address 
suffixes are words following a street name and indicating the type 
of street.  

 
SECTION 504 Thoroughfare Designations: Streets are sometimes ranked by 

function and size, and each category is assigned a specific name 
suffix called thoroughfare designations. 

 
ARTICLE 6- DEFINITIONS OF THOROUGHFARE DESIGNATIONS: 

 
SECTION 601 Boulevard: A Street with a median reflecting the boulevard 

character and so indicated by the name (also applied to Parkways). 
A major thoroughfare running in a diagonal direction, rather than 
east-west or north-south, it must connect at least two sections and 
act as a collector. 

 
SECTION 602 Courts:  Permanently closed streets such as cul-de-sacs.  

Horseshoe-shaped streets generally designed by one name 
throughout their entire length. Ease-west streets less than 500 feet 
in length.  

 
SECTION 603 Drives:  Winding thoroughfares, diagonal curvilinear or 

other types of roads not previously mentioned.  Roads that 
meander about and continue through to other rights-of-way. 

 
SECTION 604 Highways: Designated State or Federal Highways.  This term 

could be used even when a road generally runs north-south or east-
west. U.S. routes are designated as highways.  

 
SECTION 605 Interstate: Roads of the highest order, characterized by limited 

access, wide right-of-way, prohibited adjacent to development and 
with through-traffic preference. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 3 
 



SECTION 606 Lanes:  Reduced right-of-way branching from courts, 
places, or ways.  Curving streets of less than 500 feet.  An 
uninterrupted street ending in a cul-de-sac and generally 
designated by a name.  

 
SECTION 607 Loops and Circles: Circles could be short streets that return to 

themselves.  Loops could be short drives that begin and end in the 
same street.  

 
SECTION 608 Parkways: (Also see Boulevard)   A special scenic route or 

park drive, generally designated by a name.  
 
SECTION 609 Paths:  A minor local street running in a diagonal direction, 

usually between a north-south “Street” and an east-west “Avenue”; 
a path may also be a diagonal connector between offset portions of 
a north-south or east-west collector thoroughfare.  

 
SECTION 610 Place:      A cul-de-sac or permanent dead-end road.  North-south 

streets less than 500 feet in length.  
 
SECTION 611 Roads:       Limited thoroughfares that are frequently used, have 

heavy traffic volume, and run in any direction.  Secondary 
facilities connecting with a U.S. or state primary highway.  

 
SECTION 612 Street and Avenues:   Streets run north and south and Avenues 

run east and west. This may be reversed in municipal areas 
previously addressed by other authorities using a different method. 

 
SECTION 613 Trails:    A diagonal local street serving as a collector for one or 

more local thoroughfares.  
 
SECTION 614 Ways:     Dead-end right-of-ways under 500 feet running at 

oblique angles to the four points of the compass.  If there are three 
or more homes, the road is designated on the road system, even if 
it is private.  

 
ARTICLE 7-ASSIGNING NUMBERS TO INDIVIDUAL PROPERTIES 

 
SECTION 701 Property numbers for dwelling units and places of business on all 

public and private streets shall be assigned by the Gila County 
Rural Addressing Department in accordance with provisions 
outlined herein.  

 
SECTION 702 Property numbering shall be uniform, based on street frontage. 
 
SECTION 703 Property numbering shall be in a consecutive sequence.  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 4 
 



 
 
SECTION 704 Even numbers shall always be assigned on one side of the street 

and odd numbers shall be assigned on the other.  Even numbers 
shall be on the north and west sides of the streets and odd numbers 
shall be on the south and east sides of the streets.  The exception is 
municipal areas previously addressed by other authorities using a 
different method.  Once assigned, numbers shall not be arbitrarily 
changed, except by the Gila County Rural Addressing Department.  
If an area is annexed by a municipality, the existing addresses will 
be changed at the discretion of the municipality.  

 
SECTION 705 Numbering shall be in accordance with the Gila County block 

numbering system. One thousand addresses shall be provided per 
mile for expansion.  

 
SECTION 706 Apartments/Condominiums/ Group Housing: 
 

A. Numbers shall be assigned where the driveway joins the street. 
This becomes the street address of all units which face upon 
that interior court.  Separate internal units of condominiums 
and apartments shall be designated with sub-numbers or letters, 
not individual property numbers. 

 
B. Mobile home parks shall be treated like other multifamily 

developments.  The property shall be assigned one number, and 
each mobile home shall receive numerical designations such as 
Sp.1, Sp. 2, Sp.3, etc.  However, if the development is a mobile 
home subdivision built in conformance with subdivision 
regulations, the properties shall be treated as individual 
residences. 

 
SECTION 707 Business Districts: In a business district, the main entrance to 

each separate establishment shall have its own number in sequence 
with other businesses along the street.  

 
SECTION 708 Street Starting from Different Points on the Same Cross Street:   

When a street does not begin at the same location as a parallel 
street, the numbers shall begin with the same number measured 
from the base line as on the parallel street.  Likewise, buildings 
facing streets that do not extend to the base line at present shall be 
assigned numbers as if they were extended. 

 
SECTION 709 Diagonal Streets:  The general principle to apply when numbering 

diagonal streets is to treat the street as either a north-south or an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 5 
 



east-west street based on the greatest distance covered in any 
specific direction.   

 
SECTION 710 Corner Lots: When assigning a number to a building on a corner 

lot, assign a number from the street upon which the front entrance 
faces for a business; or assign a number from the street from which 
the driveway enters for a residence.  Dual addresses shall be 
avoided.  If a corner building has two entrances which both look 
like front entrances, the decision is based on the general site layout 
and driveway entrance.  

 
SECTION 711 Duplex Buildings and Rear Houses on Interior Lots: 
 

A. Separate numbers shall be assigned to each separate dwelling 
on a parcel, excluding duplexes which will have one address 
and be separated by units.  

  
B. If there is access from a parallel street, numbers are assigned 

from the series on that street.  In the case of commercial or 
industrial facilities, auxiliary buildings would not be assigned 
separate numbers, however, the main building where mail is 
received and business is transacted would receive a property 
number.  

 
SECTION 712 Numbering on Circle Streets and Horseshoes:   Circle Streets or 

horseshoe-shaped streets begin and end touching the same street.  
It is advisable in such cases to ignore compass directions and to 
give numbers on such streets to correspond with the numbering on 
the streets where the circle originated.  The even numbers shall be 
on the inside of the circle and the odd number shall be on the 
outside of the circle.  

 
ARTICLE 8-STREET NAMES: 

 
SECTION 801 Choice of Names:  Names should be chosen that relate to the scale 

and location of a project.  
 

A. Objectives- Names should be pleasant sounding, appropriate, 
and easy to read (so that the public, and children in particular, 
can handle the name in an emergency situation). 

 
  

B. Unacceptable Street Names- Names that do not conform to 
current State of Arizona 9-1-1 GIS Standards.  

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 6 
 



C. Name Length- The complete road name shall consist of no 
more than 16 spaces, including road name, spaces between and 
the County Signing approved abbreviation for road suffix.  

 
D. Complete Name- A complete name shall consist of no more 

than four words, including prefix and suffix.  Examples: 
 

1.   North Toya Vista Road 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (2 words), Suffix (1 word) 

2. South Calle de Caballos 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (3 words), Primary includes 
the suffix-equivalent 

 
SECTION 802 Prefixes:  All street names shall begin with one directional prefix, 

north, south, east, or west, which shall be assigned with permanent 
addresses.  Additional unnecessary prefixes and suffixes shall be 
avoided.  Combinations of directions are not acceptable.  Example:  
Northwest Sierra Circle. 

 
SECTION 803 Suffixes:  Boulevard, Drive, Road and Parkway for arterial 

highways used with the discretion of the Rural Addressing 
Department.  Also acceptable are lane, Avenue, Street, Loop, 
Circle, Court, Path, Trail, and other designation consistent with the 
intent of this section reviewed and approved by Rural Addressing 
Staff.  

 
SECTION 804 Name Duplication:  Similar sounding names are considered to be 

duplication regardless of spelling. Duplication of names within 
each zip code service area is not permitted. 

 
SECTION 805 Continuity: 
  

A. A continuous street, or one proposed to be continuous, should 
bear the same name throughout, even though it changes 
directions.  If it is interrupted by a channel, freeway, railroad, 
etc., and eventual connection is not probable, the segments may 
bear different names.  

 
B. No separate name is to be used for a cul-de-sac that provides 

street frontage for less than three lots or units.  The name shall 
be the same as that of the intersecting street.  Where there is a 
series of long and short cul-de-sacs, all should have separate 
names.  

 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 7 
 



SECTION 806  Existing Streets Naming and Renaming: 
 

A. Rural Addressing personnel shall determine the necessity to 
name or rename a new or existing street, right-of-way, or 
private access determined according to criteria set forth in 
Article 8 of this Ordinance.  Proposed naming may also be 
initiated by citizen petition in accordance with section 806.  
Citizen petitions must have signatures of at least 75% of the 
property owners who own property adjacent to the street 
subject to the proposed naming.  

 
 

B. For proposed changes to an existing street, right-of-way, or 
access, Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall proceed 
with one of the two methods set forth in Section 806-D for 
public notification.  The method shall be determined by a 
standard of numbers to notify economics and time constraints.  

 
C. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall notify the public 

of a proposed road naming or name change by the following 
method: 

 
1. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall originate a 

public notice for publication in two consecutive issues of 
the County’s contracted publications contractor or by 
mailing property owners said public notice.  Included in 
this publication will be:  the previous road name, the 
proposed name change, a sketch of the road in question, a 
description of the policy to oppose this change, the date for 
filing objections as well as the date scheduled for the 
renaming to be presented to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors for action.  The public will be given from the 
first date of the first printed publication to one week after 
the last date of publication to file objection petitions and to 
meet with Gila County Rural Addressing personnel to come 
to a consensus. 
  

D. To file objections to name changes initiated by the Rural 
Addressing staff, petition, or Board of Supervisors, residents 
and/or property owners must submit an alternate petition or 
objection in writing to the Rural Addressing Department in 
accordance with the time period stated in C. above.  Petitions 
must have signatures of at least 75% of residents and/or 
property owners who reside and/or own property adjacent to 
the street subject to the proposed naming or renaming.  
Petitioners must have agreed to a name to be used as an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 8 
 



alternative to that proposed by the Rural Addressing Office or 
the Board of Supervisors.  To submit an objection in writing to 
a proposed name change, the resident and/or property owner 
should include the name of the road to be changed and their 
reason for objecting it. 

  
E. If proposed names changes are not objected to or if alternative 

names presented by residents and/or landowners are approved, 
changes may be adopted by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors at their next regularly scheduled meeting.  

 
F. After the approval of a name change, any subsequent proposed 

name changes shall not be considered for a period of 10 years.  
 

G. All renaming of streets not required by this Ordinance will be 
completed at the expense of the person or group submitting the 
request of name change.  The fees will be set in accordance to 
the Gila County Rural Addressing Fee Schedule approved by 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors and the fee must be 
received in the Gila County Rural Addressing Department 
prior to proceeding with the request.  A petition will need to be 
completed, following the steps as stated in section 806.A 
above.  The petition will be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors for approval.  

 
SECTION 807 Guidelines for Renaming Existing Streets:  The following 

guidelines shall be followed for renaming existing streets which 
have names that are duplicated within Gila County.  These are not 
listed in order of preference or importance. 

 
A. Does one street have any historical reason for having the name 

it has? 
B. Which street has the least number of houses on it and thus 

would require the least number of address changes? 
C. Which street has had its name for the longest period of time? 
D. Is the name appropriate according to the other street names in 

the neighborhood? 
E. Which street name is used for the longest distance or the most 

traveled section? 
 
SECTION 808  Street Names and Numbering in New Subdivisions: 
 
 Street names and numbering shall be determined in accordance 

with the street naming and numbering policy adopted by resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors.  Along with the preliminary plat map, 
the sub divider shall submit a street naming proposal to the Rural 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 9 
 



Addressing Department said proposal shall include copies of (1) a 
map of the overall tract illustrating street layout, the name 
proposed for each street, and (2) an alphabetical list of the 
proposed street names, together with an alternate name for each 
name proposed.  The Rural Addressing Department shall review 
the proposed street names for duplication of names, 
appropriateness of names, and for overall compliance with the 
street naming policy.  Approved street names shall be included in 
the final plat map which is submitted to the Board of Supervisors 
for approval and for recordation.  

 
ARTCLE 9- STREET SIGNS: 

 
SECTION 901 Characteristics:  Signs posted on County roads, Private Roads and 

Public Right-of-Ways will be approved by the Director of 
Engineering Services.  

 
SECTION 902 Installation:  Street name signs, approved by the Rural Addressing 

Department shall be installed at the direction of the Engineering 
Director.  

 
ARTICLE 10-POSTING OF PROPERTY NUMBERS 

 
SECTION 1001 Methods and Characteristics for Posting Designated Street 

Addresses: 
 

A. Property numbers shall be attached to dwelling units or 
buildings, located so as to be visible from and oriented toward 
the street from which address is taken.  These numbers shall be 
3.5 by 3.5 inch reflective numbers and shall be visible at all 
times.  

 
B. When a house or building is some distance from a road, or 

when view of the house or building is blocked by trees or 
shrubs, property number shall be on a sign attached to a tree, 
fence, gate, or lawn stake. 

 
C. On a corner lot, the property number shall face street named in 

the address.  
 
D. Numerals indicating the official address for each principal 

building or each front entrance to such building shall be posted 
in a manner as to be legible and distinguishable from the street 
on which the property is located. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 10 
 



E. If there is a rear entrance or a hidden structure, a post shall 
display the number on the path leading to the entrance. 

 
SECTION 1002 Responsibilities to post Property Numbers: 
 

A. Each owner or occupant in charge of any residence or building 
to which a number has been assigned may be notified in 
writing by the Rural Addressing Department of the number 
assigned to the same at any time following the adoption or 
revision of the ordinance. 

 
B. Within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of such written 

notification from the Rural Addressing Department the owner 
or occupant of a residence or building to which a number has 
been assigned shall affix the number in a conspicuous manner 
in a conspicuous place.   

 
C. It shall be the duty of such owner or occupant thereof upon 

affixing the new number to remove any different number 
which might be mistaken for or confused with the number 
assigned to said structure by the Rural Addressing Department. 

 
D. If a property number is damaged, lost, or in any way destroyed, 

said number shall be replaced immediately by the owner, 
occupant, or person in charge of the residence or building at 
their expense.  Said replacement shall be purchased from the 
Rural Addressing Department or shall be of comparable 
material and size as mentioned in Article 10, Section 1001, A.  

 
ARTICLE 11- PENALTIES: 

 
SECTION 1101 Enforcement by Civil Penalty:  In the event that the owner or 

occupant of any residence, building or structure to which a correct 
address has been assigned refuses to comply with the terms of this 
ordinance within thirty (30) days of notification by failing to affix 
the number assigned or to remove any old numbers affixed to such 
house, or house entrance, or elsewhere, which may be confused 
with the number assigned thereto, they shall be subject to civil 
penalty. 

 
SECTION 1102 Violations: 
 

A. For initial violations of this Ordinance, the penalty shall be 
Fifty ($50.00) dollars for an individual person or One Hundred 
($100.00) dollars for an enterprise.  

  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 11 
 



B. For a subsequent violation arising out of the same facts, the 
penalty shall be One Hundred ($100.00) dollars for an 
individual person or Two Hundred ($200.00) dollars for an 
enterprise.  

 
SECTION 1103 Jurisdiction of Hearing Officer:  All violations of Ordinance shall 

result in a civil penalty being assessed and shall fall under the 
jurisdiction of a County Hearing Officer appointed for this 
purpose.  The Hearing Officer shall not have the jurisdiction to 
impose criminal penalties.  

 
SECTION 1104 Rules of Procedure:  All rules of procedure for hearings in front of 

the County Hearing Officer shall apply to civil violations arising 
under this Ordinance.  

 
ARTICLE 12-FEES: 

 
Section 1201 A schedule of fees shall be set by the Board of Supervisors to 

collect monies to cover expenses incurred during road name 
changes and property addressing.  The schedule of fees shall be 
posted in a prominent place in the Rural Addressing Department 
and copies shall be available to the public upon request. 

 
SECTION 1202 The Board of Supervisors may change the schedule of fees as 

needed to keep current with rising costs without affecting any 
change in this Ordinance itself.  

 
ARTICLE 13-AMENDMENTS 

 
SECTION 1301 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, modified, suspended, waived or 
repealed at the discretion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
following a public hearing at which parties in interest and other 
citizens have an opportunity to be heard.  

 
SECTION 1302 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, or modified, at the initiation the 
Rural Addressing Department following a public hearing at which 
parties in interest and other citizens have an opportunity to be 
heard. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 12 
 



 
          PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011. 

 

ATTEST:    GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
          
Marian Sheppard   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  
Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
     
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 13 
 



Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 14 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

ADDRESSES:   New-     No Charge 
     Replacement-Number Plaque  $10.00 
                         
   
 
 
ROAD NAMING/RENAMING Duplicate-    No Charge 
     Unnamed-    No Charge 
     Voluntary Renaming-   $700.00 

 
 

 
 
 
 



   

ARF-1309     Public Hearing      3- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health &
Emergency Services Division Director

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Deputy Director
of Emergency Services, Health &
Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 12-06-05 renaming a portion of N. McLellan Drive to E. Pecos Drive

Background Information
In September 2011, a request for addressing of newly sold parcels on N. McLellan Drive triggered an
analysis of the property numbering range along that road.

Evaluation
Limitations to the current property numbering scheme and changes to roadways in the defined section
that occurred after the original naming of N. McLellan Drive made it apparent that 2 sections of the road
needed to be renamed and renumbered in order to comply with Ordinance 11-03 Gila County Street
Naming and Property Numbering. 
The two new road names are: E. Pecos Drive and S. Camino Way.

Conclusion
A publication explaining the renaming was published and no comments or objections were received by
Rural Addressing personnel during the defined comment period.

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health & Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 12-06-05 renaming a portion of N. McLellan Drive to E. Pecos Drive.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-05 renaming a portion
of N. McLellan Drive to E. Pecos Drive.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Resolution 12-06-05
Map
Publication
Ordinance



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-06-05 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, RENAMING A PORTION OF ONE ROAD IN GILA 
COUNTY TO BE CALLED E. PECOS DR. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street Naming and 
Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 2011; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of property 
numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the safety of Gila County 
residents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the name of the existing street is N. McLellan Drive; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 8, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance provides guidelines for 
the renaming of existing streets; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially comply with the provisions of the 
Ordinance: 

 
E. Pecos Drive - Section 14, T6N, R10E, NW ¼ 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does officially 
recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the numbering of 
properties along said streets and directs the appropriate County departments to incorporate these names 
uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June 2012, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



dwilliams
Text Box
E. Pecos Dr.

dwilliams
Text Box
S. Camino Way

dwilliams
Rectangle

dwilliams
Rectangle





ORDINANCE NO. 11-03 
 

GILA COUNTY STREET NAMING AND 
PROPERTY NUMBERING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Courthouse 
Gila County Rural Addressing Department 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 500 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

(928) 402-8510 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   __________________________________ 
      County Attorney’s Office 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:    __________________________________ 
      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date  
 
 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 1 
 



 
 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila 
County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last 
amended it on May 19, 1998 (Recorder’s Fee No. 1998-7563); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance No. 11-03 – Gila County Street Naming and 
Property Numbering will supersede the previous adopted and amended Gila County 
Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
that: 
 

STREET NAMING AND PROPERTY NUMBERING ORDINANCE 
 

ARTICLE 1-TITLE AND PURPOSE 
 

An ordinance adopted to provide for the uniform assignment of property numbers on all 
private residences, public buildings, businesses, and any other building used for human 
occupancy, habitation or conducting of business along public and private right-of-ways, 
easements or any other access routes, renaming of existing streets with conflicting or 
duplicate names and naming of unnamed and new accesses in order to provide for 
efficient emergency services and the safety of Gila County residents, provide for 
generation and collection of fees for assignment of new addresses; provide for the 
enforcement of said Ordinance; and prescribing penalties for the violation thereof.  
 

ARTICLE 2-SHORT TITLE 
 

For the purpose of identification these regulations shall be known as the “Street Naming 
and Property Numbering Ordinance for Gila County”. 
 

ARTICLE 3- APPLICABILITY 
 

This Ordinance shall apply to all unincorporated and non-reservation lands within the 
area of Gila County. 
 

ARTICLE 4- SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any article, section or regulation of this Ordinance be judicially declared 
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as 
a whole, or any portion thereof other than the article, section or regulation so declared to 
be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 2 
 



ARTICLE 5- DEFINITIONS 
  
SECTION 501 Block numbering System: [ESRI software] In ArcGIS, a group of 

records in a compressed file geodatabase feature class or tables that 
are stored together. The arrangement of compressed data into 
blocks helps optimize query performance  

 
SECTION 502 Frontage Units: A frontage unit is a standard interval in front 

footage of an existing parcel used to assign consecutive property 
numbers, on a street, right-of-way, easement or access route 
beginning from the nearest intersection.  

 
SECTION 503 Address Prefixes and Suffixes: Address prefixes are words 

preceding a street name and indicating a direction. Address 
suffixes are words following a street name and indicating the type 
of street.  

 
SECTION 504 Thoroughfare Designations: Streets are sometimes ranked by 

function and size, and each category is assigned a specific name 
suffix called thoroughfare designations. 

 
ARTICLE 6- DEFINITIONS OF THOROUGHFARE DESIGNATIONS: 

 
SECTION 601 Boulevard: A Street with a median reflecting the boulevard 

character and so indicated by the name (also applied to Parkways). 
A major thoroughfare running in a diagonal direction, rather than 
east-west or north-south, it must connect at least two sections and 
act as a collector. 

 
SECTION 602 Courts:  Permanently closed streets such as cul-de-sacs.  

Horseshoe-shaped streets generally designed by one name 
throughout their entire length. Ease-west streets less than 500 feet 
in length.  

 
SECTION 603 Drives:  Winding thoroughfares, diagonal curvilinear or 

other types of roads not previously mentioned.  Roads that 
meander about and continue through to other rights-of-way. 

 
SECTION 604 Highways: Designated State or Federal Highways.  This term 

could be used even when a road generally runs north-south or east-
west. U.S. routes are designated as highways.  

 
SECTION 605 Interstate: Roads of the highest order, characterized by limited 

access, wide right-of-way, prohibited adjacent to development and 
with through-traffic preference. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 3 
 



SECTION 606 Lanes:  Reduced right-of-way branching from courts, 
places, or ways.  Curving streets of less than 500 feet.  An 
uninterrupted street ending in a cul-de-sac and generally 
designated by a name.  

 
SECTION 607 Loops and Circles: Circles could be short streets that return to 

themselves.  Loops could be short drives that begin and end in the 
same street.  

 
SECTION 608 Parkways: (Also see Boulevard)   A special scenic route or 

park drive, generally designated by a name.  
 
SECTION 609 Paths:  A minor local street running in a diagonal direction, 

usually between a north-south “Street” and an east-west “Avenue”; 
a path may also be a diagonal connector between offset portions of 
a north-south or east-west collector thoroughfare.  

 
SECTION 610 Place:      A cul-de-sac or permanent dead-end road.  North-south 

streets less than 500 feet in length.  
 
SECTION 611 Roads:       Limited thoroughfares that are frequently used, have 

heavy traffic volume, and run in any direction.  Secondary 
facilities connecting with a U.S. or state primary highway.  

 
SECTION 612 Street and Avenues:   Streets run north and south and Avenues 

run east and west. This may be reversed in municipal areas 
previously addressed by other authorities using a different method. 

 
SECTION 613 Trails:    A diagonal local street serving as a collector for one or 

more local thoroughfares.  
 
SECTION 614 Ways:     Dead-end right-of-ways under 500 feet running at 

oblique angles to the four points of the compass.  If there are three 
or more homes, the road is designated on the road system, even if 
it is private.  

 
ARTICLE 7-ASSIGNING NUMBERS TO INDIVIDUAL PROPERTIES 

 
SECTION 701 Property numbers for dwelling units and places of business on all 

public and private streets shall be assigned by the Gila County 
Rural Addressing Department in accordance with provisions 
outlined herein.  

 
SECTION 702 Property numbering shall be uniform, based on street frontage. 
 
SECTION 703 Property numbering shall be in a consecutive sequence.  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 4 
 



 
 
SECTION 704 Even numbers shall always be assigned on one side of the street 

and odd numbers shall be assigned on the other.  Even numbers 
shall be on the north and west sides of the streets and odd numbers 
shall be on the south and east sides of the streets.  The exception is 
municipal areas previously addressed by other authorities using a 
different method.  Once assigned, numbers shall not be arbitrarily 
changed, except by the Gila County Rural Addressing Department.  
If an area is annexed by a municipality, the existing addresses will 
be changed at the discretion of the municipality.  

 
SECTION 705 Numbering shall be in accordance with the Gila County block 

numbering system. One thousand addresses shall be provided per 
mile for expansion.  

 
SECTION 706 Apartments/Condominiums/ Group Housing: 
 

A. Numbers shall be assigned where the driveway joins the street. 
This becomes the street address of all units which face upon 
that interior court.  Separate internal units of condominiums 
and apartments shall be designated with sub-numbers or letters, 
not individual property numbers. 

 
B. Mobile home parks shall be treated like other multifamily 

developments.  The property shall be assigned one number, and 
each mobile home shall receive numerical designations such as 
Sp.1, Sp. 2, Sp.3, etc.  However, if the development is a mobile 
home subdivision built in conformance with subdivision 
regulations, the properties shall be treated as individual 
residences. 

 
SECTION 707 Business Districts: In a business district, the main entrance to 

each separate establishment shall have its own number in sequence 
with other businesses along the street.  

 
SECTION 708 Street Starting from Different Points on the Same Cross Street:   

When a street does not begin at the same location as a parallel 
street, the numbers shall begin with the same number measured 
from the base line as on the parallel street.  Likewise, buildings 
facing streets that do not extend to the base line at present shall be 
assigned numbers as if they were extended. 

 
SECTION 709 Diagonal Streets:  The general principle to apply when numbering 

diagonal streets is to treat the street as either a north-south or an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 5 
 



east-west street based on the greatest distance covered in any 
specific direction.   

 
SECTION 710 Corner Lots: When assigning a number to a building on a corner 

lot, assign a number from the street upon which the front entrance 
faces for a business; or assign a number from the street from which 
the driveway enters for a residence.  Dual addresses shall be 
avoided.  If a corner building has two entrances which both look 
like front entrances, the decision is based on the general site layout 
and driveway entrance.  

 
SECTION 711 Duplex Buildings and Rear Houses on Interior Lots: 
 

A. Separate numbers shall be assigned to each separate dwelling 
on a parcel, excluding duplexes which will have one address 
and be separated by units.  

  
B. If there is access from a parallel street, numbers are assigned 

from the series on that street.  In the case of commercial or 
industrial facilities, auxiliary buildings would not be assigned 
separate numbers, however, the main building where mail is 
received and business is transacted would receive a property 
number.  

 
SECTION 712 Numbering on Circle Streets and Horseshoes:   Circle Streets or 

horseshoe-shaped streets begin and end touching the same street.  
It is advisable in such cases to ignore compass directions and to 
give numbers on such streets to correspond with the numbering on 
the streets where the circle originated.  The even numbers shall be 
on the inside of the circle and the odd number shall be on the 
outside of the circle.  

 
ARTICLE 8-STREET NAMES: 

 
SECTION 801 Choice of Names:  Names should be chosen that relate to the scale 

and location of a project.  
 

A. Objectives- Names should be pleasant sounding, appropriate, 
and easy to read (so that the public, and children in particular, 
can handle the name in an emergency situation). 

 
  

B. Unacceptable Street Names- Names that do not conform to 
current State of Arizona 9-1-1 GIS Standards.  

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 6 
 



C. Name Length- The complete road name shall consist of no 
more than 16 spaces, including road name, spaces between and 
the County Signing approved abbreviation for road suffix.  

 
D. Complete Name- A complete name shall consist of no more 

than four words, including prefix and suffix.  Examples: 
 

1.   North Toya Vista Road 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (2 words), Suffix (1 word) 

2. South Calle de Caballos 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (3 words), Primary includes 
the suffix-equivalent 

 
SECTION 802 Prefixes:  All street names shall begin with one directional prefix, 

north, south, east, or west, which shall be assigned with permanent 
addresses.  Additional unnecessary prefixes and suffixes shall be 
avoided.  Combinations of directions are not acceptable.  Example:  
Northwest Sierra Circle. 

 
SECTION 803 Suffixes:  Boulevard, Drive, Road and Parkway for arterial 

highways used with the discretion of the Rural Addressing 
Department.  Also acceptable are lane, Avenue, Street, Loop, 
Circle, Court, Path, Trail, and other designation consistent with the 
intent of this section reviewed and approved by Rural Addressing 
Staff.  

 
SECTION 804 Name Duplication:  Similar sounding names are considered to be 

duplication regardless of spelling. Duplication of names within 
each zip code service area is not permitted. 

 
SECTION 805 Continuity: 
  

A. A continuous street, or one proposed to be continuous, should 
bear the same name throughout, even though it changes 
directions.  If it is interrupted by a channel, freeway, railroad, 
etc., and eventual connection is not probable, the segments may 
bear different names.  

 
B. No separate name is to be used for a cul-de-sac that provides 

street frontage for less than three lots or units.  The name shall 
be the same as that of the intersecting street.  Where there is a 
series of long and short cul-de-sacs, all should have separate 
names.  

 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 7 
 



SECTION 806  Existing Streets Naming and Renaming: 
 

A. Rural Addressing personnel shall determine the necessity to 
name or rename a new or existing street, right-of-way, or 
private access determined according to criteria set forth in 
Article 8 of this Ordinance.  Proposed naming may also be 
initiated by citizen petition in accordance with section 806.  
Citizen petitions must have signatures of at least 75% of the 
property owners who own property adjacent to the street 
subject to the proposed naming.  

 
 

B. For proposed changes to an existing street, right-of-way, or 
access, Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall proceed 
with one of the two methods set forth in Section 806-D for 
public notification.  The method shall be determined by a 
standard of numbers to notify economics and time constraints.  

 
C. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall notify the public 

of a proposed road naming or name change by the following 
method: 

 
1. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall originate a 

public notice for publication in two consecutive issues of 
the County’s contracted publications contractor or by 
mailing property owners said public notice.  Included in 
this publication will be:  the previous road name, the 
proposed name change, a sketch of the road in question, a 
description of the policy to oppose this change, the date for 
filing objections as well as the date scheduled for the 
renaming to be presented to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors for action.  The public will be given from the 
first date of the first printed publication to one week after 
the last date of publication to file objection petitions and to 
meet with Gila County Rural Addressing personnel to come 
to a consensus. 
  

D. To file objections to name changes initiated by the Rural 
Addressing staff, petition, or Board of Supervisors, residents 
and/or property owners must submit an alternate petition or 
objection in writing to the Rural Addressing Department in 
accordance with the time period stated in C. above.  Petitions 
must have signatures of at least 75% of residents and/or 
property owners who reside and/or own property adjacent to 
the street subject to the proposed naming or renaming.  
Petitioners must have agreed to a name to be used as an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 8 
 



alternative to that proposed by the Rural Addressing Office or 
the Board of Supervisors.  To submit an objection in writing to 
a proposed name change, the resident and/or property owner 
should include the name of the road to be changed and their 
reason for objecting it. 

  
E. If proposed names changes are not objected to or if alternative 

names presented by residents and/or landowners are approved, 
changes may be adopted by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors at their next regularly scheduled meeting.  

 
F. After the approval of a name change, any subsequent proposed 

name changes shall not be considered for a period of 10 years.  
 

G. All renaming of streets not required by this Ordinance will be 
completed at the expense of the person or group submitting the 
request of name change.  The fees will be set in accordance to 
the Gila County Rural Addressing Fee Schedule approved by 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors and the fee must be 
received in the Gila County Rural Addressing Department 
prior to proceeding with the request.  A petition will need to be 
completed, following the steps as stated in section 806.A 
above.  The petition will be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors for approval.  

 
SECTION 807 Guidelines for Renaming Existing Streets:  The following 

guidelines shall be followed for renaming existing streets which 
have names that are duplicated within Gila County.  These are not 
listed in order of preference or importance. 

 
A. Does one street have any historical reason for having the name 

it has? 
B. Which street has the least number of houses on it and thus 

would require the least number of address changes? 
C. Which street has had its name for the longest period of time? 
D. Is the name appropriate according to the other street names in 

the neighborhood? 
E. Which street name is used for the longest distance or the most 

traveled section? 
 
SECTION 808  Street Names and Numbering in New Subdivisions: 
 
 Street names and numbering shall be determined in accordance 

with the street naming and numbering policy adopted by resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors.  Along with the preliminary plat map, 
the sub divider shall submit a street naming proposal to the Rural 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 9 
 



Addressing Department said proposal shall include copies of (1) a 
map of the overall tract illustrating street layout, the name 
proposed for each street, and (2) an alphabetical list of the 
proposed street names, together with an alternate name for each 
name proposed.  The Rural Addressing Department shall review 
the proposed street names for duplication of names, 
appropriateness of names, and for overall compliance with the 
street naming policy.  Approved street names shall be included in 
the final plat map which is submitted to the Board of Supervisors 
for approval and for recordation.  

 
ARTCLE 9- STREET SIGNS: 

 
SECTION 901 Characteristics:  Signs posted on County roads, Private Roads and 

Public Right-of-Ways will be approved by the Director of 
Engineering Services.  

 
SECTION 902 Installation:  Street name signs, approved by the Rural Addressing 

Department shall be installed at the direction of the Engineering 
Director.  

 
ARTICLE 10-POSTING OF PROPERTY NUMBERS 

 
SECTION 1001 Methods and Characteristics for Posting Designated Street 

Addresses: 
 

A. Property numbers shall be attached to dwelling units or 
buildings, located so as to be visible from and oriented toward 
the street from which address is taken.  These numbers shall be 
3.5 by 3.5 inch reflective numbers and shall be visible at all 
times.  

 
B. When a house or building is some distance from a road, or 

when view of the house or building is blocked by trees or 
shrubs, property number shall be on a sign attached to a tree, 
fence, gate, or lawn stake. 

 
C. On a corner lot, the property number shall face street named in 

the address.  
 
D. Numerals indicating the official address for each principal 

building or each front entrance to such building shall be posted 
in a manner as to be legible and distinguishable from the street 
on which the property is located. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 10 
 



E. If there is a rear entrance or a hidden structure, a post shall 
display the number on the path leading to the entrance. 

 
SECTION 1002 Responsibilities to post Property Numbers: 
 

A. Each owner or occupant in charge of any residence or building 
to which a number has been assigned may be notified in 
writing by the Rural Addressing Department of the number 
assigned to the same at any time following the adoption or 
revision of the ordinance. 

 
B. Within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of such written 

notification from the Rural Addressing Department the owner 
or occupant of a residence or building to which a number has 
been assigned shall affix the number in a conspicuous manner 
in a conspicuous place.   

 
C. It shall be the duty of such owner or occupant thereof upon 

affixing the new number to remove any different number 
which might be mistaken for or confused with the number 
assigned to said structure by the Rural Addressing Department. 

 
D. If a property number is damaged, lost, or in any way destroyed, 

said number shall be replaced immediately by the owner, 
occupant, or person in charge of the residence or building at 
their expense.  Said replacement shall be purchased from the 
Rural Addressing Department or shall be of comparable 
material and size as mentioned in Article 10, Section 1001, A.  

 
ARTICLE 11- PENALTIES: 

 
SECTION 1101 Enforcement by Civil Penalty:  In the event that the owner or 

occupant of any residence, building or structure to which a correct 
address has been assigned refuses to comply with the terms of this 
ordinance within thirty (30) days of notification by failing to affix 
the number assigned or to remove any old numbers affixed to such 
house, or house entrance, or elsewhere, which may be confused 
with the number assigned thereto, they shall be subject to civil 
penalty. 

 
SECTION 1102 Violations: 
 

A. For initial violations of this Ordinance, the penalty shall be 
Fifty ($50.00) dollars for an individual person or One Hundred 
($100.00) dollars for an enterprise.  

  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 11 
 



B. For a subsequent violation arising out of the same facts, the 
penalty shall be One Hundred ($100.00) dollars for an 
individual person or Two Hundred ($200.00) dollars for an 
enterprise.  

 
SECTION 1103 Jurisdiction of Hearing Officer:  All violations of Ordinance shall 

result in a civil penalty being assessed and shall fall under the 
jurisdiction of a County Hearing Officer appointed for this 
purpose.  The Hearing Officer shall not have the jurisdiction to 
impose criminal penalties.  

 
SECTION 1104 Rules of Procedure:  All rules of procedure for hearings in front of 

the County Hearing Officer shall apply to civil violations arising 
under this Ordinance.  

 
ARTICLE 12-FEES: 

 
Section 1201 A schedule of fees shall be set by the Board of Supervisors to 

collect monies to cover expenses incurred during road name 
changes and property addressing.  The schedule of fees shall be 
posted in a prominent place in the Rural Addressing Department 
and copies shall be available to the public upon request. 

 
SECTION 1202 The Board of Supervisors may change the schedule of fees as 

needed to keep current with rising costs without affecting any 
change in this Ordinance itself.  

 
ARTICLE 13-AMENDMENTS 

 
SECTION 1301 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, modified, suspended, waived or 
repealed at the discretion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
following a public hearing at which parties in interest and other 
citizens have an opportunity to be heard.  

 
SECTION 1302 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, or modified, at the initiation the 
Rural Addressing Department following a public hearing at which 
parties in interest and other citizens have an opportunity to be 
heard. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 12 
 



 
          PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011. 

 

ATTEST:    GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
          
Marian Sheppard   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  
Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
     
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 13 
 



Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 14 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

ADDRESSES:   New-     No Charge 
     Replacement-Number Plaque  $10.00 
                         
   
 
 
ROAD NAMING/RENAMING Duplicate-    No Charge 
     Unnamed-    No Charge 
     Voluntary Renaming-   $700.00 

 
 

 
 
 
 



   

ARF-1310     Public Hearing      3- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health &
Emergency Services Division Director

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Deputy Director
of Emergency Services, Health &
Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 12-06-06 to rename a section of N. McLellan Drive as S. Camino Way

Background Information
In September 2011, a request for addressing of newly sold parcels on N. McLellan Drive triggered an
analyis of the  property numbering range along that road.  

Evaluation
Limitations to the current property numbering scheme and changes to roadways in the defined section
that occured after the original naming of N. McLellan Drive made it apparent that 2 sections of the road
needed to be renamed and renumbered in order to comply with Ordinance 11-03, Gila County Street
Naming and Property Numbering.  The two new road names are: E. Pecos Drive and S. Camino Way.

Conclusion
A publication explaining the renaming was published and no comments or objections were received by
Rural Addressing personnel during the defined comment period.

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health & Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 12-06-06 to rename a section of N. McLellan Drive as S. Camino Way.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-06 renaming a section
of N. McLellan Drive as S. Camino Way.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Resolution 12-06-06
Map
Publication
Ordinance



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-06-06 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, RENAMING A PORTION OF ONE ROAD IN GILA 
COUNTY TO BE CALLED S. CAMINO WAY. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street Naming and 
Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 2011; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of property 
numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the safety of Gila County 
residents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the name of the existing street is N. McLellan Drive; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 8, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance provides guidelines for 
the renaming of existing streets; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially comply with the provisions of the 
Ordinance: 

 
S. Camino Way - Section 14, T6N, R10E, NW ¼ 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does officially 
recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the numbering of 
properties along said streets and directs the appropriate County departments to incorporate these names 
uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June 2012, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



dwilliams
Text Box
E. Pecos Dr.

dwilliams
Text Box
S. Camino Way

dwilliams
Rectangle

dwilliams
Rectangle





ORDINANCE NO. 11-03 
 

GILA COUNTY STREET NAMING AND 
PROPERTY NUMBERING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Courthouse 
Gila County Rural Addressing Department 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 500 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

(928) 402-8510 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   __________________________________ 
      County Attorney’s Office 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:    __________________________________ 
      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Date  
 
 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 1 
 



 
 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila 
County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last 
amended it on May 19, 1998 (Recorder’s Fee No. 1998-7563); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance No. 11-03 – Gila County Street Naming and 
Property Numbering will supersede the previous adopted and amended Gila County 
Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
that: 
 

STREET NAMING AND PROPERTY NUMBERING ORDINANCE 
 

ARTICLE 1-TITLE AND PURPOSE 
 

An ordinance adopted to provide for the uniform assignment of property numbers on all 
private residences, public buildings, businesses, and any other building used for human 
occupancy, habitation or conducting of business along public and private right-of-ways, 
easements or any other access routes, renaming of existing streets with conflicting or 
duplicate names and naming of unnamed and new accesses in order to provide for 
efficient emergency services and the safety of Gila County residents, provide for 
generation and collection of fees for assignment of new addresses; provide for the 
enforcement of said Ordinance; and prescribing penalties for the violation thereof.  
 

ARTICLE 2-SHORT TITLE 
 

For the purpose of identification these regulations shall be known as the “Street Naming 
and Property Numbering Ordinance for Gila County”. 
 

ARTICLE 3- APPLICABILITY 
 

This Ordinance shall apply to all unincorporated and non-reservation lands within the 
area of Gila County. 
 

ARTICLE 4- SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any article, section or regulation of this Ordinance be judicially declared 
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as 
a whole, or any portion thereof other than the article, section or regulation so declared to 
be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 2 
 



ARTICLE 5- DEFINITIONS 
  
SECTION 501 Block numbering System: [ESRI software] In ArcGIS, a group of 

records in a compressed file geodatabase feature class or tables that 
are stored together. The arrangement of compressed data into 
blocks helps optimize query performance  

 
SECTION 502 Frontage Units: A frontage unit is a standard interval in front 

footage of an existing parcel used to assign consecutive property 
numbers, on a street, right-of-way, easement or access route 
beginning from the nearest intersection.  

 
SECTION 503 Address Prefixes and Suffixes: Address prefixes are words 

preceding a street name and indicating a direction. Address 
suffixes are words following a street name and indicating the type 
of street.  

 
SECTION 504 Thoroughfare Designations: Streets are sometimes ranked by 

function and size, and each category is assigned a specific name 
suffix called thoroughfare designations. 

 
ARTICLE 6- DEFINITIONS OF THOROUGHFARE DESIGNATIONS: 

 
SECTION 601 Boulevard: A Street with a median reflecting the boulevard 

character and so indicated by the name (also applied to Parkways). 
A major thoroughfare running in a diagonal direction, rather than 
east-west or north-south, it must connect at least two sections and 
act as a collector. 

 
SECTION 602 Courts:  Permanently closed streets such as cul-de-sacs.  

Horseshoe-shaped streets generally designed by one name 
throughout their entire length. Ease-west streets less than 500 feet 
in length.  

 
SECTION 603 Drives:  Winding thoroughfares, diagonal curvilinear or 

other types of roads not previously mentioned.  Roads that 
meander about and continue through to other rights-of-way. 

 
SECTION 604 Highways: Designated State or Federal Highways.  This term 

could be used even when a road generally runs north-south or east-
west. U.S. routes are designated as highways.  

 
SECTION 605 Interstate: Roads of the highest order, characterized by limited 

access, wide right-of-way, prohibited adjacent to development and 
with through-traffic preference. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 3 
 



SECTION 606 Lanes:  Reduced right-of-way branching from courts, 
places, or ways.  Curving streets of less than 500 feet.  An 
uninterrupted street ending in a cul-de-sac and generally 
designated by a name.  

 
SECTION 607 Loops and Circles: Circles could be short streets that return to 

themselves.  Loops could be short drives that begin and end in the 
same street.  

 
SECTION 608 Parkways: (Also see Boulevard)   A special scenic route or 

park drive, generally designated by a name.  
 
SECTION 609 Paths:  A minor local street running in a diagonal direction, 

usually between a north-south “Street” and an east-west “Avenue”; 
a path may also be a diagonal connector between offset portions of 
a north-south or east-west collector thoroughfare.  

 
SECTION 610 Place:      A cul-de-sac or permanent dead-end road.  North-south 

streets less than 500 feet in length.  
 
SECTION 611 Roads:       Limited thoroughfares that are frequently used, have 

heavy traffic volume, and run in any direction.  Secondary 
facilities connecting with a U.S. or state primary highway.  

 
SECTION 612 Street and Avenues:   Streets run north and south and Avenues 

run east and west. This may be reversed in municipal areas 
previously addressed by other authorities using a different method. 

 
SECTION 613 Trails:    A diagonal local street serving as a collector for one or 

more local thoroughfares.  
 
SECTION 614 Ways:     Dead-end right-of-ways under 500 feet running at 

oblique angles to the four points of the compass.  If there are three 
or more homes, the road is designated on the road system, even if 
it is private.  

 
ARTICLE 7-ASSIGNING NUMBERS TO INDIVIDUAL PROPERTIES 

 
SECTION 701 Property numbers for dwelling units and places of business on all 

public and private streets shall be assigned by the Gila County 
Rural Addressing Department in accordance with provisions 
outlined herein.  

 
SECTION 702 Property numbering shall be uniform, based on street frontage. 
 
SECTION 703 Property numbering shall be in a consecutive sequence.  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 4 
 



 
 
SECTION 704 Even numbers shall always be assigned on one side of the street 

and odd numbers shall be assigned on the other.  Even numbers 
shall be on the north and west sides of the streets and odd numbers 
shall be on the south and east sides of the streets.  The exception is 
municipal areas previously addressed by other authorities using a 
different method.  Once assigned, numbers shall not be arbitrarily 
changed, except by the Gila County Rural Addressing Department.  
If an area is annexed by a municipality, the existing addresses will 
be changed at the discretion of the municipality.  

 
SECTION 705 Numbering shall be in accordance with the Gila County block 

numbering system. One thousand addresses shall be provided per 
mile for expansion.  

 
SECTION 706 Apartments/Condominiums/ Group Housing: 
 

A. Numbers shall be assigned where the driveway joins the street. 
This becomes the street address of all units which face upon 
that interior court.  Separate internal units of condominiums 
and apartments shall be designated with sub-numbers or letters, 
not individual property numbers. 

 
B. Mobile home parks shall be treated like other multifamily 

developments.  The property shall be assigned one number, and 
each mobile home shall receive numerical designations such as 
Sp.1, Sp. 2, Sp.3, etc.  However, if the development is a mobile 
home subdivision built in conformance with subdivision 
regulations, the properties shall be treated as individual 
residences. 

 
SECTION 707 Business Districts: In a business district, the main entrance to 

each separate establishment shall have its own number in sequence 
with other businesses along the street.  

 
SECTION 708 Street Starting from Different Points on the Same Cross Street:   

When a street does not begin at the same location as a parallel 
street, the numbers shall begin with the same number measured 
from the base line as on the parallel street.  Likewise, buildings 
facing streets that do not extend to the base line at present shall be 
assigned numbers as if they were extended. 

 
SECTION 709 Diagonal Streets:  The general principle to apply when numbering 

diagonal streets is to treat the street as either a north-south or an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 5 
 



east-west street based on the greatest distance covered in any 
specific direction.   

 
SECTION 710 Corner Lots: When assigning a number to a building on a corner 

lot, assign a number from the street upon which the front entrance 
faces for a business; or assign a number from the street from which 
the driveway enters for a residence.  Dual addresses shall be 
avoided.  If a corner building has two entrances which both look 
like front entrances, the decision is based on the general site layout 
and driveway entrance.  

 
SECTION 711 Duplex Buildings and Rear Houses on Interior Lots: 
 

A. Separate numbers shall be assigned to each separate dwelling 
on a parcel, excluding duplexes which will have one address 
and be separated by units.  

  
B. If there is access from a parallel street, numbers are assigned 

from the series on that street.  In the case of commercial or 
industrial facilities, auxiliary buildings would not be assigned 
separate numbers, however, the main building where mail is 
received and business is transacted would receive a property 
number.  

 
SECTION 712 Numbering on Circle Streets and Horseshoes:   Circle Streets or 

horseshoe-shaped streets begin and end touching the same street.  
It is advisable in such cases to ignore compass directions and to 
give numbers on such streets to correspond with the numbering on 
the streets where the circle originated.  The even numbers shall be 
on the inside of the circle and the odd number shall be on the 
outside of the circle.  

 
ARTICLE 8-STREET NAMES: 

 
SECTION 801 Choice of Names:  Names should be chosen that relate to the scale 

and location of a project.  
 

A. Objectives- Names should be pleasant sounding, appropriate, 
and easy to read (so that the public, and children in particular, 
can handle the name in an emergency situation). 

 
  

B. Unacceptable Street Names- Names that do not conform to 
current State of Arizona 9-1-1 GIS Standards.  

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 6 
 



C. Name Length- The complete road name shall consist of no 
more than 16 spaces, including road name, spaces between and 
the County Signing approved abbreviation for road suffix.  

 
D. Complete Name- A complete name shall consist of no more 

than four words, including prefix and suffix.  Examples: 
 

1.   North Toya Vista Road 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (2 words), Suffix (1 word) 

2. South Calle de Caballos 
Prefix (1 word), Primary (3 words), Primary includes 
the suffix-equivalent 

 
SECTION 802 Prefixes:  All street names shall begin with one directional prefix, 

north, south, east, or west, which shall be assigned with permanent 
addresses.  Additional unnecessary prefixes and suffixes shall be 
avoided.  Combinations of directions are not acceptable.  Example:  
Northwest Sierra Circle. 

 
SECTION 803 Suffixes:  Boulevard, Drive, Road and Parkway for arterial 

highways used with the discretion of the Rural Addressing 
Department.  Also acceptable are lane, Avenue, Street, Loop, 
Circle, Court, Path, Trail, and other designation consistent with the 
intent of this section reviewed and approved by Rural Addressing 
Staff.  

 
SECTION 804 Name Duplication:  Similar sounding names are considered to be 

duplication regardless of spelling. Duplication of names within 
each zip code service area is not permitted. 

 
SECTION 805 Continuity: 
  

A. A continuous street, or one proposed to be continuous, should 
bear the same name throughout, even though it changes 
directions.  If it is interrupted by a channel, freeway, railroad, 
etc., and eventual connection is not probable, the segments may 
bear different names.  

 
B. No separate name is to be used for a cul-de-sac that provides 

street frontage for less than three lots or units.  The name shall 
be the same as that of the intersecting street.  Where there is a 
series of long and short cul-de-sacs, all should have separate 
names.  

 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 7 
 



SECTION 806  Existing Streets Naming and Renaming: 
 

A. Rural Addressing personnel shall determine the necessity to 
name or rename a new or existing street, right-of-way, or 
private access determined according to criteria set forth in 
Article 8 of this Ordinance.  Proposed naming may also be 
initiated by citizen petition in accordance with section 806.  
Citizen petitions must have signatures of at least 75% of the 
property owners who own property adjacent to the street 
subject to the proposed naming.  

 
 

B. For proposed changes to an existing street, right-of-way, or 
access, Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall proceed 
with one of the two methods set forth in Section 806-D for 
public notification.  The method shall be determined by a 
standard of numbers to notify economics and time constraints.  

 
C. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall notify the public 

of a proposed road naming or name change by the following 
method: 

 
1. Gila County Rural Addressing personnel shall originate a 

public notice for publication in two consecutive issues of 
the County’s contracted publications contractor or by 
mailing property owners said public notice.  Included in 
this publication will be:  the previous road name, the 
proposed name change, a sketch of the road in question, a 
description of the policy to oppose this change, the date for 
filing objections as well as the date scheduled for the 
renaming to be presented to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors for action.  The public will be given from the 
first date of the first printed publication to one week after 
the last date of publication to file objection petitions and to 
meet with Gila County Rural Addressing personnel to come 
to a consensus. 
  

D. To file objections to name changes initiated by the Rural 
Addressing staff, petition, or Board of Supervisors, residents 
and/or property owners must submit an alternate petition or 
objection in writing to the Rural Addressing Department in 
accordance with the time period stated in C. above.  Petitions 
must have signatures of at least 75% of residents and/or 
property owners who reside and/or own property adjacent to 
the street subject to the proposed naming or renaming.  
Petitioners must have agreed to a name to be used as an 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 8 
 



alternative to that proposed by the Rural Addressing Office or 
the Board of Supervisors.  To submit an objection in writing to 
a proposed name change, the resident and/or property owner 
should include the name of the road to be changed and their 
reason for objecting it. 

  
E. If proposed names changes are not objected to or if alternative 

names presented by residents and/or landowners are approved, 
changes may be adopted by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors at their next regularly scheduled meeting.  

 
F. After the approval of a name change, any subsequent proposed 

name changes shall not be considered for a period of 10 years.  
 

G. All renaming of streets not required by this Ordinance will be 
completed at the expense of the person or group submitting the 
request of name change.  The fees will be set in accordance to 
the Gila County Rural Addressing Fee Schedule approved by 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors and the fee must be 
received in the Gila County Rural Addressing Department 
prior to proceeding with the request.  A petition will need to be 
completed, following the steps as stated in section 806.A 
above.  The petition will be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors for approval.  

 
SECTION 807 Guidelines for Renaming Existing Streets:  The following 

guidelines shall be followed for renaming existing streets which 
have names that are duplicated within Gila County.  These are not 
listed in order of preference or importance. 

 
A. Does one street have any historical reason for having the name 

it has? 
B. Which street has the least number of houses on it and thus 

would require the least number of address changes? 
C. Which street has had its name for the longest period of time? 
D. Is the name appropriate according to the other street names in 

the neighborhood? 
E. Which street name is used for the longest distance or the most 

traveled section? 
 
SECTION 808  Street Names and Numbering in New Subdivisions: 
 
 Street names and numbering shall be determined in accordance 

with the street naming and numbering policy adopted by resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors.  Along with the preliminary plat map, 
the sub divider shall submit a street naming proposal to the Rural 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 9 
 



Addressing Department said proposal shall include copies of (1) a 
map of the overall tract illustrating street layout, the name 
proposed for each street, and (2) an alphabetical list of the 
proposed street names, together with an alternate name for each 
name proposed.  The Rural Addressing Department shall review 
the proposed street names for duplication of names, 
appropriateness of names, and for overall compliance with the 
street naming policy.  Approved street names shall be included in 
the final plat map which is submitted to the Board of Supervisors 
for approval and for recordation.  

 
ARTCLE 9- STREET SIGNS: 

 
SECTION 901 Characteristics:  Signs posted on County roads, Private Roads and 

Public Right-of-Ways will be approved by the Director of 
Engineering Services.  

 
SECTION 902 Installation:  Street name signs, approved by the Rural Addressing 

Department shall be installed at the direction of the Engineering 
Director.  

 
ARTICLE 10-POSTING OF PROPERTY NUMBERS 

 
SECTION 1001 Methods and Characteristics for Posting Designated Street 

Addresses: 
 

A. Property numbers shall be attached to dwelling units or 
buildings, located so as to be visible from and oriented toward 
the street from which address is taken.  These numbers shall be 
3.5 by 3.5 inch reflective numbers and shall be visible at all 
times.  

 
B. When a house or building is some distance from a road, or 

when view of the house or building is blocked by trees or 
shrubs, property number shall be on a sign attached to a tree, 
fence, gate, or lawn stake. 

 
C. On a corner lot, the property number shall face street named in 

the address.  
 
D. Numerals indicating the official address for each principal 

building or each front entrance to such building shall be posted 
in a manner as to be legible and distinguishable from the street 
on which the property is located. 

 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 10 
 



E. If there is a rear entrance or a hidden structure, a post shall 
display the number on the path leading to the entrance. 

 
SECTION 1002 Responsibilities to post Property Numbers: 
 

A. Each owner or occupant in charge of any residence or building 
to which a number has been assigned may be notified in 
writing by the Rural Addressing Department of the number 
assigned to the same at any time following the adoption or 
revision of the ordinance. 

 
B. Within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of such written 

notification from the Rural Addressing Department the owner 
or occupant of a residence or building to which a number has 
been assigned shall affix the number in a conspicuous manner 
in a conspicuous place.   

 
C. It shall be the duty of such owner or occupant thereof upon 

affixing the new number to remove any different number 
which might be mistaken for or confused with the number 
assigned to said structure by the Rural Addressing Department. 

 
D. If a property number is damaged, lost, or in any way destroyed, 

said number shall be replaced immediately by the owner, 
occupant, or person in charge of the residence or building at 
their expense.  Said replacement shall be purchased from the 
Rural Addressing Department or shall be of comparable 
material and size as mentioned in Article 10, Section 1001, A.  

 
ARTICLE 11- PENALTIES: 

 
SECTION 1101 Enforcement by Civil Penalty:  In the event that the owner or 

occupant of any residence, building or structure to which a correct 
address has been assigned refuses to comply with the terms of this 
ordinance within thirty (30) days of notification by failing to affix 
the number assigned or to remove any old numbers affixed to such 
house, or house entrance, or elsewhere, which may be confused 
with the number assigned thereto, they shall be subject to civil 
penalty. 

 
SECTION 1102 Violations: 
 

A. For initial violations of this Ordinance, the penalty shall be 
Fifty ($50.00) dollars for an individual person or One Hundred 
($100.00) dollars for an enterprise.  

  

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 11 
 



B. For a subsequent violation arising out of the same facts, the 
penalty shall be One Hundred ($100.00) dollars for an 
individual person or Two Hundred ($200.00) dollars for an 
enterprise.  

 
SECTION 1103 Jurisdiction of Hearing Officer:  All violations of Ordinance shall 

result in a civil penalty being assessed and shall fall under the 
jurisdiction of a County Hearing Officer appointed for this 
purpose.  The Hearing Officer shall not have the jurisdiction to 
impose criminal penalties.  

 
SECTION 1104 Rules of Procedure:  All rules of procedure for hearings in front of 

the County Hearing Officer shall apply to civil violations arising 
under this Ordinance.  

 
ARTICLE 12-FEES: 

 
Section 1201 A schedule of fees shall be set by the Board of Supervisors to 

collect monies to cover expenses incurred during road name 
changes and property addressing.  The schedule of fees shall be 
posted in a prominent place in the Rural Addressing Department 
and copies shall be available to the public upon request. 

 
SECTION 1202 The Board of Supervisors may change the schedule of fees as 

needed to keep current with rising costs without affecting any 
change in this Ordinance itself.  

 
ARTICLE 13-AMENDMENTS 

 
SECTION 1301 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, modified, suspended, waived or 
repealed at the discretion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
following a public hearing at which parties in interest and other 
citizens have an opportunity to be heard.  

 
SECTION 1302 The provisions of this Ordinance may, from time to time, be 

amended, supplemented, changed, or modified, at the initiation the 
Rural Addressing Department following a public hearing at which 
parties in interest and other citizens have an opportunity to be 
heard. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 12 
 



 
          PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011. 

 

ATTEST:    GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
          
Marian Sheppard   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  
Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
     
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 
 

Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 13 
 



Gila County Ordinance No. 11-03 – Street Naming and Property Numbering  Page 14 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

ADDRESSES:   New-     No Charge 
     Replacement-Number Plaque  $10.00 
                         
   
 
 
ROAD NAMING/RENAMING Duplicate-    No Charge 
     Unnamed-    No Charge 
     Voluntary Renaming-   $700.00 

 
 

 
 
 
 



   

ARF-1247     Regular Agenda Item      4- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Fiscal Year: 2012-2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012 -June 30, 2013 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin

Information
Request/Subject
Grantee Agreement No. GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 between San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership
Council, Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) and Gila
County Library District for San Carlos Region Early Literacy

Background Information
The Gila County Library District has been offered a Grantee Agreement from the San Carlos Apache
Regional Partnership Council, Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things
First) to provide early literacy outreach for the families and children age birth to five of the San Carlos
Apache Nation.  This reimbursement grant is for the period August 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013, in
the amount of $36,663.  The Grantee Agreement must be submitted to the First Things First Regional
Council by July 5, 2012, in order to be elligible for funding.

Evaluation
The current Early Literacy Grant from "First Things First" has been highly successful in providing
curriculum materials and educational training to the libraries in the service area for their use in
programming and training for parents. Additionally, library staff has heard only positive comments
regarding the training provided to parents on the importance of early literacy skills and the importance
of reading to their children. Our only issue has been our inability to include the parents and children
who live within Gila County, but outside the Gila Region that our current grant covers. This grant allows
us to offer this same program to the rest of the residents of Gila County who live in the area covered by
the San Carlos Regional Council.  The Library District staff will continue to assist the San Carlos Library
with programming geared at these ages, to encourage families to expand the reading opportunity by
visiting the library and borrowing other books to read.

The part-time Community Liaison that is provided for in this grant will be a part-time employee of the
Library District, working about 16 hours per week for the entire grant period. This person will be either a
tribal member, or a community member that is well known in the San Carlos community.

Conclusion
This grant allows the Library District the opportunity and ability to provide early literacy training and
materials to children ages birth to five in Gila County.  This grant has a goal of enrolling 861 children in
this program.  We anticipate applying for a renewal next year to keep this worthwhile and important
project.

Recommendation
The Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors approve this Grantee



Regular Agenda Item      4- A             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District
Library District



The Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors approve this Grantee
Agreement between the Gila County Library District and the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership
Council, and Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) in the amount
of $36,663 for the period August 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors)  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Grantee
Agreement No. GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 that is between the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership
Council, Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) and the Gila
County Library District, which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of $36,663 for the
period August 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.  (Jacque Griffin) 

Attachments
Grantee Agreement San Carlos Regional Council First Things FIrst
Legal Explanation



GRANTEE AGREEMENT 

GRA-RC029-13-0S33-01 

Between The 
San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, 

Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board 
(First Things First) 

And 
Gila County Library District 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. Title 8, Chapter 13, Article 3 charges the Arizona Early Childhood Development and 
Health Board (also known as First Things First), the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council 
(hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR) with the responsibility of administering funds. 

THEREFORE, it is agreed that the GRANTOR shall provide funding to Gila County Library District 
(hereinafter referred to as the GRANTEE) for services under the terms of this Grant Agreement. 

I. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 

The purpose of this Agreement is to specify the responsibilities and procedures for the GRANTEE 
role in administering Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board grant funds. 

II. TERM OF AGREEMENT, TERMINATION AND AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement shall become effective on August 1, 2012 and shall terminate on June 30, 2013. 
This agreement is renewable for two (2) additional twelve (12) month extensions, based on 
satisfactory performance and continued available funding. 

III. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

The GRANTEE shall provide the following services for the GRANTOR as approved and 
summarized below: 

A. All parents and families of young children can benefit from an increased awareness of early 
childhood development including early language and emergent literacy and of how to best 
support development. (Refer to Section III Scope of Work, Exhibit A, Statement of need for a 
full description.) 

B. The First Things First Parent Outreach and Awareness strategy provides families of young 

children with information, materials or connections to resources and activities that increase 

awareness of early childhood development and health and the resources, supports or 

programs available for young children and their families. The San Carlos Apache Regional 

Partnership Council's intent is to implement the Imagination Library Book Club program 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 1 of 59 



through the Gila County Library District and services provided at the San Carlos Public 

Library on the reservation which is an affiliate of the County Library District. (Refer to 

Section III Scope of Work, Exhibit A, Description of the strategy including Standards of 

Practice for a full description.) 

C. This strategy will be implemented to deliver books to 800 children in the region through the 
Gila County Library District and services provided at the San Carlos Public Library on the 
reservation which is an affiliate of the County Library District. (Refer to Section III Scope of 
Work, Exhibit A, Target Population to serve.) 

D. Adhere to the First Things First Data Collection Target Service Unit Guidance Document 
(Exhibit C). 

E. Adhere to the First Things First Data Security Guidelines (Exhibit D). 
F. Comply with the Scope of Work Narrative Responses, Implementation Plan and Submit the 

Grant Management Forms provided by First Things First (Attachments A - H). 
NOTE: Narrative Responses, Implementation Plan, Line Item Budget, and Line Item Budget 
Narrative are required to be submitted prior to this agreement becomes final and is signed 
by First Things First. Submission is required by July 5, 2012. 
Agencies and Departments implementing FTF programming are required to coordinate and 
collaborate with all First Things First grant recipients. Collaboration is critical to developing a 
seamless service delivery system for children and families. 

IV. MANNER OF FINANCING 

The GRANTOR shall: 

a) Provide up to $36,663.00 to GRANTEE for services provided under Paragraph III. 

b) Payment made by the GRANTOR to the GRANTEE shall be on a reimbursement basis only 
and is conditioned upon receipt of applicable, accurate and complete reimbursement 
documents to be submitted by the GRANTEE via the First Things First on-line grants 
management system. Final payment will be contingent upon receipt of all fiscal and 
programmatic reports required of the GRANTEE under this Agreement. 

c) Prior to processing payment, a review of submitted quarterly program narratives and data 
submission reports will be conducted as well as a review of any other required submission of 
programmatic information by the grantor to ensure programmatic requirements have been 
fulfilled. Timely submission of these reports is also required for payment. 

V. FISCAL RESPONSBILITY 

It is understood and agreed that the total amount of the funds used under this Agreement shall 
be used for the project(s) and scope of work outlined in this Agreement. Therefore, should the 
project not be completed, be partially completed, or be completed at a lower cost than the 
original budget called for, the amount reimbursed to the GRANTEE shall be for only the amount 
of dollars actually spent by the GRANTEE. For any funds received under this Agreement for 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 2 of 59 



which expenditure is disallowed by an audit exception by the GRANTOR, the State, or Federal 
government, the GRANTEE shall reimburse said funds directly to the GRANTOR immediately. 

VI. FINANCIAL AUDIT 

GRANTEE agrees to terms specified in A.R.S. §§ 35-214 and 35-215. 

In addition, in compliance with the Federal Single Audit Act (31 U.S.C. par., 7501-7507), as 
amended by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104 to 156), GRANTEE must have an 
annual audit conducted in accordance with Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 
#A-133 ("Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations") if GRANTEE 
expends more than $500,000 from federal awards/dollars, a copy of the GRANTEE's audit report 
for the previous fiscal year must be submitted to the GRANTOR for review within thirty (30) days 
of signing this Agreement. Otherwise the annual audit review/statement must be provided to 
the GRANTOR within thirty (30) days. 

VII. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

The GRANTEE agrees to comply with the Federal Debarment and Suspension regulations as 
outlined in the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions". 

VIII. FUNDS MANAGEMENT 

The GRANTEE must maintain funds received under this Agreement in separate ledger accounts 
and cannot mix these funds with other sources. GRANTEE must manage funds according to 
applicable regulations for administrative requirements, costs principles and audits. 

The GRANTEE must maintain adequate business systems to comply with State of Arizona 
requirements. The business systems that must be maintained are: 

• Financial Management 

• Procurement 

• Personnel 

• Property 

• Travel 

A system is adequate if it is 1) written; 2) consistently followed - it applies in all similar 
circumstances; and 3) conSistently applied - it applies to all sources of funds. Rates for mileage, 
lodging and meals are limited to the rates established by the State of Arizona Travel Policy 
(http://gao.az.gov!travelldefault.asp). 

IX. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

Regular reports by the GRANTEE shall include: 

Programmatic, Data Submission, and Financial Reports 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 3 of 59 



1. The GRANTEE shall provide quarterly program narrative & evaluation data reports to the 
GRANTOR within twenty (20) working days of the last day of the quarter in which 
services are provided. Reporting is submitted via the First Things First on-line grants 
management system known as Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS) and 
shall contain such information as deemed necessary by the GRANTOR. 

a. Quarterly Programmatic Narrative & Data Submission Reports are due: 

i. Period: July 1, 2012 - September 30, 2013 
Due: October 20, 2012 

ii. Period: October 1, 2012 - December 31,2012 
Due: January 20, 2013 

iii. January 1, 2013 - March 31, 2013 
Due: April 20, 2013 

iv. April 1, 2013 -June 30,2013 
Due: July 20, 2013 

v. The final programmatic report as submitted shall be marked FINAL 

b. Financial Reimbursement Reports 

i. The GRANTEE shall provide, as frequently as monthly but not less than 
quarterly, requests for reimbursement. Reimbursement requests shall be 
submitted using the First Things First online grants management system known 
as Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS). This submission includes a 
basic line item ledger to detail the type of expense relating to the approved line 
item budget and validates approved staffing assigned to the project, travel is 
within the approved state rate limitation, and other line item budget 
expenditure details. 

ii. The GRANTEE shall submit a final reimbursement request for expenses 
obligated prior to the end of the termination of this Agreement no more than 
forty-five (45) days after the end of the Agreement. Requests for 
reimbursement received later than the forty-five (45) days after the Agreement 
termination will not be paid. The final reimbursement request as submitted 
shall be marked FINAL. 

All reports shall be submitted to the contact person designated in Paragraph XLII, NOTICES, of 
this Agreement. 

X. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION 

GRANTEE may not assign any rights hereunder without the express, prior written consent of 
both parties. 

XI. AMENDMENTS 

Any change in this Agreement including but not limited to the Description of Services and 
budget described herein, whether by modification or supplementation, must be accomplished 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 4 of 59 



by a formal written Agreement amendment signed and approved by and between the duly 
authorized representative of the GRANTEE and the GRANTOR. 

Any such amendment shall: 1) specify an effective date; 2) specify any increases or decreases in 
the amount of the GRANTEE's compensation if applicable; 3) be titled as an "Amendment"; and 
4) be signed by the parties identified in the preceding sentence. The GRANTEE expressly and 
explicitly understands and agrees that no other method of communication, including any other 
document, correspondence, act, or oral communication by or from any person, shall be used or 
construed as an amendment or modification or supplementation to this Agreement. 

XII. SUBCONTRACTORS 

The GRANTEE may enter into written subcontract(s) for performance of certain of its functions 
under the contract in accordance with terms established in the State of Arizona procurement 
policy. 

The GRANTEE agrees and understand that no subcontract that the GRANTEE enters into with 
respect to performance under this Agreement shall in any way relieve the GRANTEE of any 
responsibilities for performance if its duties. The GRANTEE shall give the GRANTOR immediate 
notice in writing by certified mail of any action or suit filed and prompt notice of any claim made 
against the GRANTEE by any subcontractor or vendor which in the opinion of the GRANTEE may 
result in litigation related in any way to the Agreement with the GRANTOR. 

XIII. OFFSHORE PERFORMANCE OF WORK PROHIBITED 

Due to security and identity protection concerns, all services under this Agreement shall be 
performed within the borders of the United States. All storage and processing of information 
shall be performed within the borders of the United States. This provision applies to work 
performed by subcontractors at all tiers. 

XIV. PROHIBITION ON GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS 
Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.06, the GRANTEE certifies that it does not have business operations in 
either Sudan or Iran. 

xv. AGREEMENT RENEWAL 

This Agreement shall not bind nor purport to bind the GRANTOR for any contractual 
commitment in excess of the original Agreement period. 

XVI. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE 

If the GRANTOR in good faith has reason to believe that the GRANTEE does not intend to, or is 
unable to perform or continue performing under this Agreement, the GRANTOR may demand in 
writing that the GRANTEE give a written assurance of intent to perform. Failure by the GRANTEE 
to provide written assurance within the number of days specified in the demand may, at the 
GRANTOR's option, be the basis for terminating this Agreement under the terms of this 
Agreement or other rights and remedies available by law. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 50f59 



XVII. CANCELLATION FOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The GRANTOR or the GRANTEE may, by written notice cancel this Agreement without penalty or 
further obligation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511 if any person significantly involved in initiating, 
negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Agreement on behalf of the State or its 
subdivisions (unit of local government) is an employee or agent of any other party in any 
capacity or a consultant to any other party to the Agreement with respect to the subject matter 
of the Agreement. Such cancellation shall be effective immediately upon receipt of written 
notice from the GRANTOR or the GRANTEE, unless the notice specifies a later time. 

XVIII. THIRD PARTY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS 

GRANTEE assigns to the State of Arizona, GRANTOR any claim for overcharges resulting from 
antitrust violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services supplied by 
third parties to GRANTEE toward fulfillment of this Agreement. 

XIX. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

Every payment obligation of the GRANTOR under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 
availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligations. If the funds 
are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, the GRANTOR may 
terminate this Agreement at the end of the period for which funds are available. No liability 
shall accrue to the GRANTOR in the event this provision is exercised, and the GRANTOR shall not 
be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any damages as a result of termination 
under this paragraph, including purchases and/or contracts entered into by the GRANTEE in the 
execution of this Agreement. 

XX. FORCE MAJEURE 

If either party hereto is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act required in this 
Agreement due to acts of God, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, civil disorder, or other causes 
without fault and beyond the control of the party obligated, performance of or payment for 
such act will be excused for the period of the delay. 

XXI. ARBITRATION 

This agreement is subject to arbitration to the extent required by A.R.S. § 12-1518. 

XXII. GOVERNING LAW AND CONTRACT INTERPRETATION 

a) This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Arizona. First Things First follows all State of Arizona and Federal laws, State of Arizona Uniform 
Terms and Conditions and in particular abides by the Arizona Uniform Terms and Conditions and 
Uniform Instructions and are incorporated into this Agreement through reference. These laws 
include Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all other federal immigration laws 
and regulations related to immigration status of its employees. First Things First may request 
verification for any Grantee, Contractor, or Subcontractor performing work under the 
agreement. Anyone entering into an Agreement with First Things First is required to follow any 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 60f59 



and all State laws around immigration and English only. Should First Things First suspect that a 
grantee is not in compliance with state or federal laws and First Things First may pursue any and 
all remedies allowed by law, including but not limited to: suspension of work, termination, and 
suspension and/or debarment of the grantee. All costs necessary to verify compliance are the 
responsibility of the grantee. 

b) This Agreement is intended by t he parties as a final and complete expression of their 
agreement. No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall 
supplement or explain any terms in this document. 

c) Either party's failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Agreement 
shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or 
acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the performance and 
fails to object. 

XXIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement and its Attachments/Exhibits constitute the entire Agreement between the 
parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and may not be changed or added to 
except by a writing signed by all parties hereto in conformity with Section X Reporting 
Requirements of this Agreement; provided, however, that the GRANTOR shall have the right to 
immediately amend this Agreement so that it complies with any new legislation, laws, 
ordinances, or rules affecting this Agreement. All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understandings ofthe parties, oral, written, pertaining to the subject 
matter hereof, are herby superseded or merged herein. 

XXIV. RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING 

The GRANTEE shall not use funds made available to it under this Agreement to pay for, 
influence, or seek to influence any officer or employee of a State, Local or Federal government. 

XXV. LICENSING 

The GRANTEE, unless otherwise exempted by law, shall obtain and maintain all licenses, permits 
and authority necessary to perform those acts it is obligated to perform under this Agreement. 

XXVI. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

The GRANTEE shall comply with all state and federal equal opportunity and non-discrimination 
requirements and conditions of employment, including the American with Disability Act, in 
accordance with A.R.S. Title 41, Chapter 9, Article 4 and Executive Order 2009-09, which 
mandates that all persons, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability 
or political affiliation, shall have equal access to employment opportunities and all applicable 
provisions and regulations relating to Executive Order No. 13279 - Equal Protection of the Laws 
forFaith-based and Community Organizations. 

XXVII. SEqARIAN REQUESTS 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 7 of 59 



Funds disbursed pursuant to this Agreement may not be expended for any sectarian purpose or 
activity, including sectarian worship or instruction in violation of the United States or Arizona 
Constitutions. 

XXVIII. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable. Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid 
shall not affect any other term or condition of the Agreement. 

XXIX. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION OF AGREEMENT 

The GRANTEE shall not advertise or publish information for commercial benefit concerning this 
Agreement without the written approval of the GRANTOR. 

XXX. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION. PRINTED AND PUBLISHED MATERIAL 

The GRANTOR reserves the right to review and approve any publications and/or media funded 
or partially funded through this Agreement. All publications funded or partially funded through 
this Agreement shall recognize the GRANTOR, and GRANTOR shall have full and complete rights 
to reproduce, duplicate, disclose, perform, and otherwise use all materials prepared under this 
Agreement. 

The GRANTEE agrees that any report, printed matter, or publication (written, visual, or sound, 
but excluding press releases, newsletters, and issue analyses) issued by the GRANTEE describing 
programs or projects funded under this agreement in whole or in part with First Things First 
funds and shall follow the protocol and style guide provided by First Things First and normally 
located in the Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS). 

XXXI. INDEMNIFICATION 

Indemnification Language for Public Agencies ONLY. Each party (as 'indemnitor') agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other party (as 'indemnitee") from and against any 
and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as 'claims') arising out of bodily injury of any person 
(including death) or property damage but only to the extent that such claims which result in 
vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 
misconduct, or other fault of the indemnitor, its' officers, officials, agents, employees, or 
volunteers." 

This indemnity shall not apply if the Grantee or sub-contractor(s) is/are an agency, board, 
commission or university of the State of Arizona. 

XXXII. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS 

The GRANTEE shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable to the 
GRANTOR for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or obtained 
from the State of Arizona or from a subcontractor under this Agreement shall be used by or 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 8 of 59 



disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as required, to efficiently perform 
duties under the Agreement. GRANTEE also agrees that any information pertaining to individual 
persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers of the GRANTEE as needed for 
performance of duties under this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in writing. 

XXXIII. CONFIDENTIALITY OF GRANTEE'S INFORMATION 

GRANTEE acknowledges that confidentiality provided in A.R.S. § §41-1505.06 (D) and 41-
1505.07(J) may be waived with the GRANTEE's consent, and GRANTEE consents to a total and 
complete waiver of confidentiality. In waiving confidentiality, GRANTEE understand and 
consents to disclosure of any information submitted to the GRANTOR that concerns the identify, 
background, financial status, marketing plans, or trade secrets or any other proprietary 
information related to the GRANTEE or any person or organization involved in the project(s), 
including the application and supporting materials, unless such information or materials are 
clearly marked as "confidential" . 

XXXIV. TERMINATION 

a) The GRANTOR reserves the right to terminate the Agreement in whole or in part due to the 
failure of the GRANTEE to comply with any term or condition of the Agreement, to acquire 
and maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits or to make 
satisfactory progress in performing the Agreement. The GRANTOR staff shall provide 
written notice of the termination to the GRANTEE. 

b) The GRANTOR may, upon termination of this Agreement, procure, on terms and in the 
manner that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under this 
Agreement. The GRANTEE shall be liable to the GRANTOR for any excess costs incurred by 
the GRANTOR in procuring materials or services in substitution for those due from the 

GRANTEE. 

XXXV. CONTINUATION OF PERFORMANCE THROUGH TERMINATION 

The GRANTEE shall continue to perform, in accordance with the requirements ofthe 
Agreement, up to the date of termination, as directed in the termination notice. 

XXXVI. PARAGRAPH HEADINGS 

The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not 
define, limit, enlarge, or otherwise affect the scope, construction, or interpretation of this 
Agreement or any of its provisions. 

XXXVII. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, copies, or duplicate originals. 
Each such counterpart, copy, or duplicate original shall be deemed an original, and collectively 
they shall constitute one agreement. 

XXXVIII. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 9 of 59 



Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the GRANTEE represents and warrants 

that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement. 

XXXIX. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

The GRANTEE shall comply with Executive Order 2005-30, which mandates as follows: 1) The 

GRANTEE shall, and by signing this agreement does, represents that it is in compliance with all 
federal immigration laws and regulations; 2) The GRANTEE shall take affirmative action to 

ensure that all subcontractors of the Contractor execute similar representation; 3) the breach of 

any such warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Contract, subject to monetary 

penalties or other penalties up to and including termination of the Contract; and 4) the State 
retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract to 

ensure that the employer is in compliance with its representation. 

XL. Lelal Arizona Worker 

GRANTEE hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply with 

all federal immigration laws applicable to GRANTEE employment of its employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). 

GRANTEE shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for GRANTEE 

under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 

XLI. NOTICES 

Any and all notices, requests, demands or communications by either party to this Agreement, 

pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered in 
person or shall be sent by the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the respective parties at the following addresses: 

The GRANTEE shall submit notices relative to this Agreement to: 

First Things First 

Attention: Finance 

4000 North Central, Suite 800 

Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

GRANTOR shall address all notices relative to this Agreement to: 
Gila County Library District 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 10 of 59 



XLII. IN WITNESS WHEREOF 
The parties hereto agree to execute this Agreement. 

FOR AND BEHALF OF 
Gila County Library District 

Tommie C. Martin 

Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Date 

Approved as to form: 

Bryan Chambers 
Deputy County Attorney 

GRA·RC029·13·0533-01 

FOR AND BEHALF OF THE 
Arizona Early Childhood Development 
And Health Board 

Rhian Evans Allvin 

Chief Executive Officer 

Date 

Page 11 of 59 



Grant Agreement Attachments & Exhibits 

Attachment A 

Attachment B 

Attachment C 

Attachment D 

Attachment E 

Attachment F 

Attachment G 

Attachment H 

Attachment I 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Exhibit C 

Exhibit D 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

Standard Agency Information Collection Form 

Personnel Overview 

Narrative Questions and Responses 

Implementation Plan 

Line Item Budget Form 

Budget Narrative Explanation 

Disclosure of Other Funding Sources 

Financial Systems Survey 

Data Collection Form 

Scope of Work Reference/Information 

Parent Outreach and Awareness Standards of Practice 

First Things First Target Service Unit Information 

Data Security Guidelines 

Page 12 of 59 



Attachment A 

FIRST THINGS FIRST STANDARD AGENCY INFORMATION COLLECTION FORM 

A. Agency Information: 

Program Name (if applicable) _______ __________________________ _ 

Agency Gila County Library District Contact Person~Ja,.,c""q""u"'"e..>:G""n!LJlfi"'m"__ ____ _____ _ 

Address1400 E Ash St POSition County Librarian 

Address ___ _______________ _ Email iariffin@co.qila.az.us 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 Phone (928J402-877Ox __ Fax 928-425-3462 

~ounty~G~/~1a~ ________________ ___ Employer Identification Number: 86-6000444 

Agency Classification: __ State Agency _X ___ County Government _ _ local Government _ _ Schools 

__ Tribal __ Faith Based __ Other 

Have you previously conducted business with First Things First using this EIN? _X_Y __ N 
If NO, please go to the following website, download the State of Arizona Substitute W-9 Form and submit with your 
Application: http:Uwww.gao.az.govNendor/account setup home.asp. 

In which Congressional (Federal) District is your agency? 
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps) 

In which legislative (State) District is your agency? 
http:Uwww.azredistricting.org (clickon Final Maps) 

Enter District # 1,4 

Enter District # 6,7,8 

Approximately how much FEDERAL funding (from a Federal Source) will your organization expend in your current fiscal year? 
0.00 

What is your organization's fiscal year-end date? -=J""u""a""e""'3".,rf' ____ ___ 

Accounting Method: _X __ Cash __ Accrual 

Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133? ~y __ N 

Please provide contact information of the audit firm conducting your audit: 

Agency Criston Larson Allen LlP 

Address 1201 South Alma School Rd. Mesa, AZ 85210 

PhoneNumber~48~~~61=S~-2~3~0~0 ____________________________ _ 

B. Proposed Program Information I Description: 

Amount requested: _ .... $"'3""6"".6"'63=-_____ _ 

Service area of proposed program: The San Carlos Apache Indian Reservation 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 13 of 59 



Target population of proposed program: 861 children ages birth to five in the region to be registered and receive books through 
the Imagination library Book Club program 

Number of books distributed: _----'1".,0"",3<.:;3,....2 _ _____ _ 

Number of local resource guides distributed to be served: __ ----"'0 _______ _ 

Number of workshops held to be served: _ _ -----'3=6'---_____ _ 

Number of events held to be served: ___ .:::..0 ______ _ 

Please provide a BRIEF description of the proposed program in one or two paragraphs and this will be the source for a public 
description describing the nature of the program being Implemented that will be used by First Things First. 

Promote "Every Child Ready to Read" early literacy program that provides training to parents about the 
importance of early literacy development for young children birth through age five. 

As an incentive and reward, each month, each child whose parents enrolled in the early literacy program 
will receive a book in the mail addressed to the child provided by the Dolly Parton Foundation 
Imagination Library Book Program. 

C. Contact Information 

First Things First Partner and Grants Management System (PGMS) require four designated contacts for 
contact with First Things First related to this grant (the same person may be assigned to more than 
one of the roles, if appropriate). 

Main Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the Main contact 
for this grant award and this person can view all information related to this grant (financial. 
programmatic and data collection/evaluation in nature). This person will also be the primary contact for 
First Things First and should be the person responsible for ensuring the program plan is implemented. 
Primary correspondence from First Things First will be sent to this person. 

Main Contact Person..:::J.=.a.:::::cq~u::..:e~G~fI:.u·fflt..:.:in:..:....-______________________ _ 

Position County Librarian 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 

Email jqriffin@co.qila.az.us 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 14 of 59 



Phone 928-402-8770 x Fax.-=9:.:2:.::.8-4....:.:2=.5--=3:....:.4=62=--________ _ 
Program Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the Program 
contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for program or 
data collection purposes only. 

Program Contact Person ...:.M=a!..Jry~S~t~e~m~m~ _____________________ _ 

Position Library Assistant Senior 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 

Email mstemm@qlcd.az.orq 

Phone __ .l.:f9:.:2::::;8L.:,}4:.::::0;:2-=-8:.:,.7.:::.68::::..-______ x. ____ Fax 928-425-3462 

Financial Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the financial 
contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for financial 
purposes only. 

Position Library Assistant Senior 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501 

Email mstemm@qlcd.az.orq 

Phone _ _ --1f=92::,:8=}4..:.:0::;.::2:....;-8::.:7;..:6;.::::8 ___ _____ x. ____ Fax 928-425-3462 

Evaluation Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the 
Evaluation contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for 
data collection purposes only. 

Evaluation Contact Person :..:M..:.:a""ry...L...:S:.::t.:;em:.:.=m:..:-____________________ _ 

Position Library Assistant Senior 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 15 of 59 



City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501 

Email mstemm@qlcd.az.orq 

Phone {928}402-8768 x Fax 928-425-3462 
In addition, your application may have included information about a collaborating partner/agency. 
Please replicate this information as many times as necessary to document the participation and 
agreement to be involved with the application as a collaborating agency/partner. 

Collaborator 

Agency Son Carlos Public Library ConmctPe~on.~£~m~m~a~~~i~ct~o~r _________ _ 

Address PO BOX 545 Position Library Manager 

Address __________________ _ Email emmavictor08@vahoo.com 

City, State, Zip San Carlos. AZ 85550 Phone 928-475-2611 Fax 928-475-2611. ____ _ 

County ""G.....,lIa"--________________ _ 

Collaborator 

Agency Gila County WIC Contact Pe~on Ursula Donovan 

Address 5515 S Apache Ave Position WIC Manager 

Address _ _________________ _ Email udonovan@co.qila.az.us 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 Phone 928-402-8815 x __ Fax. ____ _ 

County~G~/~1a~ _______________ ___ 

Collaborator 

Agency __________________ _ Contact Pe~on _____________ _ 

Address. __________________ _ Position, ________________ _ 

Address __________________ _ Email, _ _________________ _ 

City, State, Zip _ _______________ _ Phone _ ________ x __ Fax. _____ _ 

Courny __________________ __ 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 16of59 



Attachment B 

PERSONNEL OVERVIEW 

--
STAFF MEMBER ~ ... -.,- .. ' , --- BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL :'~.J:'. --: ,'L .'\. ,.. ~ .! -_ ~': .. ' ' ' "; .~; 

Name: TBA Community Liaison for San Carlos, Peridot, and Bylas 
Title: Community Liaison 
FTE on this project: .4 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 
Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

*In addition to this overview, please attach a resume (for current personnel) or a job 
description (for positions to be hired) for individuals involved in the project. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 17 of 59 

.",: . .... ~: 



Attachment C 

Narrative Questions and Responses 

Narrative Responses Required 
To complete your Application, provide a narrative response that addresses each of the items 
below. 

a) Provide a description of the program being proposed. 

The Gila County Library District will coordinate a collaborative early literacy effort 
among the District, San Carlos Public Library, and Gila County Health Department 
(WIC) to promote early literacy development in young children, birth to age five, by 
conducting presentations to parents/caregivers at various locations throughout the 
San Carlos Apache Reservation. The District will enroll the children of the 
parents/caregivers who attend the information sessions on the importance of early 
literacy with REvery Child Ready to Read" and '7he Imagination Library." The 
Imagination Library Program will mail age appropriate, professionally selected books 
monthly to each child enrolled. 

This project will build on the work that the San Carlos Public library already does 
regarding early childhood literacy efforts. Since 2005, those efforts have included 
information regarding the importance of early literacy development for young 
children, providing training to parents and caregivers at public gathering places and 
community events outside the public library setting, and including the foundational 
building blocks to early literacy development in story times and other preschool 
activities in the library setting. 

Library staff at the San Carlos Public Library and the District office will register 
eligible children based upon residence (determined by zip code) and birth dates, enter 
the data in the Imagination Library database, pay the monthly invoice (average of $ 
25 per child per year), and pick up undeliverable books at the Post Offices throughout 
the service area. The Project Director, a Community Liaison and the San Carlos Public 
Library Manager will evaluate the program on a regular basis, create the evaluation 
forms and collect the required FTF evaluation data. Staff at library in the service 
area will be involved in enrolling children and assisting with the collection of 
evaluation data. The Project Director, a Community Liaison and the San Carlos Public 
Library Manager will promote the project in the libraries and in other venues and at 
events that happen in each of the communities. The Community Liaison will offer 
parent and caregiver early literacy trainings with the local partners, i.e. San Carlos 
Apache Tribe Women, Infant and Children program, San Carlos Head Start, 
etc ... while the Gila County Library District staff will provide additional parent and 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 18 of 69 



caregiver trainings in partnership with the San Carlos WIC offices and throughout the 
service area. 

The Gila County Library District staft the local liaison, and the staff at the San Carlos 
Public Library will be actively involved in enrolling children at the libraries, at other 
venues and at community events throughout the San Carlos Apache Reservation in 
order to access hard-to-reach families. Library District staff has already set up a 
collaborative effort with the Gila County Health Department WIC program which 
provides contact and training for 400 families countywide which includes the families 
of the San Carlos Apache Nation. Where many WIC programs around Arizona are 
experiencing a decline in the number of families served, Gila County WIC program 
has been experiencing an increase in service population. Other access points for 
reaching families will be at community events in each local community, social service 
agencies, and typical gathering places for parents such as grocery stores, churches, 
and doctor's offices. 

Outcomes will be measured according to the performance measures required by First 
Things First as outlined on page 4 of the Grantee Agreement. Information will be 
gathered through a May survey mailed to the families participating in the program. 
The Community Liaison will conduct a survey of the Kindergarten Teachers at all 
schools located on the San Carlos Apache Reservation and the Fort Thomas Unified 
School District. 

b) Identify and describe the target population to be served by the proposed strategy, 
including: 

The Gila County Library District will target 861 children ages birth to five in the 
region to be registered and receive books through the Imagination Library Book Club 
program. This is number of children of the birth to five population in the region 
accounted for in the 2010 U.S. Census. 

The Gila County Library District will also specifically target children who are 
participating in existing First Things First programs in the region to be enrolled in or 
take part in Imagination Library Book Program. 

By hiring a local Community Liaison who knows the needs of the targeted population 
in terms of cultural competency, the District hopes to successfully reach a large 
percentage of the targeted population in the first year. 

c) Identify capacity or infrastructure building which will be needed, including 
agreements and partnerships with other departments and agencies, additional 
resources, and training and technical assistance to provide the proposed service. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 19 of 59 



The Gila County Library District will partner with the San Carlos Public Library, the 
San Carlos WIC program, Apache Kid Child Care and the Head Start Programs to 
provide the proposed service. 

d) Identify barriers to providing the service or program proposed and plans for 
addressing these barriers. 

Permission to access some of the venues may be needed in order to set up 
information booths at various locations. Arrangements to do so will be one of the 
duties of the Community Liaison. The Gila County Library District will reach out to the 
Regional Director of the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council for guidance 
and direction in beginning the process to gain permission to implement services in 
the regional area. 

e) Describe plans to recruit and locate personnel within the geographical region of the 
provided service and that are linguistically and culturally competent for the 
population to be served. 

By hiring a temporary part-time employee who lives on the San Carlos Apache 
Reservation as a community liaison, the District hopes to avoid any barriers such as 
linguist and cultural conflicts between the promoter and the parents/caregivers that 
would come up if the promoter were not from the local communities. 

f) Describe steps that will be taken to promote collaboration with other tribal 
departments and partners working with the tribe. 

The District will instruct the Community Liaison to seek out tribal departments and 
partners by becoming an active member of the San Carlos Apache Regional 
Partnership Early Childhood Development and Health Collaborative in order to help 
promote the program so that as many children as possible will get an opportunity to 
enroll in the Imagination Library. 

g) Describe the plan and resources necessary to meet FTF basic reporting 
requirements, maintain data securely and confidentially, and utilize data to assess 
progress in achieving outcomes of the proposed strategy. 

The Gila County Library District will use Imagination Library Registration forms in 
order to gather information necessary to enroll each child in the program. The 
District agrees to participate in the FTF quarterly evaluations and any program 
specific evaluation or research efforts adhering to tribal data/research protocols and 
procedures. Data collection and FTF evaluation activities will be directly connected 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 20 of 59 



with the Goals, Performance Measures and Units of Service aligned to the strategy 
described in this scope of work. 

GRA·RC029·13-0533-01 Page 21 of 59 



Attachment 0 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: August 1, 2012 -June 30, 2013 

. j~i.~:~ ~_~. '~y . Activities 
~(" ~,~7;'~' . ~~:~::·~'( .. ~·t~I::.' ~:1~~'~t'~:::~~ :!" Ta~k . ~'9~. :}d-~:~. >. ~ .. ~! :.:7<;; ~ .;. '.: Person Responsible :, .~ I t Date Task Will Be -. ' .. , . Support Documentation .. " ... , . .. 

. , . "- . .. . - .. ' .. . .... ' 'Completed/Tlmeline " • ~. oR • _ ' •• ~ •••• ~"' .. .. .. • :' •• :~ .. .' ': '!: J 

Jacque Griffin and/or August 2012 Memorandum of Understanding to be 
Establish affiliation between the Find a "Champion" to complete the Mary Stemm mailed to Dollywood Foundation 
Dollywood Foundation and the Memorandum of Understanding in order 
Gila County Library District as to get the Non-Profit mall rates for 
the affiliate for the San Carlos books for the children in the program. 
Reservation Children Mary Stemm August 2012 Order forms and Invoices on File at 

Order Program Supplies from GClD. 
Imagination library 
Obtain official Tribal permission to Jacque Griffin August 2012 Inter-Governmental Agreement and 
provide services on Tribal land. San Carlos Apache Tribe Resolution 

Hire Community liaison Recruit Liaison Jacque Griffin/Gila August 2012 
Cou nty H R Dept. 

Hire Liaison Jacque Griffin/Gila August 2012 Online applications 
County HR Dept . 

Add new staff to FTF PGMS Mary Stemm August 2012 Filed with FTF PGMS 
Promotion of Early Mandatory meeting between GClD Jacque Griffin August 2012 Sign-up Sheet will be utilized 
LIteracy Programming in library Staff and Liaison to plan the 
Communities of San promotion of Early Literacy Programming 
Carlos Apache 
Reservation Register Children for Imagination library Community LIaison August 2012 through Registration forms will be input in Il 
Registration of Children Februa ry 2013 System 
into imagination Library locate Ven ues for Reaching Children Community Liaison August 2012 through Liaison will report to Mary Stemm for 

Whose parents don't come to library February 2013 quarterly narrative. 
Join San Carlos Apache Regional Community liaison September 2012 and on- Meeting calendar and meeting agendas 
Partnership Council's Early Childhood gOing bi-monthly 
Development and Health Collaborative 
and attend all scheduled meetings. 

Input Imagination Library Mary Stemm/Community Monthly Found on Il System online 
Registrations into Dollywood Data Input for new registrations liaison 
Foundation Site Mary Stemm Monthly Handled online through Il System 

Data updates for change of address 
Mary Stemm Monthly Monthly reports online at first of each 

NCOA Alerts for "Bad" addresses month. 
Invoicing Process invoices for book orders from Mary Stemm Monthly Filed with Gila County Finance 

Dollywood Foundation Imagination Department 
Library 
Process all other invoices for Early Mary Stemm As the need arises Flied with Gila County Finance 
Literacy programming Department 

'------
Input Paid Invoices to First Things First _ _Mary Stemm Monthly Flied with FTF PGMS 

_. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 22 of 59 



Data / Narrative Reports Report Trainings to District Staff Liaison Monthly Email Mary Stemm 
Upload Data Report to FTF Mary Stemm Monthly Filed with FTF PGMS 

Upload Narrative Report to First Things Mary Stemm Quarterly Filed with FTF PGMS 
First 

Eval uatlon Poll Kindergartens in all public schools liaison August 2012 Keep on file in Gila County Library 
for number of children not prepared for District Office and report to FTF PGMS 
enrollment. 
Evaluate Survey Responses Lia ison September 2012 Email report to County Librarian and 

Mary Stemm 
Mary Stemm October 2012 Filed with FTF PG MS 

Include Survey results in quarterly , 

report 
Satisfaction Survey to Mall Survey to parents of children Mary Stemm April 2013 Copy of Survey on File in GClD Office 
Parents registered as of February l't during 4th and report to FTF PGMS 

qtr. 
Mary Stemm June 2013 Include survey results In Final 

Receive surveys and report on results quarterly report to FTF PGMS 
Train parents/caregivers by attending Jacque Griffin, Mary As often as possible Filed with FTF PGMS Data Reports 

I Early UteracyTraining parent meetings of various community Stemm, Community when the occasions arise 
entities during the year Liaison 
Train parents/caregivers by video Jacque Griffln/WIC Clinic Weekly Data reports and quarterly narratives 
presentation at San Carlos WIC Clinics Employees to FTF PGMS 
and take new registrations for 
Imagination Library 
Continue one on one training w/parents Public librarians, Daily as the need arises Filed with FTF PGMS quarterly reports 

Community liaison -

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 23 of 59 



Attachment E and F Instructions 

How to Complete the Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative 

Complete a ll-month budget for the period of Augustl, 2012 through June 30, 2013 using the template 
provided in Attachment E. Please make sure you include a budget narrative as Attachment F. 

Please keep in mind items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative should 
describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related successfully 
implementing the project. Please assure that all requested funds follow these guidelines: 

• Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of First 
Things First funds. 

• Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations. 

• Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs charged 
and expended by the agency - consistent treatment of costs. 

o For example - a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect cost if any 
other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has been allocated to the 
First Things First award as a direct cost. 

o For example - a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another source of 
funding and a different rate to First Things First - this would not be consistent treatment of 
costs. 

• Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

• Be adequately documented. 

• All travel related costs for these trainings and meetings should be included in the Applicant's 
budget and calculated using the State of Arizona travel rate limitations for mileage, per diem and 
lodging as described on the budget narrative worksheet. For more information about the state 
requirements, visit http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/. 

• Requests for line item modifications, which do not change the total program funding, shall be 
requested in writing and shall only be made following receipt of written authorization from First 
Things First. 

Please note the line items included in the budget template represent the types of costs possible for a line 
item budget these line items mayor may not be applicable or appropriate for your Application. Your 
budget line items requested must fit within one ofthe categories listed. However, it is expected that you 
would not need to utilize all of the sample line items. 



Attachment E 
Line Item Budget 

While you ~ use this format, you may reproduce it with Word Processing or Spreadsheet software. Limit your 
budget line items to the following categories: Personnel, Fringe Benefits, Professional Services, Travel, Pass-Through 
(i.e. Sub grants" other Operating Expenses and Administrative/Indirect Costs. 

Budget period: August 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013 

... . , ':', ' '.;-; " . ,.' Bud8et catesorv '-- .- '# f' ~ ; . .. '.' ~ J ~ '" Una Item Description Ar . •• , ... . •• ".. Requested Funds " ........ , TotalCost • -', ' 

PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel SeNices Sub Total $10,683.048 

Salaries Part time Community liaison 12.05 $10683.048 
hrs/week for 48 weeks 

$884.95z 1 EMPLOYEE RElATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total 

Fringe Benefits or Other ERE 7.65% of $20.00 for FICA and Social $884.952 
Security 587.4 hrs 

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES Professional & Outside SeNices Sub Total $22,099.00 
, Contracted Services Dollywood Foundation $22,099.00 

Rate of $28.oo/year per child with a 
goal of 861 = $24,108.00. Prorated 
for 11 months totals: $2,009.00 x 11 
months = $22,099.00 

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $778.75 

In-State Travel 1750 miles $778.75 

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals SUb Total $ 
Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities 
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $Z,017.25 

• Postage 600 postcards @ .32 each $192.00 
600 letters @ .45 each $270.00 

• Shipping Shipping $100.00 

• Printing/Copying 600 Surveys, letters, envelopes $236.00 

• Program Materials SO posters @ $6.00 each $300.00 
2 Retractable Banners @ $100 each $200.00 
2500 Registration Brochures @ .204 $510.00 
5 Brochure Holders @ $8.45 $ 42.25 
1 Promotional News Packet $ 2.00 
1 Train Display $165.00 

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-tapital Sub Total $ZOO.OO 

Equipment $4,999 or less in value Pop-up Shade $140.00 
Table $50.00 
Chair $10.00 

SUbtotal Direct Program Costs: ' - .... "" ' . ' .- .,... ..... - , "-," $0 
ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIREcr COS'fS I Total Admin/Indirect $0 

Indirect/Admin Costs $0 $0 

Total $ $36,663.00 i 

Authorized signature ____________________ _ Date ________ _ 

~I:I A ell,..""" A., ftc.,.., tw 



Attachment F 

Budget Narrative 

The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget line items. 
The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures on the budget form. 
Please verify that the narrative and budget form correspond and the calculations and totals are accurate. 
Please include one narrative that matches the 11 month line Item budget categories and subcategories. 

Personnel Services: Include information such as position title{s), name of employee (if known), salary, 
time to be spent on this program (hours or %), number of months aSSigned to this program, etc. Explain 
how the salary rate for each position was determined. If salaries are expected to increase during the 
project year, indicate the percentage increases for each position and justify the percent ofthe salary 
increase. Also, be sure to include the scheduled salary increases on the Budget Form. 

Community Liaison for the San Carlos Reservation Communities will be hired on a part-time basis by Gila 
County at a gross rate of $20.00 per hour for the county with $18.47 per hour for the employee after 7.65% 
for FICA and Social Security. (Tax to be determined by the employee). The Community Liaison will be working 
12.05 hours per week x $18.47 = $222.5635/week x 48 weeks (11 months) = $10,683.048 

Total $10,683.048 

Employee Related Expenses: Include a benefit percentage and what expenses make up employee 
benefit costs. Indicate any special rates for part-time employees, if applicable. Explain how the benefits for 
each position were determined. If using a fringe benefit rate, explain how this percentage is justified or 
approved by your agency. 

Gila County deducts 7.65% for FICA and Social Security. This will be $884.952 for 587.4 hrs 

Total $884.952 

Professional and Outside Services: If professional consultants/services costs are proposed in the 
budget, define how the costs for these services were determined and the justification for the services 
related to the project. Explain how all contracts will be procured. 

Gila County Library District will contract with the Dol/ywood Foundation Imagination Library to supply a 
book a month by mail to any child registered in the program. Rate of $28.00/year per child with a goal of 
861 = $24,108.00. Prorated for 11 months totals: $2,009.00 x 11 months = $22,099.00 

Total $22,099.00 

Travel: Separate travel that is in-state and out-of-state. Include a detailed breakdown of hotel, 
transportation, meal costs, etc. Indicate the location{s) of travel, the justification for travel, how many 
employees will attend and how the estimates have been determined. Explain the relationship of each cost 
item to the project {e.g., if training or training expenses are requested, explain the topic of the training and 



its relationship to the project). Applicants must use the State of Arizona Travel Policy on rates limitations 
for mileage, lodging, and meals {http://www.gao.az.gov!travel! for both in-state and out-of-state travel. 

Travel monies will be set aside for the liaison to travel from their community to Globe in order to 
meet with the Gila County Library Director to complete plans for the awareness campaign and to 
insure that there is a unified message presented to the prospective parents/caregivers. 
Travel monies will also be reserved for travel for the liaison to do outreach in the communities of 
Cutter, San Carlos~ Peridot~ and Bylas at least once a month. 

Travel for outreach 1750 miles @ .44 M per mile =$778.75 

Total $778.75 

Aid to Organizations or Individuals: In the event that this application represents collaboration and the 
contract will be utilizing other sub grantees or subcontractors to perform various components of the 
program, include a list of sub grantees, programmatic work each sub grantee will perform, and how costs 
for each sub grantee are determined. N/A 

Other Operating Expenses: Explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and 
justify the need for the items. All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures. All items should be categorized in the following categories: Telephones / 
Communications Services, Internet Access, General Office Supplies, Food, Rent/Occupancy, Evaluation 
(non-contracted and non-personnel expenses), Utilities, Furniture, Postage, Software (including IT supplies), 
Dues/Subscriptions, Advertising, Printing/Copying, Equipment Maintenance, Professional 
Development/Staff Training, Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff, Insurance, Program Materials, 
Program Supplies, Scholarships, and Program Incentives 

Postage for 600 surveys (letters and return address postcards) for parents estimated at $462.00 
600 postcards @ .32 each = $192.00 and 600 letters @ .45 each = $270.00 

Shipping total is an estimate due to costs difference per shipment on order and is determined by 
Imagination Library. Estimated at $100. 

Printing for 600 4th quarter surveys to parents (includes letters to parents~ postcard surveys~ and 
envelopes) estimated at $236.00 

Program Materials for Imagination Library 
50 posters @ $6.00 each = $300 
2 Retractable Banners @ $100 each =$200 
2500 Registration Brochures @ .204 =$510 
5 Brochure Holders @ $8.45 =$42.25 
1 Promotional News Packet =$2.00 
1 Train Display =$165 

Total $2,917.25 

a .... __ "'., -c en 



Non-capital Equipment: For items with a unit cost less than $5,000 and an initial estimated useful life 
beyond a single year, explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and justify the 
need for the items. All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established purchasing 
procedures. For example, items such as computers, printers, projectors, etc. each with a unit cost less than 
$5,000. 

Equipment/or outreach at various venues, i.e. Community Events, Shopping Centers, Post Offices, etc.: 

1 Pop-up Shade 
1 Folding Table 
1 Folding Chair 

Total 

$140.00 
$ 50.00 
$ 10.00 

$200.00 

Administrative/Indirect Costs: Administrative costs are general or centralized expenses of overall 
administration of an organization that receives grant funds and does not include particular program costs. 
For organizations that have an established federally approved indirect cost rate for Federal awards, indirect 
costs mean those costs that are included in the organization's indirect cost rate. Such costs are generally 
identified with the organization's overall operation and are further described in 2 CFR 220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 
CFR 230. N/A 

Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses included: 

o Option A - Administrative Costs: with proper justification, sub grantees may include an allocation 
for administrative costs for up to 10% of the total direct funds requested of the grant request. 
Administrative costs may include allocable direct charges for: costs of financial, accounting, 
auditing, contracting or general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including overall 
organization's management improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance that 
protects the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs solely 
attributable to the project. Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries and 
benefits of the project's director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time spent in 
support of a specific project. 

OR 

o Option B - Federal/v Aoproved Indirect Costs: If your organization has a federally approved indirect 
cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up to 10% of 
the grant request. Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved Indirect cost rate 
agreement. 

Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project. The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs that 
are usually treated as indirect. 

Authorized signature ~: ~11~ oate<b46-
7 



Attachment G 

DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES* 

Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public Agencies, 
Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for the proposed 
Program*. Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state funds by First Things 
First expenditures, meaning that no FTF monies expended are to be used to take the place of any 
existing state or federal funding for early childhood development and health programs. 

Use a continuation sheet if necessary. The following form may be reproduced with word processing 
software or another form may be created that contains all the information requested. 

Type of Funding 
r,I If used for 

Received From Amount match on 
(Federal, State, local, other) 

this grant 

N/A 

TOTAL: 0.00 

*Thls table should Include only those funds that will support the program detailed in this Application. 

Authorized Signature: ~ Date: c:;,,¥-
7 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

1. 

2. 

Attachment H: 

FIRST THINGS FIRST FINANCIAL SYSTEMS SURVEY 

Name of Applicant: Gila County Library District 

Please answer every question by filling in the circle next to the correct answer. Attach materials and 
document comments as required. 

As stewards of federal and state funds, First Things First awards funds to organizations (regardless of how 
small or large) that are both capable of achieving project goals/objectives and upholding their 
responsibility for properly managing funds as they achieve those objectives. 

This survey will be used primarily for initial monitoring of the organization. This survey may also be used 
in evaluating the financial capability of the organization in the award process. Deficiencies should be 
addressed for corrective action and the organization should consider procuring technical assistance in 
correcting identified problems. 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Has your organization received a Federal or State Grant within the last two years? X YES 
0 NO 

Has your organization completed an A-133 Single Audit within the past two years? If yes, please X YES 

attach a complete copy of your A-133 Audit, including, but not limited to, your Management Le 0 NO 

Findings and Questioned Costs. 

If your organization has not completed an A-133 Single Audit, have your financial statements be 0 YES 

audited, reviewed or compiled by an independent Certified Public Accountant within the past t\l 0 NO 
years? If yes, please attach a complete copy of the most recent audited, reviewed or compiled 
financial statements. NOTE THAT ONLY ONE COPY OF YOUR AUDIT NEEDS TO BE INCLUDED WIT N/A 
THE APPLICATION MARKED "ORIGINAL". It is not necessary to include additional copies with ea 
copy of the completed Application. 

Please attach a schedule showing the TOTAL federal funds (by granting agency) expended by yo Attached 3 pages 

agency for the most recent fiscal year. Note: If your organization had an A-133 Single Audit, a 
copy ofthe "Schedule of Expenditures for Federal Awards" can be submitted. ONLY ONE COpy I 
NEEDED, TO BE INCLUDED WITH THE APPLICATION MARKED "ORIGINAL" 

Has your organization been granted tax-exempt status by the Internal Revenue Service? 0 YES 
X NO 
0 N/A 

If you answered YES to question #5, under what section of the IRS code? 
o 501 C (3) o 501 C (4) 0 501 C (5) o 501 C (6) o Other Specify: 

Does your organization have established poliCies related to salary scales, fringe benefits, travel X YES 

reimbursement and personnel poliCies? 0 NO 

B. FUNDS MANAGEMENT 
Which of the following describes your organization's accounting system? 0 Manual 

0 Automated 
X Combination 

How frequently do you post to the General Ledger? X Daily 

D ___ 41)1\ ~I:'n 



0 Weekly 
0 Monthly 
0 Other 

3. Does the accounting system completely and accurately track the receipt and disbursements of X YES 
funds by each grant or funding source? 0 NO 

4. Does the accounting system provide for the recording of actual costs compared to budgeted co X YES 
for each budget line item? 0 NO 

5. Are time and effort distribution reports maintained for employees working fully or partially on X YES 
state or federal grant programs that account for 100% of each employee's time? 0 NO 

6. Is your organization familiar with Federal Cost Principles (Le. 2 CFR 220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 CFR X YES 
230)? 0 NO 

7. How does your organization plan to charge common/indirect costs to this grant? 0 Direct Charges 
NOTE: Those organizations using allocable direct charges must attach a copy of the methodology and X Utilizing an 

calculations in determining those charges. Indirect Cost 
Those organizations using a federally approved indirect cost rate must attach a copy of the approval Allocation Plan or 
documentation issued by the federal government. Rate 

C. INTERNAL CONTROLS 
1. Are duties of the bookkeeper/accountant segregated from the duties of cash receipt or cash X YES 

disbursement? 0 NO 

2. Are checks signed by individuals whose duties exclude recording cash received, approving X YES 
vouchers for payment and the preparation of payroll? 0 NO 

3. Are all accounting entries and payments supported by source documentation? X YES 
0 NO 

4. Are cash or in-kind matching funds supported by source documentation? X YES 
0 NO 

5. Are employee time sheets supported by appropriately approved/signed documents? X YES 
0 NO 

6. Does the organization maintain poliCies that include procedures for assuring compliance with X YES 
applicable cost principles and terms of each grant award? 0 NO 

D. PROCUREMENT 

1. Does the organization maintain written codes of conduct for employees involved in awarding X YES 
or administering procurement contracts? 0 NO 

2. Does the organization conduct purchases in a manner that encourages open and free X YES 
competition among vendors? 0 NO 

3. Does the organization complete some level of cost or price analYSis for every major purchase? X YES 
0 NO 

4. Does the organization maintain a system of contract administration to ensure Grantee X YES 
conformance with the terms and conditions of each contract? 0 NO 

5. Does the organization maintain written procurement policies and procedures? X YES 
0 NO 

E. CONTACT INFORMATION 



Please indicate the following information. In the event that First Things First has questions about 
this survey, this individual will be contacted. 

Prepared By: Jacque Griffin 

Job Title:, __ ..:C=.o=.;un:...:.;t:,Ly-=L::.:ib:..:,r..=a.:...:.ri=.;an:...:..-_____________ _ 

Date:, ___ =5!<..::1""'I2=O=1=2 _______________ _ 

Phone/Fax/Email:. __ 9~2::::8:...-4..:.:0:.::2=_-8:.;7:..:7_=0:...._ ___________ _ 

F. CERTIFICATION 

I certify that this report is complete and accurate, and that the Grantee has accepted the 
responsibility of maintaining the financial systems. 

~#.z ~ 

G. COMMENT AND ATTACHMENTS 

Please use the space below to comment on any answers in Sections A - D. Please indicate the 
Section and Question # next to each comment. Number of Attachments (please number each 
attachment): ___ _ 

COMMENTS: 

A. 4. 2011 Audit can be found at 
http:Uwww.gilacountyaz.gov!DepartmentFiles!Finance!FINALFINANCIALANDSINGLEAUDITAUDITREPORT201 



Attachment I 
Data Collection Form 

-
I Performance Measure Plan for Data Collection Plan for Using the Data Quality Assurance 

Number of books Reporting to PGMS for use in County Librarian will review reports'l 
distributed Monthly reports from Imagination quarterly reports for FTF 

Library 
Number of workshops Monthly reports from Community Reporting to PGMS for use in County Librarian will review reports 
held/proposed Liaison to District Staff quarterly reports for FTF 
Number of events Monthly reports from Community Reporting to PGMS for use in County librarian will review reports 
held/proposed number Liaison to District Staff quarterly reports for FTF 
Number of children Monthly reports from Imagination Reporting to PGMS for use in County librarian will review reports 
receiving books Library quarterly reports for FTF 
Number of adults Signup sheet at workshops Reporting to PGMS for use in County Librarian will review reports 
attending workshops Monthly reports from Community quarterly reports for FTF 

liaison to District Staff 



Exhibit A: 

Scope of Work 

-

Overview of First Things Firs't 

On November 7, 2006, Arizonans made an historic decision on behalf of our state's youngest citizens. By 
majority vote, they made a commitment to all Arizona children 5 and younger, that children would have the 
tools they need to arrive at school healthy and ready to succeed. The voters backed that promise with an 80-
cent per pack increase on tobacco products to provide dedicated and sustainable funding for early childhood 
services for our youngest children. The initiative created the statewide First Things First board and the 31 
regional partnership councils that share the responsibility of ensuring that these early childhood funds are 
spent on strategies that will result in improved education and health outcomes for kids 5 and younger. 

First Things First is designed to meet the diverse needs of Arizona communities. The regional councils are 
comprised of community volunteers, with each member representing a specific segment of the community 
that has a role in ensuring that Arizona's children grow up to be ready for school, set for life: parents, leaders 
of faith communities, tribal representatives, educators, health professionals, business leaders, and 
philanthropists. 

First Things First Strategic Direction 
FTF's commitment to young children means more than simply funding programs and services. It means having 
a shared vision about what being prepared for kindergarten actually means. First Things First specifies that 
programs and services funded by the FTF Board and Regional Partnership Councils are to address one or more 
of the following Goal Areas as defined by the statute: 

• Improve the quality of early childhood development and health programs. 

• Increase the access to quality early childhood development and health programs. 

• Increase access to preventive health care and health screenings for children through age five. 

• Offer parent and family support and education concerning early childhood development and literacy. 

• Provide professional development and training for early childhood development and health providers. 

• Increase coordination of early childhood development and health programs and provide public 
information about the importance of early childhood development and health. 

The FTF Board established a strategic framework with a set of school readiness indicators that provide a 
comprehensive composite measure to show whether young children are ready for success as they prepare to 
enter kindergarten. The strategies funded by FTF work collectively to develop a comprehensive system across 
the state and regionally to address the school readiness indicators. The FTF Board and Regional Partnership 
Councils determine the priorities and strategies to be funded across the state and throughout the regions 
assessing the challenges and building on the resources and assets in place. 

School Readiness Indicators 
1. #/% children demonstrating school readiness at kindergarten entry in the development domains of 

social-emotional, language and literacy, cognitive, and motor and physical 

2. #/% of children enrolled in an early care and education program with a Quality First rating of 3-5 stars 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 34 of 69 



3. #/% of children with special needs enrolled in an inclusive early care and education program with a 

Quality First rating of 3-5 stars 

4. #/% of families that spend no more than 10% of the regional median family income on quality care and 

education with a Quality First rating of 3-5 stars 

5. % of children with newly identified developmental delays during the kindergarten year 

6. # of children entering kindergarten exiting preschool special education to regular education 

7. #/% of children ages 2-5 at a healthy weight (Body Mass Index-BMI) 

8. #/% of children receiving timely well child visits 

9. #/% of children age 5 with untreated tooth decay 

10. % of families who report they are competent and confident about their ability to support their child's 

safety, health and well being 

Scope of Work: What Strategy Will This Grant Fund and How Will It Mal<e a 
I 

Difference for Children? 

Statement of need 
Recognizing that children are active participants in the world from day one is critical for supporting a child's 
healthy brain development and learning. Developmental and neuroscience research emphasizes the 
importance of infants engaging in discovery through everyday explorations shared by a sensitive, attentive 
caregiver (National Scientific Council on the Developing Child, 2007; Stamm, 2007). According to the First 
Things First Family and Community Survey on Early Childhood, A Baseline Report on Families and Coordination 
2008, when asked at what age babies sense and react to their surroundings, about half of Arizona parents 
acknowledged that this occurs in the first month of life (51%). Although this represents a larger proportion of 
parents than in the national survey (35%), nearly half of Arizona parents (48%) still believe that children do not 
respond to their environment until two months of age or later. This suggests that almost half of Arizona 
parents do not fully understand the importance of the child's very early interactive experiences with his or her 
environment for healthy development. Overall, research based knowledge about what to expect from their 
child at each age helps parents interact positively with their child and set appropriate expectations and 
boundaries throughout their daily routines. Furthermore, Arizona's parents understand that early childhood 
development is important, with over 75% of parents acknowledging that they can Significantly impact 
children's brain development at or before birth. While Arizona's parents understand the importance of early 
brain development, not all are sure what they can do to best support their child's optimal development. 
Results from the Family and Community Survey in 2008 also indicate that parents can benefit from clear, 

research-based information to help them support their child. 

Research shows that the first three years of life are a period of incredible growth in all areas of a baby's 
development. A newborn's brain is about 25 percent of its approximate adult weight. By age three, it has 
grown dramatically by producing billions of cells and hundreds of trillions of connections, or synapses, 
between these cells. While we know that the development of a young child's brain takes years to complete, 
we also know there are many things parents and caregivers can do to assist children to get off to a good start 
and establish healthy patterns for life-long learning. 

GRA-RC029-13·0533-01 Page 35 of 59 



Data on parental reading for children between birth and five years, drawn from the National Survey of 
Children's Health (2003) indicates that in our state only 43.2 percent of children ages birth to five years are 
read to daily, placing Arizona near the bottom of the ranking at 44th. Only 40.6 percent of children ages birth 
through three years are read to daily-placing Arizona at the flat bottom of the ranking at 51st. Parents 
reading frequently to their children provide language and literacy skills that help children learn to read. 
Helping children to prepare for the challenge of learning to read before school entry is better than helping 
them catch up later. Reading aloud is the single most important activity for building the knowledge required 
for eventual success in reading. 

Furthermore, the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council is aware that children from the region are 
not arriving to school with the literacy skills they need in order to succeed and that a high number of children 
in the region are living in poverty therefore prompting them to fund this new strategy in SFY2013-2015. The 
Regional Council also knows that, as reported in the Needs and Assets report, 32.7% of all live births reported 
for the region in 2009 were born to mothers that had not achieved a high school diploma causing concern 
among the Regional Council that mothers may not be as excited to read to their child. 

FTF Parent Outreach and Awareness strategies provide families of young children with information, materials 
or connections to resources and activities that increase awareness of early childhood development and health 
and the resources, supports or programs available for young children and their families. Having identified 
these gaps, it is important to deliver parent outreach and awareness strategies with consideration for local 
needs. The San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council would like this strategy to implement Imagination 
Library for children ages birth to five in the region. By implementing this strategy it is the hope of the Regional 
Council that families get excited about reading to their children and have a home environment rich with 
books. 

Description of strategy including Standards of Practice 
Parent outreach and awareness strategies strive to increase all families' awareness of positive parenting and 
knowledge of services, supports and information on child development, child health and early learning to 
support their child's overall development. In other words, the goal of this strategy is to change parent 
behavior through a variety of complementary tactics so that their child is ready for school at kindergarten 
entry. 

Parent outreach and awareness activities include the following: 
A. Resource Distribution: Distribution of children's books, audio discs, community resource guides, child 

development and child health fact sheets, parenting tip sheets, brochures, pamphlets, andlor 
newsletters. Resources can be offered and distributed during established community festivals, fairs, or 
exhibitions at community settings and through community-based partners. For example, parents and 
children can be provided with developmentally appropriate books to take home that encourage daily 
family reading activities. 

B. ParentI Family Workshop: One-time informational sessions for parents and families to increase 
awareness about child development or child health topics. These may include, for example, library 
story times, an informational session about programs or services available in the community, or a 
session on brain development, child development or child health. For example, child health workshops 
may be offered to increase parent's knowledge about topics such as injury prevention, oral health, 
preventative health care, or nutrition. One or more of these activities can be implemented in 
conjunction with other FTF early learning, health and/ or family support strategies as part of regional 
funding plan implementation. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 36 of 59 



C. Earned Media and Paid Advertising: Earned media is defined as stories strategically placed in major 
broadcast print or emerging media as well as information placed in smaller community newspapers, 
newsletters, and public service announcements. Paid advertising is defined as advertising through 
billboards, print ads, multimedia campaigns (TV), radio and online ads. Paid advertising requires a 
substantial financial investment and must be accompanied by other strategies in order to be effective 
in changing behavior. The advertising itself must be research-based and the information prOVided 
should be about a specific early childhood development or child health topic related to critical time 
periods to address trends in child rearing and parenting practices that target parents and families. For 
example, print ads displayed on buses with the message "read with your child every day", includes a 
phone number and web address for a community resource that provides additional information and 
support on reading with young children. This may bring parents' attention to the issue and further 
create interest in seeking out the listed resources. 

This program will: 
./ Implement the Imagination Library Book Club through the Gila County Library District and services 

provided at the San Carlos Apache library branch on the reservation which is part of the Gila County 
Library District to deliver an age appropriate book each month to the homes of the 800 registered children 
in the region. Earned Media Paid Advertising are not components of this strategy for the San Carlos 
Apache Regional Partnership Council. 

./ Provide information on developmentally appropriate learning opportunities that support early language 
and literacy development which prepares children for success in school and life . 

./ Deliver the program at community locations convenient and easily accessible for families. Family 
participation is voluntary and must be provided free of charge to the family . 

./ Carry out the program model in accordance with the First Things First Parent Outreach and Awareness 
Standards of Practice/ Refer to Exhibit B. 

The grantee implementing this strategy in the San Carlos Apache region will need to have previous experience 
working in rural or tribal communities and understand some of the cultural aspects of working with these 
populations. 
The grantee will need to connect with the Regional Director prior to implementation on the reservation. The 
San Carlos Apache region associates First Things First with the Regional Director, who has established a 
relationship and trust with the region. Therefore, it is important for the program, to connect with the Regional 
Director. 

First Things First School Readiness Indicators related to this strategy: 
FTF is seeking successful applicants to implement this strategy and work collectively with FTF to impact the 
school readiness indicators below: 

• % of families who report they are competent and confident about their ability to support their child's 
safety, health and well being 

First Things First Goal Area to be addressed: 
• Family Support and Literacy 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 37 of 59 



Target Population to serve 
The San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council will target 800 children ages birth to five in the region to 
be registered and receive books through the Imagination Library Book Club program. This is approximately 
50% of the birth to five population in the region. The Regional Council would like intentional collaboration of 
existing grantees with this strategy in the region. 

Geographic Area 
Programs funded under this agreement must provide services throughout the region. 
The San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council serves the communities of the San Carlos Apache Tribe 
located on the San Carlos Apache Reservation. 

Coordination and Collaboration 
First Things First supports coordination and collaboration among early childhood service providers in order to 
develop a seamless service delivery system for children and families. As a result of coordination and 
collaboration, services are often easier to access and are implemented in a manner that is more responsive to 
the needs of the children and families. Coordination and collaboration may also result in greater capacity to 
deliver services because organizations are working together to identify and address gaps in service. Grant 
partners are asked to demonstrate capacity to work with and participate in coordination and collaboration 
activities occurring within the First Things First region being served. This may include but is not limited to 
participating in regular meetings. Depending upon the strategy, there may be additional statewide meetings 
which the Grant partners may be asked to attend, as noted in the Scope of Work. In order to accomplish this, 
Grant partners should plan the appropriate staffing and budget to support travel to and attendance at 
monthly meetings within the regional area or statewide meetings, as appropriate. 

The grantee will need to be an active member of the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council's Early 
Childhood Development and Health Collaborative so that the grantee will effectively collaborate and 
coordinate their efforts with existing tribal and non-tribal programs. 

Program Specific Data Collection and First Things First Evaluation 

Grant partners agree to participate in the FTF evaluation and any program speCific evaluation or research 
efforts adhering to tribal data/research protocols and procedures. Data collection and FTF evaluation 
activities are directly connected with the Goals, Performance Measures and Units of Service aligned to the 
strategy described in this scope of work. 

Unit of Service and related Target Service Number Definition: 
A Unit of Service is a FTF designated indicator of performance specific to each FTF strategy. It is composed of a 
unit of measure and a number (Target Service Number). A Unit of Measure/Service can be a target population 
and/or a service/product that a grantee is expected to serve as part of an agreement. The Target Service 
Number represents the number of units {e.g. target population} proposed to be served or number of 
products/services proposed to be delivered during the contract year. 

For example, for the FTF strategy Home Visitation the FTF Unit of Service is "number of families served" and a 
Target Service Number of 50 represents the number of families the Applicant proposes to serve during the 
contract period. All FTF applicants must clearly state in the proposal a target service number for each strategy 
specific Unit of Service. 

GRA-RC029-13..()533-01 Page 38 of 59 



Performance Measures Definition: 
Performance Measures measure (1) key indicators of performance (i.e. Unit of Service); (2) basic 
implementation of strategy; (3) alignment of program activities to strategy specific standards of practice, (4) 
performance or progress toward pre-established strategic goals. Performance measures may include the level 
or type of program activities conducted (e.g. serving families/children through home visits) and/or the direct 
services and products delivered by a program (e.g., providing scholarships). 

Grant partners must have capacity to collect and submit FTF data requirements, securely and confidentially 
store client data, and utilize data to assess progress in achieving desired outcomes of the proposed strategy. 
Units of Service, Target Service Numbers, and Performance Measures outline how quarterly data submissions 
will be evaluated according to the contracted deliverables and standards of practice for that contract. 
Additionally, they are used by FTF to determine the key impacts of the strategies, programs and approaches 
being implemented. 

Grant partners will be provided with data reporting requirements by FTF and will meet the requirements of 
the FTF evaluation including, but not limited to, timely and regular reporting and cooperation with all FTF 
evaluation activities, with respect to tribal datal research protocols and procedures. Timely and regular 
reporting of all performance and evaluation data includes the electronic submission of data (as identified in 
data reporting templates designed for each strategy) through the FTF secure web portal known as PGMS. 

FTF may undertake various external evaluation activities. Tribal data/research protocols and procedures, 
including obtaining tribal permission to participate in evaluation activities must be obtained before any data 
collection can occur under this agreement. Evaluation activities may include tracking and reporting data 
pertaining to participant attendance, enrollment, and demographic information. In addition, and following 
tribal protocols and procedures, grant partners agree to allow FTF and evaluation consultants of FTF to 
observe program activities on site and collaborate with FTF led and initiated evaluation activities to encourage 
parent consent for data collection. (Standards for data security for this strategy are found in Exhibit C.) 

Units of Service and Performance Measures that are aligned to the Goal for the purposes of this RFGA are as 
follows: 

Unit of Service: 
Number of books distributed 
o local resource guides distributed 
Number of workshops held 
o events held 

Performance Measures: 
Number of books distributed/proposed number 
Number of local resource guides distributed /proposed number 
Number of workshops held/proposed number 
Number of events held/proposed number 
Number of children receiving books 
Number of adults attending workshops 
Number of adults attending event 
Number of paid media 
Number of earned media 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 39 of 59 



Number of impressions 
Number of education reinforcement items distributed 

For more information on FTF Goal Areas, Goals and Performance Measures, please reference the FTF Strategy 

Toolkit at: http://azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BAeque 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 40 of 59 



Exhibit B: 

"'1+ iw~ FIRST THINGS FIRST 
Ready for School. Set for Life. 

Standards of Practice 

Parent Outreach and Awareness 

I. Strategy Description 

Recognizing that parents and families are their young child's first and most important teacher, family support 

is a component of Arizona's comprehensive early childhood system. Within family support, a continuum of 

strategies exists to meet the universal needs of all families to the targeted needs of families who may be at 

risk, such as English language learners, teen parents, and low income families. Information gaps exist that have 

implications for how adults interact with and raise young children. Providing specific knowledge and tools 

about the importance of early interactions in healthy brain development is the first step in assisting parents in 

making choices that will support and optimize their child's development. 

Parent outreach and awareness strategies strive to increase all families' awareness of positive parenting and 

knowledge of services, supports and information on child development, child health and early learning to 

support their child's overall development. In other words, the goal ofthis strategy Is to change parent 

behavior through a variety of complementary tactics so that their child is ready for school at kindergarten 

entry. 

It is important to note that increasing general public awareness of the importance of early childhood is not the 

objective ofthe parent outreach and awareness strategy. Instead, increasing general public awareness falls 

under the purview of the FTF statewide community awareness strategy, while this parent outreach and 

awareness strategy is targeted specifically for and directly to parents. 

Recognizing that children are active participants in the world from day one is critical for supporting a child's 

healthy brain development and learning. Developmental and neuroscience research emphasizes the 

importance of infants engaging in discovery through everyday explorations shared by a sensitive, attentive 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 41 of59 



caregiver (National Scientific Council on the Developing Child, 2007; Stamm, 2007). According to the First 

Things First Family and Community Survey on Early Childhood, A Baseline Report on Families and Coordination 

2008, when asked at what age babies sense and react to their surroundings, about half of Arizona parents 

acknowledged that this occurs in the first month of life (51%). Although this represents a larger proportion of 

parents than in the national survey (35%), nearly half of Arizona parents (48%) still believe that children do not 

respond to their environment until two months of age or later. This suggests that almost half of Arizona 

parents do not fully understand the importance of the child's very early interactive experiences with his or her 

environment for healthy development. Overall, research based knowledge about what to expect from their 

child at each age helps parents interact positively with their child and set appropriate expectations and 

boundaries throughout their daily routines. Furthermore, Arizona's parents understand that early childhood 

development is important, with over 75% of parents acknowledging that they can significantly impact 

children's brain development at or before birth. While Arizona's parents understand the importance of early 

brain development, not all are sure what they can do to best support their child's optimal development. 

Results from the Family and Community Survey (INSERT DATE) also indicate that parents can benefit from 

clear, research-based information to help them support their child. 

FTF parent outreach and awareness strategies provide families of young children with information, materials 

or connections to resources and activities that increase awareness of early childhood development and health 

and the resources, supports or programs available for young children and their families. Having identified 

these gaps, it is important to deliver parent outreach and awareness strategies with consideration for local 

needs. For example, if a community has data that indicates parents and families are not reading regularly with 

their young children, a parent outreach and awareness strategy may be an appropriate approach to increase 

families' awareness about the importance and value of daily reading activities through messaging, story times 

at the local library that may also include a book distribution component or book club, and identification of 

additional community resources. 

Outreach and awareness alone, in most cases though, may not be sufficient to change parent behavior. While 

parents' awareness has increased, as noted in the example above, parents may not have the resources or 

tools to effectively implement the change. Parents may be aware of the need to read to children, but that 

does not mean that they can actually read to their child (adult literacy), feel that they know how to read to 

their young child (e.g., which books are developmentally appropriate;, how to read to a child at different 

developmental stages) or that they have access to books (e.g., may not be able to afford books; may not live 
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 42 of 59 



close to a library or have transportation). These are some of the considerations in determining whether to 

implement an outreach and awareness strategy. 

Parent outreach and awareness activities include the following: 

D. Resource Distribution: Distribution of children's books, audio discs, community resource guides, child 

development and child health fact sheets, parenting tip sheets, brochures, pamphlets, and/or 

newsletters. Resources can be offered and distributed during established community festivals, fairs, or 

exhibitions at community settings and through community-based partners. For example, parents and 

children can be provided with developmentally appropriate books to take home that encourage daily 

family reading activities. 

E. Parenti Family Workshop: One-time informational sessions for parents and families to increase 

awareness about child development or child health topics. These may include, for example, library 

story times, an informational session about programs or services available in the community, or a 

session on brain development, child development or child health. For example, child health workshops 

may be offered to increase parent's knowledge about topics such as injury prevention, oral health, 

preventative health care, or nutrition. One or more of these activities can be implemented in 

conjunction with other FTF early learning, health and/ or family support strategies as part of regional 

funding plan implementation. 

F. Earned Media and Paid Advertising: Earned media is defined as stories strategically placed in major 

broadcast print or emerging media as well as information placed in smaller community newspapers, 

newsletters, and public service announcements. Paid advertising is defined as advertising through 

billboards, print ads, multimedia campaigns (TV), radio and online ads. Paid advertising requires a 

substantial financial investment and must be accompanied by other strategies in order to be effective 

in changing behavior. The advertising itself must be research-based and the information provided 

should be about a specific early childhood development or child health topic related to critical time 

periods to address trends in child rearing and parenting practices that target parents and families. For 

example, print ads displayed on buses with the message "read with your child every day", includes a 

phone number and web address for a community resource that provides additional information and 

support on reading with young children. This may bring parents' attention to the issue and further 

create interest in seeking out the listed resources. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 43 of 59 



II. Standards of Practice 

A. Implementation Standards 

Utilize a family centered and strengths-based approach. 

1. Provide parents and families with readily accessible information about child development and child 

health, including one or more of the following topics: 

• The domains of child development (social emotional, language and communication - including 

emergent literacy, cognitive, physical and motor development), including understanding when 

to have concerns related to children's development; 

• The parents' role as the child's primary teachers and partners in the education of their children; 

• Appropriate child-adult interactions and development of positive and supportive parenting 

skillsj 

• Early language and emergent literacy including typical early language and emergent literacy 

development for infants, toddlers and preschoolers and the importance of reading daily with 

their young child including maintaining a literacy-rich home environment; 

• The impact of media and the importance of limited screen time (TV, computers, smart phones, 

pads and tablets, video games) for young children; 

• Child health information and/or community resources for child health including topics such as 

preventative health care and wellness, developmental and sensory screening, immunizations, 

oral health, injury prevention, and nutrition; 

• Available community resources such as the Women, Infants and Children Program (WIC), food 

banks, employment services or adult education, early intervention services, school programs, 

child care resource and referral, libraries, parent education classes, home visitation programs, 

and health care including oral health; 

• Parent tips and resources on how to use toys and other educational items to enrich interactions 

with their child, but not substitute interactions between adult and child. 

2. All information provided through media, resource distribution and/or workshops must be evidence 

based, developmentally appropriate, culturally responsive and strengths based. Activities 

implemented must take into account local families and children's needs, desires, histories, 
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 44 of 69 



lifestyles, concerns, strengths, resources, culture, ethnicity, and priorities. In addition, appropriate 

developmental guidance is to be provided to parents and families on behalf of their very young 

children when providing workshops or distributing information. Information provided to families is 

to be offered to parents and families in a manner that strengthens early relationships with 

infants/toddlers and young children. Print materials must be provided at a 5th grade reading level 

using common language and resources and information provided must be accurate and regularly 

updated to ensure information is current. Permission for the use of copyright materials must be 

documented and cited. 

Workshops are flexible and continuallv responsive to emerging family and community issues. 

1. Structured workshop activities must be accessible for families by being provided at times and locations 

that are convenient for families including weekend and evening hours. 

2. Workshops should be manageable in size and have appropriate staffing patterns. 

For adult-only sessions, there shall be a maximum of 50 participants with a ratio of 1 staff per 25 adult 

participants (2 staff: 50 adult participants). Room size and space must be adequate to support the 

number of adults participating. 

3. Open and honest communication is supported and opportunities for formal and informal feedback are 

integrated into the structure of the workshop. 

4. Confidentiality is maintained with workshops being respectful of family members and protective of 

their legal rights. 

5. Families are engaged as partners to ensure that the program is beneficial by providing families the 

opportunity to provide regular input and feedback in programmatic planning to better meet their 

needs. 

6. Staff Standards 

• Staff developing materials or providing workshops demonstrate extensive knowledge of the 

community, the culture, and the community's resources. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 45 of 59 



• The length of employment and experience/education are reflective of high quality staff. 

Supervisory staff are required to have a minimum of a Bachelors degree in early childhood 

development, education, family studies, social work, nursing or a closely related field. 

• The grantee must establish an effective, consistent supervisory system that provides support for 

all staff members and ensures accountability to participants, funders, and the community. 

• All staff work as a team, modeling respectful relationships consistent with program goals and 

whose top priority is the well-being of families and children. 

• Staff skills and abilities are regularly assessed to ensure they are able to engage families while 

maintaining a professional rapport. 

• Ongoing staff development/training on the FTF Parent Outreach and Awareness Standards of 

Practice principles is provided. 

• Ongoing staff development/training to ensure program quality and give staff an opportunity to 

develop professionally is provided. 

• Supervisors work with staff to prepare professional development plans. 

Evaluation and monitoring is a collaborative, ongoing process that includes input from staff, families, program 

administrators, and communitv members. 

1. Mechanisms to assess program effectiveness and ability to implement quality improvements must 

be demonstrated. 

2. Participation in data collection and reporting of performance measures to First Things First is 

required. 

B. Branding and Earned and Paid Media Standards 

1. All parent outreach and awareness activities will adhere to the FTF communications guidelines 

including branding protocols which can be found in the First Things First Communications 

Toolkit, The toolkit is a "living document" and is not meant to be downloaded. Appendix One to 

this document outlines the Table of Contents of the Communications Toolkit and provides 

readers a comprehensive view of the tools available. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 46 of 59 



2. Earned media activities are to center around various topics that raise parent awareness, 

including: identification of an awareness gap as a community issue to be addressed; 

announcement of a new program or service to help change a parent's behavior; new or 

updated research about the behavior identified for change; milestones achieved in changing 

behaviors; and/or a success story about a specific child or family benefitting from a service. All 

earned media must include: early childhood information that illustrates how the behavior 

change benefits the education/health of young children and information on how to access 

additional information or support in changing the behavior. See the FTF branding protocols for 

additional requirements. 

3. Paid advertising must be research-based, outcome focused and professionally developed. 

Development of such a campaign can cost upwards of $200,000, in addition to the cost of 

placing the advertising (actually paying for the billboard, cinema or newspaper ad, television or 

radio spot, etc.). Advertising that seeks to change behavior requires significant repetition in 

order to achieve market saturation (ensuring that people see or hear the message enough 

times to change behavior). In addition, strategies and tactics must be in place to support those 

who are willing to move from awareness to action (change behavior). Before a paid advertising 

campaign is utilized as an approach for parent awareness and outreach the following 

information is necessary: 

• Information about the root cause of the issue to be addressed (is it really a need for 

awareness, or something else); 

• Is the source of the information credible (specific issue or anecdotal information); 

• Evidence that the paid advertising will change this behavior; 

• Sufficient resources are available to achieve the saturation required to effect change; and 

• Strategies/tactics that will be implemented in addition to the paid advertising that will 

support behavior change (moving from awareness to action). 

When an existing paid advertising effort is being utilized, information on the following is required: 
• Length of time the current creative has been used; 

• The financial investment in the current campaign and where has it been used (specific 

markets) to determine effectiveness for the target population and geographic region 

proposed under this strategy; 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 47 of 59 



• Evidence that the campaign has had an impact on behavior AND in the markets where the 

campaign was used (for example, for a campaign that sought to increases immunization 

rates, did immunization rates go up in that area when the campaign was in use?); 

• Identification of other activities that were in place to support the paid advertising campaign 

and their effect on the impact achieved; and 

• Knowledge of and understanding of the ability for co-branding or adding additional calls to 

action; restrictions on paid media time vs. gratis media time; and, restrictions on copyright 

use. 

C. Cultural Competence 

Affirm, strengthen and promote families' cultural, racial and linguistic identities and enhance their ability 

to function in a multicultural society. 

• Create opportunities for families of different backgrounds to identify areas of common ground and 

to accept and value differences between them. 

• Hire staff who reflect the cultural and ethnic experiences and language of the families with whom 

they work and integrate their expertise into the entire program. 

• Early childhood practitioners /early childhood service providers shall ensure that children and 

families receive from all staff members effective, understandable, and respectful care that is 

provided in a culturally competent manner- a manner compatible with their cultural beliefs and 

practices, and in their preferred language. Early childhood practitioners /early childhood service 

providers should ensure that staff at all levels and across all disciplines receive ongoing education 

and training in culturally and linguistically appropriate service delivery. Early childhood 

practitioners/early childhood service providers should develop participatory, collaborative 

partnerships with communities and utilize a variety of formal and informal mechanisms to facilitate 

community and family-centered involvement to ensure that services are delivered in a manner that 

is consistent with the National Standards on Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services 

and/or the National Recommendations on Cultural and Linguistic Competence for the National 

Association for the Education of Young Children." 

http://minorityhealth.hhs.gov/templates/browse.aspx?lvl=2&lvIID=15 ; 

http://www.naeyc.org/positionstatements/linguistic 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 48 of 59 



• Service providers should understand that individual Tribes/Nations are distinct and separate 

communities from other Tribes/Nations and their governmental systems and structures are not 

reflective of each other. Services to Tribal communities and on reservations must be provided in a 

manner compatible with the Tribe's/Nation's cultural beliefs and practices, to include the preferred 

language of the community. Services must also be provided in accordance with the Tribe's/Nation's 

laws, policies and procedures. The effectiveness of services is directly related to the provider's 

consideration of the beliefs, customs and laws of the Tribe/Nation. 

• Service providers can obtain information about providing services on tribal lands from a variety of 

sources. These include the FTF Regional Director, Regional Council members, tribal websites and 

publications, as well as official representatives of the Tribe/Nation such as the governing body, 

standing committees and authorized departments. It is highly recommended that service providers 

seek guidance from one or more of these sources before initiating services on reservations. Failure 

to do so could result in contraventions of cultural beliefs, Tribal laws or sovereignty. 

• Programs will demonstrate their ability to operate within these parameters through prior 

experience working with Tribes/Nations, demonstrating that staff is culturally competent, 

partnerships with agencies serving Native American families, knowledge of cultural beliefs, customs 

and laws of the Tribe/Nation or a combination of these elements. 

• In the United States, Native American Tribes are considered autonomous nations with all of the 

rights and responsibilities of a nation. Understanding this, Native American Tribes are charged with 

protecting the health and safety of their people. To this end, Tribes have full ownership over any 

data collected within their reservation boundaries. This means that Tribes can allow or not allow 

any program to collect data from or related to any early childhood development and health 

program or activities on the reservation. 

Any grantee implementing programs in tribal communities must have official tribal permission to 

collect and utilize sensitive data from or related to any early childhood development and health 

program or activities. 

GRA·RC029·13·0533·01 Page 49 of 59 



Exhibit c: 

Parent Outreach and Awareness 

Data reporting requirements for the Parent Outreach and Awareness Strategy are not yet final for State Fiscal 
Year 2013. This document was created to inform applicants of possible data requirements and includes 
information regarding Target Service Units, Performance Measures and a table representing the draft data 
reporting fields. 

Unit of Service and related Target Service Number 

A Unit of Service is a FTF designated indicator of performance specific to each FTF strategy. It is composed of a 
unit of measure and a number (Target Service Number). 
A Unit of Measure/Service can be a target population and/or a service/product that a grantee is expected to 
serve as part of an agreement. Target Service Number represents the number of units (e.g. target population) 
proposed to be served or number of products/services proposed to be delivered during the contract year. 

For example, for the FTF strategy Home Visitation the FTF Unit of Service is "number of families served" and a 
Target Service Number of SO represents the number of families the program proposes to serve during the 
contract period. All FTF applicants must clearly state in the proposal a target service number for each strategy 
specific Unit of Service. 

For Parent Outreach and Awareness, the units of service are: 
Number of books distributed 
Number of local resource guides distributed 
Number of workshops held 
Number of events held 

Determining and Interpreting Torget Service Numbers 

Number of books distributed should reflect the total number of books to be distributed for one grant contract 
period (in most cases, one year). If book distribution is not proposed as part of your contract, reflect zero as 
the target service number. 

Number of local resource guides distributed should reflect the total number of local resource guides to be 
distributed for one grant contract period (in most cases, one year). If local resource guide distribution is not 
proposed as part of your contract, reflect zero as the target service number. 

Number of workshops held should reflect the total number of workshops for parents targeted to be 
held for one grant contract period (in most cases, one year). If conducting workshop is not proposed as part 
of your contract, reflect zero as the target service number. 

Number of events held should reflect the total number of events for parents targeted to be held for one grant 
contract period (in most cases, one year). If conducting events is not proposed as part of your contract, reflect 
zero as the target service number. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 50 of 59 



Performance Measures 

Performance Measures measure (1) key indicators of performance (Le. Unit of Service); (2) basic 
implementation of strategy; (3) alignment of program activities to strategy specific standards of practice, (4) 
performance or progress toward pre-established strategic goals. Performance measures may include the level 
or type of program activities conducted (e.g. serving families/children through home visits) and/or the direct 
services and products delivered by a program (e.g., providing scholarships). 

For Parent Outreach and Awareness, performance measures are: 
Number of books distributed/proposed number 
Number of local resource guides distributed /proposed number 
Number of workshops held/proposed number 
Number of events held/proposed number 
Number of children receiving books 
Number of adults attending workshops 
Number of adults attending event 
Number of paid media 
Number of earned media 
Number of impressions 
Number of education reinforcement items distributed 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 51 of 59 



Are you contracted to distribute books to children? 
Are you enrolling children as a part of your book distribution program? If Yes, please complete Section A. If No, skip to Section B 
Section A 
Number of books distributed 
Number of children newly enrolled into book distribution program 
Number of children receiving books (continuing and newly enrolled) 
Section B 
Number of books distributed 
Number of children receiving books 

I Resource Guide Distribution 

YES/NO 
YES/NO 

TSU 

Are you contracted to distribute resource guide? YES/NO 
Number of local resource guides distributed TSU 

I Education Reinforcement Items Distributed _ =:J 
Number of Education Reinforcement Items Distributed 

discs 
Type of education reinforcement items distributed (choose all that apply) 

Audio 

I Are you contracted to do earned media and/or paid advertising ·-----1 
Number of Earned Media 
Type of earned media (e.g. paper, radio) 
Number of paid advertising 
Number of impressions by each type of paid advertising 
Frequency of paid advertising 

I Are you a program that conduct workshops for parents 
Number of workshops held 
Number of adults attending workshop 
topic check box 
number of workshop cancelled 

I Events Held , 

Billboard 
Billboard --- -----1 
TSU 

text 

Number of events held TSU 
Number of adults attending events 
topic check box (diaper drive, health fair) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 52 of 59 



Exhibit D 

First Things First - Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board 
Data Security Guidelines and Requirements for Collaborators 

BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of First Things First is to aid in the creation of a system that offers opportunities and 
supports for families and communities in the development of all children so they can grow up 
healthy and ready to succeed. Our work is accountable and transparent to decision-makers and 
the citizens of Arizona. Collaboration and direct funding of grantees to undertake work on behalf 
of the children and families of Arizona is fundamental to the purpose and mission of FTF. Regular 
submission of data related to funded work is an important part of ensuring accountability and 
maximum positive impact for young children. 

Data Security Guidelines for Data Submission to FTF 
The Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Thing First - FTF) will ensure 
that resources allocated have maximum impact for the benefit of children and families. To ensure 
this accountability, FTF will establish data reporting requirements for all state and regional 
grantees. All funded providers will regularly submit programmatic and financial reports as 
identified in the FTF reporting requirements. 
FTF data submissions are classified in one of three levels: 

• Public data 

• Umited distribution data 

• Confidential data 

The majority of FTF reporting submissions are completed through the FTF Partner and Grants 
Management System (PGMS). Subsequent to the award of a FTF contract, the grantee will receive 
general training on login and navigation within the PGMS system. With this login the grantee will 
be able to manage their contract information. An additional training on strategy-specific data 
submission requirements will also be conducted. During that training the grantee will be informed 
on submission of data reporting requirements through PGMS. All data submitted through PGMS is 
public data or limited distribution data. Because PGMS is located in a secure extranet 
environment, grantees using PGMS for data submission are not required to undertake additional 
security measures related to their data submission above those identified in the general and data 
submission orientations (password and login security, guidelines for upload of narrative and other 
reports). 

A small group of grantees submit data requirements, through agreement between the grantee 
and FTF, directly through the FTF extranet, rather than a PGMS web-based entry form. These data 
are likely to contain limited distribution data and must follow the following protocols. Data 
structure agreement, login, ftp, revision request. Grantees that submit data through the FTF 
extra net must ensure that limited distribution data may not be intercepted or viewed at any time 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 53 of 59 



by parties other than the grantee and FTF and that throughout the reporting and submission 
process the data are secured. 

Any grantee submitting data identified as confidential must file a formal data security policy with 
FTF. Confidential data will not be a part of standard data submission requirements. Grantee 
general orientation and data reporting orientation will identify data requirements as public data, 
limited distribution data, and/or confidential data. 

Data Security Guidelines for Grantee Maintenance of Data 
In order to submit data to FTF in fulfillment of reporting requirements, grantees must keep all data 
collected for their program(s) within their system (database) or hardcopies. While FTF data 
submissions are generally aggregated and contain no individually identifying information, grantee 
data is likely to contain highly sensitive information on individuals, their education and their 
health. These guidelines and requirements are for the maintenance of those data. 

All grantees must have a data security policy in force which identifies how the organization 
ensures that data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from inappropriate 
access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. 

All grantees subject to HIPAA, FERPA, GITA, or other data regulation, are required to submit and 
maintain those approvals for all data. If HIPAA, FERPA or other data regulation requires that 
participating individuals give consent to data collection on their person and if in the course of 
regular data submissions to FTF such data will be provided to FTF, submission of personal data to 
FTF must be reflected in all data regulation documents. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 54 of 59 



JOB SUMMARY 

Gila County Library District 
lob Title 

Early Literacy San Carlos Apache Community Outreach Liaison 
Temporary Part-time 

The primary responsibilities of the individual in this position are to develop and coordinate 
outreach activities for early literacy promotion to parents of children ages birth to five years. This 
inciudes taking the early literacy experience to populations that do not have direct access to a 
library facility, promoting library services and resources to community groups, with an emphasis on 
early literacy and reading. The individual will conduct a survey of Kindergarten Teachers of all 
schools located on the San Carlos Apache Reservation to find out how many children entered 
school in August 2012 unprepared for reading readiness 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Maintains patron confidentiality in compliance with Arizona state law. 
2. Conducts early literacy outreach for parents/caregivers of children, birth to five years. 
3. Conducts a survey of Kindergarten Teachers in all schools on San Carlos Apache Reservation. 
4. Develops and implements a plan for providing outreach services for assigned areas of San 
Carlos Apache Reservation by working closely with the County Librarian. 
5. Works with schools, daycares, W/~ Head Start, teen parenting groups, Boys & Girls Club, and 

other community organizations that serve children to promote Early Literacy. The critical age 
group of focus is on birth to five years. 

6. Is aware of other community entities providing services to children and coordinates activities as 
appropriate. The focus is on entities that provide service to birth to five years of age. 

7. Seeks out opportunities and makes early literacy presentations to community groups. Focus on 
groups that include target populations. 

8. Works closely with the County Librarian planning distribution of informational early literacy 
brochures and registers children for the Imagination Library Book Program. 

9. Prepares monthly reports and forwards as directed. 
10. Per/orms other related and necessary duties as assigned. 

REQUIRED CERTIFICA TIONS, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
• Must have a current driver's license valid in the State of Arizona and a vehicle to do site visits. 
• Must live on San Carlos Apace Reservation. 
• Education and/or experience in early literacy programming. 
• Proficiency with word processing and email. 
• Ability to work with limited supervision, with an aptitude for detailed work and proficiency in 

prioritizing tasks 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 55 of 59 



REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS 
Reports to: County Librarian, Library Assistant Senior 

GRA-RC029-13-D533-D1 Page 56 of 59 



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF feDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

OJ. bllHlGftint of ADIlGu1tulV 
N.HdOnoughlll._noDopa_ntofHw."" __ 

SpodoIS......-NWtIlGnP_far-.t_tt. __ 

Comtnadi1y ~1IfIFood~ 
_ ,..".. .. ""S_,_Cc>unII .. Cm .... f.gFedorol lJIndo 
Pa __ ug"u..u.s.Pornt~~"-lfoUon.IP"",.t 
_"-""fIIr_IIIIII~CIaIoIIIoG_1JIOds 

_"",,-b Staloo OIIdOcu&oOonllllfng Fedorot lJIndo 

CFDA 
Numbo< 

IIl.667 
10.565 
1111115 

to.se& -T .... _Peymon\Ifor8l!(, .. ond~ConIIII*IDF_lM1d.CftI ..... 
Po ..... III_" "'"U.s.,_'IlS ....... TonIDIIIU .... 1 Fo_ FcftJl __ U_P\oIod 

r .... u.s. __ gfAgriou1Uw 

u.s. DIpIIItm.nlaIOonuna .... 
_1IVDUtII>1hI_SIo18~"_hIoI .... _c _ 
_ ".IT_D1IJ~l"'-

WJ.~ar~I""IIdM~ 
_a_",QlalcOoYoludlets 
........ U."' ..... 1ho __ oep.tmOlltor_loS .. u"" 

EfI10fgenty --1'rqJ1m 
.......... _" .... _oe,-ontal_ ... 

AARc\-_P_andRa,PldRNIDU_"."...., CGoom\IIIY DnIIopmont __ CUter 

~~--ComInIftllr DoWIopmonI_ Granl _._"".",.,.,...,...--
_HdIlltolllloVIICl1l>orGIobe 
Com~~ __ 

Td'll CcrMtuatI\I~onI __ CIdIior 

TOI81 U.8. Dep<tIn .. ,'gfHouolnllond IIdIM DnoIoi>mMI 

U.S. De\II_otU.ol_. 
"",-_UouofT_ 

_Hdtll_hVIIIh.U.s._S_.Tonto __ Foroot 

a.tiI_CooIS_ 
T""" U.S. De9OIImllllo1 ... lnt<ttor 

WI.~tof_ 
.... sed 11" .... 1111 U.._CrlmInlI.hoall .. CGmmlaolon CdmI_ 0InIpen00I0D 
_AIIIllf ___ QJI1IIr 

_1IJmo ......... ~_.-G .... "-
ARRA-EdwonI&,nIe_ ..... IIot_GI1II1I ToIlIIJu ___ P_CIuoIor 

ToIlII U.s. DtIF"'1mllllcf ... _ 

u.s. Dopoltmont 0/ Lallo. 
"'-'_III""'!1htll._"._nt .. _cSocur!ly __ ~CIuoIoc; 

IMAMIft Prv;-
WlAV __ 

WIA-..._ 
NlSlAWIA ...... Prograa 
ARRAWlAV __ ~ 

ARRAWIA __ 

T .... -..kIV ..... onIAda.* 

I_GIwdo· WIA_1S03 
Tor>! WI. DojWII1m .. 1 of 1Jlba< 

IO.u.tcaovm 

11.651 

14.871 

14.231 

14.212 

14.228 
14.228 
14.255 

14.228 

lli2211 

15..238 

18.t70 

18.1111 
18.811S 

11.2118 

17.269 

17.2eO 

11.2&11 

17.2611 

17.2110 

17.287 

See aocompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of fedenll awards. 
(6) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

"" .... nn .... "h Orl._ Humbo. 

_1141. HG05D277 
HI3SII115902. HG88tlS8-3 

NIA-1lhcI 

t0-0G11010121018 
11·DG-11Oa012I-G011 

aropfl10S20IO 

IWo·DncI 

DE111073001 

000-10 

1_ 
174-10 

l iZ-11ft 

146.09 

NIA-_ 

D9-CS-ll03012GO-01S 

VC-l1_ 

IlA-l1-G211 
DC1IJ.427. oc.1O-038 

CEOtt208001. DEll1_. 
001_ 

DEoet208001. DElll_. 
DEl0_1 

DEOln2OllOO1.DE111_ . 
DEtOI045OO1 

DEIl81201lOO1. DEU1_I. 
CE1Ot04liOOl 

DEOII12OIID01. OEll1_. 
OE1OtIK5OO1 

DEOIII201OO1.DE111_. 
DEl_ 

DE070295OII1. DEOII1208001. 
1lE081217OO1. ~ 

a787 -S7.7D4 

9,48a 

17_ 
371S 

-
1ta.732 

1.18,112 

101,487 

~1.lse 

234,1lIM 

2.'127.148 

l11iS,401I 

2,7lIO 

lmI.lIiSO ... 
1<44.412 

f84,W 
855,81!6 

3.023.345 

~~ 
S.147.840 

tI,4!IS 

_S8DJ32.. 
3£~,615 

2.1_ 

37,721 
2.117'-

~""" 

Page 57 of 59 



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS CCONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

CFoA 
FIIft1aI EiI.ntorlP .. ~tbro~b Gnnrt .. lPlogram lJUf Num ..... POH·1h_hG,antots NUdlMt 

u.s. DepartonentOlTAMpo ... aon 
P_ UtIoughllle _n. DopoolmOlll OfTro.opo_. 

IflIIIMiar 1'Iann1lg81111 Conc/nIc6oR 2U.205 1000JPA IJ8.1321.II3M1'A 10-161 
ARRA Highway -.nIng"'" CcImIrudIon 20.205 IGNJPAOII-128 

TcIoIU.s.~.,~ 

FecfenJ LlbroIYS ....... Teo/maIogy Acl 
P ...... _.gII ... _._LIIo-._ ..... Pulllrc_. 

ua-y_,a!ldToo:IIncIIDgyGranl 015.310 201~1.2OICJ.390C8..4.11-A4 

u.s. OOperlm.nl 0/ enormr 
_ ... "'.g11Ih._.OO...-OfCDmal .... 
__ 1411110""" &I< Low 1 __ • 

81.1l4~ cooz.lJ9.02.l3043-_ 
NIRA·wa_ .......... &I<LowI.-nePeno .... 81.1l42 C031-1l6-O% 

T .... U.s. DepallmonlotEm!Qw 

u.s. ~orEcl....u ... 
ImpaclAid 84.041 NlA·DIn!c:I 

........ Ihrough Ille Adzon. Gevemot._Of_le_1V 
ARRA·Slalefloeal __ Fill<! 84.394 GOER.FY201Ba18-E , 
ARRA·SI, te __ FlI1CI 

84.3lI4 OER-ll~QA..GS.$ ARRA-S ..... __ FrnI 
84.394 OEll-11·1eA-(aS..143 

ToIIIlARRA·Slal8f __ FUndC .... 

ARRA·EducoIlClaJOboF .... 84.4fD ISlHlER-11I8A-EJOOI 
Pasl. 11110l1:li" the AdIoaa o..,. ..... nt of Edue.11an. 
lIIIel_to ~ EducollonalAgeluit.) 84.010 801_ 
Enol'" Longuag ........ _Gllnrs B4.38S S386AIl8OII03 
MIIII1IIm,lIcoand _ ParInaIsNpa 84.888 ~ S38C309QIJII3 

MuilEducallcn-Ball._toSlatea 84.002 --RuralErluoaBan 84.358 --Po_1hlGllllhlh._eoperimontOfEd_ SpedaI--
Sper:iIIII;rIucolIon._toSlaI& 84.027 H027Al00007 

ARRASpedBI_ 84~~1 HS91_7 

... _Uuougbthe_ .. 8u_oeourt 
SpedBl_-Go1nlSlO 810. 84.O2l lOA 
ARRASpooIoIEducatIoft 84.391 lOA 

T«d SpedIIar.- CIImM 
Pusod IhIOlQlh Ih. ArIoo.o Dopartmllntof EclucolIIIn 

_TeoI>IIGIcgySlaleGr<.lICIUIier. _TooIInoIogy __ 
84.318 

831_ 
_·_Tl~_Gno"'" B4.388 -_ ... Ih"'uah '!nI. County 

EnIIondog EclraIl!cIIl-.gh_ogy 84.318 lIFETSTP·l_ 
T~" EdU<a1iOn T_ogy s ... te Grant auster. 

P.ged UtIough Iho AtIzono S.......,. COVtt 
TIlle I PfOgIllm &I<~end OoIIaquonIa.onn 84.ot3 ~U3 
~TI_Qu"'y __ • 84.387 S387_iJ 

in1pRJYIng T_QuO;ty_G ... la IM.387 211823 
""_IIII_gh Iho_ Do!IOrtmenlOfEduooUon 

!nIpro\I!IIaT_QllllltySl-ojeGrwdo 84.387 8367_ 
T .... IlI\PIDIlngT_QuoIIyStaloGronis 

ToIaIU.S.~ofE_ 

U.8.00partmenlofHooIlh_ HumanS.IYIc .. 
P ... ed III"""" Iho Artzano Ooporlmohlof _ 80M"" 
PublcHt-_""",""",",Ha~&I<_ 93.1X'1 HG784185 __ c...Act __ ",-,>, 

93.235 EII138O!1$ 

Im..-IlnoIIIIClII"'" 
1 .... _- lI3.2(;3 HG8e284Z8-O 
ARRA fmmuAiZeDans 93.112 -ToIllllmmunllllUan(llBnlllc-HrV_-. -_ DeperlmenlllaOed 9U40 ~·1 

Hll854_2, _H-
Mo"""'1i ondCllild """It __ GnInI.Sped!I_ 113.* _IJ45.4103 

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
(7) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

~IIU_ 

$ 1,418.023 

:!!a!!2!! 
1.452.829 

-
241.164 
~.3'l9 

1,<J81.0Il3 

134,138 

10,1)34 
230,7811 

IlO,CIGO 
~ 
2B.327 

36.752 
12.36<1 

428,614 
11.-

1,614 

14.7a 
134 

31.017 7_ 
Ii3,77D 

In -
72,Q11C1 

72,7411 

3),z.t$ 

0.71. 

83,1340 
tD,863 

1,247,327 

ZI8.052 
1.000 

2S,000 

23 
25.023 
4.8E8 

21.850 

(Qldirlued) 

Page 58 of 59 



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

u.s. Dlpalbntntor""''' end Rum.n stMcea (ContInued) 
"" ..... Ih""'g/lIII.~.,.,..,.,...ntolEconamJo80GUl11y T __ ""_co farNllOll1 F ... _ 

QI;Id SU-, Enfcxcom ... 1 LcwH.-.. _ ""'-_ ...... 
CGmmunlr_ Block GnlnlCblIor. ComrnaniIy 1IOnd __ 0I1I1II 

ARRA·COmmUftilr ___ 1 

T<lIoI~_,aiodIGniotCluOter 
___ 0t0nI 

HlVCorel'<lllrul,G ..... 
ToIaIU.8.~of",,""'ond H."",,_ 

U.S. DoporlnlOfll oIHClmOlond_urlIy; Pa_ ..... "IIb 1110_ Do"" ...... '" of Homeland 8 .... ~1Y 

Cl'DA 
Humblr 

-8:1._ 
83J568 -83.710 

8:1.881 
8:l.1n1 

__ IyGIIIIIlProg.... f11J1ff1 

P ...... UV"""h III. AdlonoDoporInIont of E'm.I1I.ncyS ........... MIIItaI)fNrlI .. 

e-gonoy ~/'IrfOmISICO _ f11.D4Z 

T .... u.s.~oI_S.' .. lIy 

T<lIoIEIrjIeoIftI_oIFedORll_ 

See accompanyIng notea 10 scheduta of expenditures of radersl awards. 
(8) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

, .... 1l'U'DIfI'h GrantoR H'umblr 

DElllf11SOOt 
1IESOenS-1. OEl111oeoo1 

DE111f113001 

DElllf113OO1 
IlIitltfl1300l 

DE111D7l1OO1 
HP852141-OO1.o 

EMW-:zotl-B'-APP-GOOOII 
EMP-2OIl RCGOt-.ADEM Rro-OO ~ 

2010 

• 83.m 
21~8 

1S9,287 

l.l09.1I'l7 
3a).111 

114,673 
lB.I72 
68{179 

192.7119 

Page 59 of 59 



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1317     Regular Agenda Item      4- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Chief
Deputy Clerk, BOS, Clerk
of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Library District FY 2012-2013 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government Budget
Process outlines the budget requirements and timelines for each county's and
incorporated city's and town's budgets.  

For the Gila County Library District, the process includes the Library District Board
of Directors adopting a tentative budget and; thereafter, at a future Board
meeting, adopting a final budget.  

The Library District's budget is included in the entire budget for Gila County.

Evaluation
In Gila County, the Board of Supervisors acts as the Board of Directors for the Gila
County Library District.  In order to adopt the Library District's annual tentative
budget for fiscal year 2012-2013, the Board of Supervisors must adjourn as the Board
of Supervisors, convene as the Library District Board of Directors and then take an
official action to adopt that tentative budget.  

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative budget will be given by Jacque Griffin, Gila
County Assistant Manager/Librarian, to the Board of Directors.  After a discussion,
the Library District Board of Directors will consider adopting the proposed tentative
budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 fiscal year budget



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 fiscal year budget
for the Gila County Library District.  (Jacque Griffin)  
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors
and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)



   

ARF-1311     Regular Agenda Item      4- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr.

Submitted By: Joseph Heatherly, Finance Director,
Finance Department

Department: Finance Department

Fiscal Year: FY2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

FY 2013 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County FY 2012-2013 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government Budget
Process outlines the budget requirements and timelines for each county's and
incorporated city's and town's budgets.

The budget process is for the Board of Supervisors to first adopt a tentative budget
and at a future meeting to adopt the final budget. There are also statutory newspaper
publication requirements to be applied after the tentative budget has been adopted
and before the final budget is adopted.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative fiscal year 2012-2013 budget for Gila County
will be presented by Joe Heatherly, Finance Director. After a discussion, the Board of
Supervisors will consider adopting the proposed tentative budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 fiscal year budget
for Gila County. (Don McDaniel)



   

ARF-1289     Regular Agenda Item      4- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Nancy
Neumann,
Administrative
Clerk

Submitted By:
Nancy Neumann, Administrative Clerk,
Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: July 1, 2012 to June 30,
2013

Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012 to June 30,
2013

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Johnny Sanchez

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Task Force Grant Renewal Application

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Task Force ( Task Force) has
been in operation since its inception in 1988. Since 1988, Gila County has submitted
a grant application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) on an annual
basis requesting grant funds for the Task Force. Each year the ACJC has awarded
grant funds to Gila County to help the salaries and ERE of officers of the Task Force. 

The mission of the Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Task Force is to protect
life, property and the rights of individuals by using multi agency efforts with
participating agencies to reduce drug, gang and violent crime related investigations.
The primary objective is to disrupt drug sales, interdict and dismantle drug trafficking
and drug organizations as well as to promote education and awareness to the citizens
of Gila County and to secure the welfare of the public. Identify local gang affiliated
members in conjunction with G.I.T.T.E.M. (Gang and Immigration Intelligence
Enforcement Team Mission) and the U.S. Marshall's Office. Assist Gila County
detectives with violent crimes such as homicides, abductions, and jail crime
investigations.

Evaluation
The Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Task Force's ultimate initiative is to



The Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Task Force's ultimate initiative is to
protect life, property and the rights of individuals, so it is imperative that the Sheriff's
Office continue to submit grant applications to the ACJC to obtain continued grant
funding for its Task Force.

In the past, cash matching funds were not a requirement for this grant application;
however, this year there is a cash match requirement in the amount of $94,102.  The
total grant amount is $376,410, with $282,308 of that amount being federal funds.  If
this grant is awarded to the Sheriff's Office, the cash match requirement will come
from the Sheriff's Office Specialized Funds under the Sheriff's Office's annual
2012-2013 fiscal year budget. 

Conclusion
It was imperative that the Sheriff's Office electronically submit this grant application
prior to the application deadline of March 23, 2012, at 3 p.m.  The grant
application was electronically submitted to the ACJC on March 21, 2012, in order to
secure continued funding for the salaries and ERE for a Commander, Sergeant and 3
Agents of the Task Force. 

If this grant funding is awarded for the period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013,
the Gila County Sheriff's Office will receive an award letter from the ACJC
accompanied with a grant contract, which will be presented to the Board of
Supervisors for approval and execution of the Chairman's signature at a future Board
of Supervisors' meeting.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office recommends ratification the Board of Supervisors'
approval for the submission of  this grant application in the amount of $376,410 to
the ACJC. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the Board of Supervisors' approval for the
electronic submission of a Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Task Force Grant
Application by the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Arizona Criminal Justice
Commission in the amount of $376,410 and, if awarded, to be used during the
period of July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2012.  (Johnny Sanchez)

Attachments
DGVC Application





































   

ARF-1305     Regular Agenda Item      4- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Janice Cook, Administrative Services
Manager, Deputy County Manager

Department: County Manager

Fiscal Year: 12/13 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/12-6/30/22 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Don McDaniel/John Nelson

Information
Request/Subject
Third Amended Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Arizona Counties Insurance
Pool (ACIP).

Background Information
The Arizona Counties Insurance Pool is a consortium of 11 Arizona counties
established in 1992 for the purpose of jointly and cooperatively purchasing insurance,
including reinsurance, pooling retention of its members' exposure for property, fidelity
and liability losses and providing for the payment of such property loss, fidelity loss or
claim of liability made against any of its members, including any elected or appointed
official, officer or employee covered by the pool.  In 1994, ACIP expanded its scope to
include a Workers' Compensation Pool for its member counties with a separate IGA.

The proposed Third Amended IGA will combine all ACIP operations into one
agreement, replacing the two current IGA's -- one for the property and casualty pool
and one for the worker's compensation pool.

Evaluation
Administration believes that the proposed IGA, which combines the property and
casualty operation with the workers' compensation operation, provides for greater
financial flexibility and more individualized participation in the insurance programs
for ACIP's member counties.

The proposed IGA also addresses ambiguities with its clearer, more concise language
and brings ACIP's authority to settle claims to modern levels by recognizing the
current state of affairs in litigation.

Conclusion
Administration believes the proposed IGA provides for more efficiency in ACIP's



Administration believes the proposed IGA provides for more efficiency in ACIP's
operations; brings the contract language and provisions up-to-date; and, strengthens
the structure and integrity of the Pool.

Recommendation
Administration recommends approval of the Third Amended Intergovernmental
Agreement, as submitted, between Gila County and the Arizona Counties Insurance
Pool.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Third Amended Intergovernmental
Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona Counties Insurance Pool which shall
become effective upon the later of July 1, 2012, or the approval of all parties as
provided in paragraph 22 of the IGA, and shall continue in force and effect for a
period of ten years or until terminated in accordance with the terms and provisions of
the Agreement and, further, may be renewed for an additional ten-year term by
mutual agreement by part or all of the parties prior to the expiration of the original or
any renewal term of the Agreement.  (Don McDaniel/John Nelson)

Attachments
Counsel Memo
IGA-Redline with Comments
Third Amended IGA with ACIP-FINAL
Legal Explanation



 JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C.
M E M O R A N D U M   
  
   
To: County Attorneys: Apache, Cochise, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, La Paz, 

Mohave, Navajo, Pinal, Santa Cruz, and Yavapai Counties 
From: Kenneth Sundlof, General Counsel to the Arizona Counties Insurance Pool 
Subject: Proposed Third Amended Intergovernmental Agreement 
Date: May 18, 2012 
  

 
Over the past several months we have worked with the Arizona County Insurance Pool and its 
member counties to develop a new more modern foundational agreement.  This document will be 
presented to the ACIP Board of Trustees soon, but I wanted to give each of you a preview of the 
document, as we will be looking to a July 1 effective date. 
 
The proposed Third Amended Intergovernmental Agreement is intended to be the new governing 
agreement for ACIP.  It will replace the two current intergovernmental agreements, one for the 
property and casualty pool and one for the workers’ compensation pool, combining all operations 
into one agreement. 
 
I am attaching for your review: 
 

• The  new proposed Third Amended Intergovernmental Agreement and 
 

• A redline comparison to the current Second Amended Intergovernmental Agreement, 
with comments as to the changes. 

 
Here are some of the advantages of entering into this new agreement: 
 

1. The Agreement combines the property and casualty and workers compensation 
pools into one agreement.  This does not change the substance of how these pools are 
operated.  But, it does provide greater financial flexibility, as positive and negative 
balances in the two pools can be netted. 
 
2. The Agreement provides greater flexibility.  While there is no intent to change the 
operations of ACIP, the agreement allows members to participate differently in different 
insurance programs.   
 
3. The language of the Agreement now provides clear authority for all of the various 
insurance programs offered by ACIP. 
 
4. The Agreement cleans up language on risk management programs and on 
objections to payment of claims. 
 



5. The Agreement increases ACIP’s authority to settle claims to modern levels, from 
$15,000 to $50,000. 
 
6. The Agreement preserves the integrity of ACIP by 
 

a. anticipating problems with a member by giving the authority to the Board 
of Trustees, on a two thirds vote, to expel a member. 
 
b. Strengthening the authority of ACIP to remain whole when a member 
leaves ACIP. 

 
I am available to explain or discuss any of the changes with any of you. 
 
To be effective this agreement has to be approved by all of the members, and approved as to 
form by all of the county attorneys. 
 
Ken 



SECOND THIRD AMENDED 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

1. Parties.  The Parties to this Agreement are Arizona Counties, and other 
public entities agen Pool, which are signatories hereto 
(“Party” and/or

cies as approved by the 
 “Parties”) and other Arizona counties participating in this 

Agreement by way of Addenda (“Party” and/or “Parties”). The parties enter into this 
Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) to form a risk retention pool provide 

ir exposures for 
ensation, liability 

 A.R.S. Section

to the Parties insurance and insurance services relating to the
property, fidelity, employment, employer’s liability, workers’ comp
losses, and other loses as may be permitted by law, pursuant to §§ 

 Insurance Pool  11-952 and 11-952.01 under the name Arizona Counties
(“PoolACIP”). 

2. Recitals.  This Agreement is based upon certain understandings and in 
furtherance of certain purposes, as follows: 

ed Statues § 11-952 provides that two or more 
ent may contract 
 common to the 
ements with one 

mits two or more 
reements for the 
rance, or to pool 

2.1 Arizona Revis
public agencies by direct contract or agreem
for services or jointly exercise any powers
contracting parties and may enter into agre
another for joint or cooperative action. 

2.2 Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-952.01(A) per
public agencies to enter into contracts or ag
joint purchasing of insurance, including reinsu
retention of their risks exposures for prop
liability losses and to provide for the payment
losses

erty, fidelity and 
 of such property 

 loss, fidelity loss or claims of liability mad
member of the Pool

e against any 
 the pool, including any elected or appointed 

official, officer or employee covered by the pool, on a 
. 

mits two or more 
ublic agencies to establish a workers’ compensation pool to 

provide for the payment of workers’ compensation claims 
t basis with one 

 governing board of each Party has determined that it is in 
the Party’s best interest and in the public interest that this 
Agreement be executed and that each Party shall participate as 

cooperative or contract basis with one another

2.3 Arizona Revised Statues § 11-952.01 (B) per
p

pursuant to title 23, chapter 6 on a contrac
another. 

2.4  The

a member of the Pool created by in ACIP as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 1 



 2 

2.5 The governing board of each Party has determined that that 
Party should join together with the other Parties for the 
purposes of the purposes of: 

a. Providing coverages for: 
 

ile liability, 
s’ compensation and employer’s liability, 

4. general liability, including employment practices 
c officials liability, and law 

 
e Board other coverages as may be 

 
ing effective risk management programs to reduce 

s; 

c. pooling their self-insured losses; 

 reinsurance; and

1. property, 
2. automob
3. worker

liability, publi
enforcement liability, and  

5. automobile physical damage, 

and at the option of th
permitted by law; 

b. develop
the amount and frequency of their losse

d. jointly purchasing excess insurance or  

 of Coverage; 

 administration;  

ative services as 

e. adopting Memoranda

f. providing claims services and claims

g. providing or purchasing such administr
the Board of Trustees of the Pool AC
ne

IP determines is 
cessary for the appropriate administration of the Pool 

 
h. purchasing or providing other insurance or risk 

ACIP, and; 

management services. 
 

3. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective upon its 
execution and filing with the Secretary of State in accordance with A.R.S. § 11-952 
and § 11-952.01 upon the later of July 1, 2012 or the approva
provided in paragraph 22, and 

l of all parties as 
shall continue in force and effect for a period of ten 

visions of this 
ten year term by 

tion of the original 
or any renewal term of this Agreement. 

4. Modification of Agreement

years or until terminated in accordance with the terms and pro
Agreement.  This Agreement may be renewed for an additional 
mutual agreement by part or all of the Parties prior to the expira

. This Agreement may be modified and/or 
amended by Addenda.  An addendum shall be effective when approved by all the 
Parties.  An addendum may include an agreement by the Parties to add new parties 



 3 

or to permit a new or existing party to participate in the Pool ACIP on terms and 
conditions different than those set forth in this Agreement. 

5. Coverages. Coverages shall be as follows: 

5.1 The specific risks exposures covered by the Pool ACIP, the 
ms against the Poolprocedure for making clai  ACIP, the means 

and procedures for defending against such claims, the persons 
or entities to be indemnified by ACIP such Pool, the limitations 

 other matters 
 the

and exclusions on coverage, and various
necessary or appropriate to the functioning of  Pool ACIP are 

ummore particularly described in the Memorand  one or more 
 be adopted by Memoranda of Coverage and Bylaws which shall

the Board of Trustees of the Pool (hereinafter referred to as 
“Board”).  The terms of the Memorandaum of 
amended by a majority vote of the Board fr
provided that all Parties shall be given at leas

Coverage may be 
om time to time; 
t ninety (90) days 
her that the form prior written notice thereof; and provided furt

of the Memorandaum of Coverage shall be sim
the same time for all Parties.  The participation
Memoranda of Coverage may be under diff
other parties, as determined by the Party and 
defined by separate agreement. 

ilarly amended at 
 of a Party in any 

erent terms from 
the Board, and as 

5.2 The Board shall process, and defend and pay
the Parties which are included under the
Memorandaum

 all claims against 
 scope of the 

 of Coverage and as otherwise d
Board. The Parties shall cooperate fully 
information needed or helpful in settlement o
claims. A list of current claims of each Party 
status (pending) or disposition of each claim, 

etermined by the 
in supplying any 
r defense of such 
together with the 
shall be provided 

periodically to each Party. Each Party shall be notified as 
required by section 1718.1 prior to settlement or payment of 

 
programs for risk 

management and loss control and make them available to the 
share information 
idual parties. 

 
 against the Party 
 this Agreement, 

pt through the payment of losses by ACIP or by the Party. 

6. Participation

claim. 

5.3 ACIP shall develop and implement 

Parties.  The Parties may act cooperatively to 
and to implement programs developed by indiv

5.4 A Party is not relieved of its liability for claims
incurred during the Party’s participation in
exce

. Based on such understandings and in furtherance of such 
purposes, the Parties agree to establish and participate in the Pool ACIP under the 
following terms and conditions: 



 4 

6.1 This Agreement shall continue until July 1, 1998, unless earlier 
terminated as provided herein or extended by mutual 
agreement. 

6.1 Participation in this Agreement may not be terminated by any 
Party during the initial thirty-six (36) month
entry day

s after the initial 
 date of a Party except that co

suspen
verage may be 

ded or terminated as provided herein for nonpayment of 
premiums or other violations by a Party of u
this Agreement. 

6.2 Participation in this Agreement may be termina
Parties,

nder the terms of 

ted by any of the 
 at any time after the initial thirty-six (36) months from 

initial entry, effective as of the last day of the Pool ACIP’s fiscal 
t least ninety (90) year, by written notice of termination given a

days one year prior to the last day of ACIP’s fiscal year.  prior to 
such anniversary date. 

6.3 This Agreement may be renewed for an additional ten (10) year 
term by mutual agreement by part or all of the Parties prior to 
the expiration of the original or any renewal term of this 
Agreement. 

 
inated as to any 

f the Board.   
 

6.3 Participation in this Agreement may be term
Party by a two thirds vote o

7. Termination of the Pool ACIP.  the Pool ACIP shall be terminated upon 
the first to occur of any of the following events: 

n all Parties but one in the Pool7.1 Whe  ACIP have ceased to 

at the number of 
l

participate; 

7.2 At such time as the Board shall determine th
participating Parties and/or the size of the Poo  ACIP is too small 

uately indemnify against the risksto adeq  exposures specified in 
the Memorandaum of Coverage, by a two-third
of the Board. 

Any termination pursuant to 7.2 above shall not be effective until the Boar

s affirmative vote 

d shall 
have given each participating Party at least six months ninety (90) days’ written 
notice of such termination.  Upon termination of the Pool ACIP, adequate provisions 
shall b arties based on a 
sound actu

8. Poo

e made for all pending and anticipated claims against the P
arial study. 

l ACIP Funding.  the Pool ACIP shall be funded as follows: 

8.1 Deposit of PremiumContribution.  As of the effective date of this 
Agreement, on or before the first day of each fiscal year of the 



 5 

Pool thereafter, At such dates as may be determined by the 
Board, the anticipated liabilities and expenses of the Pool ACIP 
for the fiscal year or portion thereof shall be actuarially 
calculated by the Administrator based on use of services, loss 
history, and other underwriting criteria the Pool and as 

d expenses shall 
Memorandaum

approved by the Board. Such liabilities an
include expected losses to be covered by the  of 

 reinsurance, the 
r administrative 
e by the Board. 

d among the Pool

Coverage, the cost of excess insurance and
costs of claims services, the cost of othe
services, and other costs deemed appropriat
Such liabilities and expenses shall be allocate  

rata exposure of 
he total exposure 

ACIP’s participating Parties based on the pro 
each Party as that Party’s exposure relates to t
of the Pool The amount of each Party’s exposure shall be and as 

tor and approved otherwise determined by the Pool Administra
by the Board based on each Party’s utilization of resources upon 
criteria and rating assumptions uniformly applied to each Party. 

requested by the Each Party agrees to furnish all information 
ACIP Pool Administrator as necessary to dete
exposure of the Party

rmine the relative 
Parties. The Each Pa

deposit premium for the whole year to the P
rty shall pay its 
ool ACIP in cash 

within thirty (30) days of such notification, or 
as shall be specified in the notice. 

by such later date 

8.2 Retrospective Premium Contribution Adjustment. A retrospective 
premium contribution calculation formula shall may be as 

f each fiscal year. 
IP and the losses 
 Pool. The deposit 

adopted by the Board prior to the beginning o
The formula shall consider the expenses of AC
and exposures of each Party and of the entire
premium contribution paid for the fiscal year sh
a credit against the retrospective prem

all be applied as 
ium contribution. 

Retrospective premium contribution adjustme
year shall be made eighteen (18)

nts for each fiscal 
 months afte

year and shall continue until all claims are clo
Board determines that sufficient facts are known to make a fin

r the close of the 
sed or until the 

al 
adjustment for the year. Each Party shall remain liable for such 

withdrawal from 
nt. 

adjustment regardless of the Party’s 
participation or the termination of this Agreeme

8.3 Assessment. If the Pool ACIP becomes insolvent or 
unable to discharge its legal liabilities and 
each Party shall be assessed by the Board 
contribution equal to its contribution for the t

is otherwise 
other obligations, 
for an additional 
hen current fiscal 

year divided by the contribution of all participants for such year, 
times the amount of the deficiency, up to the limit specified in 
A.R.S. 11-952.01(H). In such case the Board shall determine 
the cause of the insolvency, which may be an overrun in 
expected costs in one or more risk retention pools, or an 



 6 

overrun in administrative costs.  The Board shall assess 
contributions in a manner that reflects each party’s participation 
in the cause or causes of the insolvency, up to the limit specified 
in A.R.S. § 11-952.01(O).  For example, if the insolvency is 
caused by overruns in a particular risk retention pool, then only 

ion pool shall be 
t, and the manner 
 Party in writing, 

those Parties participating in that risk retent
subject to assessment.  Each such assessmen
of calculating the same, shall be given to each
and the Party shall thereafter have sixty (60) days in which to 
pay the amount of such assessment. Each P
liable for such assessments, regardless of the 
from participation or the termination of th
liabilities of the Pool incurred during the 
membership. 

8.4 Loss

arty shall remain 
Party’s withdrawal 
is Agreement for 
Party’s period of 

 Claims Reserves. the Pool ACIP shall maintain funds 
adequate to pay incurred claims which shall include known 

but not reported 
cipation. the Pool

incurred losses and an estimate of incurred 
claims as may be appropriate for pooling parti  

margins deemed ACIP shall also maintain contingency 
appropriate by the Board. 

8.5 Banking Relationships.  the Pool ACIP may enter into a financial 
ancial institutions 
y out the terms of 

onies in equity 
s registered with 
ommission,  debt 
itted by A.R.S. § 

services agreements with banks and other fin
and may issue checks in its own name to carr
this Agreement.  ACIP may invest its m
securities, mutual finds and investment fund
the United States Securities and Exchange C
obligations and any eligible investment perm
35-323. Controls shall be established and funds shall be 
invested so that the Pool is managed in a conservative, prudent 
manner, as shall be more explicitly set forth in the Bylaws.  

8.6 Distribution of Surplus. At the termination of the Pool ACIP’s 
existence, any surplus funds in the Pool ACIP
those necessary to pay or reserve against t
liabilities of the Pool

 over and above 
he expenses and 

 ACIP shall be distribute
existing Parties that are participants in the 

d among the then 
Pool ACIP. Such 

 shall be allocated among such participants as 
by the Board i

distribution
required by law and as may be determined n 

made by each Party during the proportion to the payment 
preceding five years. 

9. Workers’ Compensation Provisions.  The following provisions shall 
apply to the provision of workers’ compensation insurance only: 
 



 7 

9.1 ACIP shall provide such coverages to the employees of the 
Parties as meet the requirements for a self-insured employer 
under A.R.S. § 23-961. 

 
9.2 The Board from time to time may, at its discretion, distribute 

arty’s balance in 
rience formula as 

may be approved by the Board.  Any experience formula shall 
 

10. 

surplus funds, or apply surplus funds to a P
other risk retention pools, based upon an expe

be approved by a two thirds vote of the Board.

Suspension. In the event any Party shall fail to ma
herein, or shall fail to comply with any of the other ter

ke its contribution 
as specified ms of this 
Agreement, or the membership conditions as set forth in the Bylaws, the Board 
may, if such default is not cured within ten (10) days’ written n
suspend the Party’s coverage under this Agreement for a perio
(80)

otice to the Party, 
d of up to eighty 

 days without further notice or action. The notice of defaul
Party that if the default is not cured within the ten (10)

t shall advise the 
 day peri

the Agreement may occur ninety (90)
od, termination of 

 days after the notice of def
eighty (80)

ault.  During such 
 day suspension period, the Board shall determine if s

made permanent, in which case the Agreement shall be de
effective as of the ninety (90)

uspension shall be 
emed terminated 

 days following from the written no
the circumstances, if any, under which the Party’s participation in 

tice of default, or 
the Pool ACIP and 
ld the Party be 
ty shall forfeit all 

the effectiveness of this Agreement may be restored. Shou
permanently suspended and this Agreement terminated, the Par
rights to any distribution of Pool ACIP surpluses or property upon 
the Pool

the termination of 
 ACIP. Regardless of such termination, however, the P

retrospective premiums and assessments under Section 8.2
arty’s liability for 
 above shall be 

unaffected. 

11. Effect of Withdrawal or Expulsion. The withdrawal or expulsion of any 
Party after its inception in the Pool ACIP will not terminate its resp

11.1 to cooperate fully

onsibility: 

 with the Pool ACIP in determining the cause of 
escribed in the losses and the settlement of claims as d

Memorandaum of Coverage; 

11.2 to pay any retrospective premium adjustments and assessments 
e for each year of 

11.3 to provide the Administrator

determined by the Board to be due and payabl
participation; 

 Executive Director with such 
 necessary for the statistical and loss experience data as may be

Administrator Executive Director to carry out
and 

 this Agreement; 

11.4 to cooperate with the Board and assist the Administrator 
Executive Director and any insurer, common claims adjuster or 
legal council counsel retained by the Pool ACIP, in all matters 
relating to this Agreement. 



 8 

 
11.5 to pay all expenses of claims administration, administrative 

expense and other costs incurred in administering claims run off 
or the purchase of tail coverage; and 

 
11.6 to pay any other expenses incurred by ACIP due to reductions in 

the 
ar Party and particular to that Party. 

1

force or other employee or contract expenses incurred by 
departure of the particul

2. Board of Trustees. the Pool ACIP shall be operated 
stees consisting of at least five (5)

administered by a 
Board of Tru  persons who are 

e Parties. Each Party shall appoint a Board m
elected officials or 

employees of th ember if there are at 
 Parties signatory 
must designate its 
to one vote in all 

least five Parties signatory hereto. If there are less than five
hereto, each Party shall appoint two Board members. Each Party 
Board member in writing.  Each Board member shall be entitled 
matters that come before the Board. 

13. Loss Control.  ACIP may, with the approval of the Board, establish Loss 
s.  The Executive 
sist in control of 
ble to the Parties 
 or loss-control 
e implementation 
rograms.  Should 
by the Executive 
mendation at its 

and binding on all 
a directive by the Board may be subject 

to suspension pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement. 

Control Programs to be adopted and implemented by the Partie
Director may issue periodic loss-control recommendations to as
identified risks.  ACIP may, in its discretion, make services availa
to assist in the implementation of a Loss Control Program
recommendations.  The Parties agree that they will cooperate in th
of any and all loss-control recommendations and Loss Control P
any Party disagree with a loss-control recommendation issued 
Director, that Party may request that the Board review the recom
next scheduled meeting.  A decision by the Board shall be final 
Parties.  Failure by a Party to comply with 

the Pool will supply loss control services to the Parties to assist them in following 
the plan of loss control that may result in reduced losses.  The Administrator shall 
provide all of the services as provided in an Agreement entered into between the 
Administrator and the Pool on behalf of the Pool members. The Parties agree that 
they will cooperate in instituting any and all loss control recommendations.  In the 
event that the loss control recommendations submitted by the Administrator on 
behalf of the Pool seem unreasonable, the Party has a right to appeal to the Board. 
The Board shall hear the objections of the Party at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting and decisions of the Board will be final and binding upon all the Parties. 
Any Party who does not agree to follow the decision of the Board may be subject to 
suspension as provided herein. 

14. Duties of the Board.  The Board shall: 

14.1 Establish the terms and conditions of coverage within the Pool 
ACIP, including exclusions of coverage; 



 9 

14.2 Ensure that all claims covered by the Memorandaum of 
Coverage for which each member incurs liability during the 
Party’s period of membership are paid promptly; 

14.3 Take all necessary precautions to safeguard the assets of the 
Pool ACIP; 

14.4 Maintain minutes of its meetings; 

ignate an administrator14.5 Des  Executive Director to carry out the 
Board and this Agreement and 

ent of the Pool
policies established by the 
provide day-to-day managem  ACIP and delineate 

reas of authority in the written minutes of its meetings the a
delegated to the Executive Director administrator; and 

14.6 Notify the Arizona Director of the of Department of Insurance 
and the Director of the Industrial Commission of the existence 

with the Arizona 
hich the Attorney 
 as prescribed by 

of the Pool and file with such Director and 
Attorney General a copy of this Agreement, w
General shall file with the Secretary of State
Section A.R.S. §  11-952.01(H)(3)(6). 

In accordance with A.R.S. § 11-952.01(CJ), the Board shall not: 

t of a premium, 
tablished by the 

ard; and 

a. Extend credit to a Party for paymen
except pursuant to payment plans es
Bo

b. Borrow any monies from the Pool ACIP or in the name of 
the Pool ACIP except in the ordinary course of business. 

15. Powers of the Board. The Board may: 

15.1 Establish offices where necessary in the State of Arizona and 
ses of the Poolemploy necessary staff to carry out the purpo  

ACIP; 

15.2 Retain legal counsel council, actuaries, au
private cons

ditors, engineers, 
ultants, claims adjustors and advisors; 

 alter Bylaws and rules pertaining to the exercise of its 

s the Board 
deems necessary; 

15.5 Enter into financial services agreements with banks and issue 
checks in its own name as provided in paragraph 8.5 above; and 

 

15.3 Make and
purpose and powers; 

15.4 Purchase, lease or rent real or personal property a



 10 

15.6 Perform claims administration services and defend and settle 
claims; and 

15.6 Perform such other matters and enter into other contracts as 
may be necessary to carry out this Agreement. 

16.  and AuditInspection . the Pool ACIP and its representatives shall be 
p ’s properties and 
oper
ermitted, but shall not be obligated, to inspect each Party

ations at any time. Neither the Pool ACIP’s right to make inspections nor the 
making thereof shall constitute an undertaking, on behalf of or for the benefit of the 

rations are safe or Party or others to determine or warrant that such property or ope
are in compliance with any law, rule, or regulation. 

16.1 the Pool ACIP may examine and audit a P
records at any time 

arty’s books and 
during the period the Agreement is in effect, 

 three years after 
far as said books-
f this Agreement. 

and during any extensions hereof, and within
the final termination of this Agreement, inso
and records may relate to the subject matter o

16.2 the Pool ACIP shall be audited annually at the expense of the 
Pool ACIP by a certificated public accountant, 
report shall be submitted to the governing boa
and to the Director of the Department of Insu
shall obtain an appropriate actuarial evaluat
reserves of the Pool

and a copy of the 
rds of the Parties 
rance. The Board 
ion of the claim 

 ACIP including an estima
but not reported claims. the Pool

te of the incurred 
 ACIP shall al

any examination of the Pool
so pay the cost of 

 ACIP and its reserves by the 
Director of Insurance as permitted by A.R.S. § 11-952.01(F). 

17. Bylaws and Rules of Operation. The Board may make
pertaining to the exercise of its purpose and powers.  The in

 bylaws and rules 
itial current ACIP 

Bylaws for the Pool shall be adopted no later than six (6) months from the time 
at the is executedcontinue in full force and effect under this Agreement provided th . 

The Board may, from time to time, propose revisions to said B
become effective only upon approval by a two-thirds majority of t

ylaws, which shall 
he all members of 
rity vote, policies, 

he Pool
the Board. The Board may also from time to time adopt, by majo
rules, and procedures for the administration and operation of t  ACIP by a 
majority vote of the Board so long a
inconsistent with this Agreement or 

s such policies, rules, and procedures are not 
the Bylaws. No provision of the Bylaws, 

policies f this Agreement. 

18. 

, rules or procedures shall be inconsistent with the terms o

Objection to Payment of Claims. 

18.1 Any Party may object to a decision by the B
 

oard to resolve a 
claim on behalf of that Party. An objection must be filed within 
ten days after notice to the Party of the Board’s intention to pay 
a claim, and must be authorized by the Objecting Party’s risk 
manager or county manager. The objection shall state specific 
reasons why the Objecting Party contends that the claim should 



 11 

not be resolved in the manner proposed by the Board. The 
Board will schedule a meeting during which formal action will be 
taken upon the objection and shall provide written notice to the 
Objecting Party including the date, time and location of the 
meeting.  Upon conclusion of the meeting, the Board shall 

arty.   

 result sought by 
Party shall provide written 

notice to the Board stating whether or not the Objecting Party 
 If the Objecting 
all reimburse the 
ent, or judgment 

p to the amount 
ry to resolve the 
P. The Objecting 
ts and expenses 
 of the claim. If 
cting Party elects 
CIP will retain all 
f the claim and 
limited to, final 

the claim. 

provide notice of its decision to the Objecting P
 

18.2 Should the Board’s decision be adverse to the
the Objecting Party, the Objecting 

intends to assume control of the litigation.  
Party assumes control of the litigation, ACIP sh
Objecting Party for all costs of defense, settlem
actually incurred by the Objecting Party, u
which ACIP initially determined was necessa
claim, reduced by expenses incurred by ACI
Party shall be responsible for all other cos
associated with the defense and satisfaction
upon notice of the Board’s decision, the Obje
not to assume the control of the litigation, A
control and responsibility for the defense o
liability for the litigation including, but not 
resolution of 

Each participating Party shall have the right to object to the 
Board’s decision to pay a claim. If a Party objects it has the 
right to decide to assume control of the litigation. If it so 
decides, the Pool shall pay to the Party all defense, settlement, 
or cost of judgment actually incurred by the Party, but only up 
to the amount which the Pool initially determined was necessary 
for the Satisfaction of the claim and reduced by expenses 
incurred by the Pool. The objecting Party shall be responsible for 
all other costs and expenses associated with the defense and 
satisfaction of the claim. If the participating Party objects, but 
elects not to assume the control of the litigation, then the Pool 
will retain all control and responsibility for the defense of the 
claim and liability for the litigation. 

Any objection must be filed within ten (10) days after notice of 
the Board’s intention to pay a claim. The objection shall state 
specific reasons why the Board should not authorize payment of 
the claim. After an objection is filed, the Board shall give notice 
to the objecting Party and thereafter hold a meeting, at which 
time formal action will be taken upon the objection. A Party 
must state that it will assume control of the litigation 
immediately upon receipt of notice of the Board’s decision. 



 12 

18.3 The Board shall have the right to pay any claim which does not 
exceed Fifteen Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1550,000.00) without 
providing notice of intent to pay the claim, unless the Party has 
filed a written request for notice of intent to pay the claim prior 
to payment.  The authority of the Board and the Executive 

fined to a greater 
 this Agreement 
IP as its attorney 
hin the authority 
y the Memoranda 

 to any and all 
ning claims made against them. This

Director to settle and pay claims may be de
extent in the Bylaws.  Each participant in
thereby appoints the Executive Director of AC
in fact with full authority to settle claims wit
provided by this Agreement, by the Bylaws, b
of Coverage, or by the Board. 

18.4 All Parties to this Agreement are entitled
information concer  Claims 

to the greatest 

19. 

information shall be treated as confidential 
extent which the law will allow. 

Place of Business.  the Pool ACIP shall establish a principal place of 
ation. 

20. Conformity with Law

business within Arizona and shall notify all participants of such loc

.  In the event any term or provision of this 
tate of Arizona as 
 be automatically 

nd statutes. 

Agreement shall be in conflict with the laws and statutes of the S
they now exist or are hereafter amended, this Agreement shall
deemed amended to conform to such laws a

21. Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year shall begin on July 1 of e
of June 30 of each

ach year and end 
 year. 

22. Authorizing Action.  This Agreement shall become effective upon its 
effe on  ctive date as set forth in paragraph 3 of this Agreement and only up

a. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by an authorized 
representative of each the Party on behalf of the Party and 
approved by the Party’s respective County Attorney as to form.;  

b. The filing by the Board of a fully executed copy of this 
Agreement with the Director of Insurance and the Attorney 
General as required by A.R.S. § 11-952.01(H)(B) (6); and. 

c. The filing of a copy of this Agreement with the Arizona Secretary 
of State by the’ Attorney General pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 11-
952(E) and § 11-952.01(B)(6). 

23. Liability.  No Party shall, by reason of this Agreement, have any 
liability for claims brought by third Parties against any other Party other than the 
obligation to contribute certain funds to the Pool ACIP as expressly provided herein. 
The liability for any claim against a Party shall remain the sole and exclusive liability 
of the Party; the obligation of the Pool ACIP is to indemnify that Party against such 



 13 

loss as provided in the Memorandum of Coverage to the extent and under the 
conditions contained therein. 
 

24. Replaced Agreements.  This Agreement replaces the Second Amended 
Intergovernmental Agreement filed with the Secretary of State on August 10, 1992 

, 2009 and the 
reement for a Workers’ Compensation Pool filed with the 

Se 4. 

is Agreement on 

CO

and renewed on August 10, 1998 and again on March 30
Intergovernmental Ag

cretary of State on July 13, 1994 and renewed on June 30, 200

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed th
the dates set forth below. 
 

UNTY OF  _______ 
 
 
By:   
Its:   

  Date:  

APPROVAL: This Agreement is in 
in the power 

the laws 
 Bo
. 

 
 
 

 

proper form and it is with
and authority granted under 
of the State of Arizona to the
Supervisors of ______ County

 
ard of 

  
Deputy County Attorney 
 

 
COUNTY OF _______ 

 
By:  

Chairman of the Board 
 

Date: 
 

 
 
 
Witness:  

 



THIRD AMENDED 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

1. Parties.  The Parties to this Agreement are Arizona Counties, and other 
public agencies as approved by the Pool, which are signatories hereto (“Party” 
and/or “Parties”). The parties enter into this Intergovernmental Agreement 
(“Agreement”) to provide to the Parties insurance and insurance services relating to 
their exposures for property, fidelity, employment, employer’s liability, workers’ 
compensation, liability losses, and other loses as may be permitted by law, 
pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 11-952 and 11-952.01 under the name Arizona Counties 
Insurance Pool  (“ACIP”). 

2. Recitals.  This Agreement is based upon certain understandings and in 
furtherance of certain purposes, as follows: 

2.1 Arizona Revised Statues § 11-952 provides that two or more 
public agencies by direct contract or agreement may contract 
for services or jointly exercise any powers common to the 
contracting parties and may enter into agreements with one 
another for joint or cooperative action. 

2.2 Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-952.01(A) permits two or more 
public agencies to enter into contracts or agreements for the 
joint purchasing of insurance, including reinsurance, or to pool 
retention of their exposures for property, fidelity and liability 
losses and to provide for the payment of such property loss, 
fidelity loss or claim of liability made against any member of the 
pool, including any elected or appointed official, officer or 
employee covered by the pool, on a cooperative or contract 
basis with one another. 

2.3 Arizona Revised Statues § 11-952.01 (B) permits two or more 
public agencies to establish a workers’ compensation pool to 
provide for the payment of workers’ compensation claims 
pursuant to title 23, chapter 6 on a contract basis with one 
another. 

2.4  The governing board of each Party has determined that it is in 
the Party’s best interest and in the public interest that this 
Agreement be executed and that each Party shall participate in 
ACIP as set forth in this Agreement. 

2.5 The governing board of each Party has determined that that 
Party should join together with the other Parties for the 
purposes of: 

a. Providing coverages for: 

 1 



 
1. property, 
2. automobile liability, 
3. workers’ compensation and employer’s liability, 
4. general liability, including employment practices 

liability, public officials liability, and law 
enforcement liability, and  

5. automobile physical damage, 
 

and at the option of the Board other coverages as may be 
permitted by law; 

 
b. developing effective risk management programs to reduce 

the amount and frequency of their losses; 

c. pooling their self-insured losses; 

d. jointly purchasing excess insurance or reinsurance; and 

e. adopting Memoranda of Coverage; 

f. providing claims services and claims administration;  

g. providing or purchasing such administrative services as 
the Board of ACIP determines is necessary for the 
appropriate administration of ACIP, and; 

 
h. purchasing or providing other insurance or risk 

management services. 

3. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective upon the 
later of July 1, 2012 or the approval of all parties as provided in paragraph 22, and 
shall continue in force and effect for a period of ten years or until terminated in 
accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  This Agreement may 
be renewed for an additional ten year term by mutual agreement by part or all of 
the Parties prior to the expiration of the original or any renewal term of this 
Agreement. 

4. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement may be modified and/or 
amended by Addenda.  An addendum shall be effective when approved by all the 
Parties.  An addendum may include an agreement by the Parties to add new parties 
or to permit a new or existing party to participate in ACIP on terms and conditions 
different than those set forth in this Agreement. 

5. Coverages. Coverages shall be as follows: 

5.1 The specific exposures covered by ACIP, the procedure for 
making claims against ACIP, the persons or entities to be 
indemnified by ACIP, the limitations and exclusions on coverage, 

 2 



and various other matters necessary or appropriate to the 
functioning of ACIP are more particularly described in the one or 
more Memoranda of Coverage and Bylaws which shall be 
adopted by the Board.  The terms of the Memoranda of 
Coverage may be amended by a majority vote of the Board 
from time to time; provided that all Parties shall be given at 
least ninety days prior written notice thereof; and provided 
further that the form of the Memoranda of Coverage shall be 
similarly amended at the same time for all Parties.  The 
participation of a Party in any Memoranda of Coverage may be 
under different terms from other parties, as determined by the 
Party and the Board, and as defined by separate agreement. 

5.2 The Board shall process, defend and pay all claims against the 
Parties which are included under the scope of the Memoranda of 
Coverage and as otherwise determined by the Board. The 
Parties shall cooperate fully in supplying any information needed 
or helpful in settlement or defense of such claims. A list of 
current claims of each Party together with the status (pending) 
or disposition of each claim, shall be provided periodically to 
each Party. Each Party shall be notified as required by section 
18 prior to settlement or payment of claim. 

 
5.3 ACIP shall develop and implement programs for risk 

management and loss control and make them available to the 
Parties.  The Parties may act cooperatively to share information 
and to implement programs developed by individual parties. 

 
5.4 A Party is not relieved of its liability for claims against the Party 

incurred during the Party’s participation in this Agreement, 
except through the payment of losses by ACIP or by the Party. 

6. Participation. Based on such understandings and in furtherance of such 
purposes, the Parties agree to establish and participate in ACIP under the following 
terms and conditions: 

6.1 Participation in this Agreement may not be terminated by any 
Party during the initial thirty-six months after the initial entry 
date of a Party except that coverage may be suspended or 
terminated as provided herein for nonpayment of premiums or 
other violations by a Party under the terms of this Agreement. 

6.2 Participation in this Agreement may be terminated by any of the 
Parties, at any time after the initial thirty-six months from initial 
entry, effective as of the last day of ACIP’s fiscal year, by 
written notice of termination given at least one year prior to the 
last day of ACIP’s fiscal year.   

 

 3 



6.3 Participation in this Agreement may be terminated as to any 
Party by a two thirds vote of the Board.   

7. Termination of ACIP.  ACIP shall be terminated upon the first to occur 
of any of the following events: 

7.1 When all Parties but one in ACIP have ceased to participate; 

7.2 At such time as the Board shall determine that the number of 
participating Parties and/or the size of ACIP is too small to 
adequately indemnify against the exposures specified in the 
Memoranda of Coverage, by a two-thirds affirmative vote of the 
Board. 

Any termination pursuant to 7.2 above shall not be effective until the Board shall 
have given each participating Party at least six months written notice of such 
termination.  Upon termination of ACIP, adequate provisions shall be made for all 
pending and anticipated claims against the Parties based on a sound actuarial 
study. 

8. ACIP Funding.  ACIP shall be funded as follows: 

8.1 Deposit of Contribution.  At such dates as may be determined 
by the Board, the anticipated liabilities and expenses of ACIP for 
the fiscal year or portion thereof shall be calculated based on 
use of services, loss history, and other underwriting criteria as 
approved by the Board. Such liabilities and expenses shall 
include expected losses to be covered by the Memorandaum of 
Coverage, the cost of excess insurance and reinsurance, the 
costs of claims services, the cost of other administrative 
services, and other costs deemed appropriate by the Board. 
Such liabilities and expenses shall be allocated among ACIP’s 
participating Parties based on the pro rata exposure of each 
Party and as otherwise determined by the Board based on each 
Party’s utilization of resources. Each Party agrees to furnish all 
information requested by the ACIP as necessary to determine 
the relative exposure of the Parties. Each Party shall pay its 
deposit premium for the whole year to ACIP in cash within thirty 
days of such notification, or by such later date as shall be 
specified in the notice. 

8.2 Retrospective Contribution Adjustment. A retrospective 
contribution calculation formula may be adopted by the Board 
prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. The formula shall 
consider the expenses of ACIP and the losses and exposures of 
each Party and of the entire Pool. The deposit contribution paid 
for the fiscal year shall be applied as a credit against the 
retrospective contribution. Retrospective contribution 
adjustments for each fiscal year shall be made eighteen months 

 4 



after the close of the year and shall continue until all claims are 
closed or until the Board determines that sufficient facts are 
known to make a final adjustment for the year. Each Party shall 
remain liable for such adjustment regardless of the Party’s 
withdrawal from participation or the termination of this 
Agreement. 

8.3 Assessment. If ACIP becomes insolvent or is otherwise unable to 
discharge its legal liabilities and other obligations, each Party 
shall be assessed by the Board for an additional contribution.  In 
such case the Board shall determine the cause of the insolvency, 
which may be an overrun in expected costs in one or more risk 
retention pools, or an overrun in administrative costs.  The 
Board shall assess contributions in a manner that reflects each 
party’s participation in the cause or causes of the insolvency, up 
to the limit specified in A.R.S. § 11-952.01(O).  For example, if 
the insolvency is caused by overruns in a particular risk 
retention pool, then only those Parties participating in that risk 
retention pool shall be subject to assessment.  Each such 
assessment, and the manner of calculating the same, shall be 
given to each Party in writing, and the Party shall thereafter 
have sixty days in which to pay such assessment. Each Party 
shall remain liable for such assessments, regardless of the 
Party’s withdrawal from participation or the termination of this 
Agreement for liabilities of the Pool incurred during the Party’s 
period of membership. 

8.4 Claims Reserves. ACIP shall maintain funds adequate to pay 
incurred claims which shall include known incurred losses and 
an estimate of incurred but not reported claims as may be 
appropriate for pooling participation. ACIP shall also maintain 
contingency margins deemed appropriate by the Board. 

8.5 Banking Relationships.  ACIP may enter into a financial services 
agreements with banks and other financial institutions and may 
issue checks in its own name to carry out the terms of this 
Agreement.  ACIP may invest its monies in equity securities, 
mutual finds and investment funds registered with the United 
States Securities and Exchange Commission,  debt obligations 
and any eligible investment permitted by A.R.S. § 35-323.  

8.6 Distribution of Surplus. At the termination of ACIP’s existence, 
any surplus funds in ACIP over and above those necessary to 
pay or reserve against the expenses and liabilities of ACIP shall 
be distributed among the then existing Parties that are 
participants in ACIP. Such distribution shall be allocated among 
such participants as required by law and as may be determined 
by the Board. 

 5 



9. Workers’ Compensation Provisions.  The following provisions shall 
apply to the provision of workers’ compensation insurance only: 
 

9.1 ACIP shall provide such coverages to the employees of the 
Parties as meet the requirements for a self-insured employer 
under A.R.S. § 23-961. 

 
9.2 The Board from time to time may, at its discretion, distribute 

surplus funds, or apply surplus funds to a Party’s balance in 
other risk retention pools, based upon an experience formula as 
may be approved by the Board.  Any experience formula shall 
be approved by a two thirds vote of the Board. 

10. Suspension. In the event any Party shall fail to make its contribution 
as specified herein, or shall fail to comply with any of the other terms of this 
Agreement, or the membership conditions as set forth in the Bylaws, the Board 
may, if such default is not cured within ten days’ written notice to the Party, 
suspend the Party’s coverage under this Agreement for a period of up to eighty 
days without further notice or action. The notice of default shall advise the Party 
that if the default is not cured within the ten day period, termination of the 
Agreement may occur ninety days after the notice of default.  During such eighty 
day suspension period, the Board shall determine if suspension shall be made 
permanent, in which case the Agreement shall be deemed terminated effective as 
of the ninety days following from the written notice of default, or the 
circumstances, if any, under which the Party’s participation in ACIP and the 
effectiveness of this Agreement may be restored. Should the Party be permanently 
suspended and this Agreement terminated, the Party shall forfeit all rights to any 
distribution of ACIP surpluses or property upon the termination of ACIP. Regardless 
of such termination, however, the Party’s liability for retrospective premiums and 
assessments under Section 8 above shall be unaffected. 

11. Effect of Withdrawal or Expulsion. The withdrawal or expulsion of any 
Party after its inception in ACIP will not terminate its responsibility: 

11.1 to cooperate fully with ACIP in determining the cause of losses 
and the settlement of claims as described in the Memoranda of 
Coverage; 

11.2 to pay any retrospective premium adjustments and assessments 
determined by the Board to be due and payable for each year of 
participation; 

11.3 to provide the Executive Director with such statistical and loss 
experience data as may be necessary for the Executive Director 
to carry out this Agreement; and 

11.4 to cooperate with the Board and assist the Executive Director 
and any insurer, common claims adjuster or legal counsel 
retained by ACIP, in all matters relating to this Agreement. 

 6 



 
11.5 to pay all expenses of claims administration, administrative 

expense and other costs incurred in administering claims run off 
or the purchase of tail coverage; and 

 
11.6 to pay any other expenses incurred by ACIP due to reductions in 

force or other employee or contract expenses incurred by the 
departure of the particular Party and particular to that Party. 

12. Board of Trustees.  ACIP shall be administered by a Board of Trustees 
consisting of at least five persons who are elected officials or employees of the 
Parties. Each Party shall appoint a Board member if there are at least five Parties 
signatory hereto. If there are less than five Parties signatory hereto, each Party 
shall appoint two Board members. Each Party must designate its Board member in 
writing.  Each Board member shall be entitled to one vote in all matters that come 
before the Board. 

13. Loss Control.  ACIP may, with the approval of the Board, establish Loss 
Control Programs to be adopted and implemented by the Parties.  The Executive 
Director may issue periodic loss-control recommendations to assist in control of 
identified risks.  ACIP may, in its discretion, make services available to the Parties 
to assist in the implementation of a Loss Control Program or loss-control 
recommendations.  The Parties agree that they will cooperate in the implementation 
of any and all loss-control recommendations and Loss Control Programs.  Should 
any Party disagree with a loss-control recommendation issued by the Executive 
Director, that Party may request that the Board review the recommendation at its 
next scheduled meeting.  A decision by the Board shall be final and binding on all 
Parties.  Failure by a Party to comply with a directive by the Board may be subject 
to suspension pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement. 

14. Duties of the Board.  The Board shall: 

14.1 Establish the terms and conditions of coverage within ACIP, 
including exclusions of coverage; 

14.2 Ensure that all claims covered by the Memoranda of Coverage 
for which each member incurs liability during the Party’s period 
of membership are paid promptly; 

14.3 Take all necessary precautions to safeguard the assets of ACIP; 

14.4 Maintain minutes of its meetings; 

14.5 Designate an Executive Director to carry out the policies 
established by the Board and this Agreement and provide day-
to-day management of ACIP and delineate in the written 
minutes of its meetings the areas of authority delegated to the 
Executive Director; and 

 7 



14.6 Notify the Director of the of Department of Insurance and the 
Director of the Industrial Commission of the existence of the 
Pool and file with such Director and with the Arizona Attorney 
General a copy of this Agreement, which the Attorney General 
shall file with the Secretary of State as prescribed by A.R.S. §  
11-952.01(H). 

14.7 In accordance with A.R.S. § 11-952.01(J), the Board shall not: 

a. Extend credit to a Party for payment of a premium, 
except pursuant to payment plans established by the 
Board; and 

b. Borrow any monies from ACIP or in the name of ACIP 
except in the ordinary course of business. 

15. Powers of the Board. The Board may: 

15.1 Establish offices where necessary in the State of Arizona and 
employ necessary staff to carry out the purposes of ACIP; 

15.2 Retain legal counsel, actuaries, auditors, engineers, private 
consultants, claims adjustors and advisors; 

15.3 Make and alter Bylaws and rules pertaining to the exercise of its 
purpose and powers; 

15.4 Purchase, lease or rent real or personal property as the Board 
deems necessary; 

15.5 Enter into financial services agreements with banks and issue 
checks in its own name as provided in paragraph 8.5 above; and 

 
15.6 Perform claims administration services and defend and settle 

claims; and 

15.6 Perform such other matters and enter into other contracts as 
may be necessary to carry out this Agreement. 

16. Inspection and Audit. ACIP and its representatives shall be permitted, 
but shall not be obligated, to inspect each Party’s properties and operations at any 
time. Neither ACIP’s right to make inspections nor the making thereof shall 
constitute an undertaking, on behalf of or for the benefit of the Party or others to 
determine or warrant that such property or operations are safe or are in compliance 
with any law, rule, or regulation. 

16.1 ACIP may examine and audit a Party’s books and records at any 
time during the period the Agreement is in effect, and during 
any extensions hereof, and within three years after the final 

 8 



termination of this Agreement, insofar as said books-and 
records may relate to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

16.2 ACIP shall be audited annually at the expense of ACIP by a 
certificated public accountant, and a copy of the report shall be 
submitted to the governing boards of the Parties and to the 
Director of the Department of Insurance. The Board shall obtain 
an appropriate actuarial evaluation of the claim reserves of ACIP 
including an estimate of the incurred but not reported claims. 
ACIP shall also pay the cost of any examination of ACIP and its 
reserves by the Director of Insurance as permitted by A.R.S. § 
11-952.01(F). 

17. Bylaws and Rules of Operation. The Board may make bylaws and rules 
pertaining to the exercise of its purpose and powers.  The current ACIP Bylaws shall 
continue in full force and effect under this Agreement provided that the Board may, 
from time to time, propose revisions to said Bylaws, which shall become effective 
only upon approval by a two-thirds majority of all members of the Board. The Board 
may also from time to time adopt, by majority vote, policies, rules, and procedures 
for the administration and operation of ACIP so long as such policies, rules, and 
procedures are not inconsistent with this Agreement or the Bylaws. No provision of 
the Bylaws, policies, rules or procedures shall be inconsistent with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

18. Objection to Payment of Claims. 
 

18.1 Any Party may object to a decision by the Board to resolve a 
claim on behalf of that Party. An objection must be filed within 
ten days after notice to the Party of the Board’s intention to pay 
a claim, and must be authorized by the Objecting Party’s risk 
manager or county manager. The objection shall state specific 
reasons why the Objecting Party contends that the claim should 
not be resolved in the manner proposed by the Board. The 
Board will schedule a meeting during which formal action will be 
taken upon the objection and shall provide written notice to the 
Objecting Party including the date, time and location of the 
meeting.  Upon conclusion of the meeting, the Board shall 
provide notice of its decision to the Objecting Party.   

 

18.2 Should the Board’s decision be adverse to the result sought by 
the Objecting Party, the Objecting Party shall provide written 
notice to the Board stating whether or not the Objecting Party 
intends to assume control of the litigation.   If the Objecting 
Party assumes control of the litigation, ACIP shall reimburse the 
Objecting Party for all costs of defense, settlement, or judgment 
actually incurred by the Objecting Party, up to the amount 
which ACIP initially determined was necessary to resolve the 

 9 



claim, reduced by expenses incurred by ACIP. The Objecting 
Party shall be responsible for all other costs and expenses 
associated with the defense and satisfaction of the claim. If 
upon notice of the Board’s decision, the Objecting Party elects 
not to assume the control of the litigation, ACIP will retain all 
control and responsibility for the defense of the claim and 
liability for the litigation including, but not limited to, final 
resolution of the claim. 

18.3 The Board shall have the right to pay any claim which does not 
exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) without providing 
notice of intent to pay the claim, unless the Party has filed a 
written request for notice of intent to pay the claim prior to 
payment.  The authority of the Board and the Executive Director 
to settle and pay claims may be defined to a greater extent in 
the Bylaws.  Each participant in this Agreement thereby 
appoints the Executive Director of ACIP as its attorney in fact 
with full authority to settle claims within the authority provided 
by this Agreement, by the Bylaws, by the Memoranda of 
Coverage, or by the Board. 

18.4 All Parties to this Agreement are entitled to any and all 
information concerning claims made against them. Claims 
information shall be treated as confidential to the greatest 
extent which the law will allow. 

19. Place of Business.  ACIP shall establish a principal place of business 
within Arizona and shall notify all participants of such location. 

20. Conformity with Law.  In the event any term or provision of this 
Agreement shall be in conflict with the laws and statutes of the State of Arizona as 
they now exist or are hereafter amended, this Agreement shall be automatically 
deemed amended to conform to such laws and statutes. 

21. Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year shall begin on July 1 of each year and end 
of June 30 of each year. 

22. Authorizing Action.  This Agreement shall become effective upon its 
effective date as set forth in paragraph 3 of this Agreement and only upon the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement by an authorized representative of each 
Party on behalf of the Party and approved by the Party’s County Attorney as to 
form. 

23. Liability.  No Party shall, by reason of this Agreement, have any 
liability for claims brought by third Parties against any other Party other than the 
obligation to contribute certain funds to ACIP as expressly provided herein. The 
liability for any claim against a Party shall remain the sole and exclusive liability of 
the Party; the obligation of ACIP is to indemnify that Party against such loss as 

 10 



 11 

provided in the Memorandum of Coverage to the extent and under the conditions 
contained therein. 
 

24. Replaced Agreements.  This Agreement replaces the Second Amended 
Intergovernmental Agreement filed with the Secretary of State on August 10, 1992 
and renewed on August 10, 1998 and again on March 30, 2009 and the 
Intergovernmental Agreement for a Workers’ Compensation Pool filed with the 
Secretary of State on July 13, 1994 and renewed on June 30, 2004. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on 
the dates set forth below. 
 
COUNTY OF  _______ 
 
 
By:   
Its:   
Date:   
 
APPROVAL: This Agreement is in 
proper form and it is within the power 
and authority granted under the laws 
of the State of Arizona to the Board of 
Supervisors of ______ County. 
 
 
 
  
Deputy County Attorney 
 

COUNTY OF _______ 
 
 
By:  

Chairman of the Board 
 
 
Date:  
 
 
Witness:  

 



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1299     Regular Agenda Item      4- F             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health &
Emergency Services Division Director

Submitted By: Sarah White, Executive Administrative
Assistant, Health & Emergency
Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

April 1, 2012 through April 31,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Michael O'Driscoll

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Population Health Policy Initiative Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS12-021335) with Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) Bureau of Tobacco and Chronic Disease (BTCD),
Bureau of Nutrition and Physical Activity (BNPA), and Bureau of Women’s & Children’s Health (BWCH)
administers funds provided through tobacco tax chronic disease funding, Women, Infants & Children
(WIC) lottery, and Title V Maternal & Child Health (MCH) Block Grant to support preventative health
policies. The overall goal of the Division of Public Health Prevention Services is to protect and improve
the public’s health through prevention and control of disease and disability.  This goal is accomplished
through the support of local and national partners to improve the health and well-being of Arizonians
through preventative health policy, system, and environmental change initiatives in Arizona communities.

Evaluation
The preventative health policy, system, and environmental change intergovernmental agreements (IGAs)
will fund three-year collaborative efforts at the county level that can result in increased health policy
capacity and implementation in the areas of procurement policies, work site wellness, school health,
clinical care, and community design by promoting healthy lifestyles.  Renewal of agreements is
contingent upon funding.

Conclusion
The IGA will address a variety of evidence-based strategies designed to impact policy, system, and
environmental change at the community, organizational, individual, and policy levels in order to
promote county-wide health changes so that public health impact will be maximized.  Counties are
expected to implement at multiple levels in accordance with local community needs and should
emphasize complementary policy, environmental, programmatic, and infrastructure activities that
integrate and build on each other to optimize health improvements.  Strategies that influence policy,
change organizational practices, and foster coalitions are required and must include one of the following
required target strategies: procurement policies, work site wellness, school health, clinical care, and
community design by promoting healthy lifestyles.  Gila County will target strategies to address work
site wellness.

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of



Regular Agenda Item      4- F             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Sarah White, Executive Administrative
Assistant, Health & Emergency
Services Division
Administration



The Director of the Division of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the Gila County Population Health Policy Initiative Intergovernmental Agreement
between the Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila County Division of Health and Emergency
Services in the amount of $43,748.00.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County Population Health Policy Initiative
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS12-021335) between the Arizona Department of
Health Services and Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services in the amount of $43,748
for the period April 1, 2012, through March 31, 2015.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Population Health Policy Initiative IGA
Legal explanation









































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1293     Regular Agenda Item      4- G             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: David Caddell, GEST
Program Manager

Submitted By: David Caddell, GEST Program Manager,
Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Department

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2012 to 2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: David Caddell

Information
Request/Subject
ADOT Grant JPA 12-056 Replacement of Exhibit A, which includes match money for vehicles under
Section 5310 and 5316 Programs.

Background Information
The Multimodal Planning Division (MPD) of Arizona Department of Transportation administers this
federal program for the State of Arizona.  These funds are available primarily in the form of new vehicles
and related equipment, which meet the transportation needs of elderly persons (sixty years and over)
and persons with disabilities of any age.  Typical eligible service providers are private non-profit
corporations, public agencies and tribal governments.  Also available are Mobility Management grants,
which allow agencies to use funds for providing innovative and coordinated transportation services to
the elderly and disabled.

Replacement of Exhibit A (page 22) in the Grant Agreement between Arizona Department of
Transportation and Gila County, d/b/a/ Gila Employment and Special Training includes vehicles in
both the Section 5310 and 5316 Programs. The match money total amount for the 5310 and 5316
Programs is $15,766.98, we have already processed a match amount of $5,600.00 for the 5316, which
will be subtracted from the total. That leaves a balance of $10,166.98. The Match Amount will come out
of the GEST Budget, no General Funds will be used.

Evaluation
This grant will allow the Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST) Program to continue providing
transportation needs to the individuals that GEST is authorized to provide services for through our
current contract with Arizona Department of Economic Security, Division of Development Disabilities
and Rehabilitation Services Administrations.  This allows GEST to utilize available funding sources to
minimize the cost in purchasing needed vehicles to provide the needed transportation in Gila County. 
GEST is requesting no funds from the Gila County General Funds.  All matching funds will be drawn
from the GEST Program reserve funds.

The match money total amount for the 5310 and 5316 Programs is $15,766.98, we have already
processed a match amount of $5,600.00 for the 5316, which will be subtracted from the total. That
leaves a balance of $10,166.98. The Match Amount will come out of the GEST Budget, no General
Funds will be used.

Conclusion
This grant will allow the GEST Program to continue and possibly expand services to meet the



This grant will allow the GEST Program to continue and possibly expand services to meet the
transportation needs of individuals within Gila County.

The match money total amount for the 5310 and 5316 Programs is $15,766.98, we have already
processed a match amount of $5,600.00 for the 5316, which will be subtracted from the total. That
leaves a balance of $10,166.98. The Match Amount will come out of the GEST Budget, no General
Funds will be used.

The original total would have been $17,058.58, due to the economy the prices of the vehicles changed
which saved GEST $1,291.60.

Recommendation
The GEST Program Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors' approve the revised
Attachment A and the match money total amount for the 5310 and 5316 Programs balance of
$10,166.98. The Match Amount will come out of the GEST Budget, no General Funds will be used.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the revised Attachment A to Agreement No. JPA 12-056
between Arizona Department of Transportation and Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special
Training and authorize the match money total amount for the 5310 Programs of $10,166.98, for the
purchase of one lift-equipped cutaway van and one minivan without lift to allow the GEST Program to
continue providing the authorized transportation needs to the individuals in Gila County.  (Dave
Caddell)

Attachments
Executed JPA 12-056 FFY
Email from Sally Palmer, ADOT
Remaining Funds Due
PM Signed Mod Exhibit A
Legal Explanation







































































































Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


GRANT PROGRAM  Award Description  Location  Project No  Federal Capital 
Cost 

 Local Capital 
Match

5310 = 90/10
5316/5317 = 80/20 

Federal Operating 
Cost 

 Local Operating 
Match

5310 = 90/10
5316/5317 = 50/50 

 Federal Mobility 
Management Cost 

 Local Mobility 
Management 

Match
5310 = 90/10

5316/5317 = 80/20 

 Award Total (Fed + 
Local Match) 

AZ-37-X019 5316 Operating Gila G1937QYT -$                 -$                 20,000.00$      20,000.00$      -$                 -$                 40,000.00$          

AZ-65-X005 5310 Cutaway with Lift Gila Cty 53,534.00$      5,948.00$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 59,482.00$          

AZ-65-X005 5310 Minivan No Ramp - 2012 Dodge 
Caravan SXT Gila Cty 19,907.00$      2,212.00$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 22,119.00$          

AZ-37-X007 5316
4X4 Quad Crew Cab - 2012 

Chevy 2500 Silverado Crew Cab 
WT 4x4 LWB

Gila G0701R1T 19,793.60$      4,948.40$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 24,742.00$          

 $   20,000.00 

 $   13,108.40 
 $     2,658.58 
 $   15,766.98 
 $                -   

 $   15,766.98 

Vendor No

Please Sign and Return to: 
     Arizona Department of Transportation

     Mail Drop 310B - Multimodal Planning Division
      Sally J. Palmer, Contracts Administrator

      206 S. 17th Avenue
      Phoenix, AZ 85007

Program Manager Verification: Date Signed:

By signing below, I acknowledge receipt, that I am a legally-authorized signatory for the RECIPIENT, and that I am authorized to sign acknowledging this modification and 
accepting and authorizing all associated terms and conditions.

RECIPIENT Acceptance Signature: Date Signed:

Gila County GEST 866000444 11
Exhibit A Modified: 05/24/2012 AGREEMENT NO: JPA 12-056

BALANCE DUE (REFUND DUE)
     (Please note: Refunds will be issued subsequent to receiving this signed Exhibit A modification verifying acceptance and agreement with the amount indicated.)

Non Rolling Stock Match Must Be Reduced from Each Reimbursement Invoice Submitted.
Total Non Rolling Stock Match:

Total Local Match for Rolling Stock
Rolling Stock Administration Fee

Total Funds Due With Signed Agreement
PAYMENTS RECEIVED (TRX none )



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1268     Regular Agenda Item      4- H             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 12-13 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

6-26-12 to 6-25-13 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Joe Heatherly

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Bid No. 033012-1 for MC-800 Liquid Asphalt

Background Information
On April 25, 2012, and May 2, 2012, the County advertised for suppliers to bid on the
MC-800 liquid asphalt road repair and maintenance product.

Evaluation
The County currently uses MC-800TR chip seal oil as one of its road maintenance products. It
has been found that the tire rubber products do not work well on roads in the hotter climates,
but do well in colder areas.  The MC-800 will be used in the warmer climates of the
County and will also cost less than the MC-800TR. 

Bids were received and opened in a public setting on May 10, 2012, for the MC-800 product to
be used on roads in the hotter climates of the County.  

Conclusion
The award of a contract for MC-800 liquid asphalt will allow a supplier to provide the County
with the product for its road repair and maintenance in the warmer climates of Gila County.  

The contract term will run from June 26, 2012, to June 25, 2013, with the option to extend
for 2 more 1-year terms if in the best interest of the County.

Recommendation
After review of the submitted proposal, the Public Works Director recommends that the Board
of Supervisors award a contract for Invitation for Bids No. 033012-1 for the purchase of
MC-800 liquid asphalt to Cactus Transport, Inc. for a term of 12 months.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids No.
033012-1 for MC-800 liquid asphalt; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder;
and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  (Joseph Heatherly)
(Joseph Heatherly)



Attachments
IFB 033012-1 Bid Tabulation
Contract 033012-1 MC-800 Liquid Asphalt
Legal Approval



      BID  

TITLE:

      BID              DUE  

      NO: DATE: TIME: 3:00 PM
 

 

 

 

Hawker & Evans Asphalt

Ace Asphalt

No response

No response

Ergon Asphalt

International Surface Systems

No response

No response

Paramount Petroleum  

No response

No response

Wright Asphalt  

BID TABULATION FORM

GILA COUNTY

No response

Sunland Asphalt  

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

Cactus Transport

MC-800 Liquid Asphalt

COMMENTS

 

033012-1 May 10, 2012

$910.00 per ton

BIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT





























































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement.

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office
“Approval as to Form” Review

The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private venders, contractors, and individuals.  

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.   

The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance.

Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.  



   

ARF-1287     Regular Agenda Item      4- I             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Joseph
Heatherly,
Finance Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Finance Department

Fiscal Year: FY 12-13 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

6-26-12 to 6-25-13 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Joseph Heatherly

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Bid No. 040112-1 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants

Background Information
The current contract for a supplier to deliver bulk fuel and lubricants to Gila County
has expired and the County is seeking a supplier for the fiscal year of 2012-2013.  

Invitation for Bid's No. 040112-1 for Bulk Fuel and Lubricants was advertised in the
newspaper on May 2nd and May 9th, 2012.  The proposals were received and opened
in a public setting on May 18, 2012.

Evaluation
Bids were received from 2 suppliers. Bid responses were evaluated in accordance with
A.R.S. § 41-2533, Competitive Sealed Bidding; awards shall be made to the lowest
responsible and responsive bidder whose bid conforms in all material respects to the
requirements and criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bid.

Conclusion
After extensive review and County Attorney's Office counsel it was determined
that one of the suppliers did not meet all required material respects in accordance
with the Invitation for Bids in that they did not supply the Oil Price Information
Service (O.P.I.S.) in their bid response as requested per the bid "Price Sheet" and
"Price Proposal" requirements, Item 10, Special Terms and Conditions.

Recommendation
The Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the award of Invitation
for Bids No. 040112-1 for Bulk Fuel and Lubricants for Gila County to Western State
Petroleum, Inc. for a term of 12 months from June 26, 2012, to June 25, 2013.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids No.
040112-1 for the purchase and delivery of bulk fuel and lubricants; award to the most
responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairmans' signature
on the award contract for the winning bidder.  
(Joseph Heatherly)

Attachments
IFB 040112-1 Bid Tabulation Form
IFB 040112-1 Bid Tabulation Breakdown Spreadsheet 
Contract 040112-1 Bulk Fuel & Lubricants
Addendums 1&2 for IFB 041012-1 Bulk Fuel & Lubricants
Legal Approval













DESCRIPTION

Estimated 

Gas Usage 

FY 12-13

Estimated 

Diesel 

Usage              

FY 12-13

O.P.I.S. 

Rack 

Price

Regular 

Unleaded 

Gas Unit 

Price

Diesel Unit 

Price

Delivery 

Charge to 

Location

Gas Total 

Price for 

Fuel & 

Delivery

Estimated Gas 

Cost for                   

FY 12-13

Diesel Total 

Price for 

Fuel & 

Delivery

Estimated Diesel 

Cost for                               

FY 12-13

O.P.I.S. 

Rack 

Price

Regular 

Unleaded 

Gas Unit 

Price

Diesel Unit 

Price

Delivery 

Charge to 

Location

Gas Total 

Price for 

Fuel & 

Delivery

Estimated Gas 

Cost for                   

FY 12-13

Diesel Total 

Price for 

Fuel & 

Delivery

Estimated Diesel 

Cost for                               

FY 12-13

BULK FUEL   

Globe Shop 107,400 35,000 0.0750 3.3020 3.0030 0.0500 3.4270 368,059.80 3.1280 109,480.00 3.1851 3.0692 0.0500 3.2351 347,449.74 3.1192 109,172.00

 Courthouse 107,400 0 0.0750 3.3020 3.0030 0.0500 3.4270 368,059.80 3.1280 0.00 3.1851 3.0692 0.0500 3.2351 347,449.74 3.1192 0.00

Tonto Basin Maint. Yard 18,500 13,000 0.0750 3.3020 3.0030 0.1200 3.4970 64,694.50 3.1980 41,574.00 3.1851 3.0692 0.1000 3.2851 60,774.35 3.1692 41,199.60

Payson Maintenance Yard 65,000 43,000 0.0750 3.3020 3.0030 0.0520 3.4290 222,885.00 3.1300 134,590.00 3.1851 3.0692 0.1000 3.2851 213,531.50 3.1692 136,275.60

Young Maintenance Yard 5,000 8,800 0.0750 3.3020 3.0030 0.1760 3.5530 17,765.00 3.2540 28,635.20 3.1851 3.0692 0.2000 3.3851 16,925.50 3.2692 28,768.96

AVERAGES 303,300 99,800 0.0750 3.3020 3.0030 0.0896 3.4666 1,041,464.10 3.1676 314,279.20 3.1851 3.0692 0.1000 3.2851 986,130.83 3.1692 315,416.16

Difference Per Year 54,196.31   

  

 

DESCRIPTION Quantity Price Price

LUBRICANTS  

Metered Products   

Crank Lubricants (15/40) 400 9.94 9.92

HT4-30 1,375 11.48 13.21

HT4-50 300 13.25 13.21

Gear Lube 80W-90W 400 2.71 2.49

ATF (Dexron 3) 110 8.5 9.24

ATR/HYD 560 110 8.08 9.59

Antifreeze LLC (Pink) 534 14.47 11.81Antifreeze Standaqrd 

(Green) 55 9.37 7.33

Non-Metered Products

Moly 7% 800 4.5 3.12

Solvent 55 6.35 9.55

No delivery minimum

403.15515.35

FY 12-13 Totals Based on Estimated 

Quantities

BULK FUEL AND LUBRICANTS

BID NO 041012-1

Additional charge of $400.00 for deliveres under 4,500 gallonsAdditional charge of $400.00 for deliveres under 4,500 gallons

Minimum delivery required is 2,500 gallons

No minimum delivery fee

1,301,546.99 

525.25349.25

2,496.003,600.00

  

6,306.547,726.98

1,054.90888.80

1,016.40935.00

996.001,084.00

3,963.003,975.00

18,163.7515,785.00

Western State Petroleum, Inc. M.V. Enterprises

3,968.003,976.00

TotalTotal

M.V. EnterprisesWestern States Petroleum

1,355,743.30 









































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement.

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office
“Approval as to Form” Review

The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private venders, contractors, and individuals.  

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.   

The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance.

Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.  



   

ARF-1249     Consent Agenda Item      5- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing
Services Manager

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to a Funding Agreement (Contract No. 174-10) with Arizona Department of Housing

Background Information
Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) receives approximately $13 million in Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) entitlement funds annually from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) to fund eligible programs and projects in communities located in the 13 rural
counties in the state.

Funding is accessed through a process that is described in the Five-Year Consolidated Plan and annual
updates to the Plan, a document required by HUD to describe such processes.  The rural Councils of
Government (COG's) partner with ADOH to assist communities with project administration and
technical assistance.

CDBG funds may be utilized to address a wide variety of community needs, some of which include
various affordable housing projects, including home reconstruction, rehabilitation and repair programs.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 174-10 will extend the end date of the contract from May 1, 2012, to
July 1, 2012.

Original Contract No. 174-10 was signed by Supervisor Michael A. Pastor on June 8, 2010.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 174-10 will extend the end date of the contract from May 1, 2012, to
July 1, 2012.  This will allow housing rehabilitation services to be provided to eligable residents of Gila
County for an additional period of time.

Recommendation
The Community Action/Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
this amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Funding Agreement (Contract No. 174-10) between the Arizona
Department of Housing and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Services,
extending the contract end date from May 1, 2012, to July 1, 2012.

Attachments
Amendment to Funding Agreement Contract #174-10
Original Contract No. 174-10 ADOH
Legal Explanation
6-18-12 ADOH Letter Re Contract # 174-10























































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  





   

ARF-1279     Consent Agenda Item      5- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan,
CAP/Housing Services
Manager

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2012 - 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111073001) with
the Arizona Department of Economic Security

Background Information
The Community Action Network is made up of public and private agencies that work to alleviate poverty
and empower low-income families in communities throughout Arizona.  Most of the agencies are
Community Action Agencies (CAAs), created through the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964.  Arizona's
CAAs provide services to more than 150,000 people annually.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 4 to this Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111073001) increases the
cumulative reimbursement ceiling for the contract period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2015, to
$1,735,780.13.  This is an increase of $470,006 for fiscal year 2012-2013.

Funding from this contract is to be used to provide eligible residents of Gila County, Case Management
Services and Community Services, that are intended to assist the household in resolving crisis
situations and move closer to self-sufficiency.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111073001, the cumulative
reimbursement ceiling amount will go from $1,265,774.13 to $1,735,780.13 for the period July 1, 2010,
through June 30, 2015.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111073001.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111073001) between
the Arizona Department of Economic Security and the Gila County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program, whereby the Arizona Department of Economic Security will provide
cumulative reimbursement ceiling funding in the amount of $1,735,780.13 to be used to provide case
management and community services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period from July
1, 2010, through June 30, 2015.

Attachments



Attachments
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111073001 DES
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. DE111073001 DES
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. DE111073001 DES
Amendment No. 1 to Contract DE111073-001
Original Contract DE111073001 DES
Legal Explanation



























































































































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1276     Consent Agenda Item      5- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Jendean Sartain
Deputy Director of Health Services
Health & Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Fiscal Year: 2012-2013 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

April 1, 2012 to December 30, 2012 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Agreement (Contract No. C353) with the National Network of Public Health Institutes (NNPHI).

Background Information
On January 24, 2012, the Board of Supervisors granted permission to the Division of Health and Emergency
Services to electronically submit a grant application to the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation in conjunction with
the National Network of Public Health Institutes (NNPHI) for funds in the amount of $5,000 to implement a quality
improvement project for communicable disease investigations and reporting.  

On May 1, 2012, the Board of Supervisors, on behalf of the Division of Health and Emergency Services,
accepted the grant award in the amount of $5,000.  At the time notification was provided regarding the granting of
the monetary award, it was noted that a written contract between Gila County and National Network of Public
Health Institutes would be forthcoming within the following month.

Evaluation
The Division of Health and Emergency Services will complete a quality improvement project to improve our
investigation and reporting processes. This project will be completed between April 2012, and November 2012, and
will be funded by the grant award in the amount of $5,000. This program also provided for fifteen hours of
individually tailored QI (quality improvement) coaching from an experienced national public health specialist.

Conclusion
By authorizing the Chairman to sign the contract to accept a grant award from the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation through the National Network of Public Health Institutes (NNPHI), the Division of Health and Emergency
Services will have an opportunity to apply national standards and methods to make program changes and
improvements with the guidance of QI coaching from a national public health specialist.

Recommendation
The Division of Health and Emergency Services Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize the
Chairman to sign the Agreement (Contract No. C353) with the National Network of Public Health Institutes
(NNPHI), in order to accept a grant award in the amount of $5,000 from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation for
the completion of a quality improvement project.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on an Agreement (Contract No. C353) between Gila County and the
National Network of Public Health Institutes for the acceptance of a $5,000 grant from the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation, which will be utilized by the Division of Health and Emergency Services to complete a quality
improvement project for the period April 1, 2012, through December 31, 2012.

Attachments
Agreement with National Network of Public Health Institutes
Legal Explanation













GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement.

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office
“Approval as to Form” Review

The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private venders, contractors, and individuals.  

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.   

The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance.

Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.  



   

ARF-1291     Consent Agenda Item      5- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health Services
Program Manager

Submitted By: Lorraine Dalrymple
Health Services Program Manager
Health & Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Fiscal Year: 2012 - 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Grantee Agreement No. GRA-STATE-13-0502-01 with the Arizona Early Childhood Development Board
(First Things First) and the Gila County Health Department.

Background Information
The Gila County Division of Health & Emergency Services has been providing child care health consultation services
for the past three years.  This Grantee Agreement replaces the original Grantee Agreement which was renewable for
two years.  This Grantee Agreement is between the Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board "First
Things First" and the Gila County Division of Health & Emergency Services for the RNs to continue to provide
consultation services to regulated child care providers.

The previous Grantee Agreement No. GRAN-STATE-10-0070-02-Y2 is replaced by Grantee Agreement
No. GRA-STATE-13-0502-01.

Evaluation
This program assists child care providers in Gila County to meet all of the requirements enforced by the state.  It
also provides the child care providers with guidance regarding health and safety issues.

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would be unable to provide child care health consultant services to child care
centers in Gila County.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services Director to approve Grantee
Agreement No. GRA-STATE-13-0502-01 between the Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board "First
Things First" and Gila County in the amount of $16,920 for the period of July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013, for
the continued provision of child care health consultant services to child care centers in Gila County. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Grantee Agreement No. GRA-STATE-13-0502-01 between the Arizona Early Childhood Development and
Health Board (First Things First) and the Gila County Health Department in the amount of $16,920 for the
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

Attachments
First Things First Grant Renewal GRA-STATE - 13-0502-01
Original Contract
Legal Explanation



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 1 of 49 

GRANTEE AGREEMENT 
 

GRA-STATE-13-0502-01 
 

Between the 
Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board  

(First Things First) 
And  

Gila County Health Department 
 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. Title 8, Chapter 13, Article 3 charges the Arizona Early Childhood Development and 
Health Board (also known as First Things First),  (hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR) with the 
responsibility of administering funds.  
 
THEREFORE, it is agreed that the GRANTOR shall provide funding Gila County Health Department 
(hereinafter referred to as the GRANTEE) for services under the terms of this Grant Agreement. 
 
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 
 

The purpose of this Agreement is to specify the responsibilities and procedures for the GRANTEE 
role in administering Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board grant funds. 

 
• TERM OF AGREEMENT, TERMINATION AND AMENDMENTS 

 
This Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2012 and shall terminate on June 30, 2013.  
This agreement is renewable for two (2) additional twelve (12) month extensions, based on 
satisfactory performance and continued available funding.    
 

III. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 
 

The GRANTEE shall provide the following services for the GRANTOR as approved and 
summarized below:   
 
A. Provide health consultation services by Child Care Health Consultants to child care providers 

(centers and homes) Refer to Scope of Work, Exhibit A for Child Care Health Consultation.  
B. Comply with the Scope of Work Narrative Responses, Implementation Plan and Submit the 

Grant Management Forms provided by First Things First (Attachments A – G). 
NOTE:  Narrative Responses, Implementation Plan, Line Item Budget, and Line Item Budget 
Narrative are required to be submitted prior to this agreement becomes final and is signed 
by First Things First.  Submission is required by May 4, 2012. 

C. Agencies and Departments implementing FTF programming are required to coordinate and 
collaborate with all First Things First grant recipients. Collaboration is critical to developing a 
seamless service delivery system for children and families. 
 

 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 2 of 49 

IV. MANNER OF FINANCING 
 
The GRANTOR shall: 
 
A. This is a 12 month contract for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 with an option 

for renewal for two (2), additional twelve (12) month periods.  Total funds available 
are $16,920 for the first funding period.  Renewal will be contingent upon 
satisfactory contract performance, evaluation and availability of funds.   
 

B.  Payment made by the GRANTOR to the GRANTEE shall be on a reimbursement basis only 
and is conditioned upon receipt of applicable, accurate and complete reimbursement 
documents to be submitted by the GRANTEE via the First Things First on-line grants 
management system.  Final payment will be contingent upon receipt of all fiscal and 
programmatic reports required of the GRANTEE under this Agreement. 
 

C. Prior to processing payment, a review of submitted quarterly program narratives and data 
submission reports will be conducted as well as a review of any other required submission 
of programmatic information by the grantor to ensure programmatic requirements have 
been fulfilled.  Timely submission of these reports is also required for payment. 

 
V. FISCAL RESPONSBILITY 

 
It is understood and agreed that the total amount of the funds used under this Agreement shall 
be used for the project(s) and scope of work outlined in this Agreement.  Therefore, should the 
project not be completed, be partially completed, or be completed at a lower cost than the 
original budget called for, the amount reimbursed to the GRANTEE shall be for only the amount 
of dollars actually spent by the GRANTEE.  For any funds received under this Agreement for 
which expenditure is disallowed by an audit exception by the GRANTOR, the State, or Federal 
government, the GRANTEE shall reimburse said funds directly to the GRANTOR immediately. 
 

VI. FINANCIAL AUDIT 
 
GRANTEE agrees to terms specified in A.R.S. §§ 35-214 and 35-215. 
 
In addition, in compliance with the Federal Single Audit Act (31 U.S.C. par., 7501-7507), as 
amended by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104 to 156), GRANTEE must have an 
annual audit conducted in accordance with Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 
#A-133 (“Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations”) if GRANTEE 
expends more than $500,000 from federal awards/dollars, a copy of the GRANTEE’s audit report 
for the previous fiscal year must be submitted to the GRANTOR for review within thirty (30) days 
of signing this Agreement.  Otherwise the annual audit review/statement must be provided to 
the GRANTOR within thirty (30) days 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 3 of 49 

. 
 

VII. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
The GRANTEE agrees to comply with the Federal Debarment and Suspension regulations as 
outlined in the “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion – Lower Tier Covered Transactions”.  
 

VIII. FUNDS MANAGEMENT 
 
The GRANTEE must maintain funds received under this Agreement in separate ledger accounts 
and cannot mix these funds with other sources.  GRANTEE must manage funds according to 
applicable regulations for administrative requirements, costs principles and audits. 
 
The GRANTEE must maintain adequate business systems to comply with State of Arizona 
requirements.  The business systems that must be maintained are: 

• Financial Management 
• Procurement 
• Personnel 
• Property 
• Travel 

 
A system is adequate if it is 1) written; 2) consistently followed – it applies in all similar 
circumstances; and 3) consistently applied – it applies to all sources of funds.  Rates for mileage, 
lodging and meals are limited to the rates established by the State of Arizona Travel Policy 
(http://gao.az.gov/travel/default.asp). 
 

IX. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Regular reports by the GRANTEE shall include: 

 
Programmatic, Data Submission, and Financial Reports 

 
1. The GRANTEE shall provide quarterly program narrative & evaluation data reports to the 

GRANTOR within twenty (20) working days of the last day of the quarter in which 
services are provided.  Reporting is submitted via the First Things First on-line grants 
management system known as Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS) and 
shall contain such information as deemed necessary by the GRANTOR.   
 
a. Quarterly Programmatic Narrative & Data Submission Reports are due: 

 
i. Period:  July 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 

Due:  October 20, 2012 
ii. Period:  October 1, 2012 – December 31, 2012 

Due:  January 20, 2013 
iii. January 1, 2013 – March 31, 2013 

Due:  April 20, 2013 

http://gao.az.gov/travel/default.asp�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 4 of 49 

iv. April 1, 2013 – June 30, 2013 
Due:  July 20, 2013 

v. The final programmatic report as submitted shall be marked FINAL 
 
b. Financial Reimbursement  Reports 

 
i. The GRANTEE shall provide, as frequently as monthly but not less than 

quarterly, requests for reimbursement.  Reimbursement requests shall be 
submitted using the First Things First online grants management system known 
as Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS).   This submission includes a 
basic line item ledger the detail the type of expense relating to the approved 
line item budget and validates approved staffing assigned to the project, travel 
is within the approved state rate limitation, and other line item budget 
expenditure details.     

 
ii. The GRANTEE shall submit a final reimbursement request for expenses 

obligated prior to the end of the termination of this Agreement no more than 
forty-five (45) days after the end of the Agreement.  Requests for 
reimbursement received later than the forty-five (45) days after the Agreement 
termination will not be paid.  The final reimbursement request as submitted 
shall be marked FINAL. 

 
All reports shall be submitted to the contact person designated in Paragraph XLII, NOTICES, of 
this Agreement. 

 
 

X. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION 
 
GRANTEE may not assign any rights hereunder without the express, prior written consent of 
both parties. 
 

XI. AMENDMENTS 
 
Any change in this Agreement including but not limited to the Description of Services and 
budget described herein, whether by modification or supplementation, must be accomplished 
by a formal written Agreement amendment signed and approved by and between the duly 
authorized representative of the GRANTEE and the GRANTOR. 
 
Any such amendment shall:  1) specify an effective date; 2) specify any increases or decreases in 
the amount of the GRANTEE’s compensation if applicable; 3) be titled as an “Amendment”; and 
4) be signed by the parties identified in the preceding sentence.  The GRANTEE expressly and 
explicitly understands and agrees that no other method of communication, including any other 
document, correspondence, act, or oral communication by or from any person, shall be used or 
construed as an amendment or modification or supplementation to this Agreement. 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 5 of 49 

 
XII. SUBCONTRACTORS 

 
The GRANTEE may enter into written subcontract(s) for performance of certain of its functions 
under the contract in accordance with terms established in the State of Arizona procurement 
policy. 
 
The GRANTEE agrees and understand that no subcontract that the GRANTEE enters into with 
respect to performance under this Agreement shall in any way relieve the GRANTEE of any 
responsibilities for performance if its duties.  The GRANTEE shall give the GRANTOR immediate 
notice in writing by certified mail of any action or suit filed and prompt notice of any claim made 
against the GRANTEE by any subcontractor or vendor which in the opinion of the GRANTEE may 
result in litigation related in any way to the Agreement with the GRANTOR. 
 

XIII. OFFSHORE PERFORMANCE OF WORK PROHIBITED 
 
Due to security and identity protection concerns, all services under this Agreement shall be 
performed within the borders of the United States.  All storage and processing of information 
shall be performed within the borders of the United States.  This provision applies to work 
performed by subcontractors at all tiers. 
 

XIV. PROHIBITION ON GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS 
Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.06, the GRANTEE certifies that it does not have business operations in 
either Sudan or Iran. 
 

XV. AGREEMENT RENEWAL 
 
This Agreement shall not bind nor purport to bind the GRANTOR for any contractual 
commitment in excess of the original Agreement period. 
 

XVI. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE 
 

If the GRANTOR in good faith has reason to believe that the GRANTEE does not intend to, or is 
unable to perform or continue performing under this Agreement, the GRANTOR may demand in 
writing that the GRANTEE give a written assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the GRANTEE 
to provide written assurance within the number of days specified in the demand may, at the 
GRANTOR’s option, be the basis for terminating this Agreement under the terms of this 
Agreement or other rights and remedies available by law.   
 

 
XVII. CANCELLATION FOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
The GRANTOR or the GRANTEE may, by written notice cancel this Agreement without penalty or 
further obligation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511 if any person significantly involved in initiating, 
negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Agreement on behalf of the State or its 
subdivisions (unit of local government) is an employee or agent of any other party in any 
capacity or a consultant to any other party to the Agreement with respect to the subject matter 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 6 of 49 

of the Agreement.  Such cancellation shall be effective immediately upon receipt of written 
notice from the GRANTOR or the GRANTEE, unless the notice specifies a later time. 
 

XVIII. THIRD PARTY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS 
 
GRANTEE assigns to the State of Arizona, GRANTOR any claim for overcharges resulting from 
antitrust violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services supplied by 
third parties to GRANTEE toward fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 

XIX. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
 
Every payment obligation of the GRANTOR under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 
availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligations.  If the funds 
are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, the GRANTOR may 
terminate this Agreement at the end of the period for which funds are available.  No liability 
shall accrue to the GRANTOR in the event this provision is exercised, and the GRANTOR shall not 
be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any damages as a result of termination 
under this paragraph, including purchases and/or contracts entered into by the GRANTEE in the 
execution of this Agreement. 
 

XX. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
If either party hereto is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act required in this 
Agreement due to acts of God, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, civil disorder, or other causes 
without fault and beyond the control of the party obligated, performance of or payment for 
such act will be excused for the period of the delay. 
 

XXI. ARBITRATION 
 

This agreement is subject to arbitration to the extent required by A.R.S. § 12-1518. 
 

XXII. GOVERNING LAW AND CONTRACT INTERPRETATION 
 

a) This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Arizona.  First Things First follows all State of Arizona and Federal laws, State of Arizona Uniform 
Terms and Conditions and in particular abides by the Arizona Uniform Terms and Conditions and 
Uniform Instructions and are incorporated into this Agreement through reference.   These laws 
include Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all other federal immigration laws 
and regulations related to immigration status of its employees.  First Things First may request 
verification for any Grantee, Contractor, or Subcontractor performing work under the 
agreement.  Anyone entering into an Agreement with First Things First is required to follow any 
and all State laws around immigration and English only.  Should First Things First suspect that a 
grantee is not in compliance with state or federal laws and First Things First may pursue any and 
all remedies allowed by law, including but not limited to:  suspension of work, termination, and 
suspension and/or debarment of the grantee.  All costs necessary to verify compliance are the 
responsibility of the grantee.  
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 7 of 49 

b) This Agreement is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of their 
agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall 
supplement or explain any terms in this document. 

 
c) Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Agreement 

shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or 
acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the performance and 
fails to object. 

 
XXIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement and its Attachments/Exhibits constitute the entire Agreement between the 
parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and may not be changed or added to 
except by a writing signed by all parties hereto in conformity with Section X Reporting 
Requirements of this Agreement; provided, however, that the GRANTOR shall have the right to 
immediately amend this Agreement so that it complies with any new legislation, laws, 
ordinances, or rules affecting this Agreement.   All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understandings of the parties, oral, written, pertaining to the subject 
matter hereof, are herby superseded or merged herein. 
 

XXIV. RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING 
 

The GRANTEE shall not use funds made available to it under this Agreement to pay for, 
influence, or seek to influence any officer or employee of a State, Local or Federal government.   

 
XXV. LICENSING 

 
The GRANTEE, unless otherwise exempted by law, shall obtain and maintain all licenses, permits 
and authority necessary to perform those acts it is obligated to perform under this Agreement. 
 

XXVI. NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 
The GRANTEE shall comply with all state and federal equal opportunity and non-discrimination 
requirements and conditions of employment, including the American with Disability Act, in 
accordance with A.R.S. Title 41, Chapter 9, Article 4 and Executive Order 2009-09, which 
mandates that all persons, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability 
or political affiliation, shall have equal access to employment opportunities and all applicable 
provisions and regulations relating to Executive Order No. 13279 – Equal Protection of the Laws 
for Faith-based and Community Organizations.   

 
XXVII. SECTARIAN REQUESTS 

 
Funds disbursed pursuant to this Agreement may not be expended for any sectarian purpose or 
activity, including sectarian worship or instruction in violation of the United States or Arizona 
Constitutions. 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 8 of 49 

 
XXVIII. SEVERABILITY 

 
The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid 
shall not affect any other term or condition of the Agreement. 

 
XXIX. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION OF AGREEMENT 

 
The GRANTEE shall not advertise or publish information for commercial benefit concerning this 
Agreement without the written approval of the GRANTOR. 

 
XXX. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION, PRINTED AND PUBLISHED MATERIAL 

 
First Things First reserves the right to review and comment on any publication, forms or 
materials funded or partially funded through this Agreement.  All publications funded or 
partially funded through this Agreement shall recognize First Things First, and First Things First 
shall have full and complete rights to reproduce, duplicate, disclose, perform, and otherwise use 
all materials prepared under this Agreement.   

 
First Things First shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of said copies to object to such 
proposed public dissemination; in which event U of A shall refrain from making such publication 
or presentation for a maximum of ninety (90) days from the date of receipt of such objection in 
order for the parties to take appropriate measures to protect such information.  Should First 
Things First deem any publication of such material potentially harmful to the mission of First 
Things First, First Things First and U of A agree to resolve these objections in a timely manner 
prior to publication.   
 
Property of the State  
When both parties to the Agreement are agencies of the State, the Property shall be considered 
to be jointly owned.  Universities shall have the right to publish; however, First Things First 
requires notification, review, and comment on any publications. 
 
Ownership of Intellectual Property  
When both parties to the agreement are state agencies, the intellectual property shall be 
considered to be jointly-owned, and the agencies shall agree which party shall be responsible 
for the management and any potential commercialization of the intellectual property. 

 
XXXI. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
Indemnification Language for Public Agencies ONLY. Each party (as 'indemnitor') agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other party (as 'indemnitee'') from and against any 
and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as 'claims') arising out of bodily injury of any person 
(including death) or property damage but only to the extent that such claims which result in 
vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 
misconduct, or other fault of the indemnitor, its’ officers, officials, agents, employees, or 
volunteers." 
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 9 of 49 

XXXII. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS   
 
Grantee and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been 
discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract, are satisfied, insurance against 
claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with 
the performance of the work hereunder by the Grantee, his agents, representatives, employees 
or subcontractors. 
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.  First Things First in no way warrants 
that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the Grantee from liabilities 
that might arise out of the performance of the work under this contract by the Grantee, its 
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Grantee is free to purchase 
additional insurance. 
 
All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to (First Things First, Grants and 
Contracts Procurement Specialist, 4000 N. Central, Suite 800, Phoenix, AZ  85012).  The State of 
Arizona project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the certificate of 
insurance.  The State of Arizona reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
insurance policies required by this Contract at any time and shall be submitted within 15 days of 
the Agreement becoming final. 

 
EXCEPTIONS:  In the event the Grantee or sub-contractor(s) is/are a public entity, then the 
Insurance Requirements shall not apply.  Such public entity shall provide a Certificate of Self-
Insurance.  If the Grantee or sub-contractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, 
commission, or university, none of the above shall apply. 
 

XXXIII. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS 
 
The GRANTEE shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable to the 
GRANTOR for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or obtained 
from the State of Arizona or from a subcontractor under this Agreement shall be used by or 
disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as required, to efficiently perform 
duties under the Agreement.  GRANTEE also agrees that any information pertaining to individual 
persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers of the GRANTEE as needed for 
performance of duties under this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in writing.   
 

XXXIV. CONFIDENTIALITY OF GRANTEE ‘S INFORMATION 
 
GRANTEE acknowledges that confidentiality provided in A.R.S. § §41-1505.06 (D) and 41-
1505.07(J) may be waived with the GRANTEE’s consent, and GRANTEE consents to a total and 
complete waiver of confidentiality.  In waiving confidentiality, GRANTEE understand and 
consents to disclosure of any information submitted to the GRANTOR that concerns the identify, 
background, financial status, marketing plans, or trade secrets or any other proprietary 
information related to the GRANTEE or any person or organization involved in the project(s), 
including the application and supporting materials, unless such information or materials are 
clearly marked as “confidential”. 
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 10 of 49 

XXXV. TERMINATION 
 

a) The GRANTOR reserves the right to terminate the Agreement in whole or in part due to the 
failure of the GRANTEE to comply with any term or condition of the Agreement, to acquire 
and maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits or to make 
satisfactory progress in performing the Agreement.  The GRANTOR staff shall provide 
written notice of the termination to the GRANTEE. 

 
b) The GRANTOR may, upon termination of this Agreement, procure, on terms and in the 

manner that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under this 
Agreement.  The GRANTEE shall be liable to the GRANTOR for any excess costs incurred by 
the GRANTOR in procuring materials or services in substitution for those due from the 
GRANTEE. 
 

XXXVI. CONTINUATION OF PERFORMANCE THROUGH TERMINATION 
 

The GRANTEE shall continue to perform, in accordance with the requirements of the 
Agreement, up to the date of termination, as directed in the termination notice. 

 
XXXVII.  PARAGRAPH HEADINGS 

 
The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not 
define, limit, enlarge, or otherwise affect the scope, construction, or interpretation of this 
Agreement or any of its provisions. 
 

XXXVIII. COUNTERPARTS 
 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, copies, or duplicate originals.  
Each such counterpart, copy, or duplicate original shall be deemed an original, and collectively 
they shall constitute one agreement. 
 

XXXIX. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT 
 
Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the GRANTEE represents and warrants 
that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement. 
 

XL. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 

The GRANTEE shall comply with Executive Order 2005-30, which mandates as follows: 1) The 
GRANTEE shall, and by signing this agreement does, represents that it is in compliance with all 
federal immigration laws and regulations; 2) The GRANTEE shall take affirmative action to 
ensure that all subcontractors of the Contractor execute similar representation; 3) the breach of 
any such warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Contract, subject to monetary 
penalties or other penalties up to and including termination of the Contract; and 4) the State 
retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract to 
ensure that the employer is in compliance with its representation. 
 

XLI. Legal Arizona Worker 
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 11 of 49 

GRANTEE hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with 
all federal immigration laws applicable to GRANTEE employment of its employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  
GRANTEE shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for GRANTEE 
under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
 

XLII. NOTICES 
 

Any and all notices, requests, demands or communications by either party to this Agreement, 
pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered in 
person or shall be sent by the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the respective parties at the following addresses: 
 
The GRANTEE shall submit notices relative to this Agreement to: 
 First Things First 

Attention:  Finance  
4000 North Central, Suite 800 
Phoenix, Arizona   85012 

 
GRANTOR shall address all notices relative to this Agreement to: 

Gila County Health Department 
Division of Health and Community Services 
5515 S. Apache Ave., Ste. 100 
Globe, AZ 85501 

 
XLIII. IN WITNESS WHEREOF 

The parties hereto agree to execute this Agreement. 
 
FOR AND BEHALF OF      FOR AND BEHALF OF THE   
Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services Arizona Early Childhood Development 
        And Health Board 

    
 ______________             ______         
Tommie  Cline Martin      Rhian Evans Allvin 
Chairman, Gila County Board Of Supervisors    Chief Executive Officer  
 
          ______  
Date       Date   



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 12 of 49 

 

Grant Agreement Attachments & Exhibits 
 
Attachment  A Standard Agency Information Collection Form 

Attachment  B Key Personnel Overview 

Attachment  C Implementation Plan 

Attachment  D Line Item Budget Form  

Attachment  E Budget Narrative Explanation 

Attachment  F Disclosure of Other Funding Sources  

Attachment  G Financial Systems Survey 

 

Exhibit A Child Care Health Consultation Scope of Work 

Exhibit B Child Care Health Consultation Standards of Practice  

Exhibit C First Things First Child Care Health Consultation Model 

Exhibit D Child Care Health Consultation Caseload Guidance 

Exhibit E First Things First - Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health 
Board Data Security Guidelines and Requirements for Collaborators 

 

  



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 13 of 49 

Attachment A 
FIRST THINGS FIRST STANDARD AGENCY INFORMATION COLLECTION FORM 

 
A.  Agency Information: 
 
Program Name (if applicable) Gila County Child Care Health Consultant Program                                                                                  _   
 
Agency      Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services           Contact Person    Lorraine Dalrymple                               _ 
 
Address     5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100                                                Position    Health Services Program Manager                 _                                           
 
Address     _                                                                                               _          Email   ldayrymp@co.gila.az.us_                                        _ 
 
City, State, Zip  Globe, AZ  85501                                                          _          Phone 928-402-8807        ____    Fax 928-425-0794      _ 
 
County  __Gila                                                                                          _          Employer Identification Number: __86-6000444          _ 
 
Agency Classification:     _____State Agency         __X__County Government         _____Local Government         _____Schools           
 
 _____Tribal          _____Faith Based           _____Other 
 
Have you previously conducted business with First Things First using this EIN?  _Yes             ____N 

If NO, please go to the following website, download the State of Arizona Substitute W-9 Form and submit with your 
Application: http://www.gao.az.gov/Vendor/account_setup_home.asp. 

 
In which Congressional (Federal) District is your agency?   Enter District # ____1____ 

http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps) 
 
In which Legislative (State) District is your agency?  Enter District # ____5____ 

http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps) 
 
Approximately how much FEDERAL funding (from a Federal Source) will your organization expend in your current fiscal year?   
$  $5,500,000.___ 
 
What is your organization’s fiscal year-end date?    6-30-2012  
 
Accounting Method:        _____Cash             __X___Accrual 
 
Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?  _____Y             _____N 
 
Please provide contact information of the audit firm conducting your audit:  
 
Agency ____Miller, Allen & Co., P.C.                                                                           _ 

 
Address   ___5333 North 7th Street, Suite 100, Phoenix, AZ  85014                      _  
 
Phone Number __602-264-3888                                                                                  _ 
 

B. Proposed Program Information / Description: 
 
Amount requested: __$16,920.00              ____________________ 
 
Service area of proposed program: __All of Gila County_________ 
 
Target population of proposed program: _Gila County Daycare Centers registered with First Things First__________________ 
 

mailto:ldayrymp@co.gila.az.us_�
http://www.gao.az.gov/Vendor/account_setup_home.asp�
http://www.azredistricting.org/�
http://www.azredistricting.org/�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 14 of 49 

Number of Quality First Programs to be served: _______5___________________ 
Number of Quality First Homes to be served: _______3___________________ 
 
Please provide a brief description of the proposed program in one or two paragraphs and this will be the source for a public 
description describing the nature of the program being implemented that will be used by First Things First.   
 
 
All enrolled Quality First Programs will be serviced by a local Child Care Health Consultant based on their 
identified needs.  The Child Care Health Consultant provides training and resources for a variety of 
health and safety concerns. 
 
Those Quality First Programs with no current issues will have access via telephone to a warm line where 
their questions will be answered.  If a Quality First Program has an immediate need the Child Care 
Health Consultant will work with the center by providing training and resources as needed.  If a Quality 
First Program has many health or safety issues the Child Care Health Consultant can provide a variety of 
intensive , individualized services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C. Contact Information  
 
First Things First Partner and Grants Management System (PGMS) require four designated contacts for 
contact with First Things First related to this grant (the same person may be assigned to more than 
one of the roles, if appropriate).  
 
Main Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the Main contact 
for this grant award and this person can view all information related to this grant (financial, 
programmatic and data collection/evaluation in nature).  This person will also be the primary contact for 
First Things First and should be the person responsible for ensuring the program plan is implemented.  
Primary correspondence from First Things First will be sent to this person. 
 
Main Contact Person ___Lorraine Dalrymple_                                                                                      _ 
 
Position  Health Services Program Manager, Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services                                                                            
 
Address  ____5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_                                                                               _ 
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 15 of 49 

City, State, Zip  ___Globe, AZ  85501__                                                                                                                 _ 
 
Email  __ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us                                       _______________________________ 
 
Phone     928-402-8807                                   _ Fax  __928-425-0794                                                  _          
Program Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the Program 
contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for program or 
data collection purposes only.  
 
Program  Contact Person ___Lorraine Dalrymple_                                                                                _ 
 
Position Health Services Program Manager, Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services                                                                            
 
Address  ____5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_                                                                               _ 
 
City, State, Zip  ___Globe, AZ  85501__                                                                                                                 _ 
 
Email  __ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us                                       _______________________________ 
 
Phone     928-402-8807                                   _ Fax  __928-425-0794                                                   _   
 
Financial Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the financial 
contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for financial 
purposes only. 
 
Financial  Contact Person ___Sarah Chavez_                                                                                _ 
 
Position    Fiscal Account Clerk,   Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services                                                                            
 
Address  ____5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_                                                                               _ 
 
City, State, Zip  ___Globe, AZ  85501__                                                                                                                 _ 
 
Email  __schavez@co.gila.az.us                                       _______________________________ 
 
Phone     928-402-4332                                   _ Fax  __928-425-0794                                                    
 
Contact Person ___Ginnie  Scales_                                                                                _ 
 
Position         CCHC Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services                                                                            
 
Address  ____5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_                                                                               _ 
 
City, State, Zip  ___Globe, AZ  85501__                                                                                                                 _ 
 

mailto:ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us�
mailto:ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us�
mailto:schavez@co.gila.az.us�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 16 of 49 

Email  __gscales@co.gila.az.us                                       _______________________________ 
 
Phone     928-402-4328                                  _ Fax  __928-425-0794                                                    
 
Evaluation Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the 
Evaluation contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for 
data collection purposes only.   
 
Evaluation Contact Person ___Lorraine Dalrymple_                                                                              _ 
 
Position Health Services Program Manager, Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services                                                                            
 
Address  ____5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_                                                                               _ 
 
City, State, Zip  ___Globe, AZ  85501__                                                                                                                 _ 
 
Email  __ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us                                       _______________________________ 
 
Phone     928-402-8807                                   _ Fax  __928-425-0794                                                    
 
In addition, your application may have included information about a collaborating partner/agency.  
Please replicate this information as many times as necessary to document the participation and 
agreement to be involved with the application as a collaborating agency/partner.   
 
Collaborator      
 
Agency Gila County Injury Prevention  Contact Person    Charles Turney  
 
Address  5515 S. Apache Avenue  Position Community Health Worker Sr.  
 
Address   Suite 100  Email  cturney@co.gila.az.us  
 
City, State, Zip  Globe, AZ  85501  Phone  (928) 402-8868 x____    Fax425-0794  
 
County  Gila  
 
 
 
Collaborator      
 
Agency  Health Start  Contact Person  Jessica Alexander  
 
Address  5515 S. Apache Avenue  Position  Community Health Assistant  
 
Address  Suite 100  Email  Jtalexander@co.gila.az.us  
 
City, State, Zip  Globe, AZ 85501  Phone(928) 402-8810 x____    Fax425-0794  
 
County  Gila  
 
 

mailto:gscales@co.gila.az.us�
mailto:ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 17 of 49 

Collaborator      
 
Agency  Contact Person  
 
Address  Position  
 
Address   Email  
 
City, State, Zip  Phone x____    Fax  
 
County  



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 18 of 49 

Attachment B 
KEY PERSONNEL OVERVIEW 

 
*In addition to this overview, please attach a resume (for current personnel) or a job 
description (for positions to be hired) for the key individuals involved in the project. 
 
 
  

STAFF MEMBER BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL 
Name: Lorraine Dalrymple 
Title: Health Services Program 
Manager 
FTE on this project: 2% 

• Registered Nurse 
• Staff RN-Pediatrics 
• RN Pediatric home care 
• Child Care Health Consultant Certification 

 
 

Name: Ginnie Scales 
Title: Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project: 9% 

• Registered Nurse 
• Child Care Health Consultant Certification 

  •  Early Childhood Education Certificate (2002) 
  •  Associate in Child Development 

 
Name: Lucinda Campbell 
Title: Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project: 9% 

• Registered Nurse 
• Child Care Health Consultant Certification 

 
 

Name: Sarah Chavez  
Title: Fiscal Acct. Clerk 
 

•25 years of accounting experience 
•15 years of experience in payroll 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 19 of 49 

Attachment C 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:  July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013 

A c t iv i t ie s  T a s k  P e r s o n  R e s p o n s ib le  D a t e  T a s k  W i l l  B e  
Co m p le t e d / T im e l i n e  

S u p p o r t  D o c u m e n t a t io n  
 

 

Preparations 
 
 
 
 

Cont inu e to purchase equipment 
and suppl ies for  CCHC 
 

 Co l laborat ion 
between Manager 
and CCHC’s  

By  Jun e 30,  2013  Purchase orders and  invoices.  

Purchase in cent ives for  Center  CCHC’s  PRN,  by  end of  
contract  

Purchase orders and  invoices.  

Purchase suppl ies to  promote 
Program 

CCHC’s  Ongo ing  Purchase orders and  invoices  

 
Training 

Addi t ion al  tra in in gs for  CCHC Co l laborat ion  
between Manager 
and CCHC’s  

 

Ongo ing  
Cert i f icates for  attendance and 
in voices for  trave l  expenses  

Provide  review –Meet  with  CCHC 
to d iscu ss any  concerns  
 

Program Man ager  At  Month ly   Nursin g 
Sta f f  Meet ing  

Sta f f  Meet ing  Minutes  

 

Coordin at ion  
Set  up necessary  p aperwork and  
travel  n eed s for  CCHC vi s i t s  
 

Program Man ager and 
CCHC’s  

Ongo ing  Quarter ly  reports  

Contact  c l ients request ing 
ass i stance  

CCHC’s  Ongo ing`  Care Fax Docu mentat ion  

Con fi rm dates of  community  
hea lth  fa ir s  

Program Manager  Ongo ing  Attendance to event  

 

Outreach 
Part ic ipate in  Hea lth  Fa i rs  with  
informat ion regarding CCHC’s and 
Fir st  Things F i r st .  
 

Program Man ager 
a lon g with  CCHC’s  

September 31,  2012  Purchase orders and  invoices.  
L i st  o f  Health  Fairs  At tended  

 

Implementation 
Sch edu le Qu al i ty  F ir st  V is i t s  to  
provid e assessments &  ass i stan ce 
as n eeded.  

CCHC’s  Ongo ing  Carefacts Docu mentat ion 

Ensu re  reports are  complete  and 
accurate  

Program Man ager  Quarter ly  Quarter ly  Reports  

 
 

Followup 

Schedu le revis i t s  and n eed ed  CCHC’s  Ongo ing  Carefacts  
Provide  programs assi stance as 
needed  

CCHC’s  Ongo ing  Carefacts  



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 20 of 49 

 

Evaluations 
 

Ensure  that  a l l  rep orts are 
provid ed to FTF  in  a  t imely  
mann er as sp eci f ied in  the 
contract  

Program Man ager  Ongo ing  Quarter ly  Reports  



 
Attachment D and E Instructions 

 
How to Complete the Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative 

 
 
Complete a 12-month budget for the period of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013 using the template 
provided in Attachment E.  Please make sure you include a budget narrative as Attachment F.   
 
Please keep in mind items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative 
should describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related successfully 
implementing the project.   Please assure that all requested funds follow these guidelines: 
 

• Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of First 
Things First funds. 

• Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations. 
• Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs charged 

and expended by the agency – consistent treatment of costs. 
o For example – a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as a indirect cost if 

any other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has been allocated 
to the First Things First award as an direct cost. 

o For example – a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another source 
of funding and a different rate to First Things First  - this would not be consistent 
treatment of costs. 

• Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
• Be adequately documented.  
• All travel related costs for these trainings and meetings should be included in the Applicant’s 

budget and calculated using the State of Arizona travel rate limitations for mileage, per diem 
and lodging as described on the budget narrative worksheet.  For more information about the 
state requirements, visit http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/.   

• Requests for line item modifications, which do not change the total program funding, shall be 
requested in writing and shall only be made following receipt of written authorization from First 
Things First. 

 
Please note the line items included in the budget template represent the types of costs possible for a 
line item budget these line items may or may not be applicable or appropriate for your Application.  
Your budget line items requested must fit within one of the categories listed.  However, it is expected 
that you would not need to utilize all of the sample line items. 
 
 

http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 22 of 49 

Attachment D – Line Item Budget 
 

While you must use this format, you may reproduce it with Word Processing or Spreadsheet software.  Limit 
your budget line items to the following categories: Personnel, Fringe Benefits, Professional Services, Travel, 
Pass-Through (i.e. Sub grants), Other Operating Expenses and Administrative/Indirect Costs.   

 
Budget period: July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013 

Budget Category Line Item Description  Requested Funds Total Cost 

PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total  $ 

Salaries Sarah Chavez, Finance Clerk 
Ginnie Scales, RN, CCHC 
Lucinda Campbell, RN, CCHC 

 $2,250 
$4,000 
$4,000 

$2.250 
$4,000 
$4,000 

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $10,250 
Fringe Benefits or Other ERE 
 

Sarah Chavez 
Ginnie Scales, RN, CCHC 
Lucinda Campbell, RN, CCHC 

 $0 
$1,560. 
$1,560. 

$0 
$1,560. 
$1,560. 

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES  Professional & Outside Services Sub Total $3,120.00 

Contracted Services 
 

    

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $200.00 

In-State Travel  
Out of State Travel 

Travel to Phoenix for FTF Meetings  $200.00  

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total $0 
Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities 

    
 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $ 
• Telephones/Communications Services 
• Internet Access 
• General Office Supplies 
• Food 
• Rent/Occupancy 
• Evaluation (non-contracted & non-personnel 

expenses) 
• Utilities 
• Furniture 
• Postage 
• Software (including IT supplies) 
• Dues/Subscriptions 
• Advertising 
• Printing/Copying 
• Equipment Maintenance 
• Professional Development/Staff Training 
• Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff 
• Insurance 
• Program Materials 
• Program Supplies 
• Scholarships 
• Program Incentives 

 
 
Pens, paper, presentations. 
4 classes for parents/staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nat’l Assoc of Education of Young 
Children x 2 
 
1 black ink cartridge 
Calibration of hearing machines 
 
Meetings & trainings for FTF – 
CCHC 
 
 
 
Posters, coloring books,etc. 

  
 
$300.00 
$200.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
$200.00 
 
 
$140.00 
$380.00 
 
$400.00 
 
 
 
 
$200.00 

 

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Capital Equipment Sub Total $1,820.00 
Equipment $5,000 or greater in value 
 

    

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total $ 
Equipment $4,999 or less in value     

Subtotal Direct Program Costs:   $ 

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect $ 

Indirect/Admin Costs   $ $1,530.00 

Total  $ $16,920.00 
 
Authorized signature___________________________________  Date      



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 23 of 49 

Attachment E – Budget Narrative   
The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget line 
items.  The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures on the 
budget form.  Please verify that the narrative and budget form correspond and the calculations and 
totals are accurate.  Please include one narrative that matches the 12 month line item budget 
categories and subcategories.   
 
Personnel Services:  Include information such as position title(s), name of employee (if known), salary, 
time to be spent on this program (hours or %), number of months assigned to this program, etc.  Explain 
how the salary rate for each position was determined.  If salaries are expected to increase during the 
project year, indicate the percentage increases for each position and justify the percent of the salary 
increase.  Also, be sure to include the scheduled salary increases on the Budget Form. 
Health Services Program Manager, Lorraine Dalrymple, RN, CCHC, 2% of time = N/C 
Lucinda Campbell, RN, CCHC, $44,000/year, 9% = 4,000.00 
Ramona (Ginnie) Scales, RN, CCHC, $44,000/year, 9% = $4,000 
Sarah Chavez, Finance Clerk, set amount per grant reduced to $2,250.00 
 
Employee Related Expenses:  Include a benefit percentage and what expenses make up employee 
benefit costs.  Indicate any special rates for part-time employees, if applicable.  Explain how the benefits 
for each position were determined.  If using a fringe benefit rate, explain how this percentage is justified 
or approved by your agency. 
Taxes, health insurance, and State retirement = 39% 
 
Professional and Outside Services:   None 
 
Travel:  Per Diem for 4 “First Things First” Meetings in Phoenix. ($25 a day times 2 CCHC’s) 
 
Aid to Organizations or Individuals:  N/A 
 
Other Operating Expenses: 
 General Office Supplies:  Paper, pens, folders $150x 2 CCHC  $300.00  
 Food – 4 classes at $50/a class      $200.00 
 Membership/Dues: 2 x Nat’l Association of Education of Young 
  Children (2x $100.00)      $200.00 
 Printing and Copying (1 black ink cartridge)    $140.00 
 Calibration of Hearing Equipment ( 2 X $60.00 and 2 X $120.00)  $360.00 
 Conference/Workshops – (2 x $200 to cover hotel, and registration $400.00 
 Program Incentives – posters, educational material, coloring books $200.00



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 24 of 49 

Capital Equipment:   N/A 
 
 
Non-Capital Equipment:  N/A 
 
Administrative/Indirect Costs:  $1,530.00  (10%) 
 
Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses 
included: 
 

 Option A - Administrative Costs:  with proper justification, sub grantees may include an 
allocation for administrative costs for up to 10% of the total direct funds requested of the grant 
request.  Administrative costs may include allocable direct charges for:  costs of financial, 
accounting, auditing, contracting or general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including 
overall organization’s management improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance 
that protects the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs 
solely attributable to the project.  Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries 
and benefits of the project’s director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time 
spent in support of a specific project. 

Or Option B - Federally Approved Indirect Costs:  If your organization has a federally approved 
indirect cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up 
to 10% of the grant request.  Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved 
indirect cost rate agreement. 

 
Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project.  The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs 
that are usually treated as indirect. 
 

Authorized signature            Date     

Tommie Cline Martin, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 25 of 49 

 
Attachment F 

DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES 
 
Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public 
Agencies, Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for 
the proposed Program*.  Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state 
funds by First Things First expenditures, meaning that no FTF monies expended are to be used 
to take the place of any existing state or federal funding for early childhood development and 
health programs.   
 
Use a continuation sheet if necessary. The following form may be reproduced with word processing 
software or another form may be created that contains all the information requested.   

Type of Funding 
(Federal, State, local, other) 

Received From Amount  If used 
for match 

on this 
grant 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

TOTAL: 
  0 

   

*This table should include only those funds that will support the program detailed in this Application. 
 
           
Authorized Signature      Date     
            

 
Job Title Tommie Cline Martin, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors  
 
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 26 of 49 

Attachment G:  
FIRST THINGS FIRST FINANCIAL SYSTEMS SURVEY 

 
Name of Applicant: Gila County Childcare Health Consultant Program______    
 
Please answer every question by filling in the circle next to the correct answer.  Attach materials and 
document comments as required.  
 
As stewards of federal and state funds, First Things First awards funds to organizations (regardless of 
how small or large) that are both capable of achieving project goals/objectives and upholding their 
responsibility for properly managing funds as they achieve those objectives. 
 
This survey will be used primarily for initial monitoring of the organization.  This survey may also be 
used in evaluating the financial capability of the organization in the award process.   Deficiencies should 
be addressed for corrective action and the organization should consider procuring technical assistance 
in correcting identified problems.  

 
A.   GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
1. Has your organization received a Federal or State Grant within the last two years?                  •   YES 

 NO 
2. Has your organization completed an A-133 Single Audit within the past two years? If yes, 

please attach a complete copy of your A-133 Audit, including, but not limited to, your 
Management Letter, Findings and Questioned Costs. 

•   YES 
 NO 

3. If your organization has not completed an A-133 Single Audit, have your financial 
statements been audited, reviewed or compiled by an independent Certified Public 
Accountant within the past two years?    If yes, please attach a complete copy of the most 
recent audited, reviewed or compiled financial statements. NOTE THAT ONLY ONE COPY OF 
YOUR AUDIT NEEDS TO BE INCLUDED WITH THE APPLICATION MARKED “ORIGINAL”.  It is 
not necessary to include additional copies with each copy of the completed Application. 

 YES 
 NO 

4. Please attach a schedule showing the TOTAL federal funds (by granting agency) expended 
by your agency for the most recent fiscal year.   Note:  If your organization had an A-133 
Single Audit, a copy of the “Schedule of Expenditures for Federal Awards” can be 
submitted. ONLY ONE COPY IS NEEDED, TO BE INCLUDED WITH THE APPLICATION MARKED 
“ORIGINAL” 

 

5. Has your organization been granted tax-exempt status by the Internal Revenue Service?  YES 
•    NO 
 N/A 

6. If you answered YES to question #5, under what section of the IRS code?                                               
O   501 C (3)    O   501 C (4)   O   501 C (5)    O   501 C (6)    O   Other     Specify:____________ 

 

7. Does your organization have established policies related to salary scales, fringe benefits, 
travel reimbursement and personnel policies?       

•    YES 
 NO 

 
 
B.   FUNDS MANAGEMENT 

1. Which of the following describes your organization’s accounting system?  Manual         
•    Automated   
 Combination       



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 27 of 49 

2. How frequently do you post to the General Ledger?  Daily    
•   Weekly     
 Monthly           
 Other 

3. Does the accounting system completely and accurately track the receipt and 
disbursements of funds by each grant or funding source? 

•   YES 
 NO 

4. Does the accounting system provide for the recording of actual costs compared to 
budgeted costs for each budget line item? 

•   YES 
 NO 

5. Are time and effort distribution reports maintained for employees working fully or partially 
on state or federal grant programs that account for 100% of each employee’s time? 

•   YES 
 NO 

6. Is your organization familiar with Federal Cost Principles (i.e. 2 CFR 220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 
CFR 230)? 

•   YES 
 NO 

7. How does your organization plan to charge common/indirect costs to this grant?  
NOTE:  Those organizations using allocable direct charges must attach a copy of the 
methodology and calculations in determining those charges. 
Those organizations using a federally approved indirect cost rate must attach a copy of the 
approval documentation issued by the federal government. 

•   Direct Charges    
 Utilizing an 

Indirect Cost 
Allocation Plan or 
Rate 

 
C.   INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 

1.  Are duties of the bookkeeper/accountant segregated from the duties of cash receipt or 
cash disbursement? 

•   YES 
 NO 

2. Are checks signed by individuals whose duties exclude recording cash received, approving 
vouchers for payment and the preparation of payroll? 

•   YES 
 NO 

3. Are all accounting entries and payments supported by source documentation? •   YES  
 NO 

4. Are cash or in-kind matching funds supported by source documentation? •   YES  
 NO 

5. Are employee time sheets supported by appropriately approved/signed documents?    •   YES  
 NOO 

6. Does the organization maintain policies that include procedures for assuring compliance 
with applicable cost principles and terms of each grant award?    

•   YES  
 NO 

 
D.  PROCUREMENT 

 

1. Does the organization maintain written codes of conduct for employees 
involved in awarding or administering procurement contracts? 

•   YES   
 NO 

2. Does the organization conduct purchases in a manner that encourages open 
and free competition among vendors? 

•   YES    
 NO 

3. Does the organization complete some level of cost or price analysis for every 
major purchase? 

•   YES  
 NO 

4. Does the organization maintain a system of contract administration to ensure 
Grantee conformance with the terms and conditions of each contract?  

•   YES    
 NO 

5. Does the organization maintain written procurement policies and procedures? •   YES    
 NO 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 28 of 49 

 
E.  CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Please indicate the following information.  In the event that First Things First has questions 
about this survey, this individual will be contacted. 
 
Prepared By:  Lorraine Dalrymple       
 
Job Title:  Health Services Program Manager      
  
Date:  5/22/2012           
   
Phone/Fax/Email: 928-402-8807/928-425-0794/ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us  
   
F.  CERTIFICATION 
 
I certify that this report is complete and accurate, and that the Grantee has accepted the 
responsibility of maintaining the financial systems. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
Tommie Cline Martin, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
 
G.  COMMENT AND ATTACHMENTS 
 
Please use the space below to comment on any answers in Sections A – D.  Please indicate the 
Section and Question # next to each comment. 
Number of Attachments (please number each attachment): _________ 
 

COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 29 of 49 

  
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
I. Brief statement about the scope of work  
 
A. Brief Statement of Need 
 
Early care and education providers are entrusted with young children for hours every day. While 
providing early education services, they must also keep children safe and protected from injuries and 
potentially serious infectious diseases. Child care staff also work with parents to promote good social, 
emotional and physical health for children—all generally without benefit of medical expertise. According 
to the American Academy of Pediatrics, “following health and safety best practices is an important way 
to provide quality early care and education for young children”.  Unfortunately, in many circumstances 
center staff may have to call multiple resources to answer health related questions, if they can find 
assistance at all.   
 
Research has shown that many health and safety related issues such as immunization compliance, 
adherence to medication administration protocols, diapering and handwashing and development of 
emergency plans directly impact the quality of early care and education programs.  Caring For Our 
Children, the national health and safety performance standards developed by the National Resource 
Center for Health and Safety in Childcare in partnership with other leading children’s health 
organizations states (Standard 1.6.0.1) that an early care and education facility “should identify and 
engage/partner with a child care health consultant (CCHC) who is a licensed health professional with 
education and experience in child and community health and child care and preferably specialized 
training in child care health consultation”. 
 
Child Care Health Consultation has been shown to promote healthy and safe environments for children 
in child care and encourage early care and education settings (centers and family child care homes) to 
implement the highest standards of health and safety on behalf of the children in their care.  CCHC has 
been shown to be an essential element in achieving high quality early care and education programs and 
in maintaining the quality gains made over time. 
 
B.  Brief Description of the Strategy 
 
Child Care Health Consultation is one component of the specialized training and technical assistance 
provided to participants in the Quality First, Quality Improvement and Ratings System.  In addition, in 
some regions CCHC is available to programs not participating in QF.  The role of the CCHC is to promote 
the health and development of children, families, and staff and to ensure a healthy and safe child care 
environment (11). 
 
The CCHC is not acting as a primary care provider at the facility but offers critical services to the program 
and families by sharing health and developmental expertise, assessments of child, staff, and family 
health needs and community resources. The CCHC assists families in care coordination with the medical 
home and other health and developmental specialists. In addition, the CCHC should collaborate with an 
interdisciplinary team of early childhood consultants, such as, early childhood education, mental health, 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 30 of 49 

and nutrition consultants. Additional information regarding the scope of work and standards of practice 
for this strategy are located in Exhibits A and B.   
 
 
C.  The target population for this strategy is regulated early care and education providers who are 
participating in the Quality Improvement and Ratings System, Quality First.  In the Gila region, the 
number of programs expected to receive tiered service are: 
 
5 QF programs 
3 QF homes 
0 non QF centers 
0 non QF homes 
 
This grantee is expected to provide intensive service to those programs listed above participating in level 
two and level three services.    The remainder of programs in this region will receive level one services 
via the Telephone Consultation grantee.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 31 of 49 

 

II.  Scope of Work 
 
Overview of First Things First  
 
On November 7, 2006, Arizonans made an historic decision on behalf of our state’s youngest citizens. By 
majority vote, they made a commitment to all Arizona children 5 and younger, that children would have 
the tools they need to arrive at school healthy and ready to succeed. The voters backed that promise 
with an 80-cent per pack increase on tobacco products to provide dedicated and sustainable funding for 
early childhood services for our youngest children.  The initiative created the statewide First Things First 
board and the 31 regional partnership councils that share the responsibility of ensuring that these early 
childhood funds are spent on strategies that will result in improved education and health outcomes for 
kids 5 and younger. 
 
First Things First is designed to meet the diverse needs of Arizona communities.  The regional councils 
are comprised of community volunteers, with each member representing a specific segment of the 
community that has a role in ensuring that Arizona’s children grow up to be ready for school, set for life:  
parents, leaders of faith communities, tribal representatives, educators, health professionals, business 
leaders, and philanthropists.   
 
First Things First Strategic Direction 
FTF’s commitment to young children means more than simply funding programs and services.  It means 
having a shared vision about what being prepared for kindergarten actually means.    First Things First 
specifies that programs and services funded by the FTF Board and Regional Partnership Councils are to 
address one or more of the following Goal Areas as defined by the statute:  

• Improve the quality of early childhood development and health programs. 
• Increase the access to quality early childhood development and health programs. 
• Increase access to preventive health care and health screenings for children through age five. 
• Offer parent and family support and education concerning early childhood development and 

literacy. 
• Provide professional development and training for early childhood development and health 

providers. 
• Increase coordination of early childhood development and health programs and provide public 

information about the importance of early childhood development and health. 
 

The FTF Board established a strategic framework with a set of school readiness indicators that provide a 
comprehensive composite measure to show whether young children are ready for success as they 
prepare to enter kindergarten.  The strategies funded by FTF work collectively to develop a 
comprehensive system across the state and regionally to address the school readiness indicators.  The 
FTF Board and Regional Partnership Councils determine the priorities and strategies to be funded across 
the state and throughout the regions assessing the challenges and building on the resources and assets 
in place. 
 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 32 of 49 

School Readiness Indicators 
1. #/% children demonstrating school readiness at kindergarten entry in the development domains 

of social-emotional, language and literacy, cognitive, and motor and physical  
2. #/% of children enrolled in an early care and education program with a Quality First rating of 3-5 

stars  
3. #/% of children with special needs enrolled in an inclusive early care and education program 

with a Quality First rating of 3-5 stars  
4. #/% of families that spend no more than 10% of the regional median family income on quality 

care and education with a Quality First rating of 3-5 stars  
5. % of children with newly identified developmental delays during the kindergarten year  
6. # of children entering kindergarten exiting preschool special education to regular education  
7. #/% of children ages 2-5 at a healthy weight (Body Mass Index-BMI) 
8. #/% of children receiving timely well child visits  
9. #/% of children age 5 with untreated tooth decay 
10. % of families who report they are competent and confident about their ability to support their 

child’s safety, health and well being 
 
 
Scope of Work: What Strategy Will This Grant Fund and How Will It 
Make a Difference for Children? 
 
Statement of need 
Early care and education providers are entrusted with young children for hours every day. While 
providing early education services, they must also keep children safe and protected from injuries and 
potentially serious infectious diseases. Child care staff also work with parents to promote good social, 
emotional and physical health for children—all generally without benefit of medical expertise. According 
to the American Academy of Pediatrics, “following health and safety best practices is an important way 
to provide quality early care and education for young children”.  Unfortunately, in many circumstances 
center staff may have to call multiple resources to answer health related questions, if they can find 
assistance at all.   
 
Research has shown that many health and safety related issues such as immunization compliance, 
adherence to medication administration protocols, diapering and handwashing and development of 
emergency plans directly impact the quality of early care and education programs.  Caring For Our 
Children, the national health and safety performance standards developed by the National Resource 
Center for Health and Safety in Childcare in partnership with other leading children’s health 
organizations states (Standard 1.6.0.1) that an early care and education facility “should identify and 
engage/partner with a child care health consultant (CCHC) who is a licensed health professional with 
education and experience in child and community health and child care and preferably specialized 
training in child care health consultation”. 
 
Child Care Health Consultation has been shown to promote healthy and safe environments for children 
in child care and encourage early care and education settings (centers and family child care homes) to 
implement the highest standards of health and safety on behalf of the children in their care.  CCHC has 
been shown to be an essential element in achieving high quality early care and education programs and 
in maintaining the quality gains made over time. 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 33 of 49 

Description of strategy including Standards of Practice  
Child Care Health Consultants are specially trained health professionals who provide consultation and 
support to child care providers on a variety of health and safety issues that might be encountered in out 
of home child care settings.  In Arizona, the service is primarily delivered in Quality First (QF) 
participating programs although there are some regions who have the service available to all providers 
regardless of participation in QF.   
 
The program has three service levels available to participants.   
 

• Level one, which consists of a telephone warmline that providers can call to ask health and 
safety related questions.  A trained CCHC is available to provide assistance to callers on a variety 
of subjects.  This level is for programs who are not appropriate for, or who do not wish to 
participate in more intensive CCHC services.   

• Level two is for providers who are encountering a specific, acute health and safety related issue 
that requires expert intervention by a health professional.  This is not a long term service but 
rather a short term option to address a particular problem that has arisen.  Some examples of 
this include, but are not limited to, a newly enrolled child with a chronic disease issue (diabetes, 
asthma) that staff are not adequately trained to address, or a communicable disease outbreak 
that needs containment. 

• Level three is an intensive service delivery level.  Programs participating in this level will receive 
a health and safety assessment and follow up services that are specific to their individualized 
needs.  They will follow a care pathway to address the most common health and safety needs 
encountered in child care programs.  This level of services requires approximately a 12-18 
month time commitment.  Additional information regarding the services that might be delivered 
at this level is available in the CCHC Handbook and the attached FTF CCHC Model Document 
(Exhibit C).   
 

Participating programs can and will be expected to move between these service levels as appropriate 
based upon multiple factors that might include self selection, a coaching referral, or an external referral 
(such as might be made by a local health department) however, they may only participate in one level at 
a time.       
 
Responsibilities of the grantee delivering CCHC services are detailed below.   
 

I. Hiring of staff 
a. Hiring staff to deliver CCHC services in all FTF regions outlined in the geographic 

boundaries and target population description below .   
The grantee is responsible to assure that tiered Child Care Health Consultation services 
are delivered regionally, under the model outlined by First Things First to: 

1.  All programs participating in the Quality First program 
2. In participating regions, to licensed or regulated child care homes or 

centers not participating in Quality First. 
b.   Provide day to day supervision, salary and benefits, practice liability protection and any 

other employee-related services comparable to other employees in the same employee 
classification 

c.    Determining staffing assignments in all assigned regions  
d. The grantee is responsible to assure that all staff hired to deliver Child Care Health 

Consultation Services meet the following requirements: 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 34 of 49 

i. The child care health consultant should have a minimum of a bachelor’s 
degree and can be a MD, pediatrician , pediatric nurse practitioner, 
pediatric or community health nurse, or a health professional with 
expertise in mental health, nutrition, health education, oral health, 
environmental health, and/or emergency management. 

ii. Must have completed the sixty (60) hour National Training Institute 
(NTI) for Child Care Health Consultants curriculum program PRIOR to the 
beginning work as a CCHC. 

iii. A minimum of one year experience in a public health setting. 
iv. Remain current on all professional licensure/certifications which qualify 

the CCHC to perform services related to this contract either directly or 
through subcontracts 

v. The Child Care Health consultant must have experience in providing 
consultation to and interacting with child care settings including family 
child care. 

vi. The Child Care Consultant must have knowledge of the following: 
1. Child development and family dynamics 
2. Immunization Schedules 
3. ADHS Child Care Licensure 
4. Accreditation Systems 
5. Quality Indicators 
6. Adult Learning 
7. Community Resource 
8. Injury Prevention 
9. Recognition and Reporting requirements for child abuse and 

neglect 
10. Health Care Systems in the service area 

vii. The Child Care Consultant must have developed skills in the following: 
1. Interpersonal Communication 
2. Training of Adult Learners 
3. Facilitation 
4. Consultation Strategies 
5. Collaborative Problem Solving 
6. Cultural Responsiveness 
7. Team Process 
8. Computer Data Entry  

 
II. Delivery of CCHC services 

 
a. Provide Level two and Level three tiered services, as outlined by First Things First, described 

in Exhibit B, FTF Standards of Practice, CCHC; Exhibit C, CCHC Model; and Exhibit D Caseload 
Guidance Document.  Additional requirements are outlined in the CCHC Handbook which 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 35 of 49 

can be found at 
http://www.azftf.gov/WhatWeDo/Programs/Documents/CCHC%20Handbook3.31.10.pdf 

b. Tiered Health  Care Health Consultation services are delivered statewide, under the model 
outlined by First Things First to: 
1.  All programs participating in the Quality First program 
2. In participating regions, to licensed or regulated child care homes or centers not 
participating in Quality First.   

c. An updated list of providers participating in Quality First as well as a listing of regions 
participating in Non Quality First CCHC programming will be provided to the grantees by 
First Things First 

d. Collaborate with Telephone Consultation Grantee to develop and maintain a process for 
referring callers from the Warm line to receive level two and level three services in the 
assigned regions  

e. Collaborate with Telephone Consultation Grantee to develop and maintain a resource and 
referral listing for assigned regions 

f. Participate in initial and ongoing training in use of the Carefacts data entry system  
g. Enter data on all service delivery activities into the Carefacts system in an accurate and 

timely fashion as outlined by the CCHC handbook 
h. Collaborate with the FTF CCHC Program Manager, and the Training Grantee on an 

continuous quality improvement process 
i. Assist training grantee in identifying child care provider staff who might be interested in 

participating in Health Champion Training  
 

III. Evaluation and Data Reporting Requirements 
a. Collecting and reporting all data as required by FTF regarding program activities.  This is 

currently already done through the Carefacts program.   
b. Provide analysis of performance data and outcomes.  
c. Provide ongoing assessment and recommendations for CCHC system development and 

refinement in support of the goals of First Things First.  
d. A review of consultation services is provided for all First Things First statewide and Regional 

Council consultation sites and an independent system report regarding the strengths of the 
services delivered is submitted to FTF quarterly 

e. On not less than a monthly basis, review performance and outcome data related to 
assessment, intervention and evaluation within the FTF-selected documentation system.  

f. The CCHC will document activities and services utilizing the computerized documentation 
system designated by Quality First.  The CCHC will: 

 
i. Attend training on the Omaha System of Documentation and the CareFacts 

computerized charting system. 
ii. Be prepared to have the CareFacts software installed on the laptop provided by the 

contractor at the CareFacts training. 
iii. Keep all charting of visits and activities current within 5 working days of performance. 
iv. Maintain a signed, printed record of information and activities as the legal chart. 
v. Perform the CareFacts update procedure at least every 5 days. 

 
First Things First School Readiness Indicators related to this strategy: 
 

FTF is seeking successful applicants to implement this strategy and work collectively with FTF to impact 
the school readiness indicators below:  

http://www.azftf.gov/WhatWeDo/Programs/Documents/CCHC%20Handbook3.31.10.pdf�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 36 of 49 

• #/% children demonstrating school readiness at kindergarten entry in the development domains 
of social-emotional, language and literacy, cognitive, and motor and physical  

• #/% of children enrolled in an early care and education program with a Quality First rating of 3-5 
stars  

• #/% of children with special needs enrolled in an inclusive early care and education program 
with a Quality First rating of 3-5 stars 

• % of children with newly identified developmental delays during the kindergarten year 
• #/% of children ages 2-5 at a healthy weight (Body Mass Index-BMI) 
• % of families who report they are competent and confident about their ability to support their 

child’s safety, health and well being 
 

First Things First Goal Area to be addressed:  
Health 
 

Target Population to serve 
 

The target population for this strategy is regulated early care and education providers who are 
participating in the Quality Improvement and Ratings System, Quality First.  In the Gila region, the 
number of programs expected to receive tiered service are: 
 
5 QF programs 
3 QF homes 
0 non QF centers 
0 non QF homes 
 
This grantee is expected to provide intensive service to those programs listed above participating in level 
two and level three services.    The remainder of programs in this region will receive level one services 
via the Telephone Consultation grantee.   
 

Geographic Area 
 

The Gila Regional Partnership Council provides services to the communities of Gila County and the Tribal 
lands of the Tonto Apache Tribe. The Gila Region does not include the portion of the Fort Apache Indian 
Reservation (lands of the White Mountain Apache Tribe) within Gila County, nor the portion of the San 
Carlos Apache Indian Reservation within Gila County.   
 

Coordination and Collaboration   
First Things First prioritizes coordination and collaboration among early childhood service providers as 
critical to developing a seamless service delivery system for children and families.  As a result of 
coordination and collaboration, services are often easier to access and are implemented in a manner 
that is more responsive to the needs of the children and families. Coordination and collaboration may 
also result in greater capacity to deliver services because organizations are working together to identify 
and address gaps in service.  Grant partners must demonstrate capacity to work with and participate in 
coordination and collaboration activities occurring within the First Things First region being served. This 
may include but is not limited to participating in regular meetings.  Depending upon the strategy, there 
may be additional statewide meetings which the Grant partners may be asked to attend, as noted in the 
Scope of Work. In order to accomplish this, Grant partners should plan the appropriate staffing and 
budget to support travel to and attendance at monthly meetings within the regional area or statewide 
meetings, as appropriate. 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 37 of 49 

Program Specific Data Collection and First Things First Evaluation 
 
Grant partners agree to participate in the FTF evaluation and any program specific evaluation or 
research efforts.  Data collection and FTF evaluation activities are directly connected with the Goals, 
Performance Measures and Units of Service aligned to the strategy described in this scope of work.   
 
When services are provided to more than one region (multi-regional strategies), the grant partner must 
collect and store client data for each region served through the grant agreement. 
 

Unit of Service and related Target Service Number Definition: 
 
A Unit of Service is a FTF designated indicator of performance specific to each FTF strategy. It is 
composed of a unit of measure and a number (Target Service Number). A Unit of 
Measure/Service can be a target population and/or a service/product that a grantee is expected 
to serve as part of an agreement. The Target Service Number represents the number of units 
(e.g. target population) proposed to be served or number of products/services proposed to be 
delivered during the contract year. 
 
For example, for the FTF strategy Home Visitation the FTF Unit of Service is “number of families 
served” and a Target Service Number of 50 represents the number of families the Applicant 
proposes to serve during the contract period. All FTF applicants must clearly state in the proposal 
a target service number for each strategy specific Unit of Service. 
 
Performance Measures Definition:  
 
Performance Measures measure (1) key indicators of performance (i.e. Unit of Service); (2) basic 
implementation of strategy; (3) alignment of program activities to strategy specific standards of 
practice, (4) performance or progress toward pre-established strategic goals. Performance 
measures may include the level or type of program activities conducted (e.g. serving 
families/children through home visits) and/or the direct services and products delivered by a 
program (e.g., providing scholarships). 

 
Grant partners must have capacity to collect and submit FTF data requirements, securely and 
confidentially store client data, and utilize data to assess progress in achieving desired outcomes of the 
proposed strategy.  Units of Service, Target Service Numbers, and Performance Measures outline how 
quarterly data submissions will be evaluated according to the contracted deliverables and standards of 
practice for that contract. Additionally, they are used by FTF to determine the key impacts of the 
strategies, programs and approaches being implemented.   
 
Grant partners will be provided with data reporting requirements by FTF and will meet the requirements 
of the FTF evaluation including, but not limited to, timely and regular reporting and cooperation with all 
FTF evaluation activities.  Timely and regular reporting of all performance and evaluation data includes 
the electronic submission of data (as identified in data reporting templates designed for each strategy) 
through the FTF secure web portal known as PGMS.   
 
Grant partners are required to collaborate with any FTF external evaluation activities , which means 
collaborating with external evaluation-led child assessment activities. Collaborative activities may 
include tracking and reporting data pertaining to participant attendance, enrollment, and demographic 
information.  In addition, Applicants agree to allow FTF and evaluation consultants of FTF to observe 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 38 of 49 

program activities on site and successful applicants must collaborate with FTF led and initiated 
evaluation activities to encourage parent consent for data collection.  (Standards for data security for 
this strategy are found in Exhibit C.) 
 
Units of Service and Performance Measures that are aligned to the Goal for the purposes of this RFGA 
are as follows: 
 
Unit of Service: 
• 3 home based providers served  
• 5 center based providers served  
 
Performance Measures: 
• Number of home based providers served/proposed service number 
• Number of center based providers served/proposed service number  
• Number and percentage of early care and education programs served by a CCHC improving their 

Quality First rating 
 
For more information on FTF Goal Areas, Goals and Performance Measures, please reference the FTF 
Strategy Toolkit at:  
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA 
 
 

http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 39 of 49 

 
 

Exhibit B 
 

 
Standards of Practice  

Child Care Health Consultation 

I. Description of Health Issue 

Child care providers are entrusted with young children for hours every day. While providing 
early education services, they must also keep children safe and protected from injuries and 
potentially serious infectious diseases. Child care staff also work with parents to promote 
good social, emotional and physical health for children—all generally without benefit of 
medical expertise. Center staff may have to call multiple resources to answer health related 
questions.  
Child Care Health Consultants (CCHCs) are experts in children’s health who are available to 
support child care providers and to assure that children are safe, healthy and ready to 
succeed.  
CCHCs help child care staff to improve health and safety in child care facilities. They also 
provide advice on the well-being of a single child, with the view toward training child care 
staff to prevent and intervene appropriately in future occurrences. CCHCs provide a one-
stop health resource through: 
• Onsite and telephone guidance and consultation 
• Staff training on health and safety best practices and requirements 
• Reviews of and assistance to develop health, safety, and nutrition policies and practices 
• Provide links and referrals to community resources 
• Develop and provide information for parents 
 
CCHCs have specific training following the National Training Institute (NTI) Child Care Health 
Consultation curriculum. They are prepared to train child care staff to talk with families 
about health topics such as oral health, nutritional eating and weight control, 
developmental screening, and the value of physician well-child exams and immunizations.  

 
II. Implementation Standards 

 
The First Things First Child Care Health Consultation Model is depicted on the following 
page: 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 40 of 49 

Exhibit C 
First Things First Child Care Health Consultation Model 

 
 

Level One Services include:  
• Provide Professional Development and Training to Quality First Coaches. 
• Provide technical assistance via a warm line for child care providers and coaches 
• Provide additional consultation, problem solving by telephone. 

 
Level Two Services include Level One services as well as: 

• Expert Mode Child Care Health Consultation to programs with a specifically 
identified health need.  

• Provide Health Champion Training for Early Childcare and Education Professionals 
who have identified a desire to participate.  

• Participate with other team members such as the Quality First coach and contractors 
to implement the program improvement plan and assist child care providers to meet 
the health and safety objectives outlined in the approved plan. 
 

Level Three Services include Level One and Two services as well as: 
• Collaborative Mode Child Care Health Consultation to programs that have been 

identified and given consent for this level of services.  
• A health and safety assessment. 

 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 41 of 49 

A. Programs implementing community health education efforts will include: 

1. Provide tiered health consultation services by Child Care Health Consultants to 
regulated child care providers (centers and homes) enrolled in Quality First, the quality 
improvement and rating system created by the First Things First. 

2. Provide tiered health consultation services to regulated child care providers that are not 
participants of Quality First, if appropriate.  

3. Provide day to day supervision, salary and benefits, practice liability protection and any 
other employee-related services comparable to other employees in the same employee 
classification.  

4. Support the Child Care Health Consultant to participate in technical 
assistance/mentoring visits from the First Things First designated statewide support and 
quality assurance agency. Receive, review and resolve quality performance issues.  

5. Assure the CCHC remains current with professional licensure/ certifications which 
qualify the CCHC to perform services related to this contract.  

6. Provide and maintain an adequate workspace for the CCHC and provide telephone and 
internet access. 

7. Provide a multimedia projector and laptop computer.  
8. Support local travel and instate travel to serve designated child care centers and homes 

within the region and to attend Quality First-required meetings and training sessions. 
Provide an agency vehicle or mileage reimbursement for miles traveled in the CCHC’s 
insured personal vehicle. 

9. Support CCHC to attend continuing education provided by First Things First’s statewide 
administrative entity. 

 

B. Child Care Health Consultants will:  

1. Provide Child Care Health Consultation services in accordance with the First Things First 
Technical Assistance model and the Child Care Health Consultation handbook for 
delivery of services. 

2. Complete a Health and Safety assessment of participating programs to identify and 
prioritize each programs individual needs  

3. Provide three tiered Child Care Health Consultation services (as appropriate and funded) 
to regulated child care providers as described below.  

4. For programs receiving Level Three services, either join the Quality First coach or 
schedule an initial meeting with the child care center director or child care home 
provider to be introduced; to provide an overview of the CCHC program; review health 
and safety issues identified in the assessment; provide guidance documents such as the 
Arizona Health and Safety Policy Manual for child Care Centers and other guidance 
documents that may be identified by Quality First; and plan for ongoing consultation.  

5. For those not enrolled in the Quality First program who are receiving Level Three 
Services schedule a meeting with the child care center director or child care home 
provider to introduce themselves: provide an overview of the CCHC program; provide 
guidance documents such as the Arizona Health and Safety Policy Manual for Child Care 
Centers and other guidance documents; and the plan for ongoing consultation.  



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 42 of 49 

6. For those not enrolled in the Quality First program that are receiving Level Three 
services, complete an assessment of the child care center or home to identify priority 
areas to be addressed. 

7. Provide additional review of child care facility and/or staff needs that may include: 
• Indoor health and safety hazards to children and child care staff;  
• Injury prevention and Safe, Active Play; 
• Health and safety practices of child care staff ( i.e. hand washing, sanitation, dental 

health, physical fitness, nutrition; Serve as a resource to other agencies, 
organizations and educational institutions which provide consultation, monitoring or 
resources to child care programs. 

• Measures and practices to prevent, recognize, and report communicable diseases, 
including staff and parent education; 

• Procedures for documenting and reporting children’s immunizations;  
• Health and safety polices, illness and injury logs; 
• The status of child care provider’ inclusion of children with special needs; 
• Participate in emergency preparedness plan; 
• Communication among the child care provider, parent, and primary care provider; 
• Medication administration, recording, and storage;  
• Determine health insurance and health care access; and other identified child health 

and safety concerns.  
• Guidance, support, referrals and access to care coordination for families and child 

care providers to access mental health consultation and educational services for the 
family, children, or child care providers.  

• Educate children, their families and child care providers about child development, 
mental and physical health, safety, nutrition and oral health issues.  

8. Provide additional education and training in group settings off site in conjunction with 
Quality First Coaches or other FTF funded program staff. 

9. Provide, as appropriate and in accordance with the Child Care Health Consultation 
Handbook, developmental and sensory screening and limited delivery of immunizations.  

10. Document activities and services utilizing the computerized documentation system 
designated by First Things First including: 
• Attend training on documentation requirements and computerized charting system. 
• Keep all charting of visits and activities current within 5 working days of 

performance. 
• Maintain a signed, printed record of information and activities as the legal chart. 

11. Participate in CCHC systems development and marketing activities within the local 
community. 
• Participate in First Things First systems development meetings, regional council 

meetings, and other events as appropriate. 
• Provide community presentations regarding the role of child care health 

consultation in improving the status of health and safety in child care programs. 
• Collect/report data, surveys, evaluation reports or other elements requested by FTF 

or quality assurance personnel. 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 43 of 49 

III. Training and Qualifications Standards 

1. The child care health consultant should have a minimum of a bachelor’s degree and be a 
pediatrician, pediatric nurse practitioner, pediatric or community health nurse, or a 
health professional with expertise in mental health, nutrition, health education, oral 
health, environmental health, and/or emergency management. 

2. Must have completed the sixty (60) hour National Training Institute (NTI) for Child Care 
Health Consultants curriculum program PRIOR to the beginning work as a CCHC. 

3. A minimum of one year experience in a public health setting. 
4. The Child Care Health consultant must have experience in providing consultation to and 

interacting with child care settings including family child care. 
5. The Child Care Consultant must have knowledge of the following: 

• Child development and family dynamics 
• Immunization Schedules 
• ADHS Child Care Licensure 
• Accreditation Systems 
• Quality Indicators 
• Adult Learning 
• Community Resource 
• Injury Prevention 
• Recognition and Reporting requirements for child abuse and neglect 
• Health Care Systems in the service area 

6. The Child Care Consultant must have developed skills in the following: 
• Interpersonal Communication 
• Training of Adult Learners 
• Facilitation 
• Consultation Strategies 
• Collaborative Problem Solving 
• Cultural Responsiveness 
• Team Process  
• Computer Data Entry 

 

IV. Cultural Competencies 
 

Programs will also implement the following best practices and standards related to 
Cultural Competencies:   

 
• To address cultural competency objectives, early childhood practitioners /early 

childhood service providers shall ensure that children and families receive from all staff 
members and program participants effective, understandable, and respectful care that 
is provided in a culturally competent manner. Early childhood practitioners /early 
childhood service providers should ensure that staff and participants at all levels and 
across all disciplines receive ongoing education and training in culturally and 
linguistically appropriate service delivery. Early childhood practitioners/early childhood 
service providers should develop participatory, collaborative partnerships with 



  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 44 of 49 

communities and utilize a variety of formal and informal mechanisms to facilitate 
community and family-centered involvement to ensure that services are delivered in a 
manner that is consistent with the National Standards on Culturally and Linguistically 
Appropriate Services and/or the National Recommendations on Cultural and Linguistic 
Competence for the National Association for the Education of Young Children.” 
http://minorityhealth.hhs.gov/templates/browse.aspx?lvl=2&lvlID=15 
http://www.naeyc.org/positionstatements/linguistic 

• Service providers should understand individual Tribes/Nations are distinct and separate 
communities from other Tribes/Nations and their governmental systems and structures 
are not reflective of each other.  Services to Tribal communities and on reservations 
must be provided in a manner compatible with the Tribe’s/Nation’s cultural beliefs and 
practices, to include the preferred language of the community.  Services must also be 
provided in accordance with the Tribe’s/Nation’s laws, policies and procedures.  The 
effectiveness of services is directly related to the provider’s consideration of the beliefs, 
customs and laws of the Tribe/Nation.   

• Service providers can obtain information about providing services on tribal lands from a 
variety of sources.  These include the FTF Regional Coordinator, Regional Council 
members, tribal websites and publications, as well as official representatives of the 
Tribe/Nation such as the governing body, standing committees and authorized 
departments.  

• It is highly recommended that service providers seek guidance from one or more of 
these sources before initiating services on reservations.  Failure to do so could result in 
contraventions of cultural beliefs, Tribal laws or sovereignty.    

• The ideal applicant will demonstrate their ability to operate within these parameters 
through prior experience working with Tribes/Nations, demonstrating that staff are 
culturally competent, partnerships with agencies serving Native American families, 
knowledge of cultural beliefs, customs and laws of the Tribe/Nation or a combination of 
these elements. 

• Related to data collection, evaluation or research activities: 
o In the United States, Native American Tribes are considered autonomous nations 

with all of the rights and responsibilities of a nation. Understanding this, Native 
American Tribes are charged with protecting the health and safety of their people. 
To this end, Tribes have full ownership over any data collected within their 
reservation boundaries. This means that Tribes can allow or not allow any program 
to collect data from or related to any early childhood development and health 
program or activities on the reservation. 

o Any grantee implementing programs in tribal communities must have official tribal 
permission to collect and utilize sensitive data from or related to any early childhood 
development and health program or activities. Such data can include but not be 
limited to: 

• Morbidity and mortality among children members of their communities 
• Information regarding child safety and welfare 
• Information regarding children in foster care 

http://minorityhealth.hhs.gov/templates/browse.aspx?lvl=2&lvlID=15�
http://www.naeyc.org/positionstatements/linguistic�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 45 of 49 

• Infectious and chronic disease information among members of their 
communities 

• BMI and healthy weight information beginning at age 2 years and each 
year after that 

V. References and Resources 

American Academy Of Pediatrics, American Public Health Association, National Resource 
Center for Health and Safety in Child Care and Early Education. 2011. Caring for our 
children: National health and safety performance standards; Guidelines for early care and 
education programs. 3rd edition. Elk Grove Village, IL: American Academy of Pediatrics; 
Washington, DC: American Public Health Association. Also available at http://nrckids.org. 
 
CCHP (2006). A Curriculum for Child Care Health Advocate, First Edition. Oakland, CKA; 
Author. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://nrckids.org/�


  

# GRA-STATE-13-0502-01         Page 46 of 49 

Exhibit D   
DRAFT 

Child Care Health Consultation 
Caseload Guidance 

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) defines Caseload as” the number of 
cases (children or families) assigned to an individual worker in a given time period. Caseload 
reflects a ratio of cases (or clients) to staff members and may be measured for an individual 
worker, all workers assigned to a specific type of case, or all workers in a specified area”    
Workload is defined as “The amount of work required to successfully manage assigned cases 
and bring them to resolution. Workload reflects the average time it takes a worker to (1) do the 
work required for each assigned case; and (2) complete other non-casework responsibilities “. 
Caseload Management refers to the ability to manage a number of clients within a given 
amount of time and provide optimal services.   
A number of factors influence the ability to effectively manage a caseload.   Beginning on July 1, 
2012, First Things First is implementing a points system for Caseload Management.  The 
following guidelines are intended to assist Child Care Health Consultation grantee’s to 
determine how many clients each staff person can manage.  There may be other factors not 
included here, that have a significant impact on caseloads such as the experience level of the 
CCHC or the background and skills of a particular client.  If these other factors are present, each 
grantee is expected to document their reasons for adjusting the caseload appropriately.   

1. Maximum  of 35 points per FTE 
2. Maximum caseload of 25 clients total per FTE 
3. Each level 3 program automatically gets one (1) point 
4. Each level 2 program automatically gets .75 points 
5. Add ½ point for any of the following: 

a. Large program based upon number of classrooms OR total daily enrollment 
b. Excessive distance or travel time  
c. Significant language barrier  

6. Add ¼ point for any of the following:   
a. Star rating of 1 or 2 

Each grantee will be asked to document and track staff monthly caseloads over time.  Caseloads 
will be reviewed periodically using caseload tracking and time logs in Carefacts.  Assuring that 
data entry of staff time in Carefacts is accurate will be vital in assuring that we have caseloads 
that allow the best possible services can be delivered to providers.   
Resources  
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:  Child Welfare Information Gateway. Available 
online at www.childwelfare.gov/pubs/case_work_management/

http://www.childwelfare.gov/pubs/case_work_management/�


 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Tier three programs will receive  

1. A health and safety assessment 
2. Collaborative mode consultation services 
3. Individualized instruction and training on health needs 

utilizing the care pathway 
4. All services available in tiers one and two 

 
Tier two programs will receive 

1. Expert mode consultation services to address an 
identified health need 

2. An opportunity to identify and have trained an on site 
Health Champion  

3. Participate in implementation of the QIP, if 
appropriate 

4. All services available in tier one 
 

Tier one programs will receive 
1. Coaches who have received professional development 

on identification of health and safety issues 
2. Technical assistance via a warm line for providers 

and/or coaches 
3. Telephone consultation/problem solving services with 

a trained CCHC



 

 

Exhibit E 
First Things First - Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board 

Data Security Guidelines and Requirements for Collaborators 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The purpose of First Things First is to aid in the creation of a system that offers opportunities and 
supports for families and communities in the development of all children so they can grow up healthy 
and ready to succeed. Our work is accountable and transparent to decision-makers and the citizens of 
Arizona. Collaboration and direct funding of grantees to undertake work on behalf of the children and 
families of Arizona is fundamental to the purpose and mission of FTF. Regular submission of data related 
to funded work is an important part of ensuring accountability and maximum positive impact for young 
children.  
 

The Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Thing First - FTF) will ensure 
that resources allocated have maximum impact for the benefit of children and families. To 
ensure this accountability, FTF will establish data reporting requirements for all state and 
regional grantees. All funded providers will regularly submit programmatic and financial reports 
as identified in the FTF reporting requirements.  

Data Security Guidelines for Data Submission to FTF 

FTF data submissions are classified in one of three levels:   
• Public data 

• Limited distribution data 

• Confidential data 
 
The majority of FTF reporting submissions are completed through the FTF Partner and Grants 
Management System (PGMS). Subsequent to the award of a FTF contract, the grantee will 
receive general training on login and navigation within the PGMS system. With this login the 
grantee will be able to manage their contract information. An additional training on strategy-
specific data submission requirements will also be conducted. During that training the grantee 
will be informed on submission of data reporting requirements through PGMS.  All data 
submitted through PGMS is public data or limited distribution data.  Because PGMS is located 
in a secure extranet environment, grantees using PGMS for data submission are not required to 
undertake additional security measures related to their data submission above those identified 
in the general and data submission orientations (password and login security, guidelines for 
upload of narrative and other reports).  
 
A small group of grantees submit data requirements, through agreement between the grantee 
and FTF, directly through the FTF extranet, rather than a PGMS web-based entry form. These 
data are likely to contain limited distribution data and must follow the following protocols. Data 
structure agreement, Login, ftp, revision request.  Grantees that submit data through the FTF 
extranet must ensure that limited distribution data may not be intercepted or viewed at any 
time by parties other than the grantee and FTF and that throughout the reporting and 
submission process the data are secured.   
 



 

 

Any grantee submitting data identified as confidential must file a formal data security policy 
with FTF. Confidential data will not be a part of standard data submission requirements. 
Grantee general orientation and data reporting orientation will identify data requirements as 
public data, limited distribution data, and/or confidential data.  
 

In order to submit data to FTF in fulfillment of reporting requirements, grantees must keep all data 
collected for their program(s) within their system (database) or hardcopies. While FTF data submissions 
are generally aggregated and contain no individually identifying information, grantee data is likely to 
contain highly sensitive information on individuals, their education and their health. These guidelines 
and requirements are for the maintenance of those data.  

Data Security Guidelines for Grantee Maintenance of Data  

 
All grantees must have a data security policy in force which identifies how the organization ensures that 
data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from inappropriate access, use, 
modification, disclosure, or destruction.  
 
All grantees subject to HIPAA, FERPA, GITA, or other data regulation, are required to submit and 
maintain those approvals for all data. If HIPAA, FERPA or other data regulation requires that 
participating individuals give consent to data collection on their person and if in the course of regular 
data submissions to FTF such data will be provided to FTF, submission of personal data to FTF must be 
reflected in all data regulation documents.  
 

































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1302     Consent Agenda Item      5- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health Services
Program Manager

Submitted By: Lorraine Dalrymple
Health Services Program Manager
Health & Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Fiscal Year: 2012-2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2012-6/30/2013 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 6 to Contract No. HG854565 with Arizona Dept. of Health Services

Background Information
Tuberculosis services are required of the local health department.  Services include testing, investigations and case
management.  The only changes in this amendment are in budget line items.

Evaluation
This program monitors and helps to prevent active tuberculosis from spreading within the county.

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would not be able to provide this mandated service.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services Director to
approve Amendment No. 6  to Contract No. HG854565 in the amount of $12,000 to continue to provide tuberculosis
services from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 6 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG854565) between Gila County
and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $12,000 to provide tuberculosis services for the
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

Attachments
Amendment No. 6 to Contract No. HG854565 with ADHS
Original Contract TB
Legal Explanation













































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1285     Consent Agenda Item      5- F             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: County Manager

Fiscal Year: FY 12-13 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012 to June 30,
2013

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Extension of Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai County and Gila County
for Restoration to Competency Services

Background Information
On September 7, 2010, Gila County Board of Supervisors entered into an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai County and Gila County for
Restoration to Competency (RTC) Services for FY 2010-2011.  On July 5, 2011, the
Board approved the extension of said IGA through FY 2011-2012.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors also designated Yavapai County RTC as Gila
County's primary competency restoration program effective June 1, 2010, by
Resolution No. 10-09-02.

Evaluation
Yavapai County currently contracts with Wexford Health Sources for RTC services
within Yavapai County's Adult Juvenile Facilities and has bed space sufficient to
accept Gila County's Rule 11 inmates.  

The cost to Gila County to contract with Yavapai County will remain the same ($350
for the first day and $250 for each day thereafter.)  Some additional costs may arise
for non-formulary mediations, Court testimony, etc.

Conclusion
Extension of the IGA between Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to
Competency Services will run for an additional year from July 1, 2012, to June 30,
2013, under the same  terms and conditions as set forth in the original IGA between
the parties and under the same Resolution 10-09-02.

Recommendation



The recommendation of staff is to approve the Extension of the IGA between Yavapai
County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services for an additional
one-year term.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Extension of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai
County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services for one year from
July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2013, under the same terms and conditions as set forth in
the original IGA as agreed upon by both parties.

Attachments
IGA Extension for Restoration to Competency Services with Yavapai Co.
Resolution No. 10-09-02
IGA Between Gila Co. & Yavapai Co. for Competency Restoration Services
GIla County RTC Order
Legal Explanation



























 IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA 
 IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF GILA 

______________________ 
 
DIVISION   
 
HON.   By:, Judicial Assistant 
 
CASE NUMBER:   Date:  
                                                                                                         COUNSEL: 
STATE OF ARIZONA    
   Deputy Gila County Attorney 
 
                    (Plaintiff)                                        (For Plaintiff) 
 
               vs. 
 
    
 
                    (Defendant)                                           (For Defendant) 
                                                                                                       
 

ORDER FOR COMMITMENT TO YAVAPAI COUNTY  
RESTORATION TO COMPETENCY PROGRAM 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The parties have stipulated the issue of Defendant’s competency may be determined based upon the 

Courts review of the reports of the mental health experts who have examined the defendant.  Based upon a 
review of the experts’ reports: 

 
THE COURT FINDS the Defendant is presently incompetent to participate in further proceedings in 

these cases;   
 
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that it is likely the Defendant can be restored to competency within 

15 months pursuant to A.R.S. §13-4510(C);   
 
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS pursuant to ARS §13-4511 and 13-4512, the Defendant is 

incompetent to accept treatment and to refuse treatment, including medication, and should be subject to 
involuntary treatment pursuant to A.R.S. §§13-4511 and 13-4512(E)  and is not competent to understand or 
waive confidentiality; 

 
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Gila County Board of Supervisors has designated the 

Yavapai County Restoration to Competency Program as the Gila County competency restoration program 
pursuant to A.R.S. §13-4512(A); 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Defendant is hereby committed to the Yavapai 
County Restoration to Competency Program to receive services necessary  (as defined by the “Individualized 
Restoration Plan”) to restore the defendant’s competency.   



 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the medical staff of the facility in which the defendant is being 

restored or otherwise housed shall administer prescribed medication as necessary pursuant to A.R.S. §§13-4511 
and 13-4514(D) during the pendency of this action. 

 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that upon notification of approval for admission of the Defendant by the 

Yavapai County Restoration to Competency Program, the Gila County Sheriff shall transport the Defendant to 
the Yavapai County Restoration to Competency Program c/o Yavapai County Adult Detention Center, Camp 
Verde Arizona.  The Clerk of the Court shall deliver copies of the evaluation reports to the Yavapai County 
Restoration to Competency Program. 

 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED The Yavapai County Restoration to Competency Program shall submit 

a written report to the Court 60 days from the date of admission, and every 60 days thereafter, stating the 
defendant’s progress and prognosis, unless prior to that date it is concluded that competency has been restored 
or that there is no substantial probability that the defendant will be restored to competency within 15 months, in 
which case the Yavapai County Restoration to Competency Program shall immediately report to this Court in 
writing their conclusion.   
 

DATED this          day of April, 2010. 
 
 
 

                                                      
       Superior Court Judge 
 
 
cc: Gila County Sheriff/Jail – Transport (Fax # _______) 

Yavapai County Restoration to Competency Program (Fax # 928-567-7744) 
 

 



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1288     Consent Agenda Item      5- G             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community
Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Development Division

Department: Community Development Division Division: Community Development Administration
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Extension of Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020 between the Arizona Department of
Environmental Quality and Gila County.

Background Information
On October 9, 2007, Gila County approved Delegation Agreement No-06-0020 between the Gila County
Community Development Division, Gila County Health and Community Services Division, and the
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) to delegate functions of ADEQ statutes, rules and
policies for water quality and solid waste management functions and duties for the period 30 days after
ADEQ approves said contract to June 30, 2011. 

Evaluation
This agreement delegates the execution of the ADEQ Individual On-Site Sewage Treatment Rules to Gila
County.  This delegation allows Gila County to serve its residents directly and receive the permit fees for
the services provided. 

Conclusion
The Community Development Division-Wastewater Department provides soil evaluation oversight,
on-site wastewater system plan review, permitting and construction inspections, conducts sewage and 
gray water complaint inspections and public health hazard mitigation and provides contractor
services-training and oversight specified in Gila County Ordinance #01-2.

Recommendation
Recommend approval of the extension of the Delegation Agreement.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Extension of Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020 between Gila County Community
Development Division, Gila County Health Division, and the Arizona Department of Environmental
Quality (ADEQ) to delegate functions of ADEQ statutes, rules and policies for water quality and solid
waste management functions and duties.  Agreement previously extended until June 30, 2012, and it
has been extended to June 30, 2013, or the effective date of the new agreement, whatever occurs first.  

Attachments
Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020
Extension of Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020 6.4.12
ARS 11-952 Intergovernmental Agreements
ARS 41-1081 Standards for delegation
Legal Explanation



Consent Agenda Item      5- G             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Beverly Valenzuela, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Development Division
Community Development Administration





























GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1294     Consent Agenda Item      5- H             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne,
Chief Probation
Officer

Submitted By: Sylvia Hernandez, Probation Officer
Manager, Superior Court

Department: Superior Court Division: Probation Department

Fiscal Year: FY 2012-2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07/01/2012 - 06/30/2013 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Joe Heatherly

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 12-06-03-Probation Department's Participation in FY 2012-2013
Family Counseling Program.

Background Information
For the past eleven years, Gila County has been providing a matching fund
requirement for the Gila County Probation Department to participate in the Family
Counseling Program through the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the
Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division.

Evaluation
As provided for in A.R.S. §8-264, a county may elect to participate in the family
counseling programs by resolution of the county's board of supervisors.  The supreme
court shall then certify a list of counties which have elected to participate and shall
inform those counties of the amounts of funding available to them.

The court shall certify that the amount expended by the county for purposes of
determining matching funds has been utilized to supplement, not supplant, county or
state funds that would otherwise by made available for family counseling services.

The court shall certify that the amount of aid provided by the state and county to a
family counseling program does not exceed seventy percent of the program's annual
operating budget.

Conclusion
The monies for this program provide services for strengthening family relationships
and prevention of juvenile delinquency.

Recommendation
Gila County Probation Department recommends the adoption of Board Resolution No.



Gila County Probation Department recommends the adoption of Board Resolution No.
12-06-03 certifying that the Board of Supervisors will provide $2,305 in matching
funds for the participation in the Family Counseling Program.

Suggested Motion
Approval to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-03 authorizing Gila County Probation
Department's participation in the FY 2012-2013 Family Counseling Program through
the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice
Services Division, and certifying that a matching fund requirement of $2,305 for the
Program will be provided by the County.

Attachments
Resolution No. 12-06-03 Family Counseling



RESOLUTION NO. 12-06-03

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING GILA COUNTY PROBATION 
DEPARTMENT’S PARTICIPATION IN THE FY 2012-2013 FAMILY 
COUNSELING PROGRAM THROUGH THE ARIZONA SUPREME 
COURT, ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS, JUVENILE 
JUSTICE SERVICES DIVISION, AND CERTIFYING THAT A MATCH 
FUND REQUIREMENT OF $2,305 FOR THE PROGRAM WILL BE 
PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby elects to have the county participate 
in the Family Counseling Program as provided for in A.R.S. §8-261 through §8-265 for fiscal 
year 2012-2013; and

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors resolves that $2,305 in matching funds will 
be provided by this county’s Board of Supervisors for Gila County, Arizona.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June 2012, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona

Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

_______________________________ _______________________________
Marian Sheppard Tommie C. Martin, Chairman
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

Approved as to form:

______________________________
Bryan Chambers
Chief Deputy County Attorney



   

ARF-1301     Consent Agenda Item      5- I             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Chief
Deputy
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By:

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Landmark at the Creek - Application for a Temporary Extension of Patio/Premises for
June 29, 2012, through July 8, 2012.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an Application
for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing body of the city, town or
county where the establishment is located.  The application can be submitted to
temporarily or permanently extend the premises/patio where serving liquor is
permitted by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(Department).  The local governing body usually has established internal
procedures for review and approval of the application.  The Department has final
approval of all recommendations submitted by the local governing body.  

Gary Werlinger submitted an application to temporarily extend the premises/patio
where liquor is permitted to be served at the Landmark at the Creek in order to
have special events from June 29, 2012, through July 8, 2012.  The Landmark at the
Creek is located in Payson.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board.  Staff from
the Community Development Division also reviewed the application.  Both
departments have no objections with regard to this application.

Conclusion
This application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a decision. 
The Board's recommendation will then be sent to the Department for a final decision.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval recommendation
to the Department.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit submitted by Gary



Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit submitted by Gary
Werlinger to temporarily extend the premises where liquor is permitted to be served at
the Landmark at the Creek for the period June 29, 2012, through July 8, 2012,
for special events.

Attachments
Landmark at the Creek Premises Extension Application
Landmark at the Creek Internal Approval Memo









   

ARF-1306     Consent Agenda Item      5- J             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Submitted For: John Nelson,
Deputy County
Manager/Clerk

Submitted By: Janice Cook, Administrative Services
Manager, Deputy County Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager

Fiscal Year: 11/12 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/11 - 6/30/12 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona State Forestry Division for FY
2011-2012 for Environmental Program Assistance.

Background Information
In 1999, the counties of Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, and Navajo agreed by vote of
their Boards of Supervisors to expend State-appropriated monies to implement
environmental programs that would impact economic development through the
Environmental Economic Communities Organization (EECO).  The counties then
submitted a joint plan to the Arizona State Forester describing projects in the five
counties which demonstrated the feasibility and necessity of multiple use of natural
resources and renewable energy.

In FY 2011-2012, the State budget included a $75,000 appropriation for EECO, the
disbursement for which is contingent upon (1) the State Forester's approval of EECO's
proposed projects and (2) the execution of an Agreement by each member
county's Board of Supervisors.

Evaluation
The State Forester has approved EECO's three proposed environmental projects which
will positively impact economic development in Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee and
Navajo counties.  An Agreement is required by each member county's Board of
Supervisors in order for the State to disburse a total of $75,000, payable to each
county in the amount of $15,000 each.

Conclusion
Administration believes that execution of the proposed Agreement with the Arizona



Administration believes that execution of the proposed Agreement with the Arizona
Division of Forestry is in the best interest of Gila County in order for projects (common
to Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee and Navajo counties) which impact economic
development can proceed with State funding.

Recommendation
Administration recommends approval of the Agreement with the State Forestry
Division in order to facilitate disbursement of $15,000 in State funding for
environmental projects that affect economic development in EECO's five member
counties.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona Division of Forestry
for the disbursement of $15,000 to Gila County in order to proceed with three
environmental projects (that are common to and which impact economic development)
in Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee and Navajo counties which, were identified by the
Environmental Economic Communities Organization on behalf of the counties and
submitted to the State Forester who has approved them.

Attachments
Ltr to EECO Director
Work Plan 11/12 
Agreement with the Arizona State Forestry Division
Legal Explanation















Page 1 of 5 

 AGREEMENT 
 

between 
 

ARIZONA STATE FORESTRY DIVISION 
 

and 
 

THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

regarding 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM ASSISTANCE 
 

 
I. PURPOSE 
 

The Arizona State Forestry Division (Division) and the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors (County) enter into this agreement to establish the terms and conditions 
under which the Division shall disburse to the County monies that have been 
appropriated by the Arizona Legislature to the Division for county environmental 
programs impacting economic development. 

 
II. RECITALS 
 

A. In 2011-2012, the Arizona State budget included a total appropriation of $75,000 
to be divided between five eastern Arizona Counties to implement environmental 
programs impacting economic development, subject to the submittal of a 
proposed plan that is approved by the Arizona State Forester, Arizona State 
Forestry Division. 

 
B. By this Agreement, The Division and the County now wish to confirm the terms 

and conditions under which the Division shall disburse the appropriated monies to 
the County. 

 
III. STIPULATIONS 
 

A. TERMS OF DISBURSEMENT 
 

1. Amount - The Division agrees to disburse to the County the sum of 
$15,000 during fiscal year 2011-2012 for the purposes of planning and 
implementing specific environmental programs.  The Division and the 
County agree that the monies will be disbursed as stipulated in Paragraph 
3 of this Subsection. 

 
 



Page 2 of 5 

2. Proposed Plans - The County shall prepare and submit proposed plans for 
approval by the Division.  The County shall submit proposed plans and 
documentation of completed projects, as stipulated in Paragraph 3 of this 
Subsection.  Proposed plans shall include: 

 
a. Description of the projects to be undertaken, including their 

relevance and contribution to the Program Planner. 
 
b. For each project, a budget which is itemized by specific categories 

of expenditures. 
 
c. Specific goals, objectives and finished products to be delivered or 

to be achieved by the proposed projects. 
 
d. A proposed completion date for each project. 

 
3. Disbursement - The Division shall disburse the appropriated monies to the 

County as follows: 
 

a. After approving the County’s plan pursuant to Subsection B, 
Paragraph 1 of this Agreement, the Division shall release $15,000 
from monies appropriated to the Division. 

. 
B. DIVISION OBLIGATIONS 
 

1. Plan Review and Approval - Before disbursing any portion of the 
appropriated monies, the Division shall review the proposed plans 
submitted by the County, including any plan amendments, to ensure their 
consistency with the appropriation legislation, the Program Plan, and this 
Agreement. 

 
a. If the Division finds that the proposed plans are substantially 

consistent with the appropriation legislation, the Program Plan, and 
this Agreement, the Division shall approve the plans in writing and 
disburse the monies as provided under Section III, Subsection A, 
Paragraph 3 of this Agreement. 

 
b. If the Division finds that the proposed plans are not substantially 

consistent with the appropriation legislation, the Program Plan, or 
this Agreement, the Division shall request that the County amend 
the plan before the Division provides written approval and 
disburses the monies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 

2. Review and Inspection Terms 
 

a. Reviews of proposed plans and project documentation pursuant to 
this subsection shall be in the sole and reasonable discretion of the 
Division subject to the intent of the appropriation legislation. 

 
b. On reasonable notice to the County, the Division may inspect all 

aspects of any project to ensure consistency with plans approved 
pursuant to Paragraph 1 of this subsection, the Program Plan, this 
Agreement, and the appropriation legislation. 

 
C. COUNTY OBLIGATIONS 

 
In addition to preparing and submitting proposed plans for approval by the 
Division as required by Laws, the County shall: 

 
1. Prepare and submit documentation of projects and return to the Division 

any monies which remain unspent after the end of the 2011-2012 fiscal 
year. 

 
2. Be solely responsible for completing projects funded pursuant to this 

Agreement and for satisfying any third-party contracts or agreements. 
 

3. Be solely responsible to the Division for the accounting of monies 
disbursed pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
4. Use monies disbursed by the Division pursuant to this Agreement only for 

projects which have been approved by the Division as provided under 
Section III, Subsection B, Paragraph 1, of this Agreement. 

 
5. On the Division’s demand, remit any portion of previously disbursed 

monies that is not used according to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
6. Comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations 

including laws, rules and regulations. 
 

7. Appoint a representative for compliance with this Agreement who, on the 
Division’s request, shall certify that: 

 
a. The representative has the authority to act in and on behalf of the 

County. 
 
b. The county shall provide all financial and managerial resources 

necessitated by projects funded pursuant to this Agreement. 
c. The County is in compliance with the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement. 
 



Page 4 of 5 

IV. ADDITIONAL TERMS 
 

A. INDEMNIFICATION - The County agrees to assume all risks of loss and to 
indemnify and hold the State of Arizona, the Division, its officers, agents 
employees and attorneys harmless from and against any liabilities, demands, 
claims, suits, losses, damages, causes of action, fines or judgments, including 
costs, attorneys’ and witness’ fees and expenses thereto, for injury or death to 
persons and for loss of, damage to, theft of or destruction of any personal or real 
property, including loss of use thereof arising from or in connection with the 
performance of the County’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement, whether or 
not authorized by the Division. 

 
B. DEFAULT - In the event of a default by either party of the terms of this 

Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall have all rights and remedies available 
at law. 

 
C. TERMINATION - By written notice, the Division may terminate this Agreement 

in whole or in part, without penalty, if the Division deems termination to be in the 
best interest of the State.  If this Agreement is terminated, the County shall 
complete any and all work to be performed to the termination date and shall 
receive a corresponding amount of the appropriated monies. 

 
D. RECORDS - Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 35-214 and 35-215, for five years after 

the final review of the use of monies disbursed pursuant to this agreement, the 
parties shall retain all records and supporting documentation pertaining to work 
that was funded and make the records and documentation available for inspection 
on request by the Auditor General, or any person. 

 
E. CONFLICT OF INTEREST - This Agreement is subject to cancellation by the 

Governor or the County pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-511. 
 

F. ARBITRATION - To the extent required by A.R.S. Section 12 -1518, the parties 
agree to use arbitration, after exhausting applicable administrative reviews, to 
resolve disputes arising from this Agreement. 

 
G. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION - The parties agree to be bound by the Governor’s 

Executive Order No. 2009-09 regarding nondiscrimination in employment by 
government contractor’s and subcontractors. 

 
H. UNAVAILABILITY OF FUNDS - The parties recognize that performance by 

any party may depend on the appropriation of funds.  Should the Legislature fail 
to appropriate the necessary funds, or if the appropriation is reduced during the 
fiscal year, the parties may reduce the scope of this Agreement, if appropriate, or 
cancel the Agreement without further duty or obligation.  Each party agrees to 
notify the other party of the unavailability of funds as soon as possible after the 
lack of funds becomes known. 

 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the foregoing Agreement is executed on the date of the last signature 
shown below. 
 
 
 
____________________________  ________________ 
Arizona State Forester   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________  ________________ 
Chairman     Date 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1290       5- K             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for April 2012

Submitted For: Mary Navarro Submitted By: Mary Navarro,
Justice Court
Operations
Mgr, Superior
Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for April 2012

Suggested Motion
Approval of the April 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe Regional
Justice of the Peace.

Attachments
Globe Justice Court report for 04/12









   

ARF-1304       5- L             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for May 2012

Submitted For: Mary Navarro Submitted By: Mary Navarro,
Justice Court
Operations
Mgr, Superior
Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for May 2012

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe Regional
Justice of the Peace.

Attachments
Globe Regional Justice Court Report for May 2012









   

ARF-1295       5- M             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2012

Submitted For: Colt White Submitted By: Michelle
Keegan,
Administrative
Clerk Senior,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2012

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson Regional
Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report May 2012



















































   

ARF-1307       5- N             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Reporting
Period:

May 22, 2012, and June 5, 2012, BOS Regular Meeting Minutes; and
June 19, 2012, Emergency Session Meeting Minutes

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy Clerk, BOS Submitted By: Marilyn
Brewer,
Deputy Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of
the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
May 22, 2012, and June 5, 2012, BOS Regular Meeting Minutes; and June 19, 2012
Emergency Session Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 22, 2012, and June 5, 2012, BOS regular meeting minutes; and
the June 19, 2012, BOS emergency session meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 05-22-12 Meeting Minutes
BOS 06-05-12 Meeting Minutes
BOS 6-19-12 Emergency Session Meeting Minutes



1 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  May 22, 2012 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                               JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                                  Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                       
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin, Chairman (via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. 
Dawson, Vice-Chairman; Michael A. Pastor, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; and Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk.  No attorney was 
present. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Jacque Griffin led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Rich Hatch of the First Southern Baptist 
Church in Payson delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 
2A.  Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Daisy Flores, Gila  
County Attorney, to Sgt. Steve Shaw of the Globe Police Department. 
 
Daisy Flores, County Attorney, presented Sgt. Steve Shaw of the Globe Police 
Department with the Officer of the Quarter award and gave a brief summary of 
his background and the reasons he was nominated for the award.  Sgt. Shaw 
thanked the Board for the honor of being nominated for this award.  Each 
Board member thanked Sgt. Shaw for his dedicated service to the community. 
 
2B.  Public recognition of 2 employees for April's "Spotlight on  
Employees" Program, as follows: JoNelle Greenwalt and Ginger Horta.   
 
Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant, presented gift cards as 
recognition awards to 2 employees for April’s "Spotlight on Employees" Program 
as follows:  JoNelle Greenwalt and Ginger Horta.  Each Board member thanked 
the employees for their dedicated work. 
 
 



2 
 

ITEM 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
3A.  Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the  
submission of an Application for FY 2012 State Community Development  
Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the amount of $104,276 that will be used for  
a proposed CDBG housing rehabilitation project in Gila County and an  
additional $300,000 in State Special Project funds to be utilized for 
Rehabilitation, Acquisition and Replacement Housing for FY 2013 and to  
adopt related Resolution Nos. 12-05-02, 12-05-03, 12-05-04, which are  
included as part of the application.   
 

 Malissa Buzan, Housing Program Manager, advised that prior to today’s public 
hearing, 2 others have been held concerning this Application.  Based on the 
information received from those hearings, this Application is now being 
recommended for Board approval.  Each Board member thanked Ms. Buzan for 
securing these grants and her efficiency in running these programs.  Chairman 
Martin opened the public hearing and called for comments from the public; 
none were received.  She closed the public hearing and entertained a motion.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the 
Board unanimously authorized the submission of an Application for FY 2012 
State Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the amount of 
$104,276 that will be used for a proposed CDBG housing rehabilitation project 
in Gila County and an additional $300,000 in State Special Project funds to be 
utilized for Rehabilitation, Acquisition and Replacement Housing for FY 2013 
and adopted related Resolution Nos. 12-05-02, 12-05-03, 12-05-04, which are 
included as part of the application.  (Copies of the Resolutions are 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office) 
 

 3B.  Public Hearing:  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a "Fee for 
Service" for Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI) testing whereby 
the Department of Health will charge a fee of $10.  Individuals who have 
been informed that they are a contact of an STI will be tested at no 
charge.  No individual will be turned away due to inability to pay.  

 
 JenDean Sartain, Deputy Director of Health Services, advised that the County, 

by statute, is mandated to treat and monitor all cases of STIs to ensure the 
health of its citizens.  The Gila County Health Department has seen an 
increase in the STI testing it provides partially due to the closure of Planned 
Parenthood.  Also, due to budget cuts at the Arizona Department of Health, it 
no longer provides the lab testing for several types of STI testing, which had 
previously been done for the County at no cost except for the shipping fees.  
The County has been required to provide these tests through the Center for 
Disease Detection with the County absorbing those costs of $17.50 per client.  
To help absorb these expenses, the Health Department would like to charge 
$10.00 to individuals for STI testing.  Partners and identified contacts will not 
be charged and no individual will be turned away due to inability to pay.  
Chairman Martin opened the public hearing and called for comments from the 



3 
 

public; none were received.  She closed the public hearing and entertained a 
motion.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor 
Pastor, the Board unanimously approved a "Fee for Service" for Sexually 
Transmitted Infections (STI) testing whereby the Department of Health will 
charge a fee of $10.  Individuals who have been informed that they are a 
contact of an STI will be tested at no charge.  No individual will be turned away 
due to inability to pay.  
 
ITEM 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
4A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Order establishing the 
Alhambra Domestic Wastewater Improvement District and instruct the 
Clerk of the Board to notify the State Department of Property Valuation 
and the Gila County Assessor of the establishment of said District.  
 

 David Rogers, Elections Specialist, stated that in March 2012, the Clerk of the 
Board received petitions signed by 100 percent of the property owners 
requesting the establishment of the Alhambra Domestic Wastewater 
Improvement District (ADWID).  He advised that Larry Huffer, Chief Appraiser 
with the Assessor’s Office, was present with the results of the Petition 
Verification, and members of the group wishing to establish the District were 
also present.  Mr. Huffer stated that a copy of the Certificate of Verification was 
provided to the Board, which verifies that the Gila County Assessor has verified 
the owners of the real property who signed a petition to form the proposed 
ADWID.  He read aloud the Certificate, which stated the following from A.R.S. 
§48-903. 2C, “Except as provided in subsection G of this section, if the petition 
is signed by the owners of all of the real property in the proposed district and if 
the petitioners provide a copy of a record search that shows the names of the 
owners of all the property in the proposed district, the Board of Supervisors 
may summarily order the formation of the district and a hearing is not 
required.”  He further stated, “The results of the owners who signed the petition 
are as follows: 100% of the owner(s) of the real property within the limits of the 
proposed ADWID signed a petition.”  Supervisor Pastor wanted to comment for 
the record that he had a conversation with William Sturges, who has been 
working with Jake Garrett, Environmental Engineering Manager, on this 
project, and Mr. Garrett “had nothing but good words on the development of 
this project.”  He also added that Mr. Sturges was hopeful that the Board 
would look favorably on the project.  Chairman Martin then called on Steve 
Wene, the attorney representing the Sturges’s.  Mr. Wene introduced James 
Downing, the Engineer, and stated that unless the Board had any questions, 
they would like the matter to proceed.  Mr. Downing added that he was also 
available for any questions of the Board.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated, “I 
think one record that we need to make is that the people of Alhambra District 
will be among those who yelled that their taxes have increased and that it’s our 
fault.  They have to understand that these actions, whether it’s a fire district, a 
wastewater improvement district, a school district or whatever, has no effect 
upon what their county tax rate is.  They will have their special district (tax) 



4 
 

rate that they need and are approving of at this time.  It will be later that they 
scream.”  Chairman Martin added, “They need to pay close attention to who 
they put on their board as those folks will decide the important things for these 
people and the closer boards get to you, the more important it is to pay 
attention to who is on them.”  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted the Order 
establishing the Alhambra Domestic Wastewater Improvement District and 
instructed the Clerk of the Board to notify the State Department of Property 
Valuation and the Gila County Assessor of the establishment of said District.  
(A copy of the Order is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office) 
 
4B.  Information/Discussion/Action to discontinue the 120-day hiring 
freeze on all vacancies in budgeted positions effective upon Board of 
Supervisors' approval.   
 

 Berthan DeNero, Human Resources Director, requested that the Board 
discontinue the 120-day hiring freeze as it has outlived its usefulness.  She 
stated that the Board of Supervisors, managers and elected officials are very 
creative and compelling in their reasons for waiving the 120 days. Vice-
Chairman Dawson stated that at the time this freeze was adopted, there was a 
crisis of how to manage to stay within the County’s budget.  She believes that 
the County is now in a position to be able to discontinue this freeze; however, 
she noted that this doesn’t mean that there’s going to be a bunch of newly 
created positions, but rather these are vacancies in budgeted positions only.  
Supervisor Pastor stated that he believes a good process has been set in place 
for reviewing any requests for positions and although it has taken a while to 
develop, he believes it is working well enough to lift the 120-day hiring freeze.  
Chairman Martin stated that she think it’s time the Board allowed the 
supervisors and directors to make the choice; however, the Board will keep an 
eye on it and if this action needs to be rescinded that could be done.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board 
unanimously discontinued the 120-day hiring freeze on all vacancies 
in budgeted positions effective upon Board of Supervisors' approval.   
 

 4C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of National Joint 
Power Alliance Contract No. 062909 with ADT Security Services, Inc. 
whereby the contractor will provide for the material and installation 
of video surveillance cameras at the Gila County Courthouse in the 
amount of $82,013.09. 
 

 Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that the Security 
Committee, chaired by Ms. DeNero, has been working with the courts and the 
law enforcement agencies to implement security measures at the Globe County 
Courthouse.  This is the next step being proposed to provide Courthouse 
security.   He advised that there are multiple cameras involved in this project 
and the County has been working with the contractor, which has suggested 



5 
 

different angles and locations giving the County the ability to monitor and 
record every hallway and portion of the courthouse so that if there is an 
incident, it could be reviewed.  He stated that this is very similar to the system 
that was installed in the new Public Works Division buildings and within the 
first couple of months it paid off because someone was caught stealing.  He 
suggested that there be a secure place for the recording device and viewing.  
After a review with Ms. DeNero and Bob Hickman, Facilities Director, it was 
decided that the security key will be left with the IT Director in the event law 
enforcement needed to review the recordings.  Also suggested was that the 
recording discs be kept on file for a minimum of 1 year.  Vice-Chairman 
Dawson stated that it’s amazing today what can be done with video 
surveillance and how technology continues to improve, which she hopes will 
help management in this area.  Mr. Stratton pointed out that the cameras are 
of such high quality that they will be able to record a visual on a face and 
working in cooperation with law enforcement, people could be identified.  
Supervisor Pastor inquired if the cameras are going to be placed in hallways 
and in the court rooms to monitor security access to the Courthouse and will 
not be used to monitor employees.  Mr. Stratton replied that was absolutely 
correct.  He stated that this project will be paid with capital improvement funds 
of which the security portion has been budgeted.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously approved 
the use of National Joint Power Alliance Contract No. 062909 with ADT 
Security Services, Inc. whereby the contractor will provide for the material and 
installation of video surveillance cameras at the Gila County Courthouse in the 
amount of $82,013.09. 
 

 4D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve United States Department 
of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest Road Project 
Agreement (FS No. 12-RO-11031200-024) for FY2012 through December 
31, 2012, in the amount of $283,825 to double chip seal Forest Road 423 
(Cline Boulevard).  

 
 Mr. Stratton stated that several months ago Steve Sanders, Public Works 

Division Deputy Director, and Jacque Griffin, Assistant County 
Manager/Librarian, applied for a RAC (Resource Advisory Committee) Grant to 
the U.S. Forest Service, which included funding for 2 years.  The County was 
awarded 2 road projects—Russell Road and Cline Boulevard; however, due to a 
“snafu” at the state, the money for next year will now not be awarded and the 
County is only receiving a partial allotment and will lose about $150,000 on 
this particular project.  He does; however, feel this project can be completed by 
changing the scope of work so instead of running a chip seal on the portion 
that is already paved, the County will do a double chip seal on the dirt portion 
along with some other creative measures.  He also noted that the project will be 
completed in September.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated that in regard to this 
snafu, it is known that the Pinal Mountains are extremely dry and not getting 
that Russell Road chip sealed is very frustrating.  She stated that in the event 
there was a forest fire and people had to be evacuated, that road would be a 



6 
 

difficult one and although it’s better than it was years ago, it’s still in need of 
being chip sealed.  Mr. Stratton stated that because the County spends an 
extreme amount of time blading Russell Road, he is trying to work that into the 
5-year plan if funds allow; however, his department is having difficulty with a 
shortage of funds as are other departments.  Chairman Martin noted that this 
snafu didn’t have anything to do with the County as several other counties 
were affected as well.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated that at next year’s 
meeting there needs to be a loud discussion as to the reason this happened.  
Mr. Stratton deferred to Ms. Griffin for additional information as to why this 
problem with the funding occurred.  Ms. Griffin stated that she wasn’t sure 
where the error occurred, but it was her understanding that the County is 
supposed to be notified by the State Treasurer if the County is going to put 
15% of its funds into the RAC.  She believes the problem was because it was for 
2 years of funding at once and because Graham County caught the error, they 
are receiving full funding, but the other grant applicants are not, which 
involves 3 different states and several counties.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board unanimously 
approved United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto 
National Forest Road Project Agreement (FS No. 12-RO-11031200-024) 
for FY2012 through December 31, 2012, in the amount of $283,825 to double 
chip seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard).  Supervisor Pastor noted that Les 
Hannar (a resident residing on Cline Boulevard) will be very happy that this 
project is finally going to be done because “he’s been on my case for the last 6 
months.”  Mr. Stratton added that’s why he made the public commitment to 
start the project in September.  
 

 4E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement-Economic Development Grant between Gila County and the 
Town of Miami whereby the County will disburse up to $3,200 to the 
Town of Miami for use in the construction and repair of the Miami 
Community Pool Project.   

 
 Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this is an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Town of Miami for the purpose of repairing or replacing 
some of the unsightly and unsafe shade structures at the community pool.  He 
stated, “We consider this to be a community benefit and County benefit as well” 
and recommended that the Board approve same.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously approved 
an Intergovernmental Agreement-Economic Development Grant between Gila 
County and the Town of Miami whereby the County will disburse up to $3,200 
to the Town of Miami for use in the construction and repair of the Miami 
Community Pool Project.   

 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

 5A.  Approval of Contract No. SRPWX05012012 between the Arizona 
Community Action Association and Gila County Community Action 



7 
 

Program, a department of the Division of Community Services, to utilize 
funding provided by Salt River Project in the amount of $7,000 to be used 
for weatherization services to eligible households residing in Gila County 
for the period from May 1, 2012, through April 30, 2013. 

 
5B.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02 
between the Governor's Office of Energy Policy and Gila County (Division 
of Community Services, Weatherization Program) amending the amount of 
funding from $28,434 to $33,474 to continue to provide weatherization 
services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County, effective upon 
signature of both parties and continuing through June 30, 2012. 

  
 5C.  Authorization for the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 2 to 

an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS12-007886) which 
pertains to a Public Health Emergency Preparedness Grant that is 
between the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services and 
the Arizona Department of Health Services. 

 
 5D.  Approval of the reappointment of Judge Gary V. Scales and Judge 

Peter J. DeNinno as Judges Pro Tempore for the Superior Court in Gila 
County for the period of July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013. 
 

 5E. Approval to appoint Perry Schaal to fill the unexpired term of office 
for Bernie Lieder on the Building Safety Advisory & Appeals Board, which 
expires December 31, 2013. 
 

 5F.  Acknowledgment of the resignation of Quentin Johnson from the 
Canyon Fire District Governing Board and the appointment of Michael 
Peterson to complete the term of Mr. Johnson, which expires November 
30, 2012. 

 
 5G.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 

the Pleasant Valley Historical Society to serve liquor at the Ted Meredith 
Memorial Roping event to be held on July 20-22, 2012. 

 
 5H.  Approval of the May 1, 2012, BOS meeting minutes. 
 
 5I.  Approval of the March 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office. 
 
 5J.  Approval of the March 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Recorder's Office. 
 
 5K.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the weeks of April 14, 2012, to April 
20, 2012, April 21, 2012, to April 27, 2012, and April 28, 2012 to May 4, 
2012. 



8 
 

  
Copies of the contract reports are permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office. 
 
5L.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of May 
8, 2012, May 15, 2012, and May 22, 2012. 

 
 May 8, 2012 
 

$809,994.43 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 245424 
through 245564. 
 
May 15, 2012 
 
$1,519,738.82 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 245565 
through 245750. 
 

 May 22, 2012 
 

$663,439.07 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 245751 
through 245884.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5A through 5L. 
 
Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. 
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified 
on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-
431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to 
directing staff to study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling 
the matter for further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 

 Chairman Martin called on Peter Beesley, owner of a business known as 
Hoofin’ It Feed & Tack located on Russell Road in Globe.  Mr. Beesley stated 
that related to the last agenda item discussed by the Board, his business is 
also located on Russell Road and that road is in real bad shape.  He noted that 
all of the County trucks have now moved over to the new barn in that area, 
which has increased traffic and that road needs more than a chip seal.  Mr. 
Beesley then moved on to the reason for being present to address the Board.  
Mr. Beesley and his wife own a feed store and they are having an increasing 
problem with vendors/peddlers who are coming into the area, in particular hay 
vendors, who are bringing in trailer loads of hay from out of town and then 
parking on the side of the road on anyone’s property and setting up small 
businesses.  Mr. Beesley felt that legitimate business owners should have some 
type of protection against people that aren’t operating under the same rules 



9 
 

and are not a licensed business that collects and pays sales tax.  He requested 
that this be addressed by the County on a future Board agenda. 

    
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 11:01 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 5, 2012 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                               JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                                  Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                       
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin, Chairman (via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. 
Dawson, Vice-Chairman; Michael A. Pastor, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk; Marian 
Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County 
Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Shirley Dawson led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Bart Campbell of the Church of Christ in Globe 
delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 

 2A.  Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) 
by Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a discussion of 
recent legislative activities. 

 
Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, gave a PowerPoint presentation 
providing an update of the activities of the recent Arizona legislative session.  
Some of the highlights reviewed included the following:  County directives that 
were given to CSA staff at the 2011 CSA Summit, which included repealing the 
triggered prison shift from state prisons to county jails, eliminating the 
mandated county contributions, and freezing or restoring HURF (Highway User 
Revenue Funds) shifts to the Department of Public Safety and the Motor 
Vehicle Division; advancing client-initiated CSA-sponsored legislation; and 
engaging legislation that impacted county resources, services or authorities.  
Mr. Sullivan also spoke about state budget mobilization efforts and county 
mobilization efforts that achieved early results with the governor responding to 
county concerns.  This was followed by a brief review of the Enacted FY2012-
2013 State Budget that contains $43 million in county impacts, $50 million 



2 
 

less than FY 2012 and that will impact Gila County by $771,002, plus lingering 
effects of eliminated revenue streams of $550,035 for a total impact to Gila 
County of $1.3 million.  The current state budget was then compared to past 
budgets from FY2008 to the present.  Mr. Sullivan reviewed the FY2013 state 
budget, which is a one-year budget with a three-year outlook, noting that the 
Legislature had not previously reviewed budgets looking into the future, but 
had only reviewed the present budget.  He also noted that the state has now set 
aside a rainy day fund for FY2013 in the amount of $450 million, which is good 
news for counties so the state possibly won’t continue to shift costs to the 
counties.  Mr. Sullivan reviewed CSA’s sponsored legislation including bills that 
were enacted into law, vetoed, or did not advance through the process; bills 
from other organizations that were supported by CSA; legislation amended by 
counties; and legislation opposed by CSA, which included 15 bills that were 
defeated; and legislation opposed by the counties.  He stated that 2 of the bills 
opposed became law, which included HB 2826, consolidated election dates, 
and SB 1040, county highways.  Supervisor Pastor inquired if there will be 
efforts in the next legislative session to make changes to the new law on the 
consolidation of elections because the County’s Election Department is 
concerned about it not being cost effective.  Mr. Sullivan stated that it’s still too 
early for him to determine whether CSA will be able to advance some fix-it 
solutions, but he does know that there is ongoing dialog, and CSA is looking to 
the election directors to provide good input in that regard and he’s also 
requesting that management help with the financial side.  Mr. Sullivan also 
wanted to make it clear that the governor was very friendly to counties this 
year and she not only secured the main items in the budget and provided 
leadership on that, but she vetoed 4 bills at the request of the counties 
including the firearms bill that was of grave concern because of its allowance of 
firearms in court buildings and other areas or requiring very expensive security 
measures.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated that she believes the bill on firearms 
regulation is going to come back again and since it got through both houses 
she thinks that it’s really important that there be some energy expended on the 
fact this was such extreme of what is our right to bear arms.  She said “Saying 
that firearms are a right that should be allowed anywhere and everywhere is 
just insanity at its best.”  She requested that CSA have a committee that is 
balanced and that is looking at this ahead of time before the bill is introduced 
again.  Mr. Sullivan replied that the entire CSA membership of county boards 
was unanimously opposed to this measure and CSA will do everything it can in 
preparation for the next consideration of this bill.  Mr. Sullivan then reviewed 
CSA’s next steps, which will include evaluating changes to the political 
landscape; evaluation of the state and federal situation; analyzing potential for 
achieving additional fiscal objectives; and connecting with counties, 
stakeholders and legislators in preparation for 2013.  Mr. Sullivan concluded 
his presentation by reviewing the redistricting of the Legislative and 
Congressional District Maps, which showed that Gila County includes 3 
Legislative Districts 6, 7 & 8 and Arizona now has 9 Congressional Districts.  
Mr. Sullivan reminded the Board that the County’s legislative proposals for the 
upcoming legislative session are due to CSA by August 15, 2012.  Also, the 



3 
 

CSA Legislative Session Policy Summit will be hosted by Cochise County in 
Sierra Vista on October 1-3, 2012.  Chairman Martin stated that for many 
years, the eastern counties have enjoyed 3 legislators and now there will be 12 
to tell our story and she requested that the other board members assist her in 
contacting them all to discuss our rural issues because they are not 
necessarily going to be rural folks.  Vice-Chairman Dawson expressed a 
concern about the payment of judges’ salaries by the counties.  She also stated 
that in regard to the shift of prisoners to the county jails, the counties need to 
stay alert on that issue and tell the state that they can’t do that and it needs to 
be state financed.  Each Board member thanked Mr. Sullivan and staff for the 
presentation and for all of the great work they do on behalf of the counties.   
 

 2B.  Presentation of the University of Arizona's Gila County Cooperative 
Extension Office Annual Report and 2012-2013 fiscal year budget request 
to be considered for approval during Gila County's regular budget 
process.   
 
Lani Hall, Extension Agent, 4-H Youth Development Agent, speaking on behalf 
of Jim Sprinkle, Ph.D., University of Arizona (U of A) Area Extension Agent, 
Animal Science and Gila County Cooperative Extension Director, who was 
unable to attend, presented a PowerPoint presentation regarding the U of 
A, Gila County Cooperative Extension Office's 2011 Annual Report.  She 
explained how land grant colleges were established by Abraham Lincoln 
through the Morrill Act 150 years ago to make education more widely available.  
For almost 100 years, cooperative extension has helped disseminate knowledge 
from the university and experimental stations to the local communities.  
Cooperative extension has helped preserve ranching in Gila County and after 
10 years of the “Reading the Range” program, 50% of the ranches in Gila 
County are now using range monitoring science to assist in management and 
National Environmental Policy Act documents.  Other programs also address 
critical issues in Gila County including forest health/fire wise, noxious weeds, 
climate education and water/watershed education.  Ms. Hall also briefed the 
Board on ways the Cooperative Extension offices are preparing youth in Gila 
County through various programs such as 4-H Youth Development, “Launch 
into Life,” which was a program taught to all 9th graders at Payson High School 
last year and a program on “Healthy Foods/Healthy People,” which included a 
starting a farmer’s market in Globe and the “People’s Garden Project” funded 
by the United States Department of Agriculture on the San Carlos Reservation.  
A request was made of the Board of Supervisors for continued support in the 
amount of $66,500 for the 2012-2013 fiscal year, which is an increase of 
$6,500 over the last 4 years’ requests.  Each Supervisor complimented the 
efforts and accomplishments of Dr. Sprinkle, Ms. Hall and the other staff 
members.  The official budget request will be considered by the Board of 
Supervisors during the County's regular budget process.   
 

 2C.  Presentation of Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum's activities 
and request for a $25,000 economic development grant to be considered 



4 
 

for approval during Gila County's regular budget process.  
 
Joe Sanchez, President of the Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum, stated 
that he and others were present to request a $25,000 economic development 
grant to be considered for approval by the Board.  He then gave a PowerPoint 
presentation on the Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum located in the 
former Bullion Plaza School in Miami.  He also introduced Tom Foster, Director 
of the Museum, and Paul Licano, a board member.  Mr. Sanchez provided 
background history on the former Bullion Plaza School, which was built in 
1923 as a grammar school for Mexican-American children, was eventually 
closed by the Miami School District in 1994, was acquired by the Town of 
Miami in 1997 and then leased to the Bullion Plaza Cultural Center and 
Museum in 1999.  He then read aloud the Museum’s mission statement.  Tom 
Foster then explained the many special displays it houses, which include the 
following:  mining exhibits, tile exhibit, mineral collections, former Arizona 
Governor Rose Mofford collection, military heritage exhibit, Slavic cultural 
center, Cox Room/ranching exhibit, Miami history exhibit, Hispanic heritage 
exhibit, local, state & national dignitary room, Inspiration wing and a  
research room.  Mr. Sanchez concluded the presentation by reading aloud the 
objective statement.  He thanked Supervisor Pastor and the many volunteer 
members of the community who have been involved with the ongoing work at 
the Museum.  Each Board member thanked Mr. Sanchez and Mr. Foster for 
this presentation and their efforts and hard work in establishing this Cultural 
Center/Museum.  This official budget request will be considered by the Board 
of Supervisors during the County's regular budget process.   
 
ITEM 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

 3A.  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convene as the Gila County Board of Deposit.)  
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request 
for Proposals No. 011312-1 Primary Banking Service for the Gila County 
Treasurer; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and 
authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning 
bidder.   
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Deposit and to reconvene 
as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.) 

 
 Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the 

Board adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convened as the 
Gila County Board of Deposit. 

 
 Debora Savage, Treasurer, stated that after extensive review by 4 staff 

members of the proposals received from 3 different banks, the recommendation 
was to award a contract to the lowest bidder, JPMorgan Chase Bank.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board 
reviewed all bids submitted for Request for Proposals No. 011312-1 Primary 



5 
 

Banking Service for the Gila County Treasurer and unanimously awarded a 
contract to JPMorgan Chase Bank for a term of 36 months with the option to 
renew for 2 additional 12-month terms and authorized the Chairman's 
signature on said contract. 

  
 Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the 

Board adjourned as the Gila County Board of Deposit and reconvened as the 
Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 
 3B.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 

Request for Proposals No. 103111-2 for the Sheriff's Office tower 
installation and radio equipment relocation; award to the lowest, 
responsible, responsive, and qualified bidder; and authorize the 
Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.   

 
 Tom Melcher, Chief Deputy Sheriff, explained that this item is in regard to the 

construction of a radio tower next to the new Sheriff’s Office Communications 
Center.  Due to a lack of funds at the time the center was built, the tower was 
unable to be built or the radio equipment relocated so it continues to be a 
major problem for radio transmitting.  A grant application was then submitted 
and later a grant was awarded by the United States Department of Homeland 
Security in the amount of $50,000; however, when the requests for proposals 
were advertised, none of the bids received were under the $50,000 cap and had 
to be rejected by the Board due to the need to change the scope and 
specifications.  Another request for proposals was sent out removing the 
$50,000 cap and requesting a “Proposal Clarification, and Best and Final 
Offer."  These “Best and Final Offers” were received on April 30, 2012, and the 
conclusion after detailed technical and cost review was that the lowest offer did 
not meet all requirements set forth in the bid.  The low bidder did not provide a 
total cost for project completion as requested and the bid states that the 
contractor would be responsible for permits, licenses, fees and taxes; however, 
the contractor projected those costs onto the County.   Mr. Melcher stated that 
the second lowest bidder met all requirements and provided a best and final 
cost for the project.  He stated that after review with the County Attorney’s 
Office, it is recommended that the Board award the bid to the second lowest 
bidder, CMC Communications, LLC, with the selection of a used tower at a cost 
of $77,671.65.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Dawson, the Board reviewed all bids submitted for Request for Proposals No. 
103111-2 for the Sheriff's Office tower installation and radio equipment 
relocation and unanimously awarded a contract to CMC Communications, LLC, 
in the amount of the $77,671.65 and authorized the Chairman’s signature on 
said contract. 
 

 3C.  Information/Action/Discussion to approve the Gila County Elections 
Security and Integrity Policy.   

 



6 
 

 Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, advised that the Elections Department has 
been working for awhile on this Elections Security and Integrity Policy.  The 
Recorder’s Office and the Elections Department have the responsibility of 
ensuring election and ballot security and most of the procedures are well 
grounded in the Arizona Revised Statutes or in the Elections Policy and 
Procedures Manual set forth by the Secretary of State’s Office.  This policy has 
been put together to recognize that the Recorder’s Office and the Elections 
Department have those policies and procedures and that they are practiced in 
Gila County.  She requested approval in order to add this particular policy to 
the Gila County Policy Manual.  Vice-Chairman Dawson noted that the policy 
states that “authorized individuals are allowed access to critical election 
spaces” and questioned who has the right to determine who those “authorized 
individuals” are?  Ms. Eastlick replied that she, as the Gila County Elections 
Director, has the authority to designate who has access in the Gila County 
Elections Department.  She stated that specifically the reason that different 
terminology was used stating “persons” rather than “personnel” is because of 
those instances when early ballots are processed by volunteers from the 
community, who are paid minimum wage, who come in and assist in 
processing early ballots.  Those individuals have the authority to go inside of 
the rooms where the ballots are being processed and to go into the areas where 
the ballots are secured in the vault.  The process of tabulating early ballots is 
recorded by live video so all present are monitored at all times and that 
recording is fed down to the Secretary of State’s Office and is shown online.  
The public is not allowed in those rooms.  Political parties are invited to come 
in as observers, but they are not allowed to touch ballots or interfere with the 
process.  It is preferred that they monitor the tabulation process outside of a 
window if coming in on election night.  Vice-Chairman Dawson then inquired if 
the Elections Department handles or receives the provisional ballots.  Ms. 
Eastlick replied that when the provisional ballots come from an election 
site/polling place, they come in a sealed bag and are received in the Elections 
Department.   The sealed bag is then transferred to the Recorder’s Office.  The 
Recorder’s Office opens the sealed bag and then proceeds to verify the 
signatures that are on the provisional ballots as well as the voters themselves 
and makes a determination as to whether or not that ballot should be 
processed further for tabulation depending upon whether the individual was 
properly registered and if the signature is correct; however, they do not open 
the ballots or tabulate them.  The Recorder’s Office then transports those 
provisional ballots to the Elections Department and again with the aid of these 
volunteers from the community the provisional ballots are processed and 
tabulated.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated that under Ballot Processing VII, it 
states that under no circumstances is the public, including any candidate, 
allowed behind counters or inside rooms and she inquired if that only 
pertained to the Election Department or also to the Recorder’s Office and 
whether those are in the Arizona Secretary of State’s rules and regulations.  
Ms. Eastlick replied that to her knowledge that specific language is not in 
statute; however, it is understood that the ballots will be handled in a secure 
manner.  It doesn’t state they can’t go behind counters.  She noted that this 



7 
 

policy was specifically written only for the Elections Department because the 
Recorder has determined she prefers to write her own Office’s policy.  Ms. 
Eastlick stated that she does not believe that the Recorder has presented the 
Board with her policy, but she did know that the Recorder was working on one.  
Vice-Chairman Dawson stated, “I have not seen anything from the Recorder 
that would exclude a candidate from being behind the counter other than her 
statement that didn’t happen and my challenge (is) that it did happen and it 
won’t happen without a sheriff’s deputy at least being called this election.”  
Chairman Martin inquired about the process again and Ms. Eastlick explained 
that there are 2 processes, one for early voting ballots by mail and one for 
provisional ballots and she proceeded to explain the differences.  Supervisor 
Pastor inquired for clarification if this particular policy is a complete policy for 
elections.  Ms. Eastlick stated that it does not include the Recorder’s Office 
functions.   Supervisor Pastor inquired of the County Manager if the Board 
would be receiving a policy on elections from the Recorder’s Office.  Don 
McDaniel, County Manager, stated that the Recorder has not reported any 
further than what was reported to the Board when this was discussed in a 
public work session of the Board of Supervisors where she was developing or 
had developed a policy, but it has not been submitted to him or the Board for 
review and/or approval.  Chairman Martin inquired as to the period of time the 
Recorder’s Office actually has physical possession of these either early or 
provisional ballots.  Ms. Eastlick replied that the Elections Department actually 
transports live ballots to the Recorder early enough in the election season that 
they can begin mailing them out.  The Recorder’s Office then has control over 
live ballots in their office during the entire election season so that people can go 
in and vote there.  When the ballots that are mailed out are returned back by 
the voter, then the Recorder’s Office has control over them until they are 
processed and processing times can vary although there is a provision in state 
law for how long the Recorder can hold those ballots.  Ms. Eastlick was not 
sure of the time as to how long the Recorder can hold those ballots.  Vice-
Chairman Dawson requested that the County Manager contact the Recorder 
about when her Security and Integrity Policy will be provided to the Board.  Mr. 
McDaniel stated that he would follow up on that request.  Supervisor Pastor 
inquired as to the deadline for processing early ballots.  Ms. Eastlick stated 
that they have to be processed prior to Election Day.  Supervisor Pastor 
inquired of Eric Mariscal, the Recorder’s Office representative, whether he was 
aware of the deadline for the Recorder’s Office to provide the ballots to the 
Elections Department.  Mr. Mariscal replied that, according to Arizona Revised 
Statutes, they must be turned over to the Elections Department so many days 
before the actual tabulations that the Elections Department does on the 
Saturday prior to the election.  Chairman Martin inquired if the ballots are sent 
from the Recorder’s Office to the Elections Department throughout the voting 
period or whether the Recorder holds them and turns them all in at the end.  
Mr. Mariscal stated that it’s a coordinated effort between both parties as to the 
number of ballots received at particular times—many ballots are usually 
received back right after they are mailed out, then the influx drops and then 
another high volume is received from voters at the last minute.  Chairman 



8 
 

Martin was inquiring so she could get a feel for what she would expect to be 
reflected in the Recorder’s policy.  Ms. Eastlick concluded by stating that the 
Elections Department tries to get them as early possible following processing by 
the Recorder’s Office because she couldn’t get enough people in a room to 
process them all on the Friday before an election and she tries to schedule it so 
that the early board workers can make plans to be available.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board 
unanimously approved the Gila County Elections Security and Integrity Policy.   

 
 3D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Order adopting 

changes to the Young and Carrizo election precinct boundaries to conform 
to the Legislative District #6 and Legislative District #7 boundaries. 

 
 Ms. Eastlick stated that the County went through many months of redistricting 

and in October 2011, the Board adopted an Order approving of the new 
Redistricting Plan and precincts that were established during the redistricting 
process.  Subsequent to that, the state has completed its legislative and 
congressional redistricting.  All of the County’s precinct boundaries conform to 
the state’s legislative and congressional plans with the exception of one small 
area on the far-east side of the Young precinct, which is actually the 
reservation boundary.  Ms. Eastlick stated that there are no people contained 
in this small segment of territory and she requested that the Board approve 
this Order so that the small segment of reservation land could be moved into 
the Carrizo Precinct.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously approved an Order adopting 
changes to the Young and Carrizo election precinct boundaries to conform to 
the Legislative District #6 and Legislative District #7 boundaries. 

 
 3E.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Public Works 

Division to send out 5 Offer Letter packages to property owners for 
acquisition of Right-of-Way based upon the appraised value as determine 
by the consultant appraiser so the Tonto Creek Bridge Project can move 
forward to design completion.   

 
 Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director, stated that there are 5 

private properties the County is dealing with in regard to the Tonto Creek 
Bridge project.  He stated that before the Arizona Department of Transportation 
will approve a 100% set of plans and prepare the documents, the County has 
to acquire the right-of-way through the Uniform Relocation Act, which is a very 
involved and lengthy process.  The County’s consultant and sub-consultant 
dealing with the right-of-way issues have put together 5 offer letters based on 
the appraised values of the properties.  He advised that the appraised values 
range from $704 to $137,800 and the total cost of all 5 of the properties is 
$271,669, which has been budgeted.  All of the residents have been contacted 
previously when the appraiser had to go on site and do the actual appraisals so 
they are aware of this; however, the County hasn’t been directly involved with 
them on any other aspects in order to be in compliance with the Uniform 



9 
 

Relocation Act.  All property owners were given the opportunity to follow the 
appraiser while he was on their property and one owner did meet with the 
appraiser, but none of the others responded.  Mr. Sanders requested that the 
Board authorize the Public Works Division to simply send out the offer letters 
to make the initial contact with the appraisal package.  He also added that 
right now is a critical period as the County is also 90 days into the request for 
a 404 Permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) and hasn’t 
received a response back from them at this time, but the County was told 
initially that it would be about a 90-day review.  So hopefully within the next 
30 days the County will have its permit in place from the Corps, these right-of-
ways will move forward and by the end of summer a set of plans will be ready 
so the County can actually start going after some money to build the bridge.  
Supervisor Pastor inquired if Mr. Sanders foresees any problems with the 5 
property owners.  Mr. Sanders replied that he didn’t believe there would be any 
opposition; however, he would be willing to sit down with the owners and go 
through the logistics.  Supervisor Pastor inquired as to the company that 
conducted the appraisals.  Mr. Sanders stated that Dennis Lopez & Associates, 
the sub-consultant to the County’s consultant, is the real estate firm that did 
all the appraisals and put all the packages together.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board unanimously 
authorized the Public Works Division to send out 5 Offer Letter packages to 
property owners for acquisition of Right-of-Way based upon the appraised 
value as determine by the consultant appraiser so the Tonto Creek Bridge 
Project can move forward to design completion.   

 
 3F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the distribution of Local 

Transportation Assistance Funds (LTAF II) to senior centers and other 
entities for their continued transportation operations.  

 
 Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated the LTAF funding (lottery 

money) will no longer be forthcoming from the state; however, there may now 
be a possibility of it coming back some time, but this distribution would deplete 
the current fund.  He stated that Diana Jones, Management Analyst, has 
provided 2 scenarios to equally divide the remaining funds.  One scenario 
(Column B) includes the San Carlos Apache Tribe (Tribe) and the other one 
(Column A) does not because the County is still trying to get an agreement with 
the Tribe from the last distribution of LTAF funds.  Mr. Stratton advised that if 
the Board opts to distribute according to Column B, which includes the Tribe, 
then the County will still have a problem of depleting this fund because the 
funds are required to be spent within 2 years.  He stated that had the Tribe 
responded and had an agreement been in place, then obviously the County 
would want to include them in this distribution also.  However, if the Board 
does select Column B, it could create further problems down the road and he 
would just have to come back to the Board and request a redistribution of the 
funds.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated, “I have not been asked for assistance in 
getting this response from San Carlos and I think I could get a response from 
them, so I don’t see basing our decision on that.  I would like to recommend 



10 
 

that we use column B and that you said we have 2 years for this distribution?”  
Mr. Stratton replied that the County had 2 years from the time of receipt of the 
funds, but that timeframe is closing quickly although he was not sure of the 
exact date.  Vice-Chairman Dawson made a motion that the LTAF II funds be 
distributed based on Column B to senior centers and entities for their 
continued transportation operations.  Supervisor Pastor inquired if the Board 
wanted to include in the motion a restriction on how soon to expect an answer 
from the Tribe.  Vice-Chairman Dawson amended her motion to state that the 
LTAF II funds be distributed based on Column B to senior centers and entities 
for their continued transportation operations and that within 2 weeks there be 
a response from the San Carlos Apache Tribe.  Supervisor Pastor seconded the 
motion, which was unanimously passed.  Chairman Martin inquired if the 
Board wished to discuss what should be done if there isn’t a response from the 
Tribe within the 2 weeks.  Mr. Stratton suggested that if the County does not 
get a response, he will bring the remaining balance back to the Board for 
redistribution, which was agreeable to the Board.   

 
 3G.  Information/Discussion/Action to direct the Public Works Division to 

investigate the possibilities of accepting Copper Hills Road into the Gila 
County Maintained Roadway System as a public road.  

 
 Mr. Stratton stated that he, the County Manager and the County Attorney met 

with representatives of the Homeowners Association of the Copper Hills 
Subdivision.  The Association presented sufficient evidence, which Mr. Stratton 
believes warrants investigation into bringing Copper Hills Road into the County 
system as a public road.  Mr. Stratton stated that in reviewing the statutes, 
before he can spend restricted funds for reading legal descriptions and sending 
surveyors out, etc. he needs the authorization of the Board.  He recommended 
that the County investigate bringing Copper Hills Road into the County 
Maintained Roadway System as a public road.  Upon inquiry by Supervisor 
Pastor if this is a continuation of the road that the County currently monitors, 
Vice-Chairman Dawson explained that the County maintains a section of the 
road to a certain point, then skips a section and then per a service agreement 
maintains the Forest Service road.  If this portion of the road is brought into 
the County’s Maintained Roadway System, then the entire road would be 
maintained.  Mr. Stratton clarified that this would only be to maintain the 
main road and would not include any offshoots or side streets, etc.  Mr. 
Stratton stated that there were a couple of representatives from the 
Homeowners Association and he wanted to make a couple of points clear to 
them and to the Board that if the Board decides to bring the entire road into 
the County’s System, all of the signage would have to be in accordance with the 
MUTCD (Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices) as adopted by AASHTO 
(American Association of State Highways and Transportation Officials) as well 
as all of the regulations the County has for roadways.  He noted that there are 
quite a few signs out there that do not meet those standards at this time and 
they would have to be removed.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated, “I was here 
when this subdivision was approved by, not this board, but a board of the past 



11 
 

and at that time I suggested this day would come.  When you decide that 
realtors and developers can wheel and deal without putting in improvements, 
it’s those subsequent homeowners who end up complaining and being 
unhappy.  I don’t blame them, but I blame the people who didn’t take the time 
at the initial step and take the heat of saying that road has to be brought to 
standards and it should have been brought to standards and then it could be a 
paved highway—county roadway.”  Supervisor Pastor clarified that it would not 
be a paved road, but rather maintaining a dirt road to County standards to 
which Vice-Chairman Dawson and Mr. Stratton agreed.  Supervisor Pastor 
inquired about the length of this portion of road.  Mr. Stratton replied that it 
was a little over a mile.  He further advised that yesterday the County just 
completed putting millings on the portion of road it currently maintains and 
will then chip seal it.  If approved, the County would maintain the entire road 
as often as it maintains the U.S. Forest Service road. Chairman Martin 
inquired whether the road is currently up to County standards with the 
exception of the signage.  Mr. Stratton replied that it appears that the width is 
okay, but there are some drainage issues and that is the one reason he doesn’t 
want to consider it as a county highway, but just as a public road.  The biggest 
component will be to send the crews out to survey and review the legal 
descriptions to ensure they are accurate.  Mr. Stratton stated that he has 
advised the president of the Homeowners Association that it could be 
December before this process is completed.  He further stated that if the 
County is going to bring this road in, it will be done by the end of December so 
that the County can receive HURF dollars for it beginning July 2013.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board 
unanimously directed the Public Works Division to investigate the possibilities 
of accepting Copper Hills Road into the Gila County Maintained Roadway 
System as a public road. 

 
 3H.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 

purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-12-172.   

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, stated that the County has in place a 
process to review bids for the purchase of state-owned land that has been 
deeded by the County Treasurer to the State of Arizona for non-payment of 
taxes.  These are properties that didn’t sell at the Board’s previous annual tax 
deeded land auctions.  Ms. Sheppard stated that she received a sealed bid for 
the purchase of Assessor’s tax parcel number 206-12-172, which is a vacant 
piece of land located in upper Miami on a hill off of Sunnyslope Avenue.  The 
total lien amount on this property is $308.87.  Ms. Sheppard opened the sealed 
bid and stated that the bid received was from Frank E. Chavez in the amount 
of $308.87, the total lien amount.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously accepted the bid 
of $308.87 from Frank E. Chavez for the purchase of Assessor's tax parcel 
number 206-12-172.   



12 
 

 3I.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 302-14-160A.   

 
  Ms. Sheppard stated that she also received a sealed bid for the purchase of 

Assessor’s tax parcel number 302-14-160A, which is a vacant piece of land 
located in Geronimo Estates, Unit Two Subdivision, in the Payson area.  The 
total lien amount is $3,088.10.  Ms. Sheppard opened the sealed bid and 
stated that the bid received was from Philip William Orstrom in the amount of 
$836.60.  She stated that on this particular property, part of the County’s 
policy states that if a person can prove they own adjoining land at the time the 
sealed bid is submitted, the Board may consider a bid that is less than the 
total lien amount.  In this case Mr. Orstrom does own a piece of adjoining land. 
She further noted that this property has been reviewed by both the Treasurer 
and the Assessor, of which they have no objections to the sale.  The Board then 
reviewed a map of the parcel and Ms. Sheppard provided information about the 
surrounding parcels and owners and she advised that there were no bidders at 
the time of the Board’s auction in 2006.  After discussion by the Board, Vice-
Chairman Dawson stated, “When we first came on this board, the usual thing 
was people would come in and offer $25 or a minimal amount and at that time 
is when we said at least pay the back taxes.  We have seldom had to make 
exceptions, but I don’t see any reason not to go ahead with this sale.”  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board 
unanimously accepted the bid of $836.60 from Philip William Orstrom for the 
purchase of Assessor’s tax parcel number 302-14-160A.   
 
ITEM 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 

 4A.  Approval of Contract No. ADHS12-022009 between the Gila County 
Division of Health & Emergency Services, Health Department, and the 
Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $51,160 annually 
to continue the funding of the Prop 201 Smoke-Free Arizona Program for 
the period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2017. 

 
4B.  Approval of the appointment of the following precinct committeeman 
as submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee:  Globe #1 
Precinct - Todd J. Wheeland. 

  
 4C.  Ratification for approval of the Chairman's signature on a Special 

Event Liquor License Application submitted by the Pinal Mountain Elks 
Lodge #2809 to serve liquor on May 26, 2012, for a wedding that was 
held at the Gila County Fairgrounds. 

 
 4D.  Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit 

submitted by Albert Keehn to temporarily extend the premises where 
liquor is permitted to be served at the Sportsman's Chalet on July 1, 
2012, for a special event. 
 



13 
 

 4E.  Approval of an Application for Fireworks Display submitted by 
Fireworks Productions of Arizona on behalf of Freeport-McMoRan Copper 
& Gold, Inc.-Miami Operations to provide a fireworks display on July 4th 
at Freeport-McMoRan's minesite. 
 

 4F.  Approval of an Independent Contractor Agreement (Contract No. 
07012012-13) between the Arizona Community Action Association 
(ACAA) and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Community 
Action Program, whereby ACAA will provide funding in the amount of 
$45,307 to provide utility deposits, repair and replacement work and bill 
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period from 
July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013. 

 
 4G.  Approval to adopt Resolution 12-06-01 to name a previously 

unnamed section of road in Tonto Basin to be called N. Chaparral Trail.  (A 
copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office.) 

 
 4H. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 080310-1 between Gila 

County and Tyler Technologies for additional Treasurer's Office staff 
training on the General Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software in the 
amount of $5,600. 

 
 4I.  Approval of the April 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Payson Regional Constable's Office. 
 
 4J.  Approval of the April 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Recorder's Office. 
 
 4K.  Approval of the April 2012 Monthly Activity Report submitted by 

the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace. 
 
 4L.  Approval of the April 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Clerk of the Superior Court. 
 
 4M.  Approval of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of May 1, 

2012, May 8, 2012, May 15, 2012, May 22, 2012, and May 29, 2012. 
 
 May 1, 2012: 
 Departures from County Service:  

1.  Martin Feldhake – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/25/12 –  
     General Fund – DOH 01/10/11 – Resigned 
2.  Richard Kruger – Public Fiduciary – Fiduciary Services Specialist –  
     04/27/12 – General Fund – DOH 01/24/05 – Resigned 
3.  Rachel Wright – Superior Court Division One – Temporary Judicial  
     Assistant – 04/04/12 – Superior Court Cost of Prosecution Fund –  
     Completed job  



14 
 

Hires to County Service
4.  Herman Tijerina – Court Information Systems – IT Administrator and  

: 

     Support Specialist – 05/07/12 – General Fund -Replacing Dennis Hanson  
5.  Thomas Dando – Public Works Recycling and Landfill Management – Solid  
     Waste Services Worker – 05/07/12 – Facilities Management Fund –  
     Replacing Mitchell Wilson  
6.  James Gibson – Public Works Recycling and Landfill Management – Solid  
     Waste Services Worker – 05/03/12 – Facilities Management Fund –  
     Replacing Vernon Davis  
7.  Stephanie Gibson – Health and Emergency Services – Breast Feeding Peer  
     Counselor – 05/21/12 – WIC Fund – Replacing Katie Meredith  
Volunteers to County Service
8.  Darrell Stubbs – Health and Emergency Services – Volunteer – 05/01/12  

: 

9.  Darlene Medina - Health and Emergency Services – Volunteer – 05/01/12  
10.  Regina Moltz - Health and Emergency Services – Volunteer – 05/01/12  
11.  Rex Williams - Health and Emergency Services – Volunteer – 05/01/12  
12.  Debra Hammer - Health and Emergency Services – Volunteer – 05/01/12  
13.  Denise Hansen - Health and Emergency Services – Volunteer – 05/01/12  
14.  Violet Williams - Health and Emergency Services – Volunteer – 05/01/12  
Departmental Transfers
15.  Jay Boyer – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer 2 – To Deputy  

: 

       Probation Officer Supervisor – 05/07/12 – From 100% Diversion In Take  
       Fund - To 60% Diversion In Take Fund – 40% General Fund   
End Probationary Period
16.  Judith Moss – Globe Regional Justice Court – Court Clerk – 01/29/12 –  

: 

       General Fund 
17.  Ginger Horta – Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk – 05/16/12  
       – General Fund  
18.  Larry Dooly – Public Works Facilities and Land Management – Building  
       Maintenance Technician Sr. – 05/07/12 – Facilities Management Fund  
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS: 
Hires to County Service
19.  Ashley Henry – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 05/07/12 – General  

: 

       Fund – Replacing Peter Beesley  
End Probationary Period
20.  Jacob Delecki – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 04/11/12 – General  

: 

       Fund 
 
 May 8, 2012: 
 Departures from County Service:  
 1.  James Anderson – Public Works Consolidated Roads – Road  
      Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 04/17/12 – Public Works Fund – DOH  
      11/10/08 – Resigned  
 2.  Christopher Beamon – Probation – Juvenile Detention Shift Supervisor –  
      05/12/12 – General Fund – DOH 07/06/09 – Resigned  
 Hires to County Service:  
 3.  Penny Miller – Community Services – Career & Employment Specialist – 



15 
 

      05/10/12 – WIA Fund – Replacing Angela Lara  
 Temporary Hires to County Service:  
 4.  David Oropeza – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 05/14/12 –  
      Constituent Services II Fund   
 5.  Malin Busby - Community Services – Temporary Mobile Crew – 05/10/12 –  
      GEST Fund  
 Postion Review:  
 6.  Paula Horn – Health & Emergency Services – From Health Programs  
      Manager – To Deputy Director of Prevention Services – 04/02/12 – Various  
      funds – Reorganization   
 7.  Earl LaForge – Public Works Auto/Equipment Maintenance – Automotive  
      Mechanic – 07/01/11 – Change in funds  
 8.  Nathaneal Cutter - Public Works Auto/Equipment Maintenance –  
      Automotive Mechanic – 07/01/11 – Change in funds  
 Request Permission to Post:  
 9.  County Attorney – Legal Secretary – Vacated by Lana Dever  
 
 May 15, 2012: 
 Departures from County Service: 
 1.  Delia Benavidez – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Lead –  
      05/03/12 – General Fund – DOH 03/07/94 – Separated without prejudice 
 Position Review: 
 2.  Angelo Cutter – Human Resources – From Human Resources Assistant Sr. –  
      To Deputy Human Resources Director – 05/17/12 – General Fund 
 Request Permission to Post: 
 3.  Payson Regional Justice Court – Justice Clerk Associate – Vacated by  
      Michelle Duarte 
 
 May 22, 2012: 
 Departures from County Service: 

1.  Ronnie McDaniel – Payson Regional Courts – Pro Tempore Judge –  
     04/09/12 – General Fund – DOH 07/01/07 – Resigned  
2.  Janice Zittle – Payson Regional Constable’s Office – Temporary Clerk of the  
     Constable – 05/03/12 – General Fund – DOH – 06/11/07 – Temporary  
     services no longer needed  
3.  John Geer – Public Works Consolidated Roads – Road  
     Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 05/15/12 – Public Works Fund – DOH  
     09/12/11 – Resigned  
4.  Ursula Donovan – Health and Emergency Services – Nutrition Services  
     Manager – 06/15/12 – 99% WIC Fund – 1% Commodity Supplement Food  
     Program Fund - DOH 01/02/07 – Resigned  
5.  Misti Williams – Finance – Account Clerk Senior – 05/04/12 – General  
     Fund – DOH 01/28/91 – Resigned  

 Hires to County Service: 
6.  Christopher Heath – Public Works Auto/Equipment Maintenance –  
     Automotive Service Worker – 05/24/12 – Public Works Fund – Replacing  
     Max Coombs  



16 
 

7.  Christopher Mooney – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Services  
     Specialist – 05/29/12 – General Fund – Replacing Richard Kruger 
Departmental Transfers
8.  Jo Anna McDaniel – Public Fiduciary – From Public Fiduciary Assistant – To  

; 

     Public Fiduciary Services Specialist – 05/24/12 – General Fund – Replacing  
     Kimberly Aguilar 
Request Permission to Post
9.  Public Works Consolidated Roads – Administrative Assistant – Position  

: 

     vacated by Cecilia Wentz  
10.  Health and Emergency Services – Staff Nutritionist – Position vacated by  
       Sherri Miller  
11.  Health and Emergency Services – Health Programs Manager – Position  
       vacated by Paula Horn  
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS: 
Departures from County Service
12.  Ashley Henry – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 05/08/12 – General  

: 

       Fund – DOH 05/06/12 – Unsuccessful completion of probationary period 
13.  Anjanette Bolinger – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 05/06/12 
       General Fund – DOH 07/19/10 – Resigned  

 
 May 29, 2012: 
 Departures from County Service: 

1.  Kristin Klee-Martinez – County Attorney – Legal Secretary – 05/24/12 –  
     Attorney’s Justice Enhancement Fund – DOH 11/26/07 – Resigned  
2.  Kevin Moran – Public Works Auto/Equipment Maintenance – Vehicle and  
     Equipment Mechanic – 05/25/12 – Public Works Fund – DOH 03/15/10 –  
     Resigned  
Departmental Transfers
3.  Susan Williams – From Superior Court – To Globe Regional Justice Court –  

: 

     From Calendar Administrator – To Justice Court Clerk Associate (underfill)  
     – 06/04/12 – General Fund – Replaces Ruben Mancha 
Position Review
4.  Ramai Alvarez – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior –  

: 

     07/01/12 – General Fund – Change in number of hours  
5.  Karen Miller – Public Fiduciary – From Fiduciary Services Specialist – To  
     Fiduciary Services Specialist Senior – 05/21/12 – General Fund  
Request Permission to Post
6.  Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer   

: 

7.  Health and Emergency Services – Nutrition Services Manager – Position  
     Vacated by Ursula Donovan  

 
 4N.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000, which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the weeks of May 5, 2012 to May 11, 
2012, and May 12, 2012, to May 18, 2012 

 



17 
 

Copies of the contract reports are permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office. 
 
4O.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of May 
29, 2012, and June 5, 2012. 

 
 May 29, 2012 
 

$1,930,010.22 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 245885 
through 246076. 
 
June 5, 2012 
 
$495,157.38 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 246077 
through 246194.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A through 4O. 
 
Item 5 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. 
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified 
on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-
431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to 
directing staff to study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling 
the matter for further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
Don Ascoli, a resident of Payson and Chairman of the Gila County Planning 
and Zoning Commission, stated that he has taken an interest in a section of 
land near Roosevelt Lake known as Lakeview Park, where the full-time and 
part-time residents of 160 trailers/mobile homes have been trying to come to a 
resolution with the U.S. Forest Service on keeping their property.  He has been 
working with the residents and in communication with Supervisor Pastor.  He 
advised that the residents of the homeowners association have been working 
on a video to try and tell their story.  Mr. Ascoli stated that he understands at 
least one meeting has been held with the U.S. Forest Service to try to resolve 
the issue.  He inquired if the Board could provide an update on this issue.  He 
also extended his appreciation for the County’s efforts towards resolving this 
issue and helping these residents and participators in Gila County, and “the 
impact they have in not only our economy, but just the fact that they are good 
neighbors and good citizens.” 

    
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 



18 
 

 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 12:35 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 19, 2012 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin, Chairman (via ITV); Shirley L. Dawson, Vice-
Chairman; Michael A. Pastor, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
and Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in an emergency session at 2:45 
p.m. this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  

  
 Item 2 - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-07 

declaring a state of emergency in Gila County due to the occurrence of 
the Poco Fire located 6 miles northeast of Young, Arizona.  

 
 Prior to the beginning of this meeting, each Board member was apprised of the 

status of the Poco Fire.  Chairman Martin read aloud the Resolution into the 
record and then asked for a motion.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, 
seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 
12-06-07 declaring a state of emergency in Gila County due to the occurrence 
of the Poco Fire.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  

  
 There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 2:50 p.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
________________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



   

ARF-1284       5- O             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/26/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for
Weeks Ending 5-25-12,6-1-12, and 6-8-12

Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly Submitted By: Valrie
Bejarano,
Contracts
Support
Specialist,
Finance
Department

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
5-25-12, 6-1-12, and 6-8-12 

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment  of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the
County Manager for the weeks of May 19, 2012, to May 25, 2012; May 26, 2012, to
June 1, 2012; and June 2, 2012, to June 8, 2012.

Attachments
County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50K for Weeks Ending 5-25-12, 6-1-12,
6-8-12
La Casa Bella Builders LLC Agreement 050812
GFI Acoustics, Inc Agreement 042712
Sun Devil Fire Requipment Inc. Agreement 042312
Noble Building LLC Agreement 050412
GR's Buff-n-Shine Agreement 051012
Stantec Consulting Services Inc Agreement 042912
DalMolin Excavating Inc Agreement 051112
First Choice Glass & Mirror Agreement 050712
Lin-Cum Inc Agreement - Treasurer
Lin-Cum Inc Agreement - Superior Court
Commercial Refrigeration Service Agreement 051512
Christine McCown, RN Agreement
EagleLIFT Inc Agreement 052112
Grammater Electric Inc Agreement 052212
National Corporate Builders of AZ Agreement 052412
Pueblo Mechanical & Controls Inc Contract 09D-0716
Digital Imaging Systems - Maintenance Agreement



Norment Security Group Inc Agreement 053012
Lin-Cum Inc Agreement - Clerk of Board



Page 1 of 3 

 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
May 19, 2012, to May 25, 2012 

 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
050812 

La Casa Bella Builders 
LLC 

 
Michaelson Building Window 
Replacement 

 
$29,222.95 

 
5-23-12 to 6-15-12 

 
5-23-12 

 
Expires 

 
Labor and material for repair and replacement of 
the windows on the 2nd floor of the Michaelson 
Building. 

 
042712 

GFI Acoustics, Inc. 

 
Courthouse 3rd Floor Acoustical 
Ceiling Replacement 

 
$4,901.63 

 
5-23-12 to 6-30-12 

 
5-23-12 

 
Expires 

 
Labor and material for the replacement and 
installation of the acoustical ceiling for the 
Courthouse 3rd floor Superior Court 
Administration areas. 

 
042312 

Sun Devil Fire 
Equipment Inc. 

 
Fire Extinguisher Inspection for 
Southern Gila County 

 
$3,500.00 

 
5-1-12 to 4-30-13 

 
5-23-12 

 
Renewable for 2 
more 1yr terms 

 
Annual fire extinguisher inspections for @ 254 
extinguishers in Southern Gila County.  Will also 
perform repair and maintenance as needed. 

 
050412 

Noble Building LLC 
 

 
Weatherization Project HH5220 

 
$6,836.48 

 
5-23-12 to 6-30-12 

 
5-23-12 

 
Expires 

 
Construction to complete Community Service 
weatherization project HH5220. 

 
 
 
May 26, 2012, to June 1, 2012 

 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
051012 

GR’s Buff & Shine 

 
Juvenile Detention Center Floor 
Maintenance 

 
$1,307.00 

 
5-30-12 to 6-30-21 

 
5-30-12 

 
Expires 

 
Labor and material to strip and wax the floors at 
the Juvenile Detention Center. 

 
042912 

Stantec Consulting 
Services Inc 

 

 
Pole Barn Infill for Tire Storage 

 
$3,000.00 

 
5-30-12 to 7-31-12 

 
5-30-12 

 
Expires 

 
Consultant will prepare the Architectural, 
Structural, and Electrical Discipline for the 
construction documents/plans for pole/tire barn 
at the new shop building 

 
051112 

DalMolin Excavating, 
Inc 

 
Truck Tractor with Belly Dump 
& Driver 

 
$25,000.00 

 
5-30-12 to 6-15-12 

 
5-30-12 

 
Expires 

 
Truck tractor with belly dump and driver to all 
regrind material for the Cooper Hills Road repair 
project. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
050712 

First Choice Glass & 
Mirror 

 
Judges Chambers Security Glass 
Install – 3rd Floor 
 

 
$12,105.35 

 
5-30-12 to 6-30-12 

 
5-30-12 

 
Expires 

 
Labor and material to install security glass 
doors/windows for at the south side of the 
courthouse 3rd floor judge’s chambers. 

 
- 

Lun-Cum, Inc. 
 

 
Archival Vault Document 
Storage 

 
$4,701.00 

 
7-1-12 to 6-30-13 

 
5-30-12 

 
Expires 

 
Treasurer’s Office vault storage service for 12 
months. 

 
- 

Lin-Cum, Inc. 

 
Archival Vault Document 
Storage 

 
$8,628.72 

 
7-1-12 to 6-30-13 

 
5-30-12 

 
Expires 

 
Superior Court vault storage service for 12 months. 

 
051512 

Commercial 
Refrigeration Service 

 
Ice Machine Installation  

 
$4,699.98 

 
5-30-12 to 6-30-12 

 
5-30-12 

 
Expires 

 
Installation of Manitowoc Model RN0408A ice 
machine and storage bin at Facilities/Sign Shop 
Building. 

 
 
 

June 2, 2012, to June 8, 2012 

 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
041412 

Christine McCown, RN 
 

 
Community Health Nurse 

 
$11,900.00 

 
7-1-12 to 6-30-13 

 
6-6-12 

 
Renewable for 2 
more 1yr terms 

 
Payson community health nursing in accordance 
with the AZ Dept. of Health Services for Gila 
County. 

 
052112 

EagleLift, Inc 

 
911 Dispatch Office Foundation 
Repair 

 
$5,500.00 

 
6-6-12 to 7-31-12 

 
6-6-12 

 
Expires 

 
Construction to stabilize the foundation for the 
Globe 911 Dispatch Office. 

 
052212 

Grammater Electric, 
Inc. 

 
Electrical Box Installation 

 
$4,650.00 

 
6-6-12 to 6-30-12 

 
6-6-12 

 
Expires 

 
Installation of an electrical box to provide power to 
the Payson SO communication/radio equipment 
room and a/c. 

 
052412 

National Corporation 
Builders of AZ 

 
Star Valley Yard Elections 
Building Repair 

 
$3,900.00 

 
6-6-12 to 7-31-12 

 
6-6-12 

 
Expires 

 
Construction to remove rolling steel service door 
from the old shop and reinstall at the new shop 
location on Besich Blvd. 

 
09D-0716 

Pueblo Mechanical & 
Controls Inc. 

 
Courthouse IT Room HVAC 
Installation 

 
$14,744.74 

 
9-2-11 to 9-1-12 

 
6-6-12 

 
Expires 

 
Installation of 2 new Mitsubishi HVAC systems to 
provide adequate cooling and 100% redundancy 
for the IT room in the Globe Courthouse. 

 
- 

Digital Imaging System 

 
Panasonic DP-1820e 
Maintenance Agreement 

 
$560.00 

 
5-1-12 to 4-30-13 

 
6-6-12 

 
Expires 

 
Animal Control Office copier maintenance for one 
year term. 

       



Page 3 of 3 

 

053012 
Norment Security 

Group Inc. 
 

Correctional Lock Maintenance 
and Repair 

$20,000.00 6-6-12 to 7-31-12 6-6-12 Expires Labor and consumable material to refurbish over 
100 electrically controlled correctional locks at 
Globe jail. 

 
- 

Lin-Cum Inc. 
 

 
Document Conversion Services 

 
$0.041 

 
6-6-12 to 9-14-12 

 
6-6-12 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment to increase the cost of per document 
microfilming from $0.029 to $0.041. 

 
 
























































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Item2.A.  May 2012 _Spotlight on Employees_ Program
	Item3.A.  Resolution No.12-06-02 naming a previously unnamed road as N. Byrne Road.
	ATT.Petition
	ATT.Public Notice
	ATT.Publication Copy
	ATT.Resolution 12-06-02
	Item3.B.  Resolution No. 12-06-04 Renaming E. Horseshoe Lane as E. Spadafore Way
	ATT.Petition
	ATT.Public Notice
	ATT.Resolution No. 12-06-04
	Item3.C.  Resolution No. 12-06-05 Renaming a Portion of N. McLellan Drive to E. Pecos Drive
	ATT.Resolution 12-06-05
	ATT.Map
	ATT.Publication
	Item3.D.  Resolution No. 12-06-06 to Rename a Section of N. McLellan Drive as S. Camino Way
	ATT.Resolution 12-06-06
	ATT.Map
	ATT.Publication
	Item4.A.  Grantee Agreement No. GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 between San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, First Things First & GC Library Dist.
	ATT.Grantee Agreement San Carlos Regional Council First Things FIrst
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.B.  Gila County Library District FY 2012-2013 Tentative Budget Adoption
	Item4.C.  Gila County FY 2012-2013 Tentative Budget Adoption
	Item4.D.  Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Task Force Grant Renewal Application
	ATT.DGVC Application
	Item4.E.  Third Amended Intergovermental Agreement with Arizona Counties Insurance Pool
	ATT.Counsel Memo
	MEMORANDUM

	ATT.IGA-Redline with Comments
	ATT.Third Amended IGA with ACIP-FINAL
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.F.  Population Health Policy Initiative Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS12-021335) with Arizona Department of Health Services
	ATT.Population Health Policy Initiative IGA
	ATT.Legal explanation
	Item4.G.  ADOT Grant JPA 12-056 Replacement of Exhibit A
	ATT.Executed JPA 12-056 FFY
	ATT.Email from Sally Palmer, ADOT
	ATT.Remaining Funds Due
	ATT.PM Signed Mod Exhibit A
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.H.  Contract Award for Bid No. 033012-1 for MC-800 Liquid Asphalt
	ATT.IFB 033012-1 Bid Tabulation
	ATT.Contract 033012-1 MC-800 Liquid Asphalt
	ATT.Legal Approval
	Item4.I.  Contract Award for Bid No. 040112-1 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants
	ATT.IFB 040112-1 Bid Tabulation Form
	ATT.IFB 040112-1 Bid Tabulation Breakdown Spreadsheet 
	ATT.Contract 040112-1 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants
	ATT.Addendums 1and2 for IFB 041012-1 Bulk Fuel _ Lubricants
	ATT.Legal Approval
	Item5.A.  Amendment No. 1 to a Funding Agreement (Contract No. 174-10) with Arizona Department of Housing
	ATT.Amendment to Funding Agreement Contract _174-10
	ATT.Original Contract No. 174-10 ADOH
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	ATT.6-18-12 ADOH Letter Re Contract _ 174-10
	Item5.B.  Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111073001) with Arizona Department of Economic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111073001 DES
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. DE111073001 DES
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. DE111073001 DES
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 to Contract DE111073-001
	ATT.Original Contract DE111073001 DES
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.C.  Agreement (Contract No. C353) with National Network of Public Health Institutes
	ATT.Agreement with National Network of Public Health Institutes
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.D.  Grantee Agreement No. GRA-STATE-13-0502-01 between Arizona Early Childhood Health Board (First Things First) and Gila County Health Dept.
	ATT.First Things First Grant Renewal GRA-STATE - 13-0502-01
	Gila County Health Department
	PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT
	Attachment E – Budget Narrative


	Disclosure of Other Funding Sources
	A.   GENERAL INFORMATION
	B.   FUNDS MANAGEMENT
	C.   INTERNAL CONTROLS
	D.  PROCUREMENT
	E.  CONTACT INFORMATION

	F.  CERTIFICATION
	G.  COMMENT AND ATTACHMENTS

	Standards of Practice
	Child Care Health Consultation
	I. Description of Health Issue
	A. Programs implementing community health education efforts will include:
	B. Child Care Health Consultants will:

	III. Training and Qualifications Standards
	IV. Cultural Competencies
	V. References and Resources

	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.E.  Amendment No. 6 to Contract No. HG854565 with Arizona Dept. of Health Services
	ATT.Amendment No. 6 to Contract No. HG854565 with ADHS
	ATT.Original Contract TB
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.F.  Extension of Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services
	ATT.IGA Extension for Restoration to Competency Services with Yavapai Co.
	ATT.Resolution No. 10-09-02
	ATT.IGA Between Gila Co. and Yavapai Co. for Competency Restoration Services
	ATT.GIla County RTC Order
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.G.  Extension of Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020 between ADEQ and Gila County 
	ATT.Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.H.  Resolution No. 12-06-03-Probation Department's Participation in FY 2012-2013 Family Counseling Program
	ATT.Resolution No. 12-06-03 Family Counseling
	Item5.I.  Landmark at the Creek - Application for a Temporary Extension of Patio_Premises Permit
	ATT.Landmark at the Creek Premises Extension Application
	ATT.Landmark at the Creek Internal Approval Memo
	Item5.J.  Agreement with the Arizona State Forestry Division for FY 2011-2012 for Environmental Progarm Assistance
	ATT.Ltr to EECO Director
	ATT.Work Plan 11_12 
	ATT.Agreement with the Arizona State Forestry Division
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.K.  Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for April 2012
	ATT.Globe Justice Court report for 04_12
	Item5.L.  Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for May 2012
	ATT.Globe Regional Justice Court Report for May 2012
	Item5.M.  Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2012
	ATT.Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report May 2012
	Item5.N.  May 22, 2012, and June 5, 2012, BOS Regular Meeting Minutes_ and June 19, 2012, Emergency Session Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 05-22-12 Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 06-05-12 Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 6-19-12 Emergency Session Meeting Minutes
	Item5.O.  Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 5-25-12,6-1-12, and 6-8-12
	ATT.County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50K for Weeks Ending 5-25-12, 6-1-12, 6-8-12
	ATT.La Casa Bella Builders LLC Agreement 050812
	ATT.GFI Acoustics, Inc Agreement 042712
	ATT.Sun Devil Fire Requipment Inc. Agreement 042312
	ATT.Noble Building LLC Agreement 050412
	ATT.GR's Buff-n-Shine Agreement 051012
	ATT.Stantec Consulting Services Inc Agreement 042912
	ATT.DalMolin Excavating Inc Agreement 051112
	ATT.First Choice Glass and Mirror Agreement 050712
	ATT.Lin-Cum Inc Agreement - Treasurer
	ATT.Lin-Cum Inc Agreement - Superior Court
	ATT.Commercial Refrigeration Service Agreement 051512
	ATT.Christine McCown, RN Agreement
	ATT.EagleLIFT Inc Agreement 052112
	ATT.Grammater Electric Inc Agreement 052212
	ATT.National Corporate Builders of AZ Agreement 052412
	ATT.Pueblo Mechanical and Controls Inc Contract 09D-0716
	ATT.Digital Imaging Systems - Maintenance Agreement
	ATT.Norment Security Group Inc Agreement 053012
	ATT.Lin-Cum Inc Agreement - Clerk of Board

